UNITED
SECURITIES ANDBXEHANGE COMMISSION

Washington,D.C.,
20549
Form 10-Q

[X] Quarterly report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2024
or
[1 Transition report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 Commission File Number: _001-34084
POPULAR, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its
Puerto Rico charter) 66-0667416
(State or other jurisdiction of Incorporation (IRS Employer Identification
or organization) Number)
Popular Center Building
209 Muiioz Rivera
AHatoeRey, Puerto Rico 00918
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip code)

(787) 765-9800
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area
code) NOT APPLICABLE
(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last

- . report )
Securities regustere&J pu)rsuant to Section 12(b) of the

Act:
Title of each Trading Symbol(s) Name of each exchange on
class which registered
Common Stock ($0.01 par BPOP The NASDAQ Stock Market
8al@6p6 Cumulative Monthly Income BPOPM The NASDAQ Stock Market
Prestrred Securities

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
fBrecurities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant
veaglired to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90

days. [X] Yes [ 1 No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to
bebmitted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or
farch shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such

files). [X] Yes [ 1 No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated
filegller reporting company, or an emerging growth company. See definitions of “large accelerated filer”,
fdecelsratdr reporting company,” and “emerging growth company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange

Bakge accelerated [X] Accelerated filer [ Non-accelerated filer [

Helaller reporting [ ]Emerging growth compan} [
ficiAR&A¥rging growth complany, indicate by check mark if the registrant has eledted not to use the
eraiesitied period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to

$e@joof the Exchange Act. [
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange

Act). [ 1T Yes [X] No

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer's classes of common stock, as of the latest
practicable date: Common Stock, $0.01 par 71,306,133 shares outstanding as of November 7,

value, 2024.



POPULAR INC
INDEX

Item 1. Financial Statements

Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition at September 30, 2024
and December 31, 2023

Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Operations for the quarters
and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023

Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the
quarters and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023

Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the
quarters and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023

Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the nine months
ended September 30, 2024 and 2023

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements

Item 2. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Partll—Other
Information
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

Item 1A. Risk
Factors
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of

Proceeds
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Item 5. Other
Information
Item 6.
Exhibits
Signatures

11

13

135
185

185

185

185

185

186

186

186

186

188



Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 10-Q contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the U.S. Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995, including, without limitation, statements about Popular, Inc.'s (the “Corporation,” “Popular,” “we,” “us,” “our”) business,
financial condition, results of operations, plans, objectives and future performance. These statements are not guarantees of future
performance, are based on management's current expectations and, by their nature, involve risks, uncertainties, estimates and
assumptions. Potential factors, some of which are beyond the Corporation’s control, could cause actual results to differ materially
from those expressed in, or implied by, such forward-looking statements. Risks and uncertainties include without limitation the effect

of competitive and economic factors, and our reaction to those factors, the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses, delinquency
trends, market risk and the impact of interest rate changes, capital markets conditions, capital adequacy and liquidity, and the effect

of legal and regulatory proceedings and new accounting standards on the Corporation’s financial condition and results of operations.

All statements contained herein that are not clearly historical in nature are forward-looking, and the words “anticipate,” “believe,”
“continues,” “expect,” “estimate,” “intend,” “project” and similar expressions and future or conditional verbs such as “will,” “would,”
“should,” “could,” “might,” “can,” “may” or similar expressions are generally intended to identify forward-looking statements.

"o

Various factors, some of which are beyond Popular’s control, could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in,
or implied by, such forward-looking statements. Factors that might cause such a difference include, but are not limited to:

e the rate of growth or decline in the economy and employment levels, as well as general business and economic
conditions in the geographic areas we serve and, in particular, in the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the
“Commonwealth” or “Puerto Rico”), where a significant portion of our business is concentrated;

e adverse economic conditions, including high levels of inflation, that adversely affect housing prices, the job market,
consumer confidence and spending habits which may affect inturn, among other things, our level of non-performing
assets, charge-offs and provision expense;

e changes in interest rates and market liquidity, which may reduce interest margins, impact funding sources, reduce loan
originations, affect our ability to originate and distribute financial products inthe primary and secondary markets and
impact the value of our investment portfolio and our ability to return capital to our shareholders;

e the impact of bank failures or adverse developments at other banks and related negative media coverage of the
banking industry in general on investor and depositor sentiment regarding the stability and liquidity of
banks;

e the impact of the current fiscal and economic challenges of Puerto Rico and the measures taken and to be taken by the
Puerto Rico Government and the Federally-appointed oversight board on the economy, our customers and our
business;

e the impact of the pending debt restructuring proceedings under Title Ill of the Puerto Rico Oversight, Management and
Economic Stability Act (“PROMESA”) and of other actions taken or to be taken to address Puerto Rico's fiscal
challenges on the value of our portfolio of Puerto Rico government securities and loans to governmental entities and of
our commercial, mortgage and consumer loan portfolios where private borrowers could be directly affected by
governmental action;

e the amount of Puerto Rico public sector deposits held at the Corporation, whose future balances are uncertain and
difficult to predict and may be impacted by factors such as the amount of Federal funds received by the P.R.
Government and the rate of expenditure of such funds, as well as the financial condition, liquidity and cash
management practices of the Puerto Rico Government and its
instrumentalities;

e unforeseen or catastrophic events, including extreme weather events, including hurricanes, other natural disasters,
man-made disasters, acts of violence or war or pandemics, epidemics and other health-related crises, or the fear of
80¥h event occurring, any of which could cause adverse consequences for our business, including, but not limited to,
disruptions in our operations;



e our ability to achieve the expected benefits from our transformation initiative, including our ability to achieve projected
earnings, efficiencies and our targeted sustainable return on tangible common equity of 14% by the end of
2025;

e  risks related to Popular's acquisition of certain information technology and related assets formerly used by Evertec, Inc.
to service certain of Banco Popular de Puerto Rico's key channels, as well asthe entryinto amended and restated
commercial agreements (the “Evertec Business Acquisition Transaction”);

e the fiscal and monetary policies of the federal government and its agencies;

e changesin federal bank regulatory and supervisory policies, including required levels of capital, liquidity, resolution-
related requirements and the impact of other proposed capital standards on our capital ratios;

e additional Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”") assessments, such as the special assessment implemented
by the FDIC to recover the losses to the deposit insurance fund (“DIF”) resulting from the receiverships of Silicon Valley
Bank and Signature Bank;

e regulatory approvals that may be necessary to undertake certain actions or consummate strategic transactions, such
as acquisitions and
dispositions;

e the relative strength or weakness of the consumerand commercial credit sectors and of the real estate markets in

Puerto Rico and the other markets in which our borrowers are
located;
e adeterioration in the credit quality of our clients, customers and counterparties;

e the performance of the stock and bond markets;

e competition in the financial services industry;

e possible legislative, tax or regulatory changes;

e afailure inor breach of our operational or security systems or infrastructure or those of Evertec, Inc., our provider of
core financial transaction processing and information technology services, or of third parties providing services to us,
including as a result of cyberattacks, e-fraud, denial-of-services and computer intrusion, resulting in, among other
things, loss or breach of customer data, disruption of services, reputational damage or additional costs to Popular;

e changes in market rates and prices which may adversely impact the value of financial assets and liabilities;

e potential judgments, claims, damages, penalties, fines, enforcement actions and reputational damage resulting from
pending or future litigation and regulatory or government investigations or actions;

e changes in accounting standards, rules and interpretations;
e  our ability to grow our core businesses;

e decisions to downsize, sell or close branches or business units or otherwise change our business mix;
and

e management’s ability to identify and manage these and other risks.

Moreover, the outcome of legal and regulatory proceedings, as discussed in “Part Il, Item 1. Legal Proceedings,” is inherently
uncertain and depends on judicial interpretations of law and the findings of regulators, judges and/or juries. Investors should refer

tRe Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 (the “2023 Form 10-K”), as well as “Part I,

Item 1A” of our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for a discussion of such factors and certain risks and uncertainties to which
E'i‘@rporation is subject.



All forward-looking statements included in this Form 10-Q are based upon information available to Popular as of the date of this
Form 10-Q, and other than as required by law, including the requirements of applicable securities laws, we assume no obligation
Ifhdate or revise any such forward-looking statements to reflect occurrences or unanticipated events or circumstances after the date

of such statements.



POPULAR, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

(UNAUDITED)
September 30, December 31,
(In thousands. except share information) 2024 2023
Assets:
Cash and due from banks $ 427594 $ 420,462
Money market investments:
ime deposits with other banks 6,530,788 6,998,871
i ts 6,530,788 6,998,871
Trading account debt securities, at fair value:
Other trading account debt securities 30,843 31,568
Debt securities available-for-sale, at fair value:
Pledged securities with creditors’ right to repledge 31,500 72,827
- ; for- 17.154.623 16.656.217
___Deht securities available-for-sale 17.186.123 16.729.044
Debt securities held-to-maturity, at amortized cost:
Pledged securities with creditors’ right to repledge 27,154 27,083
Other debt securities held-to-maturity 7,838,140 8,167,252
Debt securities held-to-maturity (fair value 2024 - $7,915,928; 2023 - $8,159,385) 7,865,294 8,194,335
Less — Allowance for credit losses 5,430 5,780
Debt securities held-to-maturity, net 7,859,864 8,188,555
Equity securities (realizable value 2024 - $198,920; 2023 - $194,641) 198,191 193,726
Loans held-for-sale, at fair value 5,509 4,301
Loans held-in-portfolio 36,599,612 35,420,879
Less — Unearned income 404,645 355,908
Allowance for credit losses 744,320 729,341
Total loans held-in-portfolio, net 35,450,647 34,335,630
Premises and equipment, net 624,376 565,284
Other real estate 63,028 80,416
Accrued income receivable 257,406 263,433
Mortgage servicing rights, at fair value 108,827 118,109
Other assets 1,767,919 2,014,564
Goodwill 804,428 804,428
Other intangible assets 7.531 9,764
Total assets $ 71,323,074 $ 70,758,155
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities:
Deposits:
Non-interest bearing $ 15,276,071 $ 15,419,624
Interest bearing 48,392,430 48,198,619
Total deposits 63,668,501 63,618,243
Assets sold under agreements to repurchase 55,360 91,384
Notes payable 918,376 986,948
abilities 890,323 914,627
Total liabilities 65,532,560 65,611,202
Commitments and contingencies (Refer to Note 20)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, 30,000,000 shares authorized; 885,726 shares issued and outstanding (2023 -
885,726) 22,143 22,143
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 170,000,000 shares authorized; 104,832,712 shares issued (2023 -
104,767,348) and 71,787,349 shares outstanding (2023 - 72,153,621) 1,048 1,048
Surplus 4,853,869 4,843,399
Retained earnings 4,495,878 4,194,851
Treasury stock - at cost, 33,045,363 shares (2023 - 32,613,727) (2,069,430) (2,018,957)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax (1,512,994) (1,895,531)
Total stockholders’ equity 5,790,514 5,146,953
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 71,323,074 $ 70,758,155

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.



POPULAR, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(UNAUDITED)

Quarters ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,

(In thousands, except per share 2024 2023 2024 2023
inrestigdome:
Loans $ 664,731 $ 596,886 $ 1,952,200 $ 1,708,216
Money market investments 96,061 99,286 272,893 265,785
Investment securities 176,656 148,614 528,403 403,814
Total interest income 937,448 844,786 2,753,496 2,377,815
Interest expense:
Deposits 350,985 294,121 1,020,420 730,824
Short-term borrowings 1,430 1,478 3,748 5,987
Long-term debt 12,560 15,167 37,799 43,660
Total interest expense 364,975 310,766 1,061,967 780,471
Net interest income 572,473 534,020 1,691,529 1,597,344
Provision for credit losses 71,448 45,117 190,840 129,946
Net interest income after provision for credit losses 501,025 488,903 1,500,689 1,467,398
Non-interest income:
Service charges on deposit accounts 38,315 37,318 113,283 109,777
Other service fees 98,748 93,407 289,883 277,748
Mortgage banking activities (Refer to Note 2,670 5,393 12,753 15,109
Rlet (loss) gain, including impairment on equity securities (546) (1,319) 876 1,165
Net gain on trading account debt 817 219 1,455 632
RRAYGESDN sale of loans on loans held-for-sale, including
valuation adjustments - (44) - (44)
Adjustments to indemnity reserves on loans sold 808 (187) 783 (31)
Other operating income 23,270 24,762 75,173 77,625
Total non-interest income 164,082 159,549 494,206 481,981
Operating expenses:
Personnel costs 201,856 193,152 614,657 583,380
Net occupancy expenses 28,031 28,100 83,764 81,304
Equipment expenses 9,349 8,905 28,578 26,878
Other taxes 17,757 8,590 47,465 41,290
Professional fees 26,708 38,514 93,370 122,077
Technology and software expenses 88,452 72,930 247,666 213,843
Processing and transactional services 34,320 37,899 107,610 108,609
Communications 5,229 4,220 14,143 12,483
Business promotion 25,637 23,075 72,075 67,029
Deposit insurance 10,433 8,932 44,901 24,600
Other real estate owned (OREO) income (2,674) (5,189) (13,745) (10,197)
Other operating expenses 21,519 23,061 77,293 70,274
Amortization of intangibles 704 795 2,233 2,385
Goodwill impairment charge - 23,000 - 23,000
Total operating expenses 467,321 465,984 1,420,010 1,366,955
Income before income tax 197,786 182,468 574,885 582,424
Income tax expense 42,463 45,859 138,490 135,676
Net $ 155,323 $ 136,609 $ 436,395 $ 446,748
NeOmEome Applicable to Common Stock $ 154,970 $ 136,256 $ 435,336 $ 445,689
Net Income per Common Share — $ 216 $ 190 $ 6.06 $ 6.22
R@Bificome per Common Share — $ 216 $ 190 $ 6.05 $ 6.21

Pietestompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.



POPULAR, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)

(In thousands)

OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Quarters ended,
September 30,
2024 2023

Nine months ended,
September 30,
2024 2023

Net income

155323 $§ 136,609 $

436395 $ 446,748

Other comprehensive income (loss) before tax:

Foreign currency translation adjustment

sale to held-to-maturity

Other comprehensive income (loss) before tax

Income tax expense

615 (976) (3,240) (220)
Amortization of net losses of pension and postretirement benefit plans 3,618 4,814 10,854 14,440

Unrealized holding gains (losses) on debt securities arising during the period 380,927 (234,827) 330,319 (199,360)

Amortization of unrealized losses of debt securities transfer from available-for-

45,331 43,783 133,761 128,726

Unrealized net gains (losses) on cash flow hedges - - - (30)

Reclassification adjustment for net gains( losses) included in net income - - - (41)
430,491 (187,206 ) 471,694 43,515

(65.203) (18.301) (89.157) (52.529)

Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 365,288 (205,507) 382,537 (9,014)

Comprehensive income (loss), net of tax

520611 $ (68.898)$

818932 $ 437,734

Tax effect allocated to each component of other comprehensive income (loss):

(In thousands)

Quarters ended

Nine months ended,

sale to held-to-maturity

September 30, September 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023
Adjustment of pension and postretirement benefit plans - $ - $ - $ -
Amortization of net losses of pension and postretirement benefit plans (1,357) (1,805) (4,070) (5,415)
Unrealized holding losses on debt securities arising during the period (54,779) (7,740) (58,334) (21,396)
Amortization of unrealized losses of debt securities transfer from available-for-
(9,067 ) (8,756 ) (26,753) (25,744)
Unrealized net (losses) gains on cash flow hedges - - - 11
Reclassification adjustment for net (gains) losses included in net income - - - 15

Income tax expense

(65,203)3  (18,301)$

(89,157)%  (52,529)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.



POPULAR, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY

(UNAUDITED)
Accumulated
other
Common Preferred Retained Treasury comprehensive

(In thousands) stock stock Surplus earning: stock (loss) income Total
Balance at June 30, 2023 $ 1,047 $ 22,143 $ 4,795581 $ 4,093,284 $ (2,018,611 % (2,328,435)$ 4,565,009
Net income 136,609 136,609
Issuances of common stock 1 1,599 1,600
Dividends declared:

Common stock ! (39,675) (39,675)

Preferred stock (353) (353)
Common stock purchases (250) (250)
Stock based compensation 184 (9) 175
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (205,
Balance at September 30, 2023 $ 1048$ 22143 $ 4797364 $ 4189865 $ (2018870 % (2533942)$ 4,457,608
Balance at June 30, 2024 $ 1,048 $ 22143 $ 4,852,747 $ 4,385522 $ (2,010,500 B (1,878,282)$ 5,372,678
Net income 155,323 155,323
Issuances of common stock 1,704 1,704
Dividends declared:

Common stock ™ (44,614) (44,614)

Preferred stock (353) (353)
Common stock purchases (59,147) (59,147)
Stock based compensation (582) 217 (365)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 365.288 365288
Balance at September 30, 2024 $ 1048% 22143 $ 4853869 $ 4495878 $ (2069430 B (1,512,994)$ 5.790,514

[1] Dividends declared per common share during the quarter ended September 30, 2024 -$ 0.62 (2023 - $0.55).



POPULAR, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY

(UNAUDITED)

Accumulated
other

Common Preferred Retained Treasury comprehensive

(In thousands) stock stock Surplus earning: stock (loss) income Total
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 1,047 $ 22,143 $ 4,790,993 $ 3,834,348 $ (2,030,178 B (2,524,928)$ 4,093,425
Cumulative effect of accounting change 28,752 28,752
Net income 446,748 446,748
Issuances of common stock 1 4,716 4,717
Dividends declared:

Common stock ! (118,924) (118,924)

Preferred stock (1,059) (1,059)
Common stock purchases (4,491) (4,491)
Stock based compensation 1,655 15,799 17,454
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (9.014) (9.014)
Balance at September 30, 2023 $ 1048$ 22143 $ 4797364 $ 4189865 $ (2018870 % (2,533,942)$ 4,457,608
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 1,048 $ 22,143 $ 4,843,399 $ 4,194,851 $ (2,018957 B (1,895531)$% 5,146,953
Net income 436,395 436,395
Issuances of common stock 5,271 5,271
Dividends declared:

Common stock (134,309) (134,309)

Preferred stock (1,059) (1,059)
Common stock purchases (65,923) (65,923)
Stock based compensation 5,199 15,450 20,649
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 382,537 382,537
Balance at September 30, 2024 $ 1048$ 22143 $ 4,853,869 $ 4495878 $ (2,069.430 B (1,512.994)$ 5790514

[1] Dividends declared per common share during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 -$  1.86 (2023 - $1.65).

For the period ended

September 30, September 30,

Disclosure of ct in number of shares: 2024 2023
Preferred Stock:

Balance at beginning and end of period 885,726 885,726
Common Stock — Issued:

Balance at beginning of period 104,767,348 104,657,522

Issuances of common stock 65,364 82,789

Balance at end of period 104,832,712 104,740,311

Treasury stock (33.045.363 ) (32,612,716
Common Stock — Outstanding 71,787,349 72,127,595

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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POPULAR, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(UNAUDITED)
Nine months ended September 30,
(In thousands) 2024 2023
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income. $ 436,395 $ 446,748
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Provision for credit losses 190,840 129,946
Goodwill impairment charge - 23,000
Amortization of intangibles 2,233 2,385
Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment 46,720 43,180
Net accretion of discounts and amortization of premiums and deferred fees (196,221) (22,495)
Interest capitalized on loans subject to the temporary payment moratorium or loss mitigation alternatives (5,933) (7,956 )
Share-based compensation 17,853 15,079
Fair value adjustments on mortgage servicing rights 10,280 11,135
Adjustments to indemnity reserves on loans sold (783) 31
Earnings from investments under the equity method, net of dividends or distributions (12,723) (17,387)
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 19,247 (13,539)
(Gain) loss on:
Disposition of premises and equipment and other productive assets (7,651) (9,744)
Proceeds from insurance claims - (145)
Sale of loans, including valuation adjustments on loans held-for-sale and mortgage banking activities (396) 177
Sale of foreclosed assets, including write-downs (13,590) (18,137)
Acquisitions of loans held-for-sale (5,810) (6,678)
Proceeds from sale of loans held-for-sale 28,697 35,286
Net originations on loans held-for-sale (31,284) (60,285)
Net decrease (increase) in:
Trading debt securities 10,445 29,415
Equity securities (7,337) (7,481)
Accrued income receivable 6,032 (17,638)
Other assets 15,425 (981)
Net (decrease) increase in:
Interest payable (4,785) 8,009
Pension and other postretirement benefits obligation 5,937 11,985
Other liabilities (28.352) (100.887)
Total adjustments 38,844 26,275
Net cash provided by operating activities 475,239 473,023
Cash flows from investing activities:
Net decrease (increase) in money market investments 469,042 (775,597)

Purchases of investment securities:
Available-for-sale

(24,469,345 )

(12,665,449 )

Held-to-maturity - (8,615)

Equity (2,370) (18,279)
Proceeds from calls, paydowns, maturities and redemptions of investment securities:

Available-for-sale 24,670,995 13,138,765

Held-to-maturity 508,511 308,129
Proceeds from sale of investment securities:

Equity 5,242 30,926
Net disbursements on loans (833,899) (1,609,387 )
Proceeds from sale of loans 18,266 133,078
Acquisition of loan portfolios (510,556 ) (556,659)
Return of capital from equity method investments 279 249
Payments to acquire equity method investments (1,250) (1,500)
Acquisition of premises and equipment and other productive assets (153,085) (133,598)
Proceeds from insurance claims - 145
Proceeds from sale of:

Premises and equipment and other productive assets 5,570 6,620

Foreclosed assets 82.986 84,446

Net cash used in investing activities (209.614) (2.066.726 )
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Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in:

Deposits 46,924 2,085,956
Assets sold under agreements to repurchase (36,024) (55,538)
Other short-term borrowings - (365,000)
Payments of notes payable (69,570) (321,000)
Principal payments of finance leases (2,717) (3,557)
Proceeds from issuances of notes payable - 437,411
Proceeds from issuances of common stock 5,271 4,716
Dividends paid (135,495) (119,715)
Net payments for repurchase of common stock (59,556) (414)
Payments related to tax withholding for share-based compensation (6.367) (4.077)
ities (257.534) 1,658,782
Net increase in cash and due from banks, and restricted cash 8,091 65,079

Cash and due from banks, and restricted cash at the end of the period $ 435,666

541,238

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Note 1 - Nature of Operations

Popular, Inc. (the “Corporation” or “Popular”) is a diversified, publicly-owned financial holding company subjectto the
gHeendgiation of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System. The Corporation has operations in
Rigiian&RGRitetStates (“U.S.”) and U.S. and British Virgin Islands. In Puerto Rico, the Corporation provides retail, mortgage,
cBithercial banking services, through its principal banking subsidiary, Banco Popular de Puerto Rico (“BPPR”), as well as
BERlEF; auto and equipment leasing and financing, and insurance services through specialized subsidiaries. Inthe U.S.
fﬁé"‘@é’r‘éoration provides retail, mortgage, commercial banking services, as well as equipment leasing and financing,
NEQ9VorkSchartered banking subsidiary, Popular Bank (“PB” or “Popular U.S.”), which has branches located in New
Yaidey N#W Florida.
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Note 2 - Basis of Presentation

Basis of Presentation

The (unaudited) interim Consolidated Financial Statements are, in the opinion of management, a fair statement of the results for
H&iods reported and include all necessary adjustments, all of a normal recurring nature, for a fair statement of such
(@H4bidatba statement of financial condition presented as of December 31, 2023 was derived from audited Consolidated
Eiagdidiahts of the Corporation for the year ended December 31,

2023.

Certain information and notes to the financial statements disclosures which would normally be included in financial
pPEYJSFBANES accordance with Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America (US GAAP),
BaMBerReNor omitted from the unaudited financial statements pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exphaigifon. Accordingly, these financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited Consolidated
Skaaneats of the Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2023, included in the 2023 Form 10-K. Operating results
irf%ﬂh?periods disclosed herein are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for a full year or any future
period.

Tax impact on Intercompany Distributions

The netincome for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 includ@ti%million of expenses, of which $6.5 million was
reflected in income tax expense and 6% million was reflected in other operating expenses, related to an out-of-period
associated with the Corporation’s U.S. sMMﬂWlnon-payment of taxes on certain intercompany distributions to the Bank
USM%y (BHC) in Puerto Rico, a foreign corporation for U.S. tax purposes. The adjustment corrected errors for
BGRB8 tAKat should have been recognized 56 ®illion and 54 million in the years 2023 and 2022, respectively,
aggregate of %6 million, in the years prior to 2022. Mrﬂllio?ﬂqeéﬂgnized as other operating expense

interest due up to March 31, 2024 on the related late payment oFﬂﬁ@%ﬂﬂMﬁin@tax, of which approximatelg.8 million correspond
to years priorto 2022. As aresult of this adjustment, the deferred tax asset related to NOL ofthe BHC and its related
%ABIRHABe was reduced by $3.7 million. The Corporation evaluated the impact of the out-of-period adjustment and concluded it
not material to any previously ¥&Sed interim or annual consolidated financial statements and the adjustment is not expected

Adrial to the year ending December 31,
2024.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
@H&Friéé management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
698tngeAhd liabilites at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
ré’h@‘i&gtbériod. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Note 3 - New accounting pronouncements

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards Updates

Standard Description Date of adoption Effect on the financial statements
FASB ASU 2023-02, The Financial Accounting Standards Board January 1, 2024 The Corporation was not impacted
Investments—Equity ("FASB") issued Accounting Standard tye adoption of this ASU since it
Method and Joint Update ("ASU") 2023-02 in March 2023, doks hold investments in tax
Ventures (Topic 323) - which  amends  Accounting  Standards Bry@isiments.
Accounting for Codification ~ ("ASC")  Topic 323 by
Investments in Tax Credit permitting the election to apply the
Structures Using the proportional amortization method to
Proportional Amortization &arcotaxt equity investments that generate
Method income tax credits through investment in

low-income-housing tax credit (LIHTC)
structures and other tax credit programs if
certain conditions are met. The ASU also
eliminates the application of the ASC
Subtopic 323-740 to LIHTC investments not
accounted for using the proportional
amortization method and instead requires
the use of other guidance.

FASB ASU 2023-01, The FASB issued ASU 2023-01 in March January 1, 2024 The Corporation was not impacted
Leases (Topic 842) - 2023, which amends ASC Topic 842 and thye adoption of this ASU since it
Common Control requires the amortization leasehold does hold common control
Arrangements improvements associated with common Iegmeleltients, however, it will

control leases over the useful life of the tluasidguidance to  determine

leasehold improvements to the common gmortization period for and

control group as long as the lessee treedmetitig of leasehold

tumurets of the underlying assets through a asponiaedmih common control leases

lease. In addition, the ASU requires acquired on or after the effective date.

companies to account for

leenelments associated with common
control leases as a transfer between entities
under common control through an
adjustments to equity if, and when, the
lessee no longer controls the use of
thederlying asset.

FASB ASU 2022-03, Fair The FASB issued ASU 2022-03 in June January 1, 2024 The Corporation was not impacted

Value Measurement 2022, which clarifies that a contractual tye adoption of this

(Topic 820) - Fair Value  restriction that prohibits the sale of an equity poooontiogment since it does not
Measurement of Equity  security is not considered part of the unit of Raldty securities measured at fair value
Securities Subject to account of the equity security, therefore, is with sale restrictions.

Contractual Sale not considered in measuring its fair value.

Restriction The ASU also provides enhanced

disclosures for equity securities subject to a
contractual sale restriction.
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Accounting Standards Updates Not Yet

Adopted
Standard Description Date of adoption Effect on the financial statements
FASB ASU 2024-03, The FASB issued ASU 2024-03 irFor fiscal years  The Corporation is currently evaluating
Income Statement— November 2024, which requires public beginning on any impact that the adoption of
Reporting Comprehensive entities to disclose additional informationJanuary 1, 2027 guiglance will have on its
Income—Expense about specific expense categories in the fitetaol@nts and  presentation
Disaggregation notes to financial statements at interim an&or interim periods distlosures.
Disclosures (Subtopic annual reporting periods to improvewithin fiscal years
220-40): Disaggregation offinancial transparency. beginning after
Income Statement January 1, 2028
Expenses
FASB ASU 2024-02, The FASB issued ASU 2024-02 in Marchanuary 1, 2025 The Corporation does not expect to
Caodification 2024, which removes various references to epacted by the adoption of this
Improvements— concept statements from the FASB AiBCe it does not provide for
Amendments to Remove Accounting Standards Codification. The abaogesng or new presentation
References to the ASU intends to simplify the Codification disclosure requirements. The
Concepts Statements and distinguish between nonauthoritative glgunated references  within
and authoritative guidance. #ecounting Standards Codification
tbe concept statements, which
ronsidered non-authoritative guidance.
FASB ASU 2024-01, The FASB issued ASU 2024-01 in March January 1, 2025 The Corporation does not expect to
Compensation - 2024, which amends ASC Topic 718 by epacted by the adoption of this

Swivpensation (Topic 718) including an illustrative example to

- Scope Application of demonstrate how an entity would apply the

Profits Interest and Similar scope guidance in paragraph 718-10-15-3

Awards to determine whether profits interest awards
should be accounted for in accordance with
ASC Topic 718. The ASU is intended to
reduce complexity and diversity in practice.

FASB ASU 2023-09, The FASB issued ASU 2023-09 irFor fiscal years
Income Tax (Topic 740) - December 2023, which amends ASC Topic beginning on
Improvements to Income 740 by enhancing disclosures regardinglanuary 1, 2025
Tax Disclosures rate  reconciliation and requiring the

disclosure of income taxes paid, income (or

loss) from continuing operations before

income tax expense and income tax

expense disaggregated by national, state

and foreign level. Disclosures that no longer

were considered cost beneficial or relevant

were removed from ASC Topic 740.

FASB ASU 2023-08, The FASB issued ASU 2023-08 idanuary 1, 2025
Intangibles - Goodwill and December 2023, which amends ASC
Other - Crypto Assets Subtopic  350-60 by requiring that crypto

(Subtopic 350-60) - assets are measured at fair value in the
Accounting for and statement of financial position each
Disclosure of Crypto reporting  period with changes from
Assets remeasurement being recognized in net

income. The ASU also requires enhanced
disclosures for both annual and interim
reporting periods to provide investors with
relevant information to analyze and assess
the exposure and risk of significant
individual crypto asset holdings.
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#igce the performance share awards of
the Corporation continue to meet
tequirements of ASC 718-10-15-3.

The Corporation is currently evaluating
any impact that the adoption of
tusdance will have on its
fiteiaoi@ints and  presentation
disglosures.

The Corporation does not expect to be
impacted by the adoption of this ASU
since it does not hold crypto-

assets.



Accounting Standards Updates Not Yet
Adopted

Standard Description Date of adoption Effect on the financial statements

FASB ASU 2023-07, The FASB issued ASU 2023-07 irFor fiscal years The Corporation is currently evaluating
Segment Reporting (Topic November 2023, which amends ASC Topic beginning on any impact that the adoption of
280) - Improvementsto 280 by requiring additional disclosureslanuary 1, 2024 ghgdance will have on its
Reportable Segment about significant segment expenses. fteteni@ints and  presentation
Disclosures For interim periods disglosures.

within fiscal years

beginning after

January 1, 2025

FASB ASU 2023-06, The FASB issued ASU 2023-06 in Octobefhe date on which The Corporation does not expect to
Disclosure Improvements -2023 which modifies the disclosure dhe SEC removes Impacted by the adoption of this
Caodification Amendments presentation requirements of variousrelated B8iBCE it is currently subject to

in Response to the SEC’s subtopics in the Codification with theiqoioswents from 8EEst disclosure and
Disclosure Update and purpose of aligning U.S. GAARegulation S-X or  rgegsgetatoits under Regulation S-X and
Simplification Initiative requirements with those of the SEC ufdgulation S-K. If by S-K.
Regulation S-X and S-K. June 30, 2027,
theSEC has not
removed the
applicable
requirements from
Regulation S-X or
Regulation S-K, the
pending content of
the related
amendment will be
removed from the
Caodification and will

not become
effective for any
entity.

FASB ASU 2023-05, The FASB issued ASU 2023-05 in Augudanuary 1,2025 The Corporation does not expect to
Business Combinations - 2023, which amends ASC Subtopic 805-60 vapacted by the adoption of this
Joint Venture to include specific guidance about how @it will consider this guidance for
Bubtapin805-60) - jentures should recognize and initially thiial measurement of assets
Recognition and initial measure assets contributed and liabilities balilites of newly created
measurement assumed. The amendments require that a jegntures.

joint venture, upon formation, recognize and
initially measure its assets and liabilities at
fair value.
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Note 4 - Restrictions on cash and due from banks and certain

securities
BPPRis required by regulatory agencies to maintain average reserve balances with the Federal Reserve Bank of New

¥atk) BReother banks. Average reserve balances in BPPR amounted 2alsbillion at September 30, 2024 (December 31, 2023
$2.7 billion). Cash and due from banks, as well as other highly liquid securities, are used to cover these required average
balafReve

At September 30, 2024, the Corporation hedd rillion in restricted assets in the form of funds deposited in money
accounts, debt securities available for sale and eﬁlﬁf#%%curities (December 31, 20238 ndillion). The restricted assets held
debt securities available for sale and equity securities consist primarily of assets held fofthe Corporation's non-qualified
fﬂ&f@'ﬂ?ﬂtfund deposits guaranteeing possible liens or encumbrances over the title of insured properties.
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Note 5 - Debt securities available-for-sale

The following tables present the amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses, fair value, weighted average
cYift@ctdfmaturities of debt securities available-for-sale at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

At September 30, 2024

Gross Gross Weighted
Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair  average
(In thousands) cost gains losses value yield
U.S. Treasury securities
Within 1 year $ 8914560 $ 1,555 $ 45154  $ 8,870,961 3.77 %
After 1 to 5 years 2,715,749 3,393 65,673 2,653,469 2.35
Total U.S. Treasury securities 11,630,309 4,948 110,827 11,524,430 3.44
Collateralized mortgage obligations - federal agencies
After 1to 5 years 12,176 - 393 11,783 1.54
After 5 to 10 years 16,512 - 763 15,749 2125)
After 10 years 107,656 403 7,038 101,021 2.76
Total collateralized mortgage obligations - federal agencies 136,344 403 8,194 128,553 2159
Mortgage-backed securities - federal agencies
Within 1 year 1,393 - 14 1,379 1.69
After 1 to 5 years 74,263 11 1,993 72,281 2.39
After 5 to 10 years 781,628 244 33,408 748,464 2.36
After 10 years 5,603,282 1,480 895,746 4,709,016 1.67
Total mortgage-backed securities - federal agencies 6,460,566 1,735 931,161 5,531,140 176
Other
Within 1 year 500 - - 500 4.00
After 1 to 5 years 1,500 - - 1,500 8.50
Total other 2,000 = = 2,000 7.38
Total debt securities available-for-sale ! $ 18,220219 $ 7086 $ 1050182 $ 17,186,123 2.84 %

[1] Includes $12.9 billion pledged to secure government and trust deposits, assets sold under agreements to repurchase, credit facilities and loan
servicing agreements that the secured parties are not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral, of which $  12.1 billion serve as collateral for
public funds. The Corporation had unpledged Available for Sale securities with a fair value of $ 4.2 billion that could be used to increase its

borrowing facilities.
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At December 31, 2023

Gross Gross Weighted
Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair average
(In thousands) cost gains losses value yield
U.S. Treasury securities
Within 1 year $ 7,103,518 $ 526 $ 59,415 $ 7,044,629 3.51 %
After 1to 5 years 3,598,209 84 170,209 3,428,084 1.35
After 5 to 10 years 307,512 - 33,164 274,348 1.63
Total U.S. Treasury securities 11,009,239 610 262,788 10,747,061 275
Collateralized mortgage obligations - federal agencies
After 1to 5 years 17,899 - 838 17,061 155
After 5 to 10 years 20,503 2 1,321 19,184 2.28
After 10 years 108,280 29 9,868 98,441 2.54
Total collateralized mortgage obligations - federal agencies 146,682 31 12,027 134,686 2.38
Mortgage-backed securities - federal agencies
Within 1 year 637 - 3 634 3.72
After 1to 5 years 82,310 11 3,536 78,785 2.34
After 5 to 10 years 792,431 75 48,250 744,256 2.28
After 10 years 6,067,353 667 1,046,909 5,021,111 1.64
Total mortgage-backed securities - federal agencies 6,942,731 753 1,098,698 5,844,786 1.72
Other
Within 1 year 1,011 - - 1,011 4.00
After 1 to 5 years 1,500 = = 1,500 8.50
Total other 2,511 - - 2,511 6.69
Total debt securities _available-for-sale [ $18,101,163 $ 1,394 $ 1,373,513 $16,729,044 2.35 %

[1] Includes $ 12 billion pledged to secure government and trust deposits, assets sold under agreements to repurchase, credit facilities and loan
servicing agreements that the secured parties are not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral, of which $  11.1 billion serve as collateral for
public funds. The Corporation had unpledged Available for Sale securities with a fair value of $ 4.6 billion that could be used to increase its
borrowing facilities.

The weighted average yield on debt securities available-for-sale is based on amortized cost; therefore, it does not give
eH8ARbE in fair value.

Securities not due on a single contractual maturity date, such as mortgage-backed securities and collateralized
BYN3@BRs, are classified based on the period of final contractual maturity. The expected maturities of
eoligtaiatizerhongegadficked securities and certain other securities may differ from their contractual maturities because they
H8&bject to prepayments or may be called by the issuer.

At September 30, 2024, the Corporation did not intend to sell or believed it was more likely than not that it would be required to
8ebt securities classified as available-for-sale. There weneo debt securities available-for-sale sold during the nine months

September 30, 2024 and ended
2023.
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The following tables present the Corporation’s fair value and gross unrealized losses of debt securities
ayaiagladamsalfvestment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position
&eptember 30, 2024 and December 31,

2023.
At September 30, 2024
Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair unrealized Fair unrealized Fair unrealized
(In thousands) value losses value losses value losses
U.S. Treasury securities $ 651,502 $ 2,369 $ 4,457,595 $ 108,458 $ 5,109,097 $ 110,827
Collateralized mortgage obligations - federal agencies 1,909 2 109,743 8,192 111,652 8,194
Mortgage-backed securities 27.420 569 5,428,612 930,592 5,456,032 931,161

Total debt securities _available-for-sale in an unrealized loss position $ 680831 $ 2,940 $ 9,995,950 $1,047,242 $10,676,781 $1,050,182

At December 31, 2023

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair unrealized Fair unrealized Fair unrealized
(In thousands) value losses value losses value losses
U.S. Treasury securities $ 244925 $ 5,126 $ 6,550,941 $ 257,662 $ 6,795,866 $ 262,788
Collateralized mortgage obligations - federal agencies 5,234 35 124,930 11,992 130,164 12,027
Mortgage-backed securities 37.118 405 5,779,260 1,098,293 5,816,378 1,008,698

Total debt securities _available-for-sale in an unrealized loss position $ 287277 $ 5566 $12,455,131 $1,367,947 $12,742408 $1,373,513

As of September 30, 2024, the portfolio of available-for-sale debt securities reflects gross unrealized ldssebillioh $
(December 31, 2023 - %4 billion), driven mainly by mortgage-backed securities, which have been impacted by a decline in
value as a result of the risingf%ifterest rate environment. The portfolio of available-for-sale debt securities is comprised mainly of
PrSasuries and obligations from the U.S. Government, its agencies or government sponsored entities, including Federal
M@Wy&'ﬂe Association (“FNMA”), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLMC") and Government National
Nestagigon (“GNMA"). As discussed in Note 2 of the 2023 Form 10-K, these securities carry an explicit or implicit guarantee
ffRMU.S. Government, are highly rated by major rating agencies, and have a long history of no credit losses.
BerpEEIBY: afipfies a zero-credit loss assumption.
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Note 6 -Debt securities held-to-maturity

The following tables present the amortized cost, allowance for credit losses, gross unrealized gains and losses,
FRRIONRAAERN average yield and contractual maturities of debt securities held-to-maturity at September 30, 2024 and

Becember
2023.
At September 30, 2024
Carrying
Allowance Value Gross Gross Weighted
Amortized Book[1] for Credit Netof unrealized unrealized Fair average
(In thousands) cost Value Losses _ Allowance gains losses value yield
U.S. Treasury securities
Within 1 year $ 599,518 $ 599,518 $ - $ 599518 $ - $ 4538 $ 594,980 2.70 %
After 1 to 5 years 7,725,178 7,200,448 - 7,200,448 62,265 2,958 7,259,755 1.31
Total U.S. Treasury securities 8,324,696 7,799,966 - 7,799,966 62,265 7,496 7,854,735 1.41
Obligations of Puerto Rico, States and
political subdivisions
Within 1 year 2,440 2,440 7 2,433 4 2 2,435 6.39
After 1 to 5 years 16,474 16,474 84 16,390 62 83 16,369 3.69
After 5 to 10 years 655 655 22 633 22 - 655 5.81
After 10 years 38,276 38,276 5,317 32,959 3,561 2,144 34,376 1.42
Total obligations of Puerto Rico, States and
political subdivisions 57,845 57,845 5,430 52,415 3,649 2,229 53,835 2.33
Collateralized mortgage obligations - federal
agencies
After 10 years 1,523 1,523 - 1,523 - 125 1,398 2.87
Total collateralized mortgage obligations -
federal agencies 1,523 1,523 - 1,523 - 125 1,398 2.87
Securities in wholly owned statutory business
trusts
After 10 years 5,960 5,960 - 5,960 - - 5,960 6.33
Total securities in wholly owned statutory
business trusts 5,960 5,960 - 5,960 - - 5,960 6.33
Total debt securities _held-to-maturity [2] $ 8,390,024 $7,865.294 $ 5430 $ 7,859,864 $ 65,914 9,850 $7,915,928 1.42 %

[ Book value includes $ 525 million of net unrealized loss which remains in  Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income (AOCI) related to
certain securities previously transferred from available-for-sale securities portfolio to the held-to-maturity securities portfolio.

[2]

Includes $ 7.8 billion pledged to secure public and trust deposits that the secured parties are not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral.
Corporation had unpledged held-to-maturities securities with a fair value of $ 66.0 million that could be used to increase its borrowing facilities.

The
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At December 31, 2023

Carrying
Allowance Value Gross Gross Weighted
Amortized Book(1] for Credit Netof unrealized unrealized Fair average
(In thousands) cost Value Losses Allowance gains losses value yield
U.S. Treasury securities
Within 1 year $ 597,768 $ 597,768 $ - $ 597,768 $ - $ 7526 $ 590,242 2.58 %
After 1 to 5 years 7,971,072 7,335,159 - 7,335,159 637 21,996 7,313,800 1.39
After 5 to 10 years 211,061 188,484 - 188,484 - 187 188,297 1.50
Total U.S. Treasury securities 8,779,901 8,121,411 - 8121411 637 29,709 8,092,339 1.47
Obligations of Puerto Rico, States and
political subdivisions
Within 1 year 4,820 4,820 9 4,811 3 - 4,814 6.17
After 1to 5 years 20,171 20,171 147 20,024 96 125 19,995 3.80
After 5to 10 years 845 845 28 817 28 - 845 5.80
After 10 years 39,572 39,572 5,596 33,976 2,814 2,766 34,024 1.41
Total obligations of Puerto Rico, States and
political subdivisions 65,408 65,408 5,780 59,628 2,941 2,891 59,678 2256
Collateralized mortgage obligations - federal
agencies
Within 1 year 13 13 - 13 - - 13 6.44
After 10 years 1,543 1,543 - 1,543 - 148 1,395 2.87
Total collateralized mortgage obligations -
federal agencies 1,556 1,556 - 1,556 - 148 1,408 2.90
Securities in wholly owned statutory business
trusts
After 10 years 5,960 5,960 - 5,960 - - 5,960 6.33
Total securities in wholly owned statutory
business trusts 5,960 5,960 - 5,960 - - 5,960 6.33
Total debt securities _held-to-maturity [2] $ 8,852,825 $8,194,335 $ 5,780 $ 8,188,555 $ 3,578 $ 32,748 $8,159,385 1.48 %

[1] Book value includes $ 658 million of net unrealized loss which remains in Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income (AOCI) related to certain
securities transferred from available-for-sale securities portfolio to the held-to-maturity securities portfolio as discussed in Note 6 of the 2023 Form
10-K.

Includes $ 8.1 billion pledged to secure public and trust deposits that the secured parties are not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral. The
Corporation had unpledged held-to-maturities securities with a fair value of $ 67.3 million that could be used to increase its borrowing facilities.

[2]

Debt securities not due on a single contractual maturity date, such as collateralized mortgage obligations, are classified in the
BEfiRAl contractual maturity. The expected maturities of collateralized mortgage obligations and certain other securities may
fidiffeheir contractual maturities because they may be subject to prepayments or may be called by the issuer.

Credit Quality Indicators

The following describes the credit quality indicators by major security type that the Corporation considers to develop the estimate
e allowance for credit losses for investment securities held-to-maturity.

As discussed in Note 2 of 2023 Form 10-K, U.S. Treasury securities carry an explicit guarantee from the U.S.
FgMEIEIEAtyARSajor rating agencies and have a long history of no credit losses. Accordingly, the Corporation applies a zero-
Rf@ﬁ"&ssumption and no allowance for credit losses (“ACL") for these securities has been established.

At September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the “Obligations of Puerto Rico, States and political subdivisions”
paestiieda®rrity, includes securities issued by municipalities of Puerto Rico that are generally not rated by a credit rating
FURMCludes 43 million of general and special obligation bonds issued by three municipalities of Puerto Rico, that are
primarily from cer@@perty taxes imposed by the issuing municipality (December 31, 202393nillion). In the case of general
obligations, they also benefit from a pledge of the full faith, credit and unlimited taxing power of the issuing municipality,
v@aiehéa by law to levy property taxes in an amount sufficient for the payment of debt service on such general obligation bonds.
EBfporation performs periodic credit quality reviews of these securities and internally assigns standardized credit risk ratings
BAs&Hevaluation. The Corporation considers these ratings in its estimate to develop the allowance for credit losses associated
Wile securities. For the definitions of the obligor risk ratings, refer to the Credit Quality section of Note 8 to the

FrRiro4AsI8tEments.
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The following presents the amortized cost basis of securities held by the Corporation issued by municipalities of
RY§7éQafigy the internally assigned standardized credit risk rating:

At September 30, 2024 At December 31, 2023
(In thousands) Securities issued by Puerto Rico municipalities
Watch $ 1,555 $ 2,255
Pass 11,060 16,565
Total $ 12,615 $ 18,820

At September 30, 2024, the portfolio of “Obligations of Puerto Rico, States and political subdivisions” also inch&desllion in
Securities issued by the Puerto Rico Housing Finance Authority (“HFA”), a government instrumentality, for which the
sBDﬂﬁS'Y)‘ﬂﬁayment is second mortgage loans in Puerto Rico residential properties (not the government), but for which HFA,
B@MK@%tee in the event of default and upon the satisfaction of certain other conditions (December 31, 2028 million). These
$ecurities are not rated by a credit rating agency.

The Corporation assesses the credit risk associated with these securities by evaluating the refreshed FICO
Péﬁ(@§en@.§ti\@s sample of the underlying borrowers. As of September 30, 2024, the average refreshed FICO score for the
g8MpMsed of70% of the nominal value of the securities, used for the loss estimatebABa&onfpared t067% and708,
respectively, at December 31, 2023). The loss estimates for this portfolio was based on the methodology established under
foEChimilar loan obligations. The Corporation does not consider the government guarantee when estimating the
ek KRRt this portfolio.

A deterioration of the Puerto Rico economy or of the fiscal health of the Governmentof Puerto Rico and/or its
(inB1GHIHGNERITiest the issuing municipalities become subjectto a debt restructuring proceeding under PROMESA) could
afuersal value of these securities, resulting in losses to the Corporation.

Refer to Note 20to the Consolidated Financial Statementfor additional information on the Corporation’s exposure to the
Rico Government. Puerto

At September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the portfolio of “Obligations of Puerto Rico, States and political subdivisions”
MeRides & million in securities issued by the HFA for which the underlying source of payment is U.S. Treasury
CorporatiorS&pBIiE&S z&Rfcredit loss assumption for these securities, and no ACL has been established for these securities
that U.S. Treasury securiﬁ@éeEarry an explicit guarantee from the U.S. Government, are highly rated by major rating agencies,
hale a long history of no credit losses. Refer to Note 2 of 2023 Form 10-K for further details.

Delinquency status

At September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, there no securities held-to-maturity in past due or non-performing

were status.

Allowance for credit losses on debt securities held-to-maturity

The following table provides the activity in the allowance for credit losses related to debt securities held-to-maturity by security

#¥Pehe quarters and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and September 30,
2023:
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For the quarters ended September 30,

2024 2023
(In thousands) Obligations of Puerto Rico, States and political subdivisions
Allowance for credit losses:
Beginning balance $ 6,251 $ 6,145
Provision for credit losses (benefit) (821) (88)
Securities charged-off - -
Recoveries = =
Ending balance $ 5,430 $ 6,057
For the nine months ended September 30,
2024 2023
(In thousands) Obligations of Puerto Rico, States and political subdivisions
Allowance for credit losses:
Beginning balance $ 5,780 $ 6,911
Provision for credit losses (benefit) (350) (854)
Securities charged-off - -
Recoveries - -
Ending balance $ 5,430 $ 6,057

The allowance for credit losses for the Obligations of Puerto Rico, States and political subdivisions Ontlodtiens for
securities issued by municipalities of Puerto Rico, and %3 million for bonds issued by the Puerto Rico HFA, which are secured
second mortgage loans on Puerto Rico residential propermfs (compared t00.8 million and $5.6 million, respectively, at December
31, 2023).
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Note 7 - Loans

For asummary of the accounting policies related to loans, interest recognition and allowance for credit losses refer to
NgiBmary of Significant Accounting Policies of the 2023 Form 10-K.

During the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2024, the Corporation recorded purchases (including
fRBHERRSERDar amounting to9% million and $68 million, respectively (September 30, 2023 1028million and %74 million,
respectively). The Corporation dichot purchase consumer loans during the quarter and nine months ended September 30,
(during the quarter and nine months &9déd September 30, 2023 - 56 million and $127 million, respectively). During the quarter and
nine months ended September 30, 2024, the Corporation purchas&3 million and 248 million commercial loans, respectively
Eeptember 30, 2023 - ¥9 million and $162 million, respectively).

The Corporation performed whole-loan sales involving approximately $million and $33 million of residential mortgage loans during
the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2024, respectively (September 30, PD28illion$ and 39 million,
respectively). During the nine months ended September 30, 2024, the Corporation performed sales of commercial loans,
iBﬁWﬁﬂﬂicipalions amounting to 12 million. The Corporation dichot perform sales of commercial loans during the quarter
September 30, 2024 (during the quarter and nine months ended Se@f@?féer 30, 2023 4% million and $81 million, respectively).

During the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2024, the Corporation securitized approximatelg million and $4 million,
?espectively, of mortgage loans into GNMA mortgage-backed securities (September 30, 2d23nilio$ and 2 million,
respectively), and $3 million and $7 million, respectively, of mortgage loans into FNMA mortgage-backed securities (September 30,
2023 - $10 million and $33 million, respectively).

Delinquency status
The following tables present the amortized cost basis of loans held-in-portfolio (“HIP”), net of unearned income, by past due

&#USy loan class including those that are in non-performing status or that are accruing interest but are past due 90 days or more

&eptember 30, 2024 and December 31,
2023.
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September 30, 2024

BPPR
Past due Past due 90 days or more
30-59 60-89 90 days Total Non-accrual Accruing
(In thousands) days days or more past due Current Loans HIP loans loans
Commercial multi-family $ 1,866 - 3 87 $ 1953 $ 303581 $ 305534 | $ 87 % =
Commercial real estate:
Non-owner occupied 170 174 7,493 7,837 3,140,418 3,148,255 7,493 -
Owner occupied 1,544 1,681 26,600 29,825 1,374,025 1,403,850 26,600 -
Commercial and industrial 19,074 6,694 23,819 49,587 5,126,538 5,176,125 19,639 4,180
Construction - - - - 190,343 190,343 - -
Mortgage 246,220 122,592 359,986 728,798 5,966,619 6,695,417 157,920 202,066
Leasing 19,840 4,661 7,367 31,868 1,855,184 1,887,052 7,367 -
Consumer:
Credit cards 16,210 11,415 27,214 54,839 1,132,050 1,186,889 - 27,214
Home equity lines of credit - - - - 2,131 2,131 - -
Personal 21,726 13,153 21,007 55,886 1,698,195 1,754,081 20,992 15
Auto 104,363 26,090 47,828 178,281 3,640,326 3,818,607 47,828 -
Other 727 500 1,188 2,415 154,775 157,190 889 299
Total $ 431,740 $ 186,960 $ 522,589 $1,141.289 $24,584,185 $25725474 | $ 288815 $ 233,774
September 30, 2024
Popular U.S.
Past due Past due 90 days or more
30-59 60-89 90 days Total Non-accrual Accruing
(In thousands) days days or more past due Current Loans HIP loans loans
Commercial multi-family $ 1,060 - % 8,700 $ 9,760 $ 2,090,008 $ 2,099,768 | $ 8,700 $ -
Commercial real estate:
Non-owner occupied 10,330 3,013 2,282 15,625 2,021,501 2,037,126 2,282 -
Owner occupied 250 1,825 22,248 24,323 1,664,220 1,688,543 22,248 -
Commercial and industrial 11,478 2,312 5,443 19,233 2,205,195 2,224,428 5,246 197
Construction - 34,349 - 34,349 888,615 922,964 - -
Mortgage 899 3,640 28,434 32,973 1,264,958 1,297,931 28,434 -
Consumer:
Credit cards - - - - 4 4 = -
Home equity lines of
credit 74 984 3,834 4,892 62,668 67,560 3,834 -
Personal 1,696 2,015 1,837 5,548 113,546 119,094 1,837 -
Other 10 508 2 520 11,555 12,075 2 -
Total $ 25797 $ 48646 $ 72,780 $ 147,223 $10,322,270 $10469,493 | $ 72583 $ 197
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September 30, 2024

Popular, Inc.
Past due Past due 90 days or more
30-59 60-89 90 days Total Non-accrual Accruing
(In thousands) days days ormore __past due Current _Loans HIPPF! loans loans
Commercial multi-family $ 2926 $ - $ 8787 $ 11,713 $ 2,393,589 $ 2,405,302 $ 8787 $ -
Commercial real estate:
Non-owner occupied 10,500 3,187 9,775 23,462 5,161,919 5,185,381 9,775 -
Owner occupied 1,794 3,506 48,848 54,148 3,038,245 3,092,393 48,848 -
Commercial and industrial 30,552 9,006 29,262 68,820 7,331,733 7,400,553 24,885 4,377
Construction - 34,349 - 34,349 1,078,958 1,113,307 - -
Mortgage 1 247,119 126,232 388,420 761,771 7,231,577 7,993,348 186,354 202,066
Leasing 19,840 4,661 7,367 31,868 1,855,184 1,887,052 7,367 -
Consumer:
Credit cards 16,210 11,415 27,214 54,839 1,132,054 1,186,893 - 27,214
Home equity lines of credit 74 984 3,834 4,892 64,799 69,691 3,834 -
Personal 23,422 15,168 22,844 61,434 1,811,741 1,873,175 22,829 15
Auto 104,363 26,090 47,828 178,281 3,640,326 3,818,607 47,828 -
Other 737 1,008 1,190 2,935 166,330 169,265 891 299
Total $ 457,537 $ 235606 $ 595369 $1.288512 $34,906.455 $ 36,194,967 |$ 361398 $ 233971

[1] At September 30, 2024, mortgage loans held-in-portfolio include $ 2.5 billion of loans that carry certain guarantees from the FHA or the VA, for
which the Corporation’s policy is to exclude them from non-performing status, of which $ 202.2 million are 90 days or more past due. The portfolio
of guaranteed loans includes $ 70 million of residential mortgage loans in Puerto Rico that are no longer accruing interest as of September 30,
2024. The Corporation has approximately $ 32 million in reverse mortgage loans in Puerto Rico which are guaranteed by FHA, but which are
currently not accruing interest at September 30, 2024.

[2]
[3]

Loans held-in-portfolio are net of $ 405 million in unearned income and exclude $ 6 million in loans held-for-sale.
Includes $ 14.7 billion pledged to secure credit facilities and public funds that the secured parties are not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral,

of which $7.3 billion were pledged at the Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") as collateral for borrowings and $ 7.4 billion at the Federal Reserve
Bank ("FRB") for discount window borrowings. As of September 30, 2024, the Corporation had an available borrowing facility with the FHLB and
the discount window of Federal Reserve Bank of New York of $ 4.0 billion and $ 5.8 billion, respectively.
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December 31, 2023

BPPR
Past due Past due 90 days or more
30-59 60-89 90 days Total Non-accrual Accruing
(In thousands) days days or more past due Current Loans HIP loans loans
Commercial multi-family 524 % - 8 1991 $ 2515 $ 289,427 $ 291,942 $ 1991 $ =
Commercial real estate:
Non-owner occupied 5,510 7 8,745 14,332 2,990,922 3,005,254 8,745 -
Owner occupied 2,726 249 29,430 32,405 1,365,978 1,398,383 29,430 -
Commercial and industrial 6,998 3,352 36,210 46,560 4,749,666 4,796,226 32,826 3,384
Construction - - 6,378 6,378 163,479 169,857 6,378 -
Mortgage 260,897 114,282 416,528 791,707 5,600,117 6,391,824 175,106 241,422
Leasing 20,140 6,719 8,632 35,491 1,696,318 1,731,809 8,632 -
Consumer:
Credit cards 13,243 9,912 23,281 46,436 1,089,292 1,135,728 - 23,281
Home equity lines of credit 230 - 26 256 2,392 2,648 - 26
Personal 19,065 14,611 19,031 52,707 1,723,603 1,776,310 19,031 -
Auto 100,061 27,443 45,615 173,119 3,487,661 3,660,780 45,615 -
Other 1,641 204 1,213 3,058 147,104 150,162 964 249
Total 431,035 176.849 597,080 1,204,964 $23,305.959 $24,510,923 $ 328718 $ 268,362
December 31, 2023
Popular U.S.
Past due Past due 90 days or more
30-59 60-89 90 days Total Non-accrual Accruing
(In thousands) days days or more past due Current Loans HIP loans loans
Commercial multi-family $ 9141 $ 2001 $ - $ 11,142 $ 2,112,536 $ 2,123,678 | $ -8 -
Commercial real estate:
Non-owner occupied 566 1,036 1,117 2,719 2,079,448 2,082,167 1,117 -
Owner occupied 30,560 - 6,274 36,834 1,645,418 1,682,252 6,274 -
Commercial and industrial 7,815 697 3,881 12,393 2,317,502 2,329,895 3,772 109
Construction - - - - 789,423 789,423 - -
Mortgage 48,818 7,821 11,191 67,830 1,236,263 1,304,093 11,191 -
Consumer:
Credit cards = = = > il ile) - -
Home equity lines of credit 1,472 4 3,733 5,209 58,096 63,305 3,733 -
Personal 2,222 1,948 2,805 6,975 161,962 168,937 2,805 -
Other 4 - 1 5 10,274 10,279 1 -
Total $ 100598 $ 13507 $ 29,002 $ 143107 $10410941 $10554048 | $ 28893 $ 109
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December 31, 2023

Popular, Inc.
Past due Past due 90 days or more
30-59 60-89 90 days Total Non-accrual Accruing
Loans HIP @

(In thousands) days days or more past due Current el loans loans
Commercial multi-family $ 9665 $ 2001 $ 1991 $ 13657 $ 2,401,963 $ 2,415,620 $ 1991 $ =
Commercial real estate:

Non-owner occupied 6,076 1,113 9,862 17,051 5,070,370 5,087,421 9,862 -

Owner occupied 33,286 249 35,704 69,239 3,011,396 3,080,635 35,704 -
Commercial and industrial 14,813 4,049 40,091 58,953 7,067,168 7,126,121 36,598 3,493
Construction - - 6,378 6,378 952,902 959,280 6,378 -
Mortgage 309,715 122,103 427,719 859,537 6,836,380 7,695,917 186,297 241,422
Leasing 20,140 6,719 8,632 35,491 1,696,318 1,731,809 8,632 -
Consumer:

Credit cards 13,243 9,912 23,281 46,436 1,089,311 1,135,747 - 23,281

Home equity lines of credit 1,702 4 3,759 5,465 60,488 65,953 eNiEs) 26

Personal 21,287 16,559 21,836 59,682 1,885,565 1,945,247 21,836 -

Auto 100,061 27,443 45,615 173,119 3,487,661 3,660,780 45,615 -

Other 1,645 204 1214 3,063 157,378 160,441 965 249
Total $ 531,633 $ 190,356 $ 626,082 $1,348071 $33,716,900 $35,064,971 $ 357611 $ 268,471

[1] At December 31, 2023, mortgage loans held-in-portfolio include $ 2.2 billion of loans that carry certain guarantees from the FHA or the VA, for
which the Corporation’s policy is to exclude them from non-performing status, of which $ 241.6 million are 90 days or more past due. The portfolio
of guaranteed loans includes $ 106 million of residential mortgage loans in Puerto Rico that are no longer accruing interest as of December 31,
2023. The Corporation has approximately $ 38 million in reverse mortgage loans in Puerto Rico which are guaranteed by FHA, but which are
currently not accruing interest at December 31, 2023.

[2] Loans held-in-portfolio are net of $ 356 million in unearned income and exclude $ 4 million in loans held-for-sale.

[3] Includes $ 14.2 billion pledged to secure credit facilities and public funds that the secured parties are not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral,
of which $7.0 billion were pledged at the FHLB as collateral for borrowings and $ 7.2 billion at the FRB for discount window borrowings. As of
December 31, 2023, the Corporation had an available borrowing facility with the FHLB and the discount window of FRB of $ 3.5 billion and $4.4
billion, respectively.

Recognition of interest income on mortgage loans is generally discontinued when loans are 90 days or more in arrears on
BRYARAIERI or interest. The Corporation discontinues the recognition of interest income on residential mortgage loans insured by
thea or guaranteed by the VA when 15 months delinquent as to principal or interest, since the principal repayment on these loans
iRsured.

Loans with a delinquency status of 90 days pastdue asof September 30, 2024 incudelli$n in loans previously pooled
GNMA securities (December 31, 2023 - L million). Under the GNMA program, issuers suBkPas BPPR have the option but not
obligation to repurchase loans that are 90 ‘rlﬁiys or more past due. For accounting purposes, these loans subject to the
BAGISARE required to be reflected on the financial statements of BPPR with an offsetting liability. Loans in our
ﬁem'@msi bEREHA from payment forbearance programs but continue to reflect the contractual delinquency until the borrower
fRfIeMRd payments or completes a payment deferral modification or other borrower assistance alternative.

The following tables present the amortized cost basis of non-accrual loans as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023
Blass of loans:
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September 30, 2024

BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Non-accrual Non-accrual ~ Non-accrual Non-accrual — Non-accrual Non-accrual
with no with with no with with no with
(In thousands) allowance allowance allowance allowance allowance allowance
Commercial multi-family $ -$ 87 $ 8,700 $ - 8% 8,700 $ 87
Commercial real estate non-owner occupied 3,514 3,979 1,332 950 4,846 4,929
Commercial real estate owner occupied 17,870 8,730 22,248 - 40,118 8,730
Commercial and industrial 9,020 10,619 - 5,246 9,020 15,865
Mortgage 68,248 89,672 206 28,228 68,454 117,900
Leasing 445 6,922 - - 445 6,922
Consumer:
HELOCs - - - 3,834 - 3,834
Personal 3,649 17,343 - 1,837 3,649 19,180
Auto 2,077 45,751 - - 2,077 45,751
Other - 889 - 2 - 891
Total $ 104823 $ 183992 $ 32,486 $ 40,097 $ 137,309 $ 224,089
December 31, 2023
BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Non-accrual Non-accrual ~ Non-accrual Non-accrual — Non-accrual Non-accrual
with no with with no with with no with
(In thousands) allowance allowance allowance allowance allowance allowance
Commercial multi-family $ - $ 1,91 $ -$ - $ -$ 1,991
Commercial real estate non-owner occupied 3,695 5,050 - 1,117 3,695 6,167
Commercial real estate owner occupied 20,432 8,998 3,877 2,397 24,309 11,395
Commercial and industrial 6,991 25,835 - 3,772 6,991 29,607
Construction - 6,378 - - - 6,378
Mortgage 84,677 90,429 120 11,071 84,797 101,500
Leasing 481 8,151 - - 481 8,151
Consumer:
HELOCs - - - 3,733 - 3,733
Personal 3,589 15,442 - 2,805 3,589 18,247
Auto 1,833 43,782 - - 1,833 43,782
Other 263 701 - 1 263 702
Total $ 121961 $ 206,757 $ 3997 $ 24896 $ 125958 $ 231,653

The Corporation has designated loans classified as collateral dependent for which the ACL is measured based on the fair
MU Rhteral less cost to sell, when foreclosure is probable or when the repayment is expected to be provided substantially
By |ther operation of the collateral and the borrower is experiencing financial difficulty. The fair value of the collateral is
Bﬁﬁﬁﬂs&@, which may be adjusted due to their age, and the type, location, and condition of the property or area or general
BHHERoNs to reflect the expected change in value between the effective date of the appraisal and the measurement date.
éﬂpfﬂéﬁl@d every one to two years depending on the type of loan and the total exposure of the borrower.

Loans in non-accrual status with no allowance at September 30, 2024 include 37 million in collateral dependent loans (December
31, 2023 - $26 million). The Corporation recognized 3million in interest income on non-accrual loans during the nine
ended September 30, 2024 (September 30, 2023 -BmilliBIPths

The following tables present the amortized cost basis of collateral-dependent loans, for which the ACL was measured based on

thR value ofthe collateral less costto sell, by class of loans and type of collateral as of September 30, 2024 and

Bgggmber 31,
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September 30, 2024

(In thousands) Real Estate Auto Equipment Other Total
BPPR
Commercial multi-family 1,293 $ -$ -$ -$ 1,293
Commercial real estate:

Non-owner occupied 168,887 - - - 168,887

Owner occupied 23,683 - - - 23,683
Commercial and industrial 3,304 - - 12,177 15,481
Construction 768 - - - 768
Mortgage 75,374 - - - 75,374
Leasing - 1,367 1 - 1,368
Consumer:

Personal 3,961 - - - 3,961

Auto - 15,173 - - 15,173

Other - - - 36 36
Total BPPR 277,270 $ 16,540 $ 1$ 12,213 $ 306,024
Popular U.S.
Commercial multi-family 19,270 $ -$ -$ -$ 19,270
Commercial real estate:

Non-owner occupied 1,332 - - - 1,332

Owner occupied 22,248 - - - 22,248
Commercial and industrial - - 35 - 35
Mortgage 1,529 = = = 1,529
Total Popular U.S. 44379 $ -$ 353 -3 44,414
Popular, Inc.
Commercial multi-family 20,563 $ -$ -$ -$ 20,563
Commercial real estate:

Non-owner occupied 170,219 - - - 170,219

Owner occupied 45,931 - - - 45,931
Commercial and industrial 3,304 - 35 12,177 15,516
Construction 768 o o o 768
Mortgage 76,903 - - - 76,903
Leasing - 1,367 1 - 1,368
Consumer:

Personal 3,961 - - - 3,961

Auto - 15,173 - - 15,173

Other - - - 36 36
Total Popular, Inc. 321,649 $ 16,540 $ 36 $ 12213 $ 350,438
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December 31, 2023

(In thousands) Real Estate Auto Equipment Other Total
BPPR

Commercial multi-family $ 1,339 $ -$ -$ -$ 1,339
Commercial real estate:

Non-owner occupied 160,555 - - - 160,555

Owner occupied 25,848 - - - 25,848
Commercial and industrial 1,103 - - 30,287 31,390
Construction 6,378 - - - 6,378
Mortgage 85,113 - - - 85,113
Leasing - 1,373 - - 1,373
Consumer:

Personal 4,338 - - - 4,338

Auto - 12,965 - - 12,965

Other - - - 305 305
Total BPPR $ 284,674 $ 14338 $ -$ 30,592 $ 329,604
Popular U.S.

Commercial real estate:

Owner occupied $ 3,877 $ -$ -$ -$ 3,877
Commercial and industrial - - 105 400 505
Construction 5,990 - - - 5,990
Mortgage 1.303 - - - 1.303
Total Popular U.S $ 11170 $ -3 105 $ 400 $ 11,675
Popular, Inc.

Commercial multi-family $ 1,339 $ -$ -$ -$ 1,339
Commercial real estate:

Non-owner occupied 160,555 - - - 160,555

Owner occupied 29,725 - - - 29,725
Commercial and industrial 1,103 - 105 30,687 31,895
Construction 12,368 - - - 12,368
Mortgage 86,416 - - - 86,416
Leasing - 1,373 - - 1,373
Consumer:

Personal 4,338 - - - 4,338

Auto - 12,965 - - 12,965

Other - - - 305 305
Total Popular, Inc. $ 205844 $ 14338 $ 105 $ 30,992 $ 341,279
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Purchased Credit Deteriorated (PCD) Loans

The Corporation has purchased loans during the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, for which
thgseat acquisition, evidence of more than insignificant deterioration of credit quality since origination. The carrying amount of

1hass is as follows:

(In thousands)

For the quarter ended

For the nine months
ended September 30,

September 30, 2024 2024

Purchase price of loans at acquisition 105 681
Allowance for credit losses at acquisition 3 26
108 707

Par value of acquired loans at acquisition

For the quarter ended

For the nine months
ended September 30,

(In thousands) September 30, 2023 2023
Purchase price of loans at acquisition 227 759
Allowance for credit losses at acquisition 9 87
Non-credit discount / (premium) at acquisition - 9
Par value of acquired loans at acquisition 236 855
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Note 8 - Allowance for credit losses - loans held-in-
portfolio

The Corporation follows the current expected credit loss (“CECL") model, to establish and evaluate the adequacy of the
provi&@brt%xpected losses inthe loan portfolio. This model establishes a forward-looking methodology that reflects the
B1RAEIBYses over the lives of financial assets, starting when such assets are first acquired or originated. In addition, CECL
MAViges initial ACL on PCD financial assets be recordedas an increaseto the purchase price, with subsequent
al18RERTEO rdbBrded as a credit loss expense. The provision for credit losses recorded in current operations is
Hﬁﬁﬁ@d&@gw%oan losses are charged, and recoveries are credited tothe ACL. The Corporation's modeling framework
E&\%\ﬁ%g risk models that generate lifetime default and prepayment estimates as well as other loan level techniques to
Rﬁ&""%@/erity. These models combine credit risk factors, which include the impact of loan modifications, with
BIEORERM N derive the lifetime expected loss.

At September 30, 2024, the Corporation estimated the ACL by weighting the outputs of optimistic, baseline, and

B@éﬁﬁﬂ'&iFAmong the three scenarios used to estimate the ACL, the baseline is assigned the highest probability, followed
B¥s§hﬁistic scenario given the uncertainties in the economic outlook and downside risk. The weightings applied are
evahiagori®n a quarterly basis as part of the ACL’s governance process. The Corporation evaluates, at least on an annual
ﬂ@i%ssumptions tied to the CECL accounting framework. These include the reasonable and supportable period as

neleraisn Pmdow.

The following tables present the changes in the ACL of loans held-in-portfolio and unfunded commitments for the quarter and

RiBRths ended September 30, 2024 and
2023.
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For the quarter ended September 30, 2024

BPPR
Provision for Allowance for
Beginning credit losses credit losses - Ending
(In thousands) Balance (benefit) PCD Loans Charge-offs Recoveries Balances
Allowance for credit losses - loans:
Commercial
Commercial multi-family $ 3,303 $ (4173 -$ -$ -$ 2,886
Commercial real estate non-owner occupied 53,386 3,344 - (69) 59 56,720
Commercial real estate owner occupied 39,375 (2,418) - (2) 1,556 38,511
Commercial and industrial 111,263 16,597 - (6,190) 1,461 123,131
Total Commercial 207,327 17,106 - (6,261) 3,076 221,248
Construction 3,638 (970) - - 1,036 3,704
Mortgage 73,900 (5,221) 3 (208) 4,102 72,576
Leasing 14,385 3,725 - (3,630) 1,374 15,854
Consumer
Credit cards 86,313 21,238 - (17,503) 2,646 92,694
Home equity lines of credit 83 (90) - (82) 158 69
Personal 94,021 20,232 - (24,712) 2,526 92,067
Auto 157,449 20,765 - (23,011) 6,110 161,313
Other 6,489 362 - (728) 526 6,649
Total Consumer 344 355 62,507 o (66,036 ) 11,966 352,792
Total - Loans $ 643,605 $ 77,147 $ 33 (76,135% 21,554 $ 666,174
Allowance for credit losses - unfunded commitments:
Commercial $ 5,540 $ 816 $ -$ -$ -$ 6,356
Construction 2,095 B2 = = = 2,468
Ending balance - unfunded commitments [1] $ 7,635 $ 1189 $ -3 -3 -$ 8,824

[1] Allowance for credit losses of unfunded commitments

is presented as part of Other Liabilities in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.
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For the quarter ended September 30, 2024

Popular U.S.
Provision for
Beginning credit losses - Ending

(In thousands) Balance (benefit) Charge-offs Recoveries Balance
Allowance for credit losses - loans:
Commercial

Commercial multi-family $ 7877  $ (1,126) $ - $ 5 8 6,756

Commercial real estate non-owner occupied 10,849 53 (54) 62 10,910

Commercial real estate owner occupied 18,815 (4,430) - 19 14,404

Commercial and industrial 15,219 (1,617) (613) 241 13,230

Total Commercial 52,760 (7,120) (667) 327 45,300
Construction 9,251 259 - - 9,510
Mortgage 9,389 (361) - 46 9,074
Consumer

Home equity lines of credit 1,643 22 (4) 124 1,785

Personal 13,427 2,799 (4,442) 691 12,475

Other 2 23 (28) 5 2

Total Consumer 15,072 2,844 (4.474) 820 14,262
Total - Loans $ 86472 3 (4378) $ (5141) $ 1193 $ 78,146
Allowance for credit losses - unfunded commitments:
Commercial $ 2,850 $ (1,080) $ - 0% -8 1,770
Construction 8,399 (609) - - 7,790
Ending balance - unfunded commitments [1] $ 11,249  $ (1689) $ - % - % 9,560

[1] Allowance for credit losses of unfunded commitments is presented as part of Other Liabilities in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.
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For the quarter ended September 30, 2024

Popular Inc.
Provision for Allowance for
Beginning credit losses credit losses - Ending

(In thousands) Balance (benefit) PCD Loans Charge-offs Recoveries Balance
Allowance for credit losses - loans:
Commercial

Commercial multi-family $ 11,180 $ (1,543% -$ -$ 5% 9,642

Commercial real estate non-owner occupied 64,235 3,397 - (123) 121 67,630

Commercial real estate owner occupied 58,190 (6,848) - (2) 1,575 52,915

Commercial and industrial 126,482 14,980 - (6,803) 1,702 136,361

Total Commercial 260,087 9,986 - (6,928) 3,403 266,548
Construction 12,889 (711) - - 1,036 13,214
Mortgage 83,289 (5,582) 3 (208) 4,148 81,650
Leasing 14,385 3,725 - (3,630) 1,374 15,854
Consumer

Credit cards 86,313 21,238 - (17,503) 2,646 92,694

Home equity lines of credit 1,726 (68) - (86) 282 1,854

Personal 107,448 23,031 - (29,154) 3,217 104,542

Auto 157,449 20,765 - (23,011) 6,110 161,313

Other 6,491 385 - (756 ) 531 6,651

Total Consumer 359,427 65,351 = (70,510) 12,786 367,054
Total - Loans $ 730,077 $ 72,769 $ 3% (81276% 22,747 $ 744,320
Allowance for credit losses - unfunded commitments:
Commercial $ 8,390 $ (2649 -$ -$ -$ 8,126
Construction 10,494 (236) = = = 10,258
Ending balance - unfunded commitments [1] $ 18884 $ (5009 -$ -$ -$ 18.384

[1] Allowance for credit losses of unfunded commitments is _presented as part of Other Liabilities in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.
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For the nine months ended September 30, 2024

BPPR
Provision for Allowance for
Beginning credit losses credit losses - Ending

(In thousands) Balance (benefit) PCD Loans Charge-off Recoveries Balance
Allowance for credit losses - loans:
Commercial

Commercial multi-family $ 3,614 $ (7299 -$ -$ 13 2,886

Commercial real estate non-owner occupied 53,754 2,607 - (69) 428 56,720

Commercial real estate owner occupied 40,637 (2,567) - (2,787) 3,228 38,511

Commercial and industrial 107,577 31,413 - (20,931) 5,072 123,131

Total Commercial 205,582 30,724 - (23,787) 8,729 221,248
Construction 5,294 (2,626) - - 1,036 3,704
Mortgage 72,440 (11,959) 26 (999) 13,068 72,576
Leasing 9,708 14,787 - (12,321) 3,680 15,854
Consumer

Credit cards 80,487 54,734 - (50,318) 7,791 92,694

Home equity lines of credit 103 215 - (373) 304 69

Personal 101,181 55,987 - (72,354) 7,253 92,067

Auto 157,931 44,386 - (59,787) 18,783 161,313

Other 7,132 672 - (2,072) 917 6,649

Total Consumer 346,834 155,814 = (184.904) 35,048 352,792
Total - Loans $ 639,858 $ 186,740 $ 263 (222,011% 61,561 $ 666,174
Allowance for credit losses - unfunded commitments:
Commercial $ 5,062 $ 1,294 $ -$ -$ -$ 6,356
Construction 1,618 850 - - - 2,468
Ending balance - unfunded commitments [1] $ 6,680 $ 2144 $ -$ -$ -3$ 8,824

[1]Allowance for credit losses of unfunded commitments is presented as part of Other Liabilities in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.
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For the nine months ended September 30, 2024

Popular U.S.
Provision for
Beginning credit losses - Ending
(In thousands) Balance (benefit) Charge-offs Recoveries Balance
Allowance for credit losses - loans:
Commercial
Commercial multi-family $ 10,126 $ (2,939) $ (441) $ 10 $ 6,756
Commercial real estate non-owner occupied 11,699 (903) (54) 168 10,910
Commercial real estate owner occupied 16,227 (1,925) - 102 14,404
Commercial and industrial 14,779 219 (2,372) 604 13,230
Total Commercial 52,831 (5,548) (2,867) 884 45,300
Construction 7,392 2,018 - 100 9,510
Mortgage 10,774 (1,788) (18) 106 9,074
Consumer
Home equity lines of credit 1,875 (741) (25) 676 1,785
Personal 16,609 8,585 (14,750) 2,031 12,475
Other 2 46 (77) 31 2
Total Consumer 18,486 7,890 (14.852) 2,738 14,262
Total - Loans $ 89483 $ 2572 3 (17,737) $ 3828 $ 78,146
Allowance for credit losses - unfunded commitments:
Commercial $ 1,851 $ (81) s - 0% - 0% 1,770
Construction 8,446 (656) - - 7,790
Consumer 29 (29) - - -
Ending balance - unfunded commitments [1] $ 10326 $ (766) $ - 3 - 3 9,560

[1] Allowance for credit losses of unfunded commitments is presented as part of Other Liabilities in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.
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For the nine months ended September 30, 2024
Popular Inc.

Provision for Allowance for

Beginning credit losses credit losses - Ending
(In thousands) Balance (benefit) PCD Loans Charge-offs Recoveries Balance
Allowance for credit losses - loans:
Commercial
Commercial multi-family $ 13,740 $ (13,6689 -$ (4419 18 9,642
Commercial real estate non-owner occupied 65,453 1,704 - (123) 596 67,630
Commercial real estate owner occupied 56,864 (4,492) - (2,787) 3,330 52,915
Commercial and industrial 122,356 31,632 - (23,303) 5,676 136,361
Total Commercial 258,413 25,176 - (26,654) 9,613 266,548
Construction 12,686 (608) - - 1,136 13,214
Mortgage 83,214 (13,747) 26 (1,017) 13,174 81,650
Leasing 9,708 14,787 - (12,321) 3,680 15,854
Consumer
Credit cards 80,487 54,734 - (50,318) 7,791 92,694
Home equity lines of credit 1,978 (706) - (398) 980 1,854
Personal 117,790 64,572 - (87,104) 9,284 104,542
Auto 157,931 44,386 - (59,787) 18,783 161,313
Other 7,134 718 - (2,149) 948 6,651
Total Consumer 365,320 163,704 - (199,756) 37,786 367,054
Total - Loans $ 729,341 $ 189312 $ 26 $ (239,748% 65,389 $ 744,320
Allowance for credit losses - unfunded commitments:
Commercial $ 6,913 $ 1,213 $ -$ -3 -3 8,126
Construction 10,064 194 - - - 10,258
Consumer 29 (29) - - - -
Ending balance - unfunded commitments [1] $ 17,006 $ 1378 $ -$ -$ -$ 18,384

[1] Allowance for credit losses of unfunded commitments is presented as part of Other Liabilities in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.
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For the quarter ended September 30, 2023
BPPR

Provision for

Allowance for

Beginning credit losses credit losses - Ending
(In thousands) Balance (benefif) PCD Loans Charge-off Recoveries Balance
Allowance for credit losses - loans:
Commercial
Commercial multi-family $ 4,787 $ (1,306% -$ -$ -$ 3,481
Commercial real estate non-owner occupied 53,366 (326) - (27) 195 53,208
Commercial real estate owner occupied 41,901 (242) - (446) 280 41,493
Commercial and industrial 81,637 (4,605) - (2,311) 12,858 87,579
Total Commercial 181,691 (6,479) - (2,784) 13,333 185,761
Construction 9,554 (1,486) - (2,611) - 5,457
Mortgage 82,899 (6,808) 9 (62) 3,862 79,900
Leasing 13,927 (2,287) - (2,292) 850 10,198
Consumer
Credit cards 71,408 9,773 - (10,865) 2,234 72,550
Home equity lines of credit 96 (39) - (43) 73 87
Personal 96,046 28,964 - (19,260) 1,957 107,707
Auto 134,247 30,880 - (14,553) 4,862 155,436
Other 6,240 1,499 - (494) 193 7,438
Total C 308,037 71.077 - (45215) 9319 343218
Total - Loans $ 596.108 $ 54017 $ 9% (52.964% 27.364 $ 624,534
Allowance for credit losses - unfunded commitments:
Commercial $ 5,288 $ (4009 -$ -$ -$ 4,888
Construction 3,110 (1,768) - - - 1,342
Ending balance - unfunded commitments [1 $ 8398 $ (2168 -$ -$ -$ 6.230

[1]Allowance for credit losses of unfunded commitments is presented as part of Other Liabilities in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.
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For the quarter ended September 30, 2023

Popular U.S.
Provision for
Beginning credit losses Ending

(In thousands) Balance (benefit) Charge-offs Recoveries Balance
Allowance for credit losses - loans:
Commercial

Commercial multi-family $ 21,392 % (9,651)% -$ 13 11,742

Commercial real estate non-owner occupied 18,350 (4,475) - 66 13,941

Commercial real estate owner occupied 9,506 (1,688) (1,218) 16 6,616

Commercial and industrial 18,014 (1,109) (1,228) 329 16,006

Total Commercial 67,262 (16,923) (2,446) 412 48,305
Construction 1,778 3,736 - - 5,514
Mortgage 13,194 (1,252) _ 62 12,004
Consumer

Home equity lines of credit 2,074 238 (224) 212 2,300

Personal 19,782 3,659 (5,636 ) 604 18,409

Other 2 39 (43) 4 2
__Total Consumer 21.858 3.936 (5.903) 820 20,711
Total - Loans $ 104,092 $ (10.503)$ (8.3493 1294 $ 86,534
Allowance for credit losses - unfunded commitments:
Commercial $ 1,348 $ 197 $ -$ -$ 1,545
Construction 1,797 3,658 - - 5,455
Consumer 50 4 = = 54
Ending balance - unfunded commitments [1] $ 3195 % 3.859 $ -$ -3 7.054

[1]Allowance for credit losses of unfunded commitments is presented as part of Other Liabilities in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.
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For the quarter ended September 30, 2023

Popular Inc.

Provision for

Allowance for

Beginning credit losses credit losses - Ending
(In thousands) Balance (benefit) Charge-offs Recoveries Balance
Allowance for credit losses - loans:
Commercial
Commercial multi-family $ 26,179 $ (10,9579 -$ -$ 1% 15,223
Commercial real estate non-owner occupied 71,716 (4,801) - (27) 261 67,149
Commercial real estate owner occupied 51,407 (1,930) - (1,664) 296 48,109
Commercial and industrial 99,651 (5,714) - (3,539) 13,187 103,585
Total Commercial 248,953 (23,402) - (5,230) 13,745 234,066
Construction 11,332 2,250 - (2,611) - 10,971
Mortgage 96,093 (8,060) 9 (62) 3,924 91,904
Leasing 13,927 (2,287) - (2,292) 850 10,198
Consumer
Credit cards 71,408 9,773 - (10,865) 2,234 72,550
Home equity lines of credit 2,170 199 - (267) 285 2,387
Personal 115,828 32,623 - (24,896) 2,561 126,116
Auto 134,247 30,880 - (14,553) 4,862 155,436
Other 6,242 1,538 - (537) 197 7,440
Total Consumer 329,895 75,013 - (51,118) 10,139 363,929
Total - Loans $ 700,200 $ 43514 $ 9% (61,313% 28,658 $ 711,068
Allowance for credit losses - unfunded commitments:
Commercial $ 6,636 $ (2039 -$ -$ -$ 6,433
Construction 4,907 1,890 - - - 6,797
Consumer 50 4 - - - 54
Ending balance - unfunded commitments [1] $ 11,593 $ 1691 $ -3 -3 -$ 13,284

[1]Allowance for credit losses of unfunded commitments is presented as part of Other Liabilities in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.

45



For the nine months ended September 30, 2023

BPPR
Impact of Provision for  Allowance for
Beginning Adopting credit losses  credit losses - Net write  Ending

(In thousands) Balance ASU 2022-02 (benefit) PCD Loans __ Charge-offs _Recoveries down Balance
Allowance for credit losses - loans:
Commercial

Commercial multi-family $ 5210 $ -$ (1,730% -$ -$ 1% -$ 3,481

Commercial real estate non-owner occupied 52,475 - 860 - (636) 509 - 53,208

Commercial real estate owner occupied 48,393 (1161) (7,409) - (525) 2,195 - 41,493

Commercial and industrial 68,217 (552) 8,378 - (4,979) 16,515 - 87,579

Total Commercial 174,295 (1,713) 99 - (6,140) 19,220 - 185,761
Construction 2,978 - 5,090 - (2,611) - - 5,457
Mortgage 117,344 (33,556) (15,113) 87 (1,205) 12,343 - 79,900
Leasing 20,618 (35) (7,023) - (6,249) 2,887 - 10,198
Consumer

Credit cards 58,670 - 35,901 - (27,998) 6,578 (601) 72,550

Home equity lines of credit 103 - (107) - (111) 202 - 87

Personal 96,369 (7,020) 60,347 - (49,441) 7,452 - 107,707

Auto 129,735 (21) 45,108 - (34,770) 15,384 - 155,436

Other 15,433 - 3,297 - (11,855) 563 - 7,438

Total Consumer 300,310 (7,041) 144,546 - (124175) 30,179 (601) 343218
Total - Loans $ 615545 % (42345% 127,599 $ 87 $ (140,380% 64,629 $ (6019 624,534
Allowance for credit losses - unfunded commitments:
Commercial $ 4,336 $ -$ 552 $ -$ -$ -$ -$ 4,888
Construction 2.022 — (680) - - - - 1,342
Ending balance - unfunded commitments [1] $ 6358 $ -$ (1289 - $ -$ -$ -$ 6.230

[1] Allowance for credit losses of unfunded commitments is _presented as part of Other Liabilities in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.
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For the nine months ended September 30, 2023

Popular U.S.
Impact of Provision for
Beginning Adopting credit losses Ending

(In thousands) Balance ASU 2022-02 (benefit) Charge-offs Recoveries Balance
Allowance for credit losses - loans:
Commercial

Commercial multi-family $ 21,101 $ -$ (19,3639 - $ 4 3 11,742

Commercial real estate non-owner occupied 19,065 - (7,108) - 1,984 13,941

Commercial real estate owner occupied 8,688 - (738) (1,395) 61 6,616

Commercial and industrial 12,227 - 5,943 (3,808) 1,644 16,006

Total Commercial 61,081 - (11,266) (5,203) 3,693 48,305
Construction 1,268 - 4,246 - - 5,514
Mortgage 17,910 (2,098) (3,993) _ 185 12,004
Consumer

Credit cards - - 1 (1) - -

Home equity lines of credit 2,439 - (419) (419) 699 2,300

Personal 22,057 (1,140) 10,019 (14,093) 1,566 18,409

Other 2 - 134 (143) 9 2

Total Consumer 24,498 (1,140) 9,735 (14,656) 2,274 20,711
Total - Loans $ 104,757 $ (3,238% (12783 (19859) $ 6152 $ 86,534
Allowance for credit losses - unfunded commitments:
Commercial $ 1,175 $ -3 370 % -8 - $ 1,545
Construction 1,184 - 4,271 - - 5,455
Consumer 88 - (34) - - 54
Ending balance - unfunded commitments [1] $ 2447 $ -$ 4,607 $ - $ - $ 7,054

[1] Allowance for credit losses of unfunded commitments is presented as part of Other Liabilities in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.
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For the nine months ended September 30, 2023

Popular Inc.

Impact Provision for ~ Allowance
credif®sses

Beginning  of adopting  credit losses Net write Ending

Allowance for credit losses - loans:

Commercial
Commercial multi-family $ 26311 $ -$ (11,093% -$ -$ 5% -$ 15,223
Commercial real estate non-owner occupied 71,540 - (6,248) - (636) 2,493 - 67,149
Commercial real estate owner occupied 57,081 (1,161) (8,147) - (1,920) 2,256 - 48,109
Commercial and industrial 80,444 (552) 14,321 - (8,787) 18,159 - 103,585
Total Commercial 235,376 (1,713)  (11,167) B (11,343) 22,913 - 234,066
Construction 4,246 - 9,336 - (2,611) - - 10,971
Mortgage 135,254 (35654)  (19,106) 87 (1,205) 12,528 - 91,904
Leasing 20,618 (35) (7,023) - (6,249) 2,887 - 10,198
Consumer
Credit cards 58,670 - 35,902 - (27,999) 6,578 (601) 72,550
Home equity lines of credit 2,542 - (526) - (530) 901 - 2,387
Personal 118,426 (8,160) 70,366 - (63,534) 9,018 - 126,116
Auto 129,735 (21) 45,108 - (34,770) 15,384 - 155,436
Other 15,435 - 3,431 - (11,998) 572 - 7,440
Total C 324,808 (8.181) 154,281 - (138.831) 32,453 (601) 363929
Total - Loans $ 7203029$ (455839 126321 $ 87 $ (160,239% 70781 $ (6019 711.068
Allowance for credit losses - unfunded commitments:
Commercial $ 5511 $ -$ 922 $ -$ -$ -$ -$ 6,433
Construction 3,206 - 3,591 - - - - 6,797
Consumer 88 - (34) - - - - 54
Ending balance - unfunded commitments [1] $ 8805 % - $ 4479 $ -3 -3 -$ -$ 13284

[1] Allowance for credit losses of unfunded commitments is presented as part of Other Liabilities in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.

Modifications

A modification constitutes a change in loan terms in the form of principal forgiveness, an interest rate reduction,

m@@hiﬁbéﬁt payment delay, term extension or combination of the above made to a borrower experiencing financial
difficulty.
The amount of outstanding commitments to lend additional funds to debtors with financial difficulties owing receivables whose

f4Sbeen modified during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and September 30, 2023 amount&®.aadillion and
$17.0 million, respectively, related to the commercial loan portfolios.

The following tables show the amortized cost basis of the loans modified to borrowers experiencing financial difficulties at the end
e reporting period disaggregated by class of financing receivable and type of concession granted for the quarters and nine
Mﬂ%eptember 30, 2024 and September 30, 2023. Loans modified to borrowers under financial difficulties that were
BBWn,p@fiﬁrged-off or foreclosed upon by period end are not reported.
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Loan Modifications Made to Borrowers Experiencing Financial Difficulty for the quarter ended September 30, 2024

Interest Rate Reduction

BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Amortized Cost Amortized Cost Amortized Cost
Basis at % of total class Basis at % of total class of Basisat % of total class of
September 30, of Financing September 30, Financing September 30, Financing
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 Receivable 2024 Receivable 2024 Receivable
CRE owner occupied $ 147 0.01% $ = -% $ 147 %
Commercial and industrial 693 0.01% - -% 693 0.01%
Consumer:
Credit cards 213 0.02% - -% 213 0.02%
Personal 830 0.05% - -% 830 0.04 %
Total $ 1,883 0.01% $ - -% $ 1,883 0.01%
Term Extension
BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Amortized Cost Amortized Cost Amortized Cost
Basisat % of total class Basis at % of total class of Basis at % of total class of
September 30, of Financing September 30, Financing September 30, Financing
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 Receivable 2024 Receivable 2024 Receivable
Commercial multi-family $ - % $ 10,570 0.50% $ 10,570 0.44%
CRE non-owner occupied 13,108 0.42% - % 13,108 0.25%
CRE owner occupied 764 0.05% - -% 764 0.02%
Commercial and industrial 20,966 0.41% - % 20,966 0.28%
Construction 768 0.40% = -% 768 0.07%
Mortgage 11,850 0.18% 429 0.03% 12,279 0.15%
Consumer:
Personal 148 0.01% - -% 148 0.01%
Total $ 47,604 0.19% $ 10,999 0.11% $ 58,603 0.16 %
Other-Than-Insignificant Payment Delays
BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Amortized Cost Amortized Cost Amortized Cost
Basisat % of total class Basis at % of total class of Basis at % of total class of
September 30, of Financing September 30, Financing September 30, Financing
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 Receivable 2024 Receivable 2024 Receivable
CRE non-owner occupied $ 139 % $ = -% $ 139 %
CRE owner occupied 4,993 0.36% - -% 4,993 0.16%
Commercial and industrial 71,867 1.39% - % 71,867 0.97 %
Consumer:
Credit cards 5 -% - -% 5 -%
Total $ 77,004 0.30% $ - -% $ 77,004 0.21%
Combination - Term Extension and Interest Rate Reduction
BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Amortized Cost Amortized Cost Amortized Cost
Basis at % of total class Basis at % of total class of Basisat % of total class of
September 30, of Financing September 30, Financing September 30, Financing
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 Receivable 2024 Receivable 2024 Receivable
CRE owner occupied $ 202 0.01% $ = -% $ 202 0.01%
Commercial and industrial 44 -% - -% 44 -%
Mortgage 4,728 0.07% - -% 4,728 0.06 %
Consumer:
Personal 2,569 0.15% 65 0.05 % 2,634 0.14%
Total $ 7,543 0.03% $ 65 -% $ 7,608 0.02 %
Combination - Other-Than-Insignificant Payment Delays and Interest Rate | 1
Puerto Rico Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Amortized Cost Amortized Cost Amortized Cost
Basis at % of total class Basis at % of total class of Basisat % of total class of
September 30, of Financing September 30, Financing September 30, Financing
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 Receivable 2024 Receivable 2024 Receivable
Commercial and industrial $ 23 % $ = -% $ 23 %
Consumer:
Credit cards 862 0.07% - -% 862 0.07%
Total $ 885 % $ - % $ 885 -%
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Loan Modifications Made to Borrowers Experiencing Financial Difficulty for the nine months ended September 30, 2024

Interest Rate Reduction

BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Amortized Cost Amortized Cost Amortized Cost
Basis at % of total class of Basis at % of total class of Basis at % of total class of
September 30, Financing September 30, Financing September 30, Financing
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 Receivable 2024 Receivable 2024 Receivable
CRE owner occupied $ 175 0.01% $ = -% $ 175 0.01%
Commercial and industrial 2,756 0.05% - -% 2,756 0.04%
Mortgage 42 Y% - -% 42 -%
Consumer:
Credit cards 721 0.06% - -% 721 0.06 %
Personal 1,873 0.11% - -% 1,873 0.10%
Other 24 0.02% - -% 24 0.01%
Total $ 5,591 0.02% $ - -% $ 5,591 0.02%
Term Extension
BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Amortized Cost Amortized Cost Amortized Cost
Basis at % of total class of Basis at % of total class of Basis at % of total class of
September 30, Financing September 30, Financing September 30, Financing
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 Receivable 2024 Receivable 2024 Receivable
Commercial multi-family $ - % $ 10,570 050% $ 10,570 0.44%
CRE non-owner occupied 55,655 1.77% - -% 55,655 1.07%
CRE owner occupied 11,482 0.82% 6,033 0.36% 17,515 0.57%
Commercial and industrial 23,837 0.46% - -% 23,837 0.32%
Construction 768 0.40% = -% 768 0.07%
Mortgage 41,649 0.62% 1,075 0.08% 42,724 0.53%
Consumer:
Personal 537 0.03% - -% 537 0.03%
Auto 53 Y% = -% 53 -%
Total $ 133,981 0.52% $ 17,678 017% $ 151,659 0.42%
Other-Than-Insignificant Payment Delays
BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Amortized Cost Amortized Cost Amortized Cost
Basis at % of total class of Basis at % of total class of Basis at % of total class of
September 30, Financing September 30, Financing September 30, Financing
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 Receivable 2024 Receivable 2024 Receivable
CRE non-owner occupied $ 139 % $ ° -% $ 139 -%
CRE owner occupied 20,591 1.47% - -% 20,591 0.67%
Commercial and industrial 75,231 1.45% - -% 75,231 1.02%
Mortgage 127 % - -% 127 -%
Consumer:
Credit cards 5 Y% - -% 5 -%
Total $ 96,093 0.37% $ = -% $ 96,093 0.27%
Combination - Term Extension and Interest Rate Reduction
BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Amortized Cost Amortized Cost Amortized Cost
Basis at % of total class of Basis at % of total class of Basis at % of total class of
September 30, Financing September 30, Financing September 30, Financing
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 Receivable 2024 Receivable 2024 Receivable
CRE non-owner occupied $ 889 0.03% $ - -% $ 889 0.02%
CRE owner occupied 202 0.01% - -% 202 0.01%
Commercial and industrial 615 0.01% - -% 615 0.01%
Mortgage 13,404 0.20% 67 0.01% 13,471 0.17%
Consumer:
Personal 5,755 0.33% 312 0.26 % 6,067 0.32%
Total $ 20,865 0.08% $ 379 -% $ 21,244 0.06 %
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bination - Other-Than-Insignificant Payment Delays and Interest Rate Reduction

Popular U.S.

Popular, Inc.

Puerto Rico

Amortized Cost

Amortized Cost
Basis at % of total class of

Amortized Cost
Basis at % of total class of Basisat % of total class of

September 30, Financing September 30, Financing September 30, Financing
(Dollars in thousands) 2024 Receivable 2024 Receivable 2024 Receivable
Commercial and industrial $ 110 % $ = -% $ 110 -%
Consumer:

Credit cards 1,335 0.11% - -% 1,335 0.11%

Total $ 1,445 0.01% $ - -% $ 1,445 -%
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Loan Modifications Made to Borrowers Experiencing Financial Difficulty for the quarter ended September 30, 2023
Interest Rate Reduction

BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Amortized Cost Amortized Cost Amortized Cost
Basis at % of total class Basis at % of total class of Basisat % of total class of
September 30, of Financing September 30, Financing September 30, Financing
(Dollars in thousands) 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable
CRE owner occupied $ 141,807 10.07% $ - -% $ 141,807 4.66 %
Commercial and industrial 43 -% - -% 43 -%
Mortgage 76 -% - -% 76 -%
Consumer:
Credit cards 154 0.01% - -% 154 0.01%
Personal 247 0.01% - -% 247 0.01%
Total $ 142,327 0.60% $ ° -% $ 142,327 0.42%
Term Extension
BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Amortized Cost Amortized Cost Amortized Cost
Basis at % of total class Basis at % of total class of Basisat % of total class of
September 30, of Financing September 30, Financing September 30, Financing
(Dollars in thousands) 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable
CRE non-owner occupied $ 8,760 0.30% $ - -% $ 8,760 0.17%
CRE owner occupied 2,667 0.19% 10,847 0.66 % 13,514 0.44%
Commercial and industrial 16,535 0.38% - -% 16,535 0.25%
Mortgage 17,057 0.27% 933 0.07% 17,990 0.24%
Consumer:
Personal 122 0.01% - -% 122 0.01%
Total $ 45,141 0.19% $ 11,780 0.11% $ 56,921 0.17%
Other-Than-Insignificant Payment Delays
BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Amortized Cost Amortized Cost Amortized Cost
Basis at % of total class Basis at % of total class of Basisat % of total class of
September 30, of Financing September 30, Financing September 30, Financing
(Dollars in thousands) 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable
CRE owner occupied $ 8,980 0.64% $ - -% $ 8,980 0.29%
Commercial and industrial 3,287 0.08% - -% 3,287 0.05%
Total $ 12,267 0.05% $ o -% $ 12,267 0.04%
Combi 1 - Term Ex and Interest Rate Reduction
BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Amortized Cost Amortized Cost Amortized Cost
Basis at % of total class Basis at % of total class of Basisat % of total class of
September 30, of Financing September 30, Financing September 30, Financing
(Dollars in thousands) 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable
CRE non-owner occupied $ 18,705 0.63% $ ° -% $ 18,705 0.37%
CRE owner occupied 14,683 1.04% - -% 14,683 0.48%
Commercial and industrial 558 0.01% ° -% 558 0.01%
Mortgage 7,691 0.12% - -% 7,691 0.10%
Consumer:
Personal 815 0.05% 11 0.01% 826 0.04%
Total $ 42,452 0.18% $ 11 -% $ 42,463 0.12%
Combination - Other-Than-Insignificant Payment Delays and Interest Rate Reduction
Puerto Rico Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.

Amortized Cost

Amortized Cost

Amortized Cost

Basis at % of total class Basis at % of total class of Basisat % of total class of

September 30, of Financing September 30, Financing September 30, Financing

(Dollars in thousands) 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable
CRE non-owner occupied $ 182 0.01% $ - -% $ 182 -%
Commercial and industrial 78 -% - -% 78 -%

Consumer:

Credit cards 195 -% - -% 195 0.02%
Total $ 455 % $ - % $ 455 -%
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Loan Modifications Made to Borrowers Experiencing Financial Difficulty for the nine months ended September 30, 2023

Interest Rate Reduction

BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Amortized Cost Amortized Cost Amortized Cost
Basis at % of total class of Basis at % of total class of Basis at % of total class of
September 30, Financing September 30, Financing September 30, Financing
(Dollars in thousands) 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable
CRE owner occupied $ 141,807 10.07% $ - -% $ 141,807 4.66%
Commercial and industrial 43 Y% - -% 43 -%
Mortgage 302 Y% - -% 302 -%
Consumer:
Credit cards 565 0.05% - -% 565 0.05%
Personal 540 0.03% 3 -% 543 0.03%
Other 8 % - -% 3 -%
Total $ 143,260 0.60% $ 3 -% $ 143,263 0.42%
Term Extension
BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Amortized Cost Amortized Cost Amortized Cost
Basis at % of total class of Basisat % of total class of Basis at % of total class of
September 30, Financing September 30, Financing September 30, Financing
(Dollars in thousands) 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable
CRE non-owner occupied $ 33,059 1.12% $ - -% $ 33,059 0.66%
CRE owner occupied 4,293 0.30% 26,509 1.62% 30,802 1.01%
Commercial and industrial 38,713 0.89% - -% 38,713 0.59%
Construction 2,169 1.27% 5,309 0.71% 7,478 0.81%
Mortgage 41,916 0.67% 5,423 0.42% 47,339 0.62%
Consumer:
Personal 196 0.01% 129 0.07% 325 0.02%
Auto 36 Y% - -% 36 -%
Total $ 120,382 051% $ 37,370 0.36% $ 157,752 0.46%
Principal Forgiveness
BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Amortized Cost Amortized Cost Amortized Cost
Basis at % of total class of Basis at % of total class of Basis at % of total class of
September 30, Financing September 30, Financing September 30, Financing
(Dollars in thousands) 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable
CRE owner occupied $ 18 % $ - -% $ 18 -%
Total $ 18 % $ - -% $ 18 -%
Other-Than-Insignificant Payment Delays
BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Amortized Cost Amortized Cost Amortized Cost
Basis at % of total class of Basis at % of total class of Basis at % of total class of
September 30, Financing September 30, Financing September 30, Financing
(Dollars in thousands) 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable
CRE non-owner occupied $ 1,736 0.06% $ - -% $ 1,736 0.03%
CRE owner occupied 12,833 0.91% 13,556 0.83% 26,389 0.87%
Commercial and industrial 4,653 0.11% 828 0.04% 5,481 0.08%
Mortgage 137 % - -% 137 %
Consumer:
Other 31 0.02% - -% 31 0.02%
Total $ 19,390 0.08% $ 14,384 0.14% $ 33,774 0.10%
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Combination - Term Extension and Interest Rate Reduction

BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Amortized Cost Amortized Cost Amortized Cost
Basis at % of total class of Basis at % of total class of Basis at % of total class of
September 30, Financing September 30, Financing September 30, Financing
(Dollars in thousands) 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable
CRE non-owner occupied $ 18,705 0.63% $ = -% 18,705 0.37%
CRE owner occupied 14,784 1.05% - -% 14,784 0.49%
Commercial and industrial 614 0.01% - -% 614 0.01%
Mortgage 29,044 0.46% 407 0.03% 29,451 0.39%
Consumer:
Personal 1,711 0.10% 43 0.02% 1,754 0.09%
Auto 27 Y% - -% 27 -%
Total $ 64,885 027% $ 450 -% 65,335 0.19%
Combination - - -|
Puerto Rico Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Amortized Cost Amortized Cost Amortized Cost
Basis at % of total class of Basis at % of total class of Basis at % of total class of
September 30, Financing September 30, Financing September 30, Financing
(Dollars in thousands) 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable
CRE non-owner occupied $ 182 0.01% $ = = 182 -%
Commercial and industrial 153 % - - 153 -%
Consumer:
Credit cards 587 0.05% - - 587 0.05%
Total $ 922 % $ = = 922 -%
Combination - Other-Than-Insignificant Payment Delays and Principal Forgiveness
Puerto Rico Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Amortized Cost Amortized Cost Amortized Cost
Basis at % of total class of Basis at % of total class of Basis at % of total class of
September 30, Financing September 30, Financing September 30, Financing
(Dollars in thousands) 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable 2023 Receivable
CRE owner occupied $ 195 001% $ = = 195 0.01%
Total $ 195 % $ - - 195 -%
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The following tables describe the financial effect of the modifications made to borrowers experiencing financial
difficulties:

For the quarter ended September 30, 2024

Interest rate reduction

Loan Type Financial Effect
CRE Owner occupied Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from  10.45% to 6.62%
Commercial and industrial Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from  25.76% to 10.21%.
Mortgage Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from 5.87% to 4.32%.
Consumer:
Credit cards Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from 21.46% to 8.02%.
Personal Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from  19.47% to 10.35%.
Term extension
Loan Type Financial Effect
Commercial multi-family Added a weighted-average of 4 months to the life of loans.
CRE Non-owner occupied Added a weighted-average of 7 months to the life of loans.
CRE Owner occupied Added a weighted-average of 5 years to the life of loans.
Commercial and industrial Added a weighted-average of 1 year to the life of loans.
Construction Added a weighted-average of 2 months to the life of loans.
Mortgage Added a weighted-average of 12 years to the life of loans.
Consumer:
Personal Added a weighted-average of 5 years to the life of loans.
Other than insignificant payment delays
Loan Type Financial Effect
CRE Non-owner occupied Added a weighted-average of 14 months to the life of loans.
CRE Owner occupied Added a weighted-average of 7 months to the life of loans.
Commercial and industrial Added a weighted-average of 7 months to the life of loans.
Consumer:
Credit cards Added a weighted-average of 16 months to the life of loans.
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For the nine months ended September 30, 2024

Interest rate reduction

Loan Type

Financial Effect

CRE Non-owner occupied
CRE Owner occupied
Commercial and industrial
Mortgage
Consumer:
Credit cards
Personal
Other

Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from
Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from
Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from
Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from

Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from

Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from
Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from

Term extension

10.1% to 8.3%.
10.6% to 6.5%.
20.6% to 9.6%.
6.1% to 4.4%.

20.9% to 6.5%.
19.1% to 10.0%.
18.0% to 0%.

Loan Type

Financial Effect

Commercial multi-family
CRE Non-owner occupied
CRE Owner occupied
Commercial and industrial
Construction
Mortgage
Consumer:

Personal

Auto

Added a weighted-average of
Added a weighted-average of
Added a weighted-average of
Added a weighted-average of
Added a weighted-average of
Added a weighted-average of

Added a weighted-average of
Added a weighted-average of

Other than insignificant payment delay

Loan Type

Financial Effect

4 months to the life of loans.
9 months to the life of loans.

11 months to the life of loans.

2 years to the life of loans.
2 months to the life of loans.
12 years to the life of loans.

8 years to the life of loans.
4 years to the life of loans.

CRE Non-owner occupied
CRE Owner occupied
Commercial and industrial
Mortgage
Consumer:

Credit cards

Added a weighted-average of
Added a weighted-average of
Added a weighted-average of
Added a weighted-average of

Added a weighted-average of

14 months to the life of loans.

10 months to the life of loans.

7 months to the life of loans.

30 months to the life of loans.

18 months to the life of loans.
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For the quarter ended September 30, 2023

Interest rate reduction

Loan Type

Financial Effect

CRE Non-owner occupied
CRE Owner occupied
Commercial and industrial
Mortgage
Consumer:
Credit cards
Personal

Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from

Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from

Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from

Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from

Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from

Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from

Term extension

9.0% to 7.2%.
8.4%to 6.6%.
12.5% to 7.6%.
5.7%to 4.2%.

19.6% to 3.6%.
17.0% to 9.1%.

Loan Type

Financial Effect

CRE Non-owner occupied
CRE Owner occupied
Commercial and industrial

Added a weighted-average of
Added a weighted-average of
Added a weighted-average of

Mortgage Added a weighted-average of
Consumer:

Personal Added a weighted-average of
Loan Type Financial Effect

Other than insignificant

28 months to the life of loans.

1 year to the life of loans.
3 years to the life of loans.
11 years to the life of loans.

7 years to the life of loans.

delay

CRE Non-owner occupied
CRE Owner occupied
Commercial and industrial
Consumer:

Credit cards

Added a weighted-average of 7 months to the life of loans.

Added a weighted-average of 10 months to the life of loans.

Added a weighted-average of 7 months to the life of loans.

Added a weighted-average of 29 months to the life of loans.
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For the nine months ended September 30, 2023

Interest rate reduction

Loan Type

Financial Effect

CRE Non-owner occupied
CRE Owner occupied
Commercial and industrial
Mortgage
Consumer:

Credit cards

Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from  9.0% to 7.2%.
Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from  8.4% to 6.6%.
Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from  14.0% to 7.7%.
Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from  5.7% to 4.2%.

Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from  18.0% to 4.3%.

Personal Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from  18.0% to 9.7%.
Auto Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from  12.64% to 12.62%.
Other Reduced weighted-average contractual interest rate from  18.0% to 0.0%.
Term extension
Loan Type Financial Effect

CRE Non-owner occupied
CRE Owner occupied
Commercial and industrial
Construction
Mortgage
Consumer:

Personal

Auto

Added a weighted-average of
Added a weighted-average of
Added a weighted-average of
Added a weighted-average of

Added a weighted-average of

Added a weighted-average of
Added a weighted-average of

19 months to the life of loans.
1 year to the life of loans.

2 years to the life of loans.

6 months to the life of loans.

11 years to the life of loans.

7 years to the life of loans.
3 years to the life of loans.

Principal forgiveness

Loan Type

Financial Effect

CRE Owner occupied

Reduced the amortized cost basis of the loans by $ 0.1 million.

Other than insignificant payment delay

Loan Type

Financial Effect

CRE Non-owner occupied
CRE Owner occupied
Commercial and industrial
Mortgage
Consumer:

Credit cards

Other

Added a weighted-average of
Added a weighted-average of
Added a weighted-average of
Added a weighted-average of

Added a weighted-average of
Added a weighted-average of

12 months to the life of loans.
8 months to the life of loans.
8 months to the life of loans.
40 months to the life of loans.

26 months to the life of loans.
11 months to the life of loans.
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The following tables present, by class, the performance of loans that have been modified during the twelve
BRERLBFERED024. The past due 90 days or more categories includes all loans modified classified as non-accruing at the
timaidification. These loans will continue in non-accrual status, and presented as past due 90 days or more, until the borrower
Bamonstrated a willingness and ability to make the restructured loan payments (at least nine months of sustained performance
#temodification or one year for loans providing for quarterly or semi-annual payments) and management has concluded
'Eh@bdbi'é that the borrower would not be in payment default in the foreseeable future.

BPPR

September 30, 2024

Past Due 90 days or more [1

Past due 90 Total past With Payment Without
(In thousands) 30-59 days __60-89 days days or more due Current Total Default __Payment Default
Commercial multi-family $ - $ - $ 63 % 63 % - $ 63 & -$ 63
CRE non-owner occupied - - 2,798 2,798 55,766 58,564 - 2,798
CRE owner occupied 92 - 2,232 2,324 36,355 38,679 89 2,143
Commercial and industrial 12,359 26 4,817 17,202 86,203 103,405 96 4,721
Construction = = = = 768 768 - =
Mortgage 5,649 4,359 24,206 34,214 40,358 74,572 6,609 17,597
Consumer:
Credit cards 205 81 283 569 1,715 2,284 197 86
Personal 286 51 1,914 2,251 6,854 9,105 210 1,704
Auto - - 34 34 69 103 - 34
Other 24 - - 24 4 28 - .
Total $ 18,615 $ 4517 $ 36,347 $ 59,479 $ 228,092 $ 287571 $ 7,201 $ 29,146

[1] Loans that were in non-accrual status at the time of modification are presented as past due until the borrower has demonstrated a willingness and ability
to make the restructured loan payments. Payment default is defined as a restructured loan becoming 90 days past due after being modified, foreclosed or
charged-off, whichever occurs first. The recorded investment as of period end is inclusive of all partial paydowns and charge-offs since the modification
date. Loans modified with financial difficulty that were fully paid down, charged-off or foreclosed upon by period end are not reported.

Popular U.S.

September 30, 2024

Past Due 90 days or more [1

Past due 90 Total past With Payment Without
(In thousands) 30-59 days  60-89 days days or more due Current Total Default Payment Default
Commercial multi-family $ - $ - $ -$ -$ 10,570 10,570 $ -$ -
CRE owner occupied - - - - 39,855 39,855 - -
Mortgage - - 795 795 407 1,202 - 795
Consumer:
Personal 29 - 85 114 216 330 - 85
Total $ 29 $ -$ 880 $ 909 $ 51,048 $ 51,957 $ - $ 880

[1] Loans that were in non-accrual status at the time of modification are presented as past due until the borrower has demonstrated a willingness and ability
to make the restructured loan payments. Payment default is defined as a restructured loan becoming 90 days past due after being modified, foreclosed or
charged-off, whichever occurs first. The recorded investment as of period end is inclusive of all partial paydowns and charge-offs since the modification

date. Loans modified with financial difficulty that were fully paid down, charged-off or foreclosed upon by period end are not reported.
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Popular Inc.

September 30, 2024

Past Due 90 days or more [1

Past due 90 Total past With Payment Without
(In thousands) 30-59 days 60-89 days days or more due Current ota Default Payment Default
Commercial multi-family $ - % - $ 63 $ 63 $ 10,570 $ 10,633 $ -$ 63
CRE non-owner occupied - - 2,798 2,798 55,766 58,564 - 2,798
CRE owner occupied 92 - 2,232 2,324 76,210 78,534 89 2,143
Commercial and industrial 12,359 26 4,817 17,202 86,203 103,405 96 4,721
Construction - - - - 768 768 - -
Mortgage 5,649 4,359 25,001 35,009 40,765 75,774 6,609 18,392
Consumer:
Credit cards 205 81 283 569 1,715 2,284 197 86
Personal 315 51 1,999 2,365 7,070 9,435 210 1,789
Auto - - 34 34 69 103 - 34
Other 24 = = 24 4 28 - o
Total $ 18,644 $ 4517 $ 37,227 $ 60,388 $ 279140 $ 339528 $ 7,201 $ 30,026

[1] Loans that were in non-accrual status at the time of modification are presented as past due until the borrower has demonstrated a willingness and ability
to make the restructured loan payments.

Payment default is defined as a restructured loan becoming 90 days past due after being modified, foreclosed or
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The following tables present, by class, the performance of loans that have been modified during the nine months ended

§gptember
2023.
BPPR
September 30, 2023
Past Due 90 days or more [1
Past due 90 Total past With Payment Without
(In thousands) 30-59 days __60-89 days days or more due Current Total Default _Payment Default
CRE non-owner occupied ~ $ -$ -$ 122 $ 122 $ 53,560 $ 53,682 $ -$ 122
CRE owner occupied - - 2,488 2,488 171,442 173,930 - 2,488
Commercial and industrial - - 1,735 1,735 42,441 44,176 729 1,006
Construction - - - - 2,169 2,169 - -
Mortgage 4,913 2,572 22,291 29,776 41,623 71,399 4,196 18,095
Consumer:
Credit cards 117 87 130 334 818 1,152 93 37
Personal 48 19 550 617 1,830 2,447 - 550
Auto - - 11 11 52 63 - 11
Other - - 31 31 3 34 31 -
Total $ 5078 $ 2,678 $ 27,358 $ 35,114 $ 313,938 $ 349,052 $ 5049 $ 22,309

[1] Loans that were in non-accrual status at the time of modification are presented as past due until the borrower has demonstrated a willingness and ability
to make the restructured loan payments. Payment default is defined as a restructured loan becoming 90 days past due after being modified, foreclosed or
charged-off, whichever occurs first. The recorded investment as of period end is inclusive of all partial paydowns and charge-offs since the modification

date. Loans modified with financial difficulty that were fully paid down, charged-off or foreclosed upon by period end are not reported.

Popular U.S.

September 30, 2023

Past Due 90 days or more [1

Past due 90 Total past With Payment Without
(In thousands) 30-59 days 60-89 days days or more due Current Total Default _Payment Default
CRE owner occupied $ -$ -$ -$ -$ 40,065 $ 40,065 $ -$ -
Commercial and industrial - - - - 828 828 - -
Construction - - - - 5,309 5,309 - -
Mortgage - - 334 334 5,496 5,830 103 231
Consumer:
Personal - - 129 129 46 175 - 129
Total $ -3 -$ 463 $ 463 $ 51,744 $ 52,207 $ 103 $ 360

[1] Loans that were in non-accrual status at the time of modification are presented as past due until the borrower has demonstrated a willingness and ability
to make the restructured loan payments. Payment default is defined as a restructured loan becoming 90 days past due after being modified, foreclosed or
charged-off, whichever occurs first. The recorded investment as of period end is inclusive of all partial paydowns and charge-offs since the modification

date. Loans modified with financial difficulty that were fully paid down, charged-off or foreclosed upon by period end are not reported.
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Popular Inc.

September 30, 2023

Past Due 90 days or more [1

Past due 90 Total past With Payment Without
(In thousands) 30-59 days __60-89 days days or more due Current Total Default _Payment Default
CRE non-owner occupied ~ $ - % - $ 122 $ 122 $ 53,560 $ 53,682 $ -$ 122
CRE owner occupied - - 2,488 2,488 211,507 213,995 - 2,488
Commercial and industrial - - 1,735 1,735 43,269 45,004 729 1,006
Construction - - - - 7,478 7,478 - -
Mortgage 4,913 2,572 22,625 30,110 47,119 77,229 4,299 18,326
Consumer:
Credit cards 117 87 130 334 818 1,152 93 37
Personal 48 19 679 746 1,876 2,622 - 679
Auto - - 11 11 52 63 - 11
Other - - 31 31 3 34 31 -
Total $ 5078 $ 2678 $ 27821 % 35577 % 365,682 $ 401259 $ 5152 $ 22,669

[1] Loans that were in non-accrual status at the time of modification are presented as past due until the borrower has demonstrated a willingness and ability
to make the restructured loan payments. Payment default is defined as a restructured loan becoming 90 days past due after being modified, foreclosed or
charged-off, whichever occurs first. The recorded investment as of period end is inclusive of all partial paydowns and charge-offs since the modification

date. Loans modified with financial difficulty that were fully paid down, charged-off or foreclosed upon by period end are not reported.

Payment default is defined as a restructured loan becoming 90 days past due after being modified, foreclosed or
wiharesdrikcurs first. During the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2024, the outstanding balance of loans
BPBBiREwers under financial difficulties that were subject to payment default and that had been modified during the twelve
m@@@bﬁng the default date was & million and $25 million, respectively. The amount was not considered material for the quarter and

nine months ended September 30,
2023.
For the quarter ended September 30, 2024, extension of maturity and the combination of interest rate reduction and

ﬁi‘éﬁﬂwn&ﬁounted to 6%million and B million, respectively, of the outstanding balance of loans modified for borrowers
financial difficulties that were subject tﬁnﬁﬁyment default during the year preceding the default date. Forthe nine months
S%W&‘ﬁber 30, 2024, interest rate reduction, extension of maturity and the combination of interest rate reduction and
ﬁi‘éﬁﬂW@lﬂbunted to $1 million, $22 million and & million, respectively of the outstanding balance of loans modified for

under financial difficulties that were subject to payrRBHOMEERIIt during the year preceding the default date.

Credit Quality

The risk rating system provides for the assignment of ratings atthe obligor level based on the financial condition of the
WE!OW@X-rating analysis process is performed at least once a year or more frequently if events or conditions change
WEERORAY the credit quality. Inthe case of consumer and mortgage loans, these loans are classified considering their
9eltnguanAk end of the reporting period.

The following tables present the amortized cost basis, net of unearned income, of loans held-in-portfolio based on the
%Wl%@?ﬁ"éf obligor risk ratings as defined at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 and the gross write-offs
RSRIGEIEY. For the definitions of the obligor risk ratings, refer to the Credit Quality section of Note 9 to the Consolidated
Eia@sgights included in the 2023 Form 10-K:
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September 30, 2024

Term Loans Revolving
Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year Loans
Revolving  Converted to
Loans Term Loans
Prior Amortized Amortized
(In thousands) 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 Years Cost Basis ___Cost Basis Total
BPPR
Commercial:
Commercial multi-family
Pass $ 45,745 $ 37,386 $ 136,798 $ 21,021 $ 20,224 $ 28,713 $ -3 -3 289,887
Watch - - - - - 5,796 - - 5,796
Special Mention - - 546 - - 4,665 - - 5,211
Substandard - - - - - 4,640 - - 4,640
Total commercial
multi-family $ 45,745 $ 37,386 $ 137,344 $ 21,021 $ 20,224 $ 43,814 $ -3 -3 305,534
Commercial real estate non-owner occupied
Pass $ 319,714% 315434 % 821,480 $ 551,468 $ 340,485 $ 542,362 $ 6,213 $ -$ 2,897,156
Watch - 2,118 1,061 5,015 29,165 56,824 - - 94,183
Special Mention - 41,558 7,153 24,424 - 65,985 - - 139,120
Substandard - 1,006 111 174 2,028 14,477 - - 17,796
Total commercial
real estate non-
owner occupied 319,714 360,116 829,805 581,081 371,678 679,648 6,213 - 3,148,255
Year-to-Date gross
__write-offs -$ -$ 69 $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 69
Commercial real estate owner occupied
Pass $ 89,427 $ 95,335 $ 149,373 $ 217,165 $ 47,671 $ 334,396 $ 5,904 $ -$ 939,271
Watch 845 2,032 41,922 9,003 4,559 83,693 3 - 142,057
Special Mention - 1,232 19,778 20,381 887 20,676 1,350 - 64,304
Substandard 467 1,149 20,644 4,714 141,549 76,725 12,932 - 258,180
Doubtful = = = = = 38 = = 38
Total commercial
real estate owner
occupied $ 90,739 $ 99748 $ 231717 $ 251,263 $ 194,666 $ 515,528 $ 20,189 $ -$ 1403850
Year-to-Date gross
write-off $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 2787 $ -$ -$ 2,787
Commercial and industrial
Pass $ 628977 $ 923,130 $ 609,454 $ 322,189 $ 216674 $ 324,173 $ 1,239,993 $ -$ 4,264,590
Watch 42,726 54,796 48,349 4,210 3,445 71,412 233,386 - 458,324
Special Mention 4,836 13,934 3,931 158,133 2,723 44,297 36,007 - 263,861
Substandard 4,716 1,136 34,868 6,335 12,056 22,380 107,781 - 189,272
Doubtful - - - - 14 17 - - 31
Loss - - - - = - 47 - a7
Total commercial
and industrial $ 681,255 % 992,996 $ 696,602 $ 490,867 $ 234912 $ 462,279 $ 1,617,214 $ -$ 5176125
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ 420 $ 318 $ 331 $ 122 $ 2838 $ 11,685 $ 5217 $ -$ 20,931
Construction
Pass $ 46,479 $ 53,586 $ 41,492 $ 10,539 $ 10,572 $ 1,011 $ 19,731 $ -3$ 183,410
Special Mention - - - 6,165 - - - - 6,165
Substandard - - - 768 » - » - 768
Total construction $ 46,479 $ 53,586 $ 41,492 $ 17,472 $ 10572 $ 1011 $ 19731 $ -3 190,343
Mortgage
Pass $ 636,253 $ 734,172 $ 419816 $ 413048 $ 242256 $ 4,173,843 $ -3 -$ 6,619,388
Substandard - 1,863 1,051 775 348 71,992 - - 76,029
Total mortgage $ 636,253 $ 736035 % 420867 $ 413823 $ 242604 $ 4245835 $ -$ -$ 6695417
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ = $ = $ = $ 8 $ = $ 991 $ -$ -3 999
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September 30, 2024

Term Loans Revolving
Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year Loans
Revolving  Converted to
Loans Term Loans
Prior Amortized Amortized
(In thousands) 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 Years Cost Basis ___Cost Basis Total
BPPR
Leasing
Pass $ 577,747 $ 508,333$% 394,476 $ 240,244 $ 118,620 $ 40,264 $ -3$ -$ 1,879,684
Substandard 315 1,772 2,219 1,744 564 664 - - 7,278
Loss - 29 30 - - 31 - - 90
ofal leasing $ 578062 % 510134$ 396725 % 241988 $ 119184 3 40,959 -$ -$ 1,887,052
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ 639 $ 3534 $ 4,220 $ 2477 $ 453 $ 998 $ -3 -3 12,321
Consumer:
Credit cards
Pass $ -$ -$ -3 -$ -$ -$ 1,159,675 $ -$ 1,159,675
Substandard - - - - - - 27,121 - 27,121
Loss - - - - - - 93 - 93
_Total credit cards $ -3$ -$ -3 -3 -3 -$ 1186889 % -$ 1,186,889
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ -$ -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 50,318 $ -3 50,318
HELOCs
Pass $ -$ -$ -3 -3 -3 -3 2131 % -3 2,131
Total HELOCs $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 2131 $ -$ 2131
Year-to-Date gross
_write-offs $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 373 $ -$ 373
Personal
Pass $ 560,994 $ 584,410 $ 308,630 $ 118,359 $ 34512 $ 103,723 $ -$ 21,944 $ 1,732,572
Substandard 347 5,248 3,938 1,556 265 8,660 - 1,293 21,307
Loss 3 85 100 6 6 2 - - 202
Total Personal $ 561,344 $ 589,743 $ 312668 $ 119921 $ 34,783 $ 112,385 $ -$ 23237 $ 1,754,081

Year-to-Date gross

wriite-offs ¢ 882¢% 26352% 30020$ 8457 $  2204% 2934 $ - $ = 14156 723564

Auto
Pass $ 1,013,543 $ 1,007,006 $ 721,883 $ 547,046 $ 290,297 $ 183,490 $ -$ -$ 3,763,265
Substandard 3,665 14,590 13,569 10,585 6,934 5,820 - - 55,163
Loss - 60 58 S 15 41 - - 179
Total Auto $ 1017208 $ 1021656 $ 735510 $ 557,636 $ 297,246 $ 189,351 $ -$ -$ 3818607
Year-to-Date gross
_write-offs $ 38159 28070 $ 15143 $ 7377 $ 3930 % 1452 $ -$ -3 59.787
Other consumer
Pass $ 21,944 $ 30,575 $ 20,718 $ 11,621 $ 4,962 $ 3,709 $ 62,453 $ -3 155,982
Substandard - 233 22 14 29 61 299 - 658
Loss = = = 550 = = = = 550
Total Other
consumer $ 21944 $ 30,808 $ 20,740 $ 12185 $ 4991 $ 3770 $ 62,752 $ -3 157,190
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ 25% 196 $ 130 $ 96 $ 128 $ 1497 $ -$ -$ 2,072
Total BPPR $ 3,998,743 $ 4,432,208 $ 3,823,470 $ 2,707,257 $ 1,530,860 $ 6,294,580 $ 2,915,119 $ 23237 $ 25725474
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September 30, 2024

Term Loans Revolving
Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year Loans
Revolving  Converted to
Loans Term Loans
Prior Amortized Amortized
(In thousands) 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 Years Cost Basis ___Cost Basis Total
Popular U.S.
Commercial:
Commercial multi-family
Pass $ 88,767 $ 156,950 $ 517,888 $ 353,958 $ 195,703 $ 620,641 $ 2,840 $ -$ 1,936,747
Watch = > 16,549 1,990 23,777 89,401 = - 131,717
Special Mention - - - - - 4,765 - - 4,765
Substandard - - - - - 26,539 - - 26,539
Total commercial
multi-family $ 88,767 $ 156,950 $ 534437 $ 355948 $ 219,480 $ 741,346 $ 2840 $ -$ 2,099,768
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ -$ -$ -8 -3 -$ 441 $ -$ -8 441
Commercial real estate non-owner occupied
Pass $ 45,320 $ 397,410 $ 496,311 $ 156,546 $ 223,062 $ 469,514 $ 12,572 $ -$ 1,800,735
Watch - - 13,532 24,646 17,280 63,562 - - 119,020
Special Mention - - - 2,373 - 63,304 - - 65,677
Substandard - = 2,684 2763 7.878 38.369 = - 51,694

Total commercial
real estate non-

Year-to-Date gross

write-offs $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 54 $ -$ -$ 54
Commercial real estate owner occupied
Pass $ 137,358 $ 287,290 $ 236,338 $ 253,353 $ 30,402 $ 253,735 $ 5,954 $ -$ 1,204,430
Watch - 13,320 33,982 36,980 50,577 70,804 1,905 - 207,568
Special Mention - 490 45,220 59,249 31,221 10,899 - - 147,079
Substandard - - 17,165 2,379 - 109,922 - - 129,466
Total commercial
real estate owner
occupied $ 137358 $ 301,100 $ 332705 $ 351961 $ 112200 $ 445,360 $ 7,859 $ -$ 1688543
Commercial and industrial
Pass $ 145,968 $ 255,118 $ 314585 $ 324851 $ 264,907 $ 501,314 $ 193,158 $ -$ 1,999,901
Watch 22 8,581 51,322 32,037 20,747 67,302 9,633 - 189,544
Special Mention 55 9,052 5,503 726 1 297 5,190 - 20,824
Substandard 1,807 670 261 61 2,595 3,212 5,653 - 14,159
Total commercial
and industrial $ 147,852 $ 273421$ 371671 $ 357,675 $ 288,250 $ 572,125 $ 213434 $ -$ 2,224,428
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ 1103 $ 644 $ 190 $ 300 $ 5% 44 $ 86 $ -3 2,372
Construction
Pass $ 169,148 $ 460,457 $ 149,988 $ 14,567 $ -$ 769 $ 9,133 $ -$ 804,062
Watch - - 28,896 - - 7,229 24,280 - 60,405
Special Mention - 10,026 6,224 - - - - - 16,250
Substandard - - 7,898 - - 34,349 - - 42,247
Total construction $ 169,148 $ 470,483 $ 193,006 $ 14,567 $ -$ 42,347 $ 33413 $ -$ 922,964
Mortgage
Pass $ 69,138 $ 91,580 $ 217,752 $ 275884 $ 219511 $ 395,632 $ -$ -$ 1,269,497
Substandard - - 106 252 - 28,076 - - 28,434
Total mortgage $ 69,138 $ 91580$ 217858 $ 276,136 $ 219,511 $ 423,708 $ -3 -$ 1,297,931
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -3 8% -3 -3 18
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September 30, 2024

Term Loans Revolving
Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year Loans
Revolving  Converted to
Loans Term Loans
Prior Amortized Amortized
(In thousands) 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 Years Cost Basis ___Cost Basis Total
Popular U.S.
Consumer:
Credit cards
Pass $ -$ -$ -8 -$ -$ -$ 48 -$ 4
Total credit cards $ -$ -3 -3 - $ -$ -3 43 -3 4
HELOCs
Pass $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 6,335 $ 45,803 $ 11,587 $ 63,725
Substandard - - - - - 1,733 16 1,132 2,881
Loss - - - - - 99 - 855 954
Total HELOCs $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 8,167 $ 45819 $ 13574 $ 67,560
Year-to-Date gross
_write-offs $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 258 -$ 25
Personal
Pass $ 23428 $ 27,043 $ 52,498 $ 11,362 $ 1,089 $ 1,836 $ -$ -$ 117,256
Substandard 147 656 536 122 16 338 - - 1,815
Loss = 23 = = = = = = 23
otal Persona $ 23575 $ 27722 $ 53034 $ 484 $ 1105 % 2174 $ -$ -3 119.094
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs 253 $ 3161 $ 8,859 $ 2,030 $ 180 $ 267 $ -$ -$ 14,750
Other consumer
Pass $ 17$ -$ -3 -3 -$ -$ 12,056 $ -3 12,073
Substandard = = = = = = 2 = 2
Total Other
consumer $ 17$ -3 -8 -3 -$ -3 12,058 $ -$ 12,075
Year-to-Date gross
i -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 77

_write-offs $ -$
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September 30, 2024

Term Loans Revolving
Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year Loans
Revolving  Converted to
Loans Term Loans
Prior Amortized Amortized
(In thousands) 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 Years Cost Basis ___Cost Basis Total
Popular, Inc.
Commercial:
Commercial multi-family
Pass $ 134,512 $ 194,336 $ 654,686 $ 374979 $ 215927 $ 649,354 $ 2,840 $ -$ 2,226,634
Watch - - 16,549 1,990 23,777 95,197 - - 137,513
Special Mention - - 546 - - 9,430 - - 9,976
Substandard = = = = = 31,179 = = 31,179
Total commercial
multi-family $ 134512 $ 194336 $ 671781 $ 376969 $ 239704 $ 785,160 $ 2,840 $ -$ 2405302
Year-to-Date gross
__write-offs $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 441 $ -$ -$ 441
Commercial real estate non-owner occupied
Pass $ 365034 % 712,844 $ 1,317,791 $ 708,014 $ 563547 $ 1,011,876 $ 18,785 $ -$ 4,697,891
Watch - 2,118 14,593 29,661 46,445 120,386 - - 213,203
Special Mention - 41,558 7,153 26,797 - 129,289 - - 204,797
- 1.006 2,795 2,937 9.906 52.846 - - 69.490
Total commercial
real estate non-
_owneroccupied $ 365034$ 757526% 1342332 $ 767400$ 619898% 1314307 $ 18785 $ -$ 5185381
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ -$ -$ 69 $ -$ -$ 54 $ -$ -3 123
Commercial real estate owner occupied
Pass $ 226,785 $ 382,625 $ 385,711 $ 470,518 $ 78,073 $ 588,131 $ 11,858 $ -$ 2,143,701
Watch 845 15,352 75,904 45,983 55,136 154,497 1,908 = 349,625
Special Mention - 1,722 64,998 79,630 32,108 31,575 1,350 - 211,383
Substandard 467 1,149 37,809 7,093 141,549 186,647 12,932 - 387,646
Doubtful - - - - - 38 - - 38
Total commercial
real estate owner
occupied $ 28,048 $ -$ 3002303
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ -$ -$ -$ -3 -$ 2,787 $ -$ -$ 2,787
Commercial and industrial
Pass $ 774945 $ 1,178,248 $ 924,039 $ 647,040 $ 481,581 $ 825,487 $ 1,433,151 $ -$ 6,264,491
Watch 42,748 63,377 99,671 36,247 24,192 138,714 242,919 - 647,868
Special Mention 4,891 22,986 9,434 158,859 2,724 44,594 41,197 - 284,685
Substandard 6,523 1,806 35,129 6,396 14,651 25,592 113,334 - 203,431
Doubtful - - - - 14 17 - - 31
Loss - - - - - - 47 - a7
Total commercial
and industrial $ 829107% 1266417 $ 1068273 $ 848542 $ 523162 % 1,034404 $ 1,830,648 $ -$ 7,400,553
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ 1523 % 962 $ 521 $ 422 $ 2843 % 11,729 $ 5303 $ -3 23,303
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September 30, 2024

Term Loans
Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year

Prior
(In thousands) 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 Years Cost Basis
Popular, Inc.
Construction

Pass 215,627 $ 514,043 $ 191,480 $ 25,106 $ 10,572 $ 1,780 $ 28,864 $
Watch = - 28,896 - - 7,229 24,280
Special Mention - 10,026 6,224 6,165 - - -
Substandard - - 7,898 768 - 34,349 -

Revolving
Loans

Converted to
Term Loans
Amortized
Cost Basis

Total

987,472
60,405
22,415
43,015

Totalconstruction  $ 215627 $ 524060$ 234498 $ 32030$ 10572$ 43358 % 531448 - $ 1113307

Mortgage
Pass 705391 $ 825,752 $ 637,568 $ 688,932 $ 461,767 $ 4,569,475 $ -$ -$ 7,888,885
___Substandard - 1.863 1.157 1.027 348 100,068 - - 104,463
Total mortgage 705391 $ 827615$% 638725 $ 689959 $ 462,115$ 4669543 $ -$ -$ 7993348
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs -$ -3 -$ 83 -$ 1,009 $ -$ -$ 1,017
Leasing
Pass 577,747 $ 508,333 $ 394,476 $ 240,244 $ 118,620 $ 40,264 $ -$ -$ 1,879,684
Substandard 315 1,772 2,219 1,744 564 664 - - 7,278
Loss - 29 30 - - 31 - - 920
Total leasing 578.062 $ 510134 $ 396725 $ 241988 $ 119184 $ 40959 $ -$ -$ 1.887.052
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs 639 $ 3534 $ 4,220 $ 2477 $ 453 $ 998 $ -$ -$ 12,321
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September 30, 2024

Term Loans Revolving
Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year X Loans
Revolving  Converted to
Loans Term Loans
Prior Amortized Amortized
(In thousands) 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 Years Cost Basis ___Cost Basis Total
Popular, Inc.
Consumer:
Credit cards
Pass $ -$ -3 -$ -$ -$ -$ 1,159,679 $ -$ 1,159,679
Substandard - - - - - - 27,121 - 27,121
Loss - - - - - - 93 - 93
Total credit cards $ -$ -$ -$ -3$ -$ -$ 1,186,893 $ -$  1.186,893
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ -$ -$ -3 -$ -3 -$ 50,318 $ -3 50,318
HELOCs
Pass $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 6,335 $ 47,934 $ 11,587 $ 65,856
Substandard - - - - - 1,733 16 1,132 2,881
Loss - - - - - 99 - 855 954
Total HELOCs $ -$ -3 -$ -$ -$ 8,167 $ 47,950 $ 13574 $ 69,691
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ -$ -3 -3 -$ -$ -3 398 $ -3 398
Personal
Pass $ 584,422 % 611,453 $ 361,128 $ 129,721 $ 35,601 $ 105,559 $ -$ 21,944 $ 1,849,828
Substandard 494 5,904 4,474 1,678 281 8,998 - 1,293 23,122
Loss 3 108 100 6 6 2 - - 225
Total Personal $ 584,919 % 617,465 $ 365,702 $ 131,405 $ 35,888 $ 114,559 $ -$ 23237 $ 1,873,175
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ 1135 % 29513 $ 38,879 $ 10,487 $ 2474 $ 3201 $ -3 1415 $ 87,104
Auto
Pass $ 1,013,543 $ 1,007,006 $ 721,883 $ 547,046 $ 290,297 $ 183,490 $ -$ -$ 3,763,265
Substandard 3,665 14,590 13,569 10,585 6,934 5,820 - - 55,163
Loss = 60 58 D 15 41 = = 179
Total Auto $ 1,017,208 $ 1,021,656 $ 735510 $ 557,636 $ 297,246 $ 189,351 $ -$ -$ 3,818,607
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ 3815 % 28,070 $ 15143 $ 7377 $ 3,930 $ 1452 $ -3 -3 59,787
Other consumer
Pass $ 21,961 $ 30,575 $ 20,718 $ 11,621 $ 4,962 $ 3,709 $ 74,509 $ -$ 168,055
Substandard - 233 22 14 29 61 301 - 660
Loss - - - 550 - - - - 550
Total Other
consumer $ 21,961 $ 30,808 $ 20,740 $ 12,185 $ 4,991 $ 3,770 $ 74,810 $ -$ 169,265
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ 25% 196 $ 130 $ 96 $ 128% 1497 $ 7% -$ 2,149
Total Popular Inc. $ 4679918 $ 6,150.874 $ 6,038,708 $ 4,261,356 $ 2,619,626 $ 9,164,556 $ 3,243,118 $ 36,811 $ 36,194,967
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December 31, 2023

Term Loans Revolving
Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year X Loans
Revolving  Converted to
Loans Term Loans
Prior Amortized Amortized
(In thousands) 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 Years Cost Basis ___Cost Basis Total
BPPR
Commercial:
Commercial multi-family
Pass $ 37,976 $ 138,619 $ 21,334 $ 20,487 $ 32,554 $ 24,248 $ 306 $ -$ 275,524
Watch = > = = 1,068 5,179 > - 6,247
Special Mention - 559 - - - 4,780 - - 5,339
Substandard - - - - - 4,832 - - 4,832
Total commercial
multi-family $ 37,976 $ 139,178 $ 21,334 $ 20487 $ 33,622 $ 39,039 $ 306 $ -3 291,942
Commercial real estate non-owner occupied
Pass $ 305243$% 871,191 $ 560,785 $ 359,853 $ 41,262 $ 563,794 $ 7,042 $ -$ 2,709,170
Watch 1,959 882 5,205 22,211 5,938 27,015 - - 63,210
Special Mention 43,020 5,413 24,730 - 15,843 68,368 - - 157,374
Substandard 1,016 1,307 180 2,231 53,729 12,968 4,069 - 75,500
Total commercial
real estate non-
owner occupied 351,238 878,793 590,900 384,295 116,772 672,145 11,111 - 3,005,254
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ -$ -$ -3 609 $ -3 521 $ -3 -3 1,130
Commercial real estate owner occupied
Pass $ 92,234 $ 155,819 $ 227,246 $ 51,038 $ 24,184 $ 357,429 $ 9,146 $ -3 917,096
Watch 2,947 45,106 9,913 4,285 5,017 62,217 1,000 - 130,485
Special Mention - 16,860 20,741 1,462 887 44,069 - - 84,019
Substandard 1,316 15,710 5,080 143,696 845 87,383 12,617 - 266,647
Doubtful - - - - - 136 - - 136
Total commercial
real estate owner
occupied $  96497$ 233495% 262,980 $ 200481 $ 30,933 $ 551,234 $ 22763 $ -$ 1,398,383
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ -$ 4% -3 -3 13 4,432 $ -$ -3 4,437
Commercial and industrial
Pass $ 1,109,898 $ 634,401 $ 511,912 $ 241452 $ 123458 $ 258,872 $ 1,343,885 $ -$  4,223878
Watch 28,841 95,785 6,111 4,043 15,560 65,360 182,756 - 398,456
Special Mention 6,401 3,269 276 3,200 2,088 41,289 9,410 - 65,933
Substandard 731 1,760 8,644 22,065 1,922 32,087 40,670 - 107,879
Doubtful - - - 54 - 26 - - 80
Total commercial
and industrial $ 1145871 % 735215$ 526943 $ 270814 $ 143028 $ 397,634 $ 1576721 $ -$  4796,226
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ 896 $ 184 $ 215 $ 335 $ 555 $ 1,086 $ 4,468 $ -$ 7,739
Construction
Pass $ 26,662 $ 24,462 $ 27,364 $ 10,758 $ 1,944 $ 1,049 $ 38,720 $ -3$ 130,959
Watch - 16,546 5,458 - - - 9,506 - 31,510
Special Mention - - 1,009 - - - 1 - 1,010
Substandard - 6,378 - - » - » - 6,378
Total construction $ 26,662 $ 47,386 $ 33831 $ 10,758 $ 1944 $ 1049 $ 48,227 $ -3 169,857
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ - $ 2,611 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 2,611
Mortgage
Pass $ 751,532$ 439,373 % 421,297 $ 259,412 $ 164,438 $ 4,280,509 $ -3 -$ 6,316,561
Substandard 96 161 162 345 2,606 71,893 - - 75,263
Total mortgage $ 751,628 % 439534 $ 421,459 $ 259,757 $ 167,044 $ 4,352,402 $ -3 -$ 6,391,824
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1638 $ -3 -3 1,638
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December 31, 2023
Term Loans Revolving

Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year X Loans
Revolving  Converted to
Loans Term Loans
Prior Amortized Amortized
(In thousands) 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 Years Cost Basis ___Cost Basis Total
BPPR
Leasing
Pass $ 647,659 % 488506 $ 313,133 $ 163,189 $ 88,983 $ 21,706 $ -$ -$ 1723176
Substandard 806 2,516 3,053 906 818 517 - - 8,616
Loss = = = = = 17 = = 17
Total leasing $ 648465% 491,022 % 316,186 $ 164,095 $ 89,801 $ 22,240 $ -3 -$ 1,731,809
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ 1,065 $ 4,424 $ 2,878 $ 849 $ 976 $ 687 $ -$ -$ 10,879
Consumer:
Credit cards
Pass $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 1,112,447 $ -$ 1,112,447
Substandard - - - - - - 23,259 - 23,259
Loss - - - - - - 22 - 22
Total credit cards $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 1135728 $ -$ 1135728
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ -$ -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 41,007 $ -3 41,007
HELOCs
Pass $ -$ -$ -$ -3 -$ -$ 2,622 $ -$ 2,622
Substandard - - - - - - 26 - 26
Total HELOCs $ -$ -$ -3 -$ -3 -$ 2,648 $ -3 2,648
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ -$ -3 -3 -3 -3 -$ 2133 -$ 213
Personal
Pass $ 859,434 $ 480,771 $ 181,483 $ 57,227 $ 58,849 $ 96,956 $ -$ 22,034 $ 1,756,754
Substandard 1,815 4,985 1,939 493 933 8,322 - 1,006 19,493
Loss - - 14 - 12 37 - - 63
Total Personal $ 861249% 485756 $ 183,436 $ 57,720 $ 59,794 $ 105,315 $ -3 23040 $ 1,776,310
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ 4,458 $ 35,915 $ 18,076 $ 4,210 $ 4,891 $ 2,952 $ -$ 1,475 $ 71,977
Auto
Pass $ 1,210,622 $ 899,797 $ 711,439 $ 405,768 $ 260,355 $ 120,318 $ -3 -$ 3,608,299
Substandard 6,980 14,049 11,916 9,157 7,051 3,199 - - 52,352
Loss 9 44 45 16 9 6 - - 129
Total Auto $ 1217611 $ 913890$ 723400 $ 414941 $ 267415 $ 123523 $ -3 -$ 3660780
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ 10,170 $ 23849 $ 11,820 $ 5914 $ 3553 $ -3 -$ -3 55,306
Other consumer
Pass $ 36,144 $ 24,238 $ 14,942 $ 5,618 $ 3433 $ 2,753 $ 61,796 $ -$ 148,924
Substandard 244 25 - 73 16 131 249 - 738
Loss - - 137 - - 363 - - 500
Total Other
consumer $ 36,388 $ 24,263 $ 15,079 $ 5691 $ 3449 $ 3247 $ 62,045 $ -$ 150,162
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ 47$ 154 % 125 $ 164 $ 88 $ 11,876 $ -$ -$ 12,454
Total BPPR $ 5173585 $ 4,388,532 $ 3,095,548 $ 1,789,039 $ 913,802 $ 6,267,828 $ 2,859,549 $ 23,040 $ 24,510,923
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December 31, 2023

Term Loans Revolving
Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year X Loans
Revolving  Converted to
Loans Term Loans
Prior Amortized Amortized
(In thousands) 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 Years Cost Basis ___Cost Basis Total
Popular U.S.
Commercial:
Commercial multi-family
Pass $ 166,410 $ 417,169 $ 326,047 $ 164,887 $ 182528 $ 410,836 $ 5112 $ -$ 1,672,989
Watch - 116,794 39,319 71,237 93,239 98,365 - - 418,954
Special Mention - - 862 1,171 - 3,377 - - 5,410
Substandard - - - - 5,545 20,780 - - 26,325
Total commercial
multi-family $ 166,410 $ 533963 $ 366,228 $ 2372953F 281312 $ 533,358 $ 5112 -$ 2123678
Commercial real estate non-owner occupied
Pass $ 396,712$ 490,316 $ 170,074 $ 201,225 $ 86,595 $ 394,455 $ 6,086 $ -$ 1,745,463
Watch - 39,721 38,713 43,705 39,908 91,922 4,557 - 258,526
Special Mention - - - - 1,327 63,365 - - 64,692
Substandard - - - 8,054 1,702 3,730 - - 13,486
Total commercial
real estate non-
owner occupied $ 396712 $ 530,037 $ 208,787 $ 252984 $ 129,532 $ 553,472 $ 10,643 $ -$ 2082167
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ -$ -$ -3 -$ -3 193 $ -3 -$ 193
Commercial real estate owner occupied
Pass $ 303202% 278380% 226,289 $ 58,505 $ 47,083 $ 204,888 $ 9,753 $ -$ 1,128,100
Watch - 69,894 84,218 53,066 14,057 98,502 1,905 - 321,642
Special Mention - - 77,912 4,955 6,074 11,224 - - 100,165
Substandard - 477 2,430 - 21,763 107,675 - - 132,345
Total commercial
real estate owner
occupied $ 303202% 348751 % 390,849 $ 116,526 $ 88,977 $ 422,289 $ 11,658 $ -$ 1682252
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ -$ -$ -$ -3 -$ 1,395 $ -$ -$ 1,395
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December 31, 2023

Term Loans Revolving
Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year X Loans
Revolving  Converted to
Loans Term Loans
Prior Amortized Amortized
(In thousands) 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 Years Cost Basis ___Cost Basis Total
Popular U.S.
Commercial and industrial
Pass $ 196,959 $ 278,238 $ 346,428 $ 268,835 $ 148502 $ 379,635 $ 414,883 $ -$ 2,033,480
Watch 198 37,022 47,299 44,939 23,493 93,299 32,497 - 278,747
Special Mention 208 889 1,021 30 151 39 8,674 - 11,012
Substandard 636 628 152 1,152 730 1,841 1,517 - 6,656
Total commercial
and industrial $ 198,001 $ 316,777$% 394900 $ 314956 $ 172876 $ 474814 $ 457571 $ -$ 2320895
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs 247 $ 221 % 1,994 $ 44 $ 1320 % -$ 49 $ -$ 3,875
Construction
Pass $ 280,188 % 251,627 $ 89,450 $ 14,733 $ 25,254 $ -$ -$ -3 661,252
Watch - 22,867 12,869 - 21,896 782 - - 58,414
Special Mention 2,120 13,151 - - - - - - 15,271
Substandard - 1 13,997 3,895 - 36,593 - - 54,486
Total construction $ 282308% 287646$% 116,316 $ 18,628 $ 47,150 $ 37375 $ -$ -$ 789,423
Mortgage
Pass $ 99,296 $ 229,720 $ 288,767 $ 233,805 $ 177,245 $ 264,069 $ -$ -$ 1,292,902
Substandard - 235 - 646 2,102 8,208 - - 11,191
Total mortgage $ 99,296 $ 229955 $ 288,767 $ 234451 $ 179,347 $ 272,277 $ -$ -$ 1,304,093
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December 31, 2023
Term Loans Revolving

Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year X Loans
Revolving  Converted to
Loans Term Loans
Prior Amortized Amortized
(In thousands) 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 Years Cost Basis ___Cost Basis Total
Popular U.S.
Consumer:
Credit cards
Pass $ -$ -3 -$ -$ -$ -$ 193 -$ 19
Total credit cards $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 198 -$ 19
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ -$ -3 -$ -$ -$ -$ 1% -$ 1
HELOCs
Pass $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 7,394 $ 39,925 $ 12,253 $ 59,572
Substandard - - - - - 1,849 - 966 2,815
Loss - - - - - 99 - 819 918
Total HELOCs $ -$ -3 -$ -$ -$ 9342 $ 39925 $ 14038 $ 63,305
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 471 $ -$ -3 471
Personal
Pass $ 41,016 $ 93,759 $ 23,325 $ 2,993 $ 3,597 $ 1,441 $ -$ -$ 166,131
Substandard 333 1,630 325 50 126 211 - - 2,675
Loss - - - - 1 130 - - 131
Total Personal $ 41,349 $ 95,389 $ 23,650 $ 3043 $ 3724 % 1782 $ -$ -$ 168,937
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ 735 $ 13,136 $ 4,450 $ 618 $ 872 $ 160 $ -3 -3 19971
Other consumer
Pass $ 19% -$ -3$ -$ -$ -$ 10,259 $ -3 10,278
Substandard - - - - - - 1 - 1
Total Other
consumer $ 19% -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 10,260 $ -3 10,279
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ -$ -3 -$ -3 -$ -3 171 $ -3 171
Total Popular U.S. $ 1,487,297 $ 2,342518 $ 1,789,497 $ 1,177,883 $ 902,918 $ 2,304,709 $ 535,188 $ 14,038 $ 10,554,048
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December 31, 2023

Term Loans Revolving
Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year X Loans
Revolving  Converted to
Loans Term Loans
Prior Amortized Amortized
(In thousands) 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 Years Cost Basis ___Cost Basis Total
Popular, Inc.
Commercial:
Commercial multi-family
Pass $ 204,386 $ 555,788 $ 347,381 $ 185374 $ 215082 $ 435,084 $ 5418 $ -$ 1948513
Watch = 116,794 39,319 71,237 94,307 103,544 - - 425,201
Special Mention - 559 862 1,171 - 8,157 - - 10,749
Substandard - - - - 5,545 25612 - - 31,157
Total commercial
multi-family $ 204386 $ 673141 $ 387562 $ 257,782 $ 314934 $ 572,397 $ 5418 $ -$ 2415620
Commercial real estate non-owner occupied
Pass $ 701,955 % 1,361,507 $ 730,859 $ 561,078 $ 127,857 $ 958,249 $ 13,128 $ -$ 4,454,633
Watch 1,959 40,603 43,918 65,916 45,846 118,937 4,557 - 321,736
Special Mention 43,020 5,413 24,730 - 17,170 131,733 - - 222,066
Substandard 1,016 1,307 180 10,285 55,431 16,698 4,069 - 88,986
Total commercial
real estate non-
owner occupied $ 747950% 1408830$% 799,687 $ 637279 $ 246304 $ 1225617 $ 21,754 $ -$ 5087421
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ -$ -$ -3 609 $ -3 714 $ -3 -3 1,323
Commercial real estate owner occupied
Pass $ 395436$ 434,199 $ 453,535 $ 109,543 $ 71,267 $ 562,317 $ 18,899 $ -$ 2,045,196
Watch 2,947 115,000 94,131 57,351 19,074 160,719 2,905 - 452,127
Special Mention - 16,860 98,653 6,417 6,961 55,293 - - 184,184
Substandard 1,316 16,187 7,510 143,696 22,608 195,058 12,617 - 398,992
Doubtful - - - - - 136 - - 136
Total commercial
real estate owner
occupied $ 399699% 582246$ 653829 $ 317,007 $ 119910 $ 973,523 $ 34421 3% -$ 3,080,635
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ -$ 4% -$ -$ 1$ 5827 $ -$ -$ 5,832
Commercial and industrial
Pass $ 1,306,857 $ 912,639 $ 858,340 $ 510,287 $ 271,960 $ 638,507 $ 1,758,768 $ -$ 6,257,358
Watch 29,039 132,807 53,410 48,982 39,053 158,659 215,253 - 677,203
Special Mention 6,609 4,158 1,297 3,230 2,239 41,328 18,084 - 76,945
Substandard 1,367 2,388 8,796 23,217 2,652 33,928 42,187 - 114,535
Doubtful - - - 54 - 26 - - 80
Total commercial
and industrial $ 1,343872$ 1,051,992 $ 921,843 $ 585770 $ 315904 $ 872,448 $ 2,034,292 $ -$ 7,126,121
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ 1143 $ 405 $ 2,209 $ 3719 $ 1875 % 1,086 $ 4517 $ -3 11,614
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December 31, 2023

Term Loans Revolving
Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year Loans
Revolving  Converted to
Loans Term Loans
Prior Amortized Amortized
(In thousands) 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 Years Cost Basis ___Cost Basis Total
Popular, Inc.
Construction
Pass 306,850 $ 276,089 $ 116,814 $ 25,491 $ 27,198 $ 1,049 $ 38,720 $ -3 792,211
Watch - 39,413 18,327 - 21,896 782 9,506 - 89,924
Special Mention 2,120 13,151 1,009 - - - 1 - 16,281
Substandard - 6,379 13,99 3,895 - 36,593 - - 60,864

Year-to-Date gross

write-offs -$ 2611 $ -3 -$ -3 -3 -3 -3 2,611
Mortgage
Pass 850,828 $ 669,093 $ 710,064 $ 493217 $ 341683 $ 4544578 $ -$ -$ 7,609,463
Substandard 96 396 162 991 4,708 80,101 - - 86,454
Total mortgage 850,924 $ 669489 % 710226 $ 494208 $ 346391 $ 4624679 $ -$ -$ 7695917
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs -$ -3 -3 -3 -3 1638 $ -3 -3 1,638
Leasing
Pass 647,659 $ 488,506 $ 313,133 $ 163,189 $ 88,983 $ 21,706 $ -$ -$ 1723176
Substandard 806 2,516 3,053 906 818 517 - - 8,616
Loss - - - - - 17 - - 17
Total leasing 648465% 491022 $ 316,186 $ 164,095 $ 89,801 $ 22,240 $ -$ -$ 1,731,809
Year-to-Date gross
_write-offs 1.065$ 4424 $ 2878 $ 849 $ 976 $ 687 $ -$ -3 10.879
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December 31, 2023

Term Loans Revolving
Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year X Loans
Revolving  Converted to
Loans Term Loans
Prior Amortized Amortized
(In thousands) 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 Years Cost Basis ___Cost Basis Total
Popular, Inc.
Consumer:
Credit cards
Pass $ -$ -3 -$ -$ -$ -$ 1,112,466 $ -$ 1,112,466
Substandard - - - - - - 23,259 - 23,259
Loss - - - - - - 22 - 22
Total credit cards $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 1135747 $ -$ 1135747
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ -$ -$ -8 -$ -$ -$ 41,008 $ -$ 41,008
HELOCs
Pass $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 7,394 $ 42,547 $ 12,253 $ 62,194
Substandard - - - - - 1,849 26 966 2,841
Loss - - - - - 99 - 819 918
Total HELOCs $ -$ -3 -$ -$ -$ 9342 $ 42573 $ 14038 $ 65,953
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ -$ -3 -3 -3 -3 471 $ 213 $ -3 684
Personal
Pass $ 900,450 $ 574,530 $ 204,808 $ 60,220 $ 62,446 $ 98,397 $ -$ 22,034 $ 1,922,885
Substandard 2,148 6,615 2,264 543 1,059 8,533 - 1,006 22,168
Loss $ -$ -$ 14 % -3 3% 167 $ -3 -3 194
Total Personal $ 902598 % 581,145$% 207,086 $ 60,763 $ 63,518 $ 107,097 $ -3 23,040 $ 1,945,247
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ 5193 $ 49,051 $ 22,526 $ 4,828 $ 5763 $ 3112 $ -3 1475 $ 91,948
Auto
Pass $ 1,210,622 $ 899,797 $ 711,439 $ 405,768 $ 260,355 $ 120,318 $ -$ -$ 3,608,299
Substandard 6,980 14,049 11,916 9,157 7,051 3,199 - - 52,352
Loss 9 44 45 16 g 6 - - 129
Total Auto $ 1217611 $ 913890 $ 723400 $ 414941 $ 267,415 $ 123523 $ -$ -$ 3,660,780
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ 10,170 $ 23,849 $ 11,820 $ 5914 $ 3,553 $ -$ -3 -3 55,306
Other consumer
Pass $ 36,163 $ 24,238 $ 14,942 $ 5,618 $ 3433 $ 2,753 $ 72,055 $ -$ 159,202
Substandard 244 25 - 73 16 131 250 - 739
Loss - - 137 - - 363 - - 500
Total Other
consumer $ 36,407 $ 24,263 $ 15,079 $ 5,691 $ 3449 $ 3,247 $ 72,305 $ -3 160,441
Year-to-Date gross
write-offs $ 47$ 154 $ 125 % 164 $ 88 % 11,876 $ 171 $ -3 12,625
Total Popular Inc. $ 6660882 % 6731050$ 4885045 $ 2,966,922 $ 1816720 $ 8572537 $ 3,394,737 $ 37,078 $ 35,064,971
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Note 9 - Mortgage banking
activities X . . . . X . L
Income from mortgage banking activities includes mortgage servicing fees earned in connection with administering

Fﬁ'éh@é’g@' loans and valuation adjustments on mortgage servicing rights. It also includes gain on sales and
fesedtzlionstgdge loans, losses on repurchased loans, including interest advances, and trading gains and losses on
#8ri¥al¥e used to hedge the Corporation's securitization activities. In addition, fair value valuation adjustments to

rﬁGﬁ@&ﬁ@%ans held for sale, if any, are recorded as part of the mortgage banking
activities.
The following table presents the components of mortgage banking activities:

Quarters ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,

In thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023

Mortgage servicing fees, net of fair value adjustments:

Mortgage servicing fees $ 7,559 $ 8,025 $ 22,912 $ 25,083
Mortgage servicing rights fair value adjustments 4.896) (2.793) (10.280) (10.385)
Total mortgage _servicing fees, net of fair value adjustments 2,663 5232 12,632 14,698

’ ; . ) o )

Trading account (loss) profit:

Unrealized (loss) gains on outstanding derivative positions (44) 45 113 160

Realized (loss) gains on closed derivative positions (261) 494 (249) 661

Total trading account (loss) profit (305) 539 (136) 821
. - )

Total mortgage banking activities $ 2,670 $ 5,393 $ 12,753 $ 15,109

78



Note 10 - Transfers of financial assets and mortgage servicing

‘T’ﬁget%orporation typically transfers conforming residential mortgage loans in conjunction with GNMA, FNMA and
s&dtifation transactions whereby the loans are exchanged for cash or securities and servicing rights. As seller, the
ResRAERONCertain representations and warranties with respect to the originally transferred loans and, inthe past, has sold
IE&RRINith credit recourse to a government-sponsored entity, namely FNMA. Refer to Note 19 to the Consolidated
Jritanéats for a description of such arrangements.

No liabilities were incurred as a result of these securitizations during the quarters and nine months ended September 30, 2024
20288Because they did not contain any credit recourse arrangements. The securitizations completed by the Corporation
fUEREHENd nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 were completed without credit recourse.

The following tables present the initial fair value of the assets obtained as proceeds from residential mortgage loans
a8fGiERIquarters and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and

2023:

Proceeds Obtained During the Quarter Ended September 30, 2024
(In thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Initial Fair Value
Assets

Trading account debt securities:

Mortgage-backed securities - GNMA $ = $ 3,083 $ = $ 3,083
Mortgage-backed securities - ENMA $ - $ 3,273 $ - $ 3,273
Total trading account debt securities $ = $ 6,356 $ o $ 6,356
Mortgage servicing rights $ - $ - $ 117 $ 117
Total $ = $ 6,356 $ 117 $ 6,473
Proceeds Obtained During the Nine months Ended September 30, 2024
(In thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Initial Fair Value
Assets

Trading account debt securities:

Mortgage-backed securities - GNMA $ = $ 4,183 $ = $ 4,183
Mortgage-backed securities - FNMA - 6,979 - 6,979
Total trading account _debt securities $ - $ 11,162 $ - $ 11,162
Mortgage servicing rights $ - $ - $ 234 $ 234
Total $ o $ 11,162 $ 234 $ 11,396

Proceeds Obtained During the Quarter Ended September 30, 2023
(In thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Initial Fair Value

Assets

Trading account debt securities:

Mortgage-backed securities - GNMA $ = $ 1,421 $ = $ 1,421
Mortgage-backed securities - FNMA - 10,178 - 10,178
Total trading account debt securities $ = $ 11,599 $ = $ 11,599
Mortgage servicing rights $ - $ - $ 301 $ 301
Total $ o $ 11599 $ 301 $ 11,900
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Proceeds Obtained During the Nine months Ended September 30, 2023

(In thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Initial Fair Value

Assets

Trading account debt securities:

Mortgage-backed securities - GNMA $ = $ 2,488 $ = $ 2,488
Mortgage-backed securities - FNMA - 33,470 - 33,470
Total trading account debt securities $ = $ 35,958 $ = $ 35,958
Mortgage servicing rights $ - $ - $ 945 $ 945
Total $ = $ 35,958 $ 945 $ 36,903

During the nine months ended September 30, 2024, the Corporation retained servicing rights on whole loan
éﬁbﬁ%xiﬁ‘&é{WGSZ million in principal balance outstanding (September 30, 20239-m#lion), with net realized gains
approximately $0.9 million (September 30, 2023 - gains of0.6 million). All loan sales pe‘?formed during the nine months
September 30, 2024 and 2023 were without credit recourse agré@ﬁ%’nts.

The Corporation recognizes as assets the rights to service loans for others, whether these rights are purchased or result from
@apRters such as sales and securitizations. These mortgage servicing rights (“MSRs”) are measured at fair value.

The Corporation uses a discounted cash flow model to estimate the fair value of MSRs. The discounted cash
irﬂﬁ%bo?@@@@' assumptions that market participants would use in estimating future net servicing income, including
ﬁmnf’épeeds, discount rate, cost to service, escrow account earnings, contractual servicing fee income, prepayment and
fatss, among other considerations. Prepayment speeds are adjusted for the loans’ characteristics and portfolio behavior.

The following table presents the changes in MSRs measured using the fair value method for the nine months ended September

3624 and
2023.
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Residential MSRs

(In thousands) September 30, 2024 September 30, 2023
Fair value at beginning of period $ 118,109 $ 128,350
Additions 998 1,814
Changes due to payments on loans [ (6,629) (7,569)
Reduction due to loan repurchases (372) (468 )
Changes in fair value due to changes in valuation model inputs or assumptions (3,279) (1,828)
Other - (1,269)
Eair value at end of period @ $ 108,827 $ 119,030

[1] Represents changes due to collection / realization of expected cash flows over time.

[2] At September 30, 2024, PB had MSRs amounting to $ 1.8 million (September 30, 2023 - $ 1.9 million).

During the quarter ended June 30, 2023, the Corporation terminated a servicing agreement, in which it acted as sub-servicer
tara party, for a portfolio with an unpaid principal balance of approxi@é@elyil®n and a related MSR fair value
approximately $ million. of

Residential mortgage loans serviced for others were $.2 billion at September 30, 2024 (December 31, 2023 %9 billion).

Net mortgage servicing fees, a component of mortgage banking activities in the Consolidated Statements of Operations, include
ﬂ?ﬁinges from period to period in the fair value of the MSRs, including changes due to collection / realization of expected cash
frl‘ﬁ‘élsbanking subsidiaries receive servicing fees based on a percentage of the outstanding loan balance. These servicing
988itéd1%0 income when they are collected. At September 30, 2024, those weighted average mortgage servicing fees0.32%
Y¥¥Btember 30, 2023 0.31%). Under these servicing agreements, the banking subsidiaries do not generally earn
prepayment penalty fees on ﬁigrﬂﬁ%’ﬂﬁling loans serviced.

The section below includes information on assumptions used inthe valuation model of the MSRs, originated and
Eémﬁﬁﬂasgémptions used in measuring the servicing rights derived from loans securitized or sold by the Corporation during
th@rters and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 were as follows:

Quarters ended Nine months ended
September 30, 2024 September 30, 2023 _September 30,2024  ___ September 30,2023
BPPR PB BPPR PB BPPR PB BPPR PB
Prepayment speed 7.8 % 6.8 % 73 % 7.0 % 6.9 % 6.4 % 71 % 71 %
Weighted average life (in years) 8.7 8.8 9.2 8.0 9.2 8.7 9.2 8.0
Discount rate (annual rate) 95 % 129 % 9.6 % 110 % 9.6 % 12.8 % 9.6 % 10.7 %

Key economic assumptions used to estimate the fair value of MSRs derived from sales and securitizations of
MR 19§NSthe  banking subsidiaries and servicing rights purchased from other financial institutions, and the
FRAREEE dRanges in those assumptions, were as follows as of the end of the periods reported:
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Originated MSRs Purchased MSRs

September 30, December 31, September 30, December 31,
(In thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Fair value of servicing rights $ 34,493 $ 39,757 $ 74,334 $ 78,352
Weighted average life (in years) 6.4 6.6 6.6 6.8
Weighted average prepayment speed (annual rate) 5.9 % 5.9 % 6.9 % 7.0 %
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change $ (704) $ (69%) $ (1513) $ (1,440)
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change $ (1377) $ (1365) $ (2965) $ (2,827)
Weighted average discount rate (annual rate) 114 % 11.3 % 10.8 % 10.9 %
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change $ (1277) $ (1,387) $ (2685) $ (2,871)
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change $ (2470) % (2686) $ (5203) $ (5,562)

The sensitivity analyses presented in the table above for servicing rights are hypothetical and should be used with caution. As
ﬂyﬁres indicate, changes in fair value based on a 10 and 20 percent variation in assumptions generally cannot be

gxtansiatre relationship of the change in assumption to the change in fair value may not be linear. Also, in the sensitivity tables
included herein, the effect of a variation in a particular assumption on the fair value of the retained interest is calculated
M@\%ihg any other assumption. In reality, changes in one factor may result in changes in another (for example, increases in
RS rates may result in lower prepayments and increased credit losses), which might magnify or counteract the

sensitivities.

At September 30, 2024, the Corporation serviced511 million in residential mortgage loans with credit recourse to the
ﬁ)ecember 31,2023 - $61 million). Also refer to NotEOIRAEPR: Consolidated Financial Statements for information on

the Corporation’s liability of xR Hosses related to loans serviced with credit recourse.

Under the GNMA securitizations, the Corporation, as servicer, has the rightto repurchase (but not the obligation), at its option
@Mout GNMA's prior authorization, any loan that is collateral for a GNMA guaranteed mortgage-backed security
B@%L@f&?i”criteria are met. At the time that individual loans meet GNMA's specified delinquency criteria and are
r@ﬁgkﬁasf@,rthe Corporation is deemed to have regained effective control over these loans if the Corporation was the pool issuer.
ébptember 30, 2024, the Corporation had record&dmiflion in mortgage loans on its Consolidated Statements of
Condition related to this buy-back option program (Decm}cﬂ, 2023 4% million). Loans in our serviced GNMA portfolio benefit
from payment forbearance programs but continue to reflect the contractual delinquency until the borrower repays deferred
BRYBMAfletes a payment deferral modification or other borrower assistance alternative. As long as the Corporation

§BRJiBESAe oans that continue to be collateral ina GNMA guaranteed mortgage-backed security, the MSR is recognized
BWipBration.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2024, the Corporation repurchased approximatel\27 million (September 30, 2023 -
8§34 million) of mortgage loans fromits GNMA servicing portfolio. The determination to repurchase these loans was based
ecofBmiB%enefits of the transaction, which results in a reduction of the servicing costs for these severely delinquent loans,
FeRIRY to principal and interest advances. The risk associated with the loans is reduced due to their guaranteed
@Qﬂf&atﬂ?ﬁmay place these loans under modification programs offered by FHA, VA or United States Department of
&ﬁm%?other loss mitigation programs offered by the Corporation, and once brought back to current status, these may be
iaged in portfolio or re-sold in the secondary market.
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Note 11 — Other real estate owned

The following tables present the activity related to Other Real Estate Owned (“OREQ”), forthe quarters and nine months

ergesnber 30, 2024 and

2023.
For the quarter ended September 30, 2024

OREO OREO
(In thousands) Commercial/Construction Mortgage Total
Balance at beginning of period $ 9,428 $ 60,797 $ 70,225
Write-downs in value (39) (549) (588)
Additions 1,125 7,966 9,091
Sales (588) (15112) (15,700)
Ending balance $ 9,926 $ 53,102 $ 63,028

For the quarter ended September 30, 2023

OREO OREO
(In thousands) Commercial/Construction Mortgage Total
Balance at beginning of period $ 11,819 $ 74,397 $ 86,216
Write-downs in value (123) (567) (690)
Additions 257 14,795 15,052
Sales (900) (17,356 ) (18,256 )
Ending balance $ 11,053 $ 71,269 $ 82,322

For the nine months ended September 30, 2024

OREO OREO
(In thousands) Commercial/Construction Mortgage Total
Balance at beginning of period $ 11,189 $ 69,227 $ 80,416
Write-downs in value (1,103) (1,260) (2,363)
Additions 6,985 32,748 39,733
Sales (7,145) (47,548) (54,693)
Other adjustments - (65) (65)
Ending balance $ 9,926 $ 53,102 $ 63,028

For the nine months ended September 30, 2023

OREO OREO
(In thousands) Commercial/Construction Mortgage Total
Balance at beginning of period $ 12,500 $ 76,626 $ 89,126
Write-downs in value (362) (1,587) (1,949)
Additions 1,524 54,625 56,149
Sales (2,626) (58,277) (60,903 )
Other adjustments 17 (118) (101)
Ending balance $ 11,053 $ 71,269 $ 82,322
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Note 12 - Other assets

The caption of other assets in the consolidated statements of financial condition consists of the following major

categories:

(In thousands) September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
Net deferred tax assets (net of valuation allowance) $ 917,793 $ 1,009,068
Investments under the equity method 248,235 236,485
Prepaid taxes 53,395 39,052
Other prepaid expenses 39,000 29,338
Capitalized software costs 117,894 93,404
Derivative assets 25,934 24,419
Trades receivable from brokers and counterparties 5,701 23,102
Receivables from investments maturities - 176,000
Principal, interest and escrow servicing advances 44,665 48,557
Guaranteed mortgage loan claims receivable 19,736 29,648
Operating ROU assets (Note 27) 98,077 116,106
Finance ROU assets (Note 27) 19,301 21,093
Assets for pension benefit 26,409 23,404
Others 151,779 144 888
Total other assets $ 1767919 $ 2,014,564

The Corporation regularly incurs in capitalizable costs associated with software development or licensing which are recorded
WEBther Assets line item in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition. In addition, the Corporation
BWHES associated with hosting arrangements that are service contracts that are also recorded within Other Assets.
Ehﬁn@éﬁ'ﬁﬂﬂs can include capitalizable implementation costs that are amortized during the term of the hosting The
fIBNgREetlble summarizes the composition of acquired or developed software costs as well as costs related

alPanb@RtiBsts:
Net
Gross Carrying Accumulated Carrying
(In thousands) Amount Amortization Value

September 30, 2024
Software development costs
Software license costs

Cloud computing arrangements

$ 83,179 $
49,072
56,599

28,978 $ 54,201
29,477 19,595
12,501 44,098

Total Capitalized software costs [1] [2]

$ 188.850 $ 70956 $ 117.894

December 31, 2023
Software development costs
Software license costs
Cloud computing arrangements

$ 76,497 $

22,086 $ 54,411

Total Capitalized software costs [1] [2]

42,868 18,048 24,820
23,623 9,450 14,173
$ 142,988 $ 49,584 $ 03404

[1] Software intangible assets are presented as part of Other Assets in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.

2] The tables above excludes assets that have been fully amortized.

Total amortization expense for all capitalized software and hosting arrangement cost, reflected as part of technology and
ERPBIE.s in the consolidated statement of operations, is as follows:

Quarters ended September 30,

(In thousands)

Nine months ended September 30,

2023 2024 2023
Software development and license costs 21,118 $ 16,820 $ 57,431 $ 47,962
Cloud computing arrangements 1514 923 3,052 2,685
Total amortization expense 22,632 $ 17,743 $ 60,483 $ 50,647
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Note 13 — Goodwill and other intangible

fusass Sl

There were no changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2024. During
third quarter oft?®23, the Corporation recorded an impairment of23 million as a result of its annual goodwill impairment test related
® its U.S. based equipment leasing subsidiary, Popular Equipment Finance (“PEF”), due to lower forecasted cash flows
Aiiedlbe in the rate used to discount cash flows.

The following table shows the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and

8fated by reportable segments, were as follows (refer to Note 32 for the definition of the Corporation’s reportable
segments):
September 30, 2024

Balance at Goodwill on Goodwill Balance at
(In thousands) January 1, 2024 acquisition impairment _September 30, 2024
Banco Popular de Puerto Rico $ 436,383 $ - $ - $ 436,383
Popular U.S. 368,045 - - 368,045
Total Popular, Inc. $ 804,428 $ = $ = $ 804,428

September 30, 2023

Balance at Goodwill on Goodwill Balance at
(In thousands) January 1, 2023 acquisition impairment _ September 30, 2023
Banco Popular de Puerto Rico $ 436,383 $ - $ - $ 436,383
Popular U.S. 391,045 - (123,000) 368,045
Total Popular, Inc. $ 827,428 $ - $ (123,000) $ 804,428

Other Intangible Assets
The following table reflects the components of other intangible assets subject to
amortization: Net
Gross Carrying Accumulated Carrying
(In thousands) Amount Amortization Value
September 30, 2024
Core deposits $ 12,810 $ 12,275 $ 535
Other customer relationships 14,286 8,050 6,236
Total other intangible assets $ 27,096 $ 20325 $ 6,771
December 31, 2023
Core deposits $ 12,810 $ 11,315 $ 1,495
Other customer relationships 14,286 6,777 7,509
Total other intangible assets $ 27,096 $ 18,092 $ 9,004

During the quarter ended September 30, 2024, the Corporation recognize®.%million in amortization expense related to
intangible assets with definite useful lives (September 30, 2023 - $.8 million). Duﬁﬂ@?{he nine months ended September 30,

the Corporation recognized $.2 million in amortization related to (ﬁﬂ@f‘intangible assets with definite useful lives (September
2023 - $2.4 million). 30,

The following table presents the estimated amortization of the intangible assets with definite useful lives for each of the

fiioudag
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(In thousands)

Remaining 2024 $ 704
Year 2025 1,750
Year 2026 1,440
Year 2027 959
Year 2028 959
Later years 959

Results of the Annual Goodwill Impairment Test

The Corporation’s goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets having an indefinite useful life are tested for impairment, at
kﬂﬁﬁﬁally and on a more frequent basis if events or circumstances indicate impairment could have taken place. Such events
FRYRe, among others, a significant adverse change inthe business climate, an adverse action by a regulator, an
HRanYeiRatAE competitive environment and a decision to change the operations or dispose of a reporting unit.

Management monitors events or changes in circumstances between annual tests to determine if these events or
glangfsariBes would more likely than not reduce the fair value of its reporting units below their carrying amounts.

The Corporation performed the annual goodwill impairment evaluation for the entire organization during the third quarter of
39% July 31, 2024 as the annual evaluation date. The reporting units utilized for this evaluation were those that are one level
BRlWisiness segments, which are the legal entities within the reportable segment. The Corporation follows push-down
ASCMIBNgoodwill is assigned to the reporting units when carrying out a business combination.

In determining the fair value of each reporting unit, the Corporation generally uses a combination of methods, including market
Hﬂﬂﬁples of comparable companies and transactions, as well as discounted cash flow analysis. Management
BUAIEAIBH cifBBmstances of each reporting unit in order to determine the most appropriate valuation methodology and the
WE@ to each valuation methodology, as applicable. The Corporation evaluates the results obtained under each
nﬁh@@%gyto identify and understand the key value drivers inorder to ascertainthat the results obtained are
I67570pARIe 20fder the circumstances. Elements considered include current market and economic conditions,
dpuBIRPIY D Business, and any particular features in the individual reporting units.

The computations require management to make estimates and assumptions. Critical assumptions that are used as part of
thedgations include:

e a selection of comparable publicly traded companies, based on nature of business, location and size;

e a selection of comparable

«ARAUIRIIRNHIL rate applied to future earnings, based on an estimate of the cost of equity;

e the potential future earnings of the reporting unit; and

e the market growth and new business assumptions.

For purposes of the market comparable companies’ approach, valuations were determined by calculating price
HWJP%%% dldéi@ﬂying regression analyses) of relevant value drivers from a group of companies that are comparable to the
Eﬁﬁpﬁéﬁlﬂg analyzed and applying those price multiples to the value drivers of the reporting unit. Management uses judgment in
dB®rmination of which value drivers are considered more appropriate for each reporting unit. Comparable
RAMRASSRE prdeAt minority-based multiples and thus, a control premium adjustment is added to the comparable companies’
Fﬁ@l’ﬁﬁﬁes applied to the reporting unit's value drivers.

For purposes of the market comparable transactions’ approach, valuations had been previously determined by the
E&H@ﬂ’éﬁﬂ@” HVerage price multiples of relevant value drivers from a group of transactions for which the target
€8Mpark®e & the reporting unit being analyzed and applying those price multiples to the value drivers of the reporting unit.

For purposes of the discounted cash flows (“DCF”") approach, the valuation is based on estimated future cash flows. The
Bﬂﬁ@%&%ns used in the DCF valuation analysis for each reporting unit are based on the most recent (as of the

HAkIAtian p8j8ltions presented to the Corporation’s Asset / Liability Management Committee (“ALCO"). The growth
assumptions
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included in these projections are based on management's expectations for each reporting unit's financial prospects
£eBAIRINENd industry conditions as well as particular plans of each entity (i.e. restructuring plans, de-leveraging, etc.). The cost
é@fuity used to discount the cash flows was calculated using the Ibbotson Build-Up Method and ranged 11.9%% to 15.93% for
{024 analysis. The Ibbotson Build-Up Method builds up a cost of equity starting with the rate of return of a “risk-free” asset
% U.S. Treasury note) and adds to it additional risk elements such as equity risk premium, size premium, industry risk
Hfﬁm{u@becific geographic risk premium (as applicable). The resulting discount rates were analyzed in terms of reasonability
gH¥eBurrent market conditions.

The results of the BPPR annual goodwill impairment test as of July 31, 2024 indicated that the estimated fair
¥8IMBINa%AE oft valuation methodologies exceeded BPPR's equity value by approximat@ly billion or 303% compared to %7
Billion or 468%, for the annual goodwill impairment test completed as of July 31, 2023. PB's annual goodwill impairment test

as of such @ddSndicated that the average estimated fair value using a combination of valuation methodologies
BYER§IGAIBE Dy approximately5@ million or34%, compared to 129 million or8%, for the annual goodwill impairment

completed as of July 31, 2023. no impairment was recognized for BPPR dE®B. The goodwill balance of BPPR and
é@‘l‘@@ﬁmnies, represented approximately@39Fof the Corporation’s total goodwill balance as of the July 31, 2024 valuation
date.

Furthermore, as part of the analyses, management performed a reconciliation of the aggregate fair values
AgseraHgashitoto the market capitalization of the Corporation concluding that the fair value results determined for the reporting
Wik July 31, 2024 annual assessment were reasonable.

The goodwill impairment evaluation process requires the Corporation to make estimates and assumptions with regard to
thgudaipf the reporting units. Actual values may differ significantly from these estimates. Such differences could
fﬁ%&knﬁénflﬂﬂé‘éodwill that would, in turn, negatively impact the Corporation’s results of operations and the reporting units where
ﬂlﬁbdwill is recorded. Particularly for reporting units with recognized impairments or where the estimated fair value approximates
ﬁlﬁlityvalue, future decreases in fair value estimates could result in additional impairment charges. Additionally, declines
borﬁlﬁ'ation’s market capitalization and adverse economic conditions sustained over a longer period of time negatively
fAffeetReed earnings could increase the risk of goodwill impairment in the future.

A decline in the Corporation’s stock price related to global and/or regional macroeconomic conditions, a deterioration in the
Ru&tor the U.S. economies, increases in the rate to discount future cash flows, and lower future earnings
ﬁﬁlim&%ﬂy?ﬁu'ﬂ:the aggregate, have a material impact on the determination of the fair value of our reporting units, which
aldrdBult in an impairment of goodwill in the future. An impairment of goodwill would result in anon-cash expense,
ﬁﬁba‘éfl {%¢harge to earnings related to a goodwill impairment would not materially impact regulatory capital

calculations.

The following tables present the gross amount of goodwill and accumulated impairment losses by reportable
segments.

September 30, 2024

Balance at Balance at

September 30, Accumulated  September 30,

2024 impairment 2024
(In thousands) (gross amounts) losses _ (net amounts)
Banco Popular de Puerto Rico $ 440,184 $ 3,801 $ 436,383
Popular U.S. 564,456 196,411 368,045
Total Popular, Inc. $ 1,004,640 $ 200212 $ 804,428
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December 31, 2023

Balance at

December 31,

Accumulated

Balance at

December 31,

2023 impairment 2023
(In thousands) (gross amounts) losses __ (net amounts)
Banco Popular de Puerto Rico $ 440,184 $ 3,801 $ 436,383
Popular U.S. 564,456 196,411 368,045
Total Popular, Inc. $ 1,004,640 $ 200,212 $ 804428
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Note 14 — Deposits

Total deposits as of the end of the periods presented consisted of:

(In thousands) September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
Savings accounts $ 14,149,122 $ 14,602,411
NOW, money market and other interest bearing demand deposits 25,162,318 25,094,316
Total savings, NOW, money market and other interest bearing demand deposits 39,311,440 39,696,727

Certificates of deposit:

Under $250,000 5,619,851 5,443,062
$250,000 and over 3,461,139 3,058,830
Total certificates of deposit 9,080,990 8,501,892
Total interest bearing deposits $ 48,392,430 $ 48,198,619
Non- interest bearing deposits $ 15,276,071 $ 15,419,624
Total deposits $ 63,668,501 $ 63,618,243

A summary of certificates of deposits by maturity at September 30, 2024

follows:

(In thousands)

2024 $ 3,258,241
2025 3,214,257
2026 903,183
2027 640,857
2028 596,378
2029 and thereafter 468,074
Total certificates of deposit $ 9,080,990

At September 30, 2024, the Corporation had brokered deposits amounting td..7 billion (December 31, 2023 - 4.7 billion).

$

The aggregate amount of overdrafts in demand deposit accounts that were reclassified to loans wa$6.2 million at September 30,
8024 (December 31, 2023 - $.1 million).

At September 30, 2024, Puerto Rico government deposits amounted td8.7 hillion. Puerto Rico government deposits are interest
§earing accounts. These government deposits are indexed to short-term market rates and fluctuate in cost with changes in
r#i6$Sin accordance with contractual terms. Public deposit balances are difficult to predict. For example, the receipt by the
Ru&ItGovernment of hurricane recovery related Federal assistance and seasonal tax collections could increase
BHRliccedeRaSBPR.  On the other hand, the amount and timing of reductions in balances are likely to be impacted by, for
ﬂi@mﬁd at which federal assistance is distributed, the financial condition, liquidity and cash management practices of the
RugitoGovernment and its instrumentalities and the implementation of fiscal and debt adjustment plans approved
PHEMAESAQr other actions mandated by the Fiscal Oversightand Management Board for Puerto Rico (the “Oversight
@%@ally, these deposits require that the bank pledge high credit quality securities as collateral, therefore, liquidity risk arising
EQVérnment deposit outflows are lower.
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Note 15 - Borrowings
Assets sold under agreements to repurchase

Assets sold under agreements to repurchase amounted to3% million at September 30, 2024 and $1 million at December 31,
2023.

The Corporation's repurchase transactions are overcollateralized with the securities detailed in the table below. The
@Efm@'sagreements have a right of set-off with the respective counterparty under the supplemental terms of
F@ﬁuf@%&@agreements. Inan eventof default, each party has a right of set-off againstthe other party for amounts owed
falakae agreement and any other amount or obligation owed in respect of any other agreement or transaction
peiyasht thafe- Corporation’s accounting policy, the repurchase agreements are not offset with other repurchase agreements
{4 the same counterparty.

The following table presents information related to the Corporation’s repurchase transactions accounted for as secured
BRIfowHI%ollateralized with debt securities available-for-sale, debt securities held-to-maturity, and other assets held-
Iﬁirﬁ%@%r which have been obtained under agreements to resell. Itis the Corporation’s policy to maintain effective
6988 8y@runder agreements to repurchase; accordingly, such securities continue to be carried on the Consolidated Statements

ffnancial
Condition.
Repurchase agreements accounted for as secured
borrowings
September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
Repurchase Repurchase

(In thousands) liability liability
U.S. Treasury securities

Within 30 days $ 21,956 $ 16,931
After 30 to 90 days 13,882 18,369
After 90 days - 8,292
Total U.S. Treasury securities 35,838 43,592
Mortgage-backed securities

Within 30 days 5,206 27,171

After 30 to 90 days 14,316 20,394
Total mortgage-backed _securities 19,522 47,565
Collateralized mortgage obligations

Within 30 days - 227
Total collateralized mortgage obligations - 227
Total $ 55,360 $ 91384

Repurchase agreements in this portfolio are generally short-term, often overnight. As such our risk is very limited. We manage
fhRidity risks arising from secured funding by sourcing funding globally from a diverse group of counterparties, providing a range
8kcurities collateral and pursuing longer durations, when appropriate.

Other short-term borrowings

There were no other short-term borrowings outstanding at September 30, 2024 and December 31,
2023.
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Notes Payable

The following table presents the composition of notes payable at September 30, 2024 and December 31,
2023.

(In thousands) September 30, 2024

December 31, 2023

Advances with the FHLB with maturities ranging from 2024 through 2029 paying interest at monthly

fixed rates ranging from 0.54% to 5.26 % $ S $ SRl
Unsecured senior debt securities maturing on 2028 paying interest semiannually at a fixed rate of 304,915 393,037
7.25%, net of debt issuance costs of $ 5,085 ’ !
Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures (related to trust preferred securities) maturing on 108,366 108,346
2034 with fixed interest rates ranging from 6.13% to 6.56%, net of debt issuance costs of $ 268 ! )
Total notes payable $ 918,376 $ 986,948

Note: Refer to the 2023 Form 10-K for rates information at December 31, 2023.

[1] On March 13, 2023, the Corporation issued $ 400 million aggregate principal amount of 7.25% Senior Notes due 2028 (the “2028 Notes”) in an
underwritten public offering. The Corporation used a portion of the net proceeds of the 2028 Notes offering to redeem, on August 14, 2023, the

outstanding $300 million aggregate principal amount of its  6.125% Senior Notes which were due on September 2023. The redemption price was

equal to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid_interest through the redemption date.

A breakdown of borrowings by contractual maturities at September 30, 2024 is included in the table
below.

Assets sold under
agreements to

n thousands) repurchase Notes payable Total

2024 $ 55360 $ 22,373 77,733
2025 - 144,214 144,214
2026 - 74,500 74,500
2028 - 439,265 439,265
Later years - 238,024 238,024
Total borrowings $ 55,360  $ 918,376 973,736

At September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Corporation had FHLB borrowing facilities whereby the
WMQ}P%C%‘.@ billion and $4.2 billion, respectively, of which $.3 billion and $0.4 billion, respectively, were used. In addition,
each of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Corporation had placedo@ billion of the available FHLB credit facility as
Sollateral for municipal letters of credit to secure deposits. The FHLB borrowing facilities are collateralized with securities and

mﬂﬁn-porﬁolio, and do not have restrictive covenants or callable features.

Also, at September 30, 2024, the Corporation had borrowing facilities at the discount window of the Federal Reserve Bank of

Mew amounting to 38 billion (December 31, 2023 - 484 billion), which remained unused at September 30, 2024 and
31, 2023. The facilities are a collateralized source of cre@?ﬂ%‘?@highly reliable even under difficult market

conditions.
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Note 16 — Other liabilities

The caption of other liabilities in the consolidated
categories:

(In thousands)

statements of financial condition consists of the following major

September 30, 2024

December 31, 2023

Others

Accrued expenses $ 336,223 $ 337,695
Accrued interest payable 54,316 59,102
Accounts payable 91,226 89,339
Dividends payable 44,614 44,741
Trades payable 3,540 31
Liability for GNMA loans sold with an option to repurchase 8,558 10,960
Reserves for loan indemnifications 3,376 4,408
Reserve for operational losses 28,841 27,994
Operating lease liabilities (Note 27) 108,165 126,946
Finance lease liabilities (Note 27) 23,793 25,778
Pension benefit obligation 6,543 6,772
Postretirement benefit obligation 115,363 117,045

65,765 63,816
Total other liabilities $ 890,323 $ 914,627
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Note 17 — Stockholders’ equity

As of September 30, 2024, stockholders’ equity totate@® Hfllion. During the nine months ended September 30, 2024,
Corporation declared cash dividends of $.86 (2023 - $1.65) per ¢g@mmon share amounting to 134.3 million (2023 - $118.9 million).
The quarterly dividend of $.62 per share declared to stockfjolders of record as of the close of business September 13, 2024was

paid on October 1, 2024. on

During the quarter ended September 30, 2024, the Corporation completed the repurchas&96f096 shares of common stock for
$58.8 million at an average price of $8.11 per share, under the previously announced share repurchase authorization of up t&00
million. $
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Note 18 — Other comprehensive income
ﬁ'ﬁés}ollowing table presents changes in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) by component for the

Septath&EL024 and,
2023.
Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss by Component [1]
Quarters ended Nine months ended
September 30, September 30,
(In thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Foreign currency translation Beginning Balance $ (68,383% (55,979% (64528% (56,735)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 615 (976) (3,240) (220)
Net change 615 (976) (3,240) (220)
Ending balance $ (67,768% (56,955% (67,768% (56,955)
Adjustment of pension and
postretirement benefit plans Beginning Balance $ (113.371% (138,319% (117,894 % (144,335)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive loss for amortization of net losses 2,261 3,009 6.784 9,025
Net change 2,261 3,009 6,784 9,025
Ending balance $ (111,110% (135310% (111,110 % (135,310)
Unrealized net holding losses
on debt securities Beginning Balance $ (1,696528% (2134,137$% (1,713,109% (2,323,903)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 326,148 (242,567) 271,985 (120,756
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive loss for amortization of net unrealized
losses of debt securities transferred from available-for-
sale to held-to-maturity 36,264 35,027 107,008 102,982
Net change 362,412 (207,540) 378,993 (17,774)
Ending balance $ (13341163 (23416779 (1.334116% (2341,677)
Unrealized net (losses) gains
on cash flow hedges Beginning Balance $ -$ -$ - $ 45
Other comprehensive (loss) income before
reclassifications - - - (19)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) - - - (26)
Net change - - - (45)
Total $ (1512994% (2533942% (1,512994% (2,533,942)

[1] All amounts presented are net of tax.
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The following table presents the amounts reclassified out of each component of accumulated other comprehensive loss
fUEREHENd nine months ended September 30, 2024 and

2023.

Reclassifications Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Affected Line Item in the

Quarters ended

September 30,

Nine months ended

September 30,

(In thousands) Consolidated Statements of Operations 2024 2023 2024 2023
Adjustment of pension and postretirement benefit plans
Amortization of net losses Other operating expenses (36188 (4814 % (10,854 B (14,440)
Total before tax (3618) (4814) (10,854) (14,440)
Income tax benefit 1,357 1,805 4,070 5,415
Total net of tax (2,261 % (3,009 (6,784 % (9,025)
Unrealized net holding losses on debt securities
Amortization of unrealized net losses of debt
securities transferred to held-to-maturity Interest income from investment securities (453319 (43783 % (133,761 % (128,726 )
Total before tax (45.331) (43.783) (133,761) (128,726)
Income tax expense 9,067 8,756 26,753 25,744
Total net of tax (36,264 B (35027 B (107,008 ¥ (102,982)
Unrealized net (losses) gains on cash flow hedges
Forward contracts Mortgage banking activities - $ - $ -$ 41
Total before tax = = = 41
Income tax benefit - - - (15)
Total net of tax -$ -$ -$ 26
Total reclassification _adjustments, net of tax (38,525 B (38,036 B (113,792 B (111981)
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Note 19 -

Guarantees . N - - .
At September 30, 2024, the Corporation recorded a liability af million (December 31, 2023 -Imillion), which represents the

Binamortized balance of the obligations undertaken in issuing the guarantees under the standby letters of credit. Management
FBBanticipate any material losses related to these instruments.

From time to time, the Corporation securitized mortgage loans into guaranteed mortgage-backed securities subject to limited, and
tertain instances, lifetime credit recourse on the loans that serve as collateral for the mortgage-backed securities. The
REAPAGLA any mortgage loans subject to credit recourse since 2009. At September 30, 2024, the Corporation 511
ﬁﬁfﬁ’@??d(&cember 31, 2023 56% million) in residential mortgage loans subject to credit recourse provisions, principally
associated with FNMA and FHLIQ@NSresidential mortgage loan securitization programs. In the event of any
5U%ﬁft04ﬁ@6%dit recourse provided, the Corporation is required to repurchase the loan or reimburse the third party investor
{AE incurred loss. The maximum potential amount of future payments thatthe Corporation would be required to make
Heisirthe arrangements in the event of nonperformance by the borrowers is equivalent to the total outstanding
F@éﬁf&ﬁiann@P@;age loans serviced with recourse and interest, if applicable. During the quarter and nine months ended
Septeuler the Corporation repurchased approximatehys #illion and $.5 million, respectively, of unpaid principal balance
mortgage loans subject to the credit recourse provisions (September 30, in$0.4 million and $2.0 million, respectively). Inthe
8088t of nonperformance by the borrower, the Corporation has rights to the underlying collateral securing the mortgage
@éfbd\:ﬁﬁon suffers ultimate losses on these loans when the proceeds from a foreclosure sale of the property underlying a
ﬁﬁfﬂﬁ'&@@ loan are less than the outstanding principal balance of the loan plus any uncollected interest advanced and the
ﬁ@ﬁ%goénd disposing the related property. At September 30, 2024, the Corporation’s liability established to cover the
erdtmatg exposure related to loans sold or serviced with credit recourse amounted t8 $illion (December 31, 2023 - & million).

The following table shows the changes in the Corporation’s liability of estimated losses related to loans serviced with credit
[rEQ1iBRs during the quarters and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and

2023.

Quarters ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30
In thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Balance as of beginning of period $ 4,058 $ 6,223 $ 4211 $ 6,897
Provision (benefit) for recourse liability (808) 228 (768) 52
Net charge-offs (54) (54) (247) (552)
Balance as of end of period $ 3,196 $ 6,397 $ 3,196 $ 6,397

From time to time, the Corporation sells loans and agreesto indemnify the purchaser for credit losses or any breach of
re‘iﬁ‘ﬂé@!htations and warranties made in connection with the

sale.

Servicing agreements relating to the mortgage-backed securities programs of FNMA, FHLMC and GNMA, and to mortgage
998%r serviced to certain other investors, including FHLMC, require the Corporation to advance funds to make scheduled
BRYAIRABRI, interest, taxes and insurance, if such payments have not been received from the borrowers. At September 30, 2024,
@@rporation serviced 9.2 billion in mortgage loans for third-parties, including the loans serviced with credit recourse (December 31,
2023 - $9.9 billion). The Corporation generally recovers funds advanced pursuant to these arrangements from the mortgage

from liquidad®¥AYroceeds when the mortgage loan is foreclosed or, in the case of FHA/VA loans, under the applicable FHAVA
fiirance and guarantees programs. However, inthe meantime, the Corporation must absorb the cost of the funds it
ad¥ARage time the advanceis outstanding. The Corporation must also bear the costs of attempting to collect on
definquant nﬁﬂ@bage loans. In addition, if a defaulted loan is not cured, the mortgage loan would be canceled as
Rﬁ@cl@éuﬂéaproceedings and the Corporation would not receive any future servicing income with respect to that loan. At
86PtOUWEr the outstanding balance of funds advanced by the Corporation under such mortgage loan servicing
APFIBRIRIRIRIVAE5 milion (December 31, 2023 4%million). To the extent the mortgage loans underlying the
servicing portfolio experience increased delinquencieC#BURBBIation would be required to dedicate additional cash
ERMAPAFAtHits obligation to advance funds as well as incur additional administrative costs related to increases in collection
efforts.

Popular, Inc. Holding Company (“PIHC") fully and unconditionally guarantees certain borrowing obligations issued by certain
2b08% owned consolidated subsidiaries amounting to9%million at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.
addition, at both September 30, 2024 and December 312023, PIHC fully and unconditionally guaranteed on a subordinated

Basis million of capital securities (trust preferred securities) issued by wholly-owned issuing trust entities to the extent set forth in
the
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applicable guarantee agreement. Refer to Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the 2023 Form 10-K

if@rmiaiBAron the trust preferred
securities.




Note 20 - Commitments and contingencies
Off-balance sheet risk

The Corporation isa party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet credit risk in the normal course of business to
MeedAEneeds of its customers. These financial instruments include loan commitments, letters of credit and standby letters of
188kl instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized
tbrif§lidated statements of financial condition.

The Corporation’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial
BstHMARNEto extend credit, standby letters of credit and financial guarantees is represented by the contractual notional
8MABSESInstruments. The Corporation uses the same credit policies in making these commitments and conditional obligations
884k for those reflected on the consolidated statements of financial condition.

Financial instruments with off-balance sheet credit risk, whose contract amounts represent potential credit risk as of the end of
p@\%ds presented were as follows:

(In thousands) September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
Commitments to extend credit:
Credit card lines $ 5,582,089 $ 6,108,939
Commercial lines of credit 3,874,209 3,626,269
Construction lines of credit 1,234,365 1,287,679
Other consumer unused credit commitments 261,470 256,610
Commercial letters of credit 2,157 1,404
Standby letters of credit 123,685 80,889
Commitments to originate or fund mortgage loans 23,217 32,968

Once At September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Corporation maintained a reserve of approximatdlg illion and $17
million, respectively, for potential losses associated with unfunded loan commitments related to commercial and construction lines
efedit.

Other commitments
At September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Corporation also maintained other non-credit commitments for
BPRAIMEEAN $3.3 million, respectively, primarily for the acquisition of other investments.

Business concentration

Since the Corporation’s business activities are concentrated primarily in Puerto Rico, its results of operations and financial
ﬁ%‘@@ﬁ@ndent upon the general trends of the Puerto Rico economy and, in particular, the residential and commercial real
AfAkBts. The concentration of the Corporation’s operations in Puerto Rico exposes it to greater risk than other banking
GRIRRARIBET geographic base. Its asset and revenue composition by geographical area is presented in Note 32 to the

FnRsridetigiements.

Puerto Rico has faced significant fiscal and economic challenges for over a decade. In response to such
é@i@@@@%nﬁl@ed—’t& Puerto Rico Oversight Management and Economic Stability Act (“PROMESA”) in 2016, which, among
mﬁfij’s, established the Oversight Board and a framework for the restructuring of the debts of the
rRmmesRids #8d municipalites. The Commonwealth and several of its instrumentalities have availed themselves
r@étrgﬁlﬁ'ring proceedings under PROMESA. As of the date of this report, while municipalities have been designated as
eAvaERdnder PROMESA, no municipality has commenced, or has been authorized by the Oversight Board to commence, any
848 restructuring proceeding under PROMESA.

At September 30, 2024, the Corporation’s direct exposure to the Puerto Rico government and its instrumentalities and
tBtHIRsdEBmillion, of which 336 million were outstanding (362 million and $333 million at December 31, 2023). Of the amount
outstanding, $23 million consists of loans and.3#million are securities @4 million and $9 million at December 31, 2023).
Substantially all of the amount outstanding at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 were obligations from various
Ri&fmmunicipalities. In most cases, these were “general obligations” of a municipality, to which the applicable
ﬂléﬂ&‘éﬁa“ﬁé '@?ﬁ)d faith, credit and unlimited taxing power, or “special obligations” of a municipality, to which the

nﬂﬁﬁbﬁ?&?lﬁ/ has pledged other revenues. At September 30, ZBIB4, of the Corporation’s exposure to municipal loans
and
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securities was concentrated in the municipalites of San Juan, Guaynabo, Carolina and ICaduigs.2024, the
received scheduled principal payments amounting to 80 million from various obligations from PuertdRIGifficipalities.

The following table details the loans and investments representing the Corporation’s direct exposure to the Puerto Rico
HE¥EFAIMGS their maturities as of September 30, 2024

Investment

(In thousands) Portfolio Loans Total Outstanding Total Exposure
Central Government

Within 1 year 3 - 3 3

After 5 to 10 years i - 1

After 10 years 42 - 42 42
Total Central Government 46 = 46 46
Municipalities

Within 1 year 2,440 12,764 15,204 15,204

After 1 to 5 years 9,520 147,033 156,553 156,553

After 5 to 10 years 655 119,073 119,728 119,728

After 10 vears - 44,582 44,582 44,582
Total Municipalities 12,615 323,452 336,067 336,067
Total Direct Government Exposure $ 12661 $ 323452 $ 336113 $ 336.113

In addition, at September 30, 2024, the Corporation 22l ndillion in loans insured or securities issued by Puerto
governmental entities but for which the principal source of repaﬁiﬁ@nt is non-governmentaB8(illion at December 31, 2023).
These included 19 million in residential mortgage loans insured by the Puerto Rico Housing Finance Authority
governmental instrun{é‘HﬂéﬁfQ’thﬁt has been designated as a covered entity under PROMESA (December 31, 20281 rfillion).
These mortgage loans are secured by first mortgages on Puerto Rico residential properties and the HFA insurance covers losses
tRe event of a borrower default and upon the satisfaction of certain other conditions. The Corporation also had at
SepeERS AN in bonds issued by HFA which are secured by second mortgage loans on Puerto Rico residential properties,
for which ARG also provides insurance to cover losses in the event of a borrower default and upon the satisfaction of certain
ediRlitions (December 31,2023 -4 million). In the event that the mortgage loans insured by HFA and held by the
directly or those serving as collateral foPHARIAIN bonds default and the collateral is insufficient to satisfy the outstanding balance
Hese loans, HFA's ability to honor its insurance will depend, among other factors, on the financial condition of HFA at the time
éHﬁBations become due and payable. The Corporation does not consider the government guarantee when estimating the
I6g864 associated with this portfolio. Although the Governor is currently authorized by local legislation to impose a
@RS on the financial obligations of the HFA, a moratorium on such obligations has not been imposed as of the date hereof.

BPPR’s commercial loan portfolio also includes loans to private borrowers who are service providers, lessors, suppliers or
oﬂ\%\ﬁelationships with the government. These borrowers could be negatively affected by the Commonwealth’s fiscal crisis and

Biyoing Title Il proceedings under PROMESA. Similarly, BPPR’'s mortgage and consumer loan portfolios include
g&%’rﬁnfé’nt employees and retirees, which could also be negatively affected by fiscal measures such as employee
flARIEhsYr reductions in pension benefits.

In addition, #.0 billion of residential mortgages an®8% million commercial loans were insured or guaranteed by the
Government or its agencies at September 30, 2024 {¢cPnpared9tbillbn and &9.2 million, respectively, at December
2023). The Corporation also had U.S. Treasury and obligations from the U.S. Governmént, its agencies or government
8RANESTSMthin the portfolio of available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities as describedin Note 5 and 6to the

FonRsridetagtements.

At September 30, 2024, the Corporation had operations in the United States Virgin Islands (the “USVI") and had approximate2
fhillion in direct exposure to USVI government entities (December 31, 2®&illiof). The USVI has been experiencing
number of fiscal and economic challenges that could adversely affect the ability® of its public corporations and
nstBeAlitesstitding debt obligations.
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At September 30, 2024, the Corporation had operations in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and it had a loan portfolio
apKeRinEtEly 200 million comprised of various retail and commercial clients, compared to a loan portfl® noflich at
December 31, 2023. At September 30, 2024, the Corporation had no significant exposure to a single borrower in the

BVI.

FDIC Special Assessment

On November 16, 2023, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC") approved a final rule that imposes
AsstReffint (the “FDIC Special Assessment”) to recover the losses to the deposit insurance fund resulting from the FDIC's
NAgrchi2023, of the systemic risk exception to the least-cost resolution test under the Federal Deposit Insurance Actin
GRIRLioRceiverships of several failed banks. In  connection with this assessment, the Corporation recorded an expefgetof
ndillion, $45.3 million net of tax, in the fourth quarter of 2023, representing the full amount of the

assessment.
During the first quarter of 2024, the Corporation recorded an additional expense ofL4.3 million, $9.1 million net of tax, to reflect the
BDIC's higher loss estimate which increased frob6.3 billion, when approved, to2@4 billion during the quarter. The
assessment amount and collection period may change as the estimated loss is periodicaﬁ?%fﬁsted orif the total amount

Gakested

Legal Proceedings

The nature of Popular’s business ordinarily generates claims, litigation, regulatory and governmental investigations, and legal
affhinistrative cases and proceedings (collectively, “Legal Proceedings”). When the Corporation determines thatit has
NSEHYIAUR the claims asserted, it vigorously defends itself. The Corporation will consider the settlement of cases (including
AR it has meritorious defenses) when, in management’s judgment, it is in the best interest of the Corporation and its
fkReldeth at least a quarterly basis, Popular assesses its liabilities and contingencies relating to outstanding Legal
BinsRRAIGMost current information available. For matters where it is probable that the Corporation will incur a material loss and
Hifount can be reasonably estimated, the Corporation establishes an accrual for the loss. Once established, the accrual is
BAiusiedst a quarterly basis to reflect any relevant developments, as appropriate. For matters where a material loss is not
BraRalifhount of the loss cannot be reasonably estimated, no accrual is established.

In certain cases, exposure to loss exists in excess of any accrual to the extent such loss is reasonably possible, but not
Mﬁﬁﬁglﬁnent believes and estimates that the range of reasonably possible losses (with respect to those matters where such
W\'ﬁ"}%e determined in excess of amounts accrued) for current Legal Proceedings ranged frof t&approximately $.49 million as
of September 30, 2024. In certain cases, management cannot reasonably estimate the possible loss at this time. Any
irﬁﬁSiVl%%ignificantjudgment, given the varying stages of the Legal Proceedings (including the fact that many of them are
WH@Winary stages), the existence of multiple defendants in several of the current Legal Proceedings whose share of liability
9é§t0 be determined, the numerous unresolved issues in many of the Legal Proceedings, and the inherent uncertainty of the
HB[KM%I outcomes of such Legal Proceedings. Accordingly, management’'s estimate will change from time-to-time,
Ri%@e@% be more or less than the current estimate.

While the outcome of Legal Proceedings is inherently uncertain, based on information currently available, advice of
69HMsBleaiburance coverage, management believes that the amount it has already accrued is adequate and any
il?ﬁﬂﬁf?ﬁiﬂ@ing from the Legal Proceedings in matters in which a loss amount can be reasonably estimated will not have a
BWREFR effect on the Corporation’s consolidated financial position. However, in the event of unexpected future
gevsiprMeAIStidiItimate resolution of these matters ina reporting period, if unfavorable, could have a material adverse
ﬂﬁ?@orﬁﬁraﬂon’s consolidated financial position for that period.

Set forth below is a description of the Corporation’s significant Legal Proceedings.

Insufficient Funds and Overdraft Fees Class

Actions

Popular, Inc. (“Popular”) was named as a defendant on a putative class action complaint captioned Golden v. Popular, Inc.
fARgIaMarch 2020 before the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York, seeking damages, restitution and

FRIGETC Y intiff alleged breach of contract, violation of the covenant of good faith and fair dealing, unjust enrichment and
violation of
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New York consumer protection law due to Popular’'s purported practice of charging overdraft fees (“OD Fees”) on transactions
thaer plaintiffs’ theory, do not overdraw the account. In October 2022, the parties reached a settlement in principle on a class-

%ﬁ%subject to final court approval. On July 9, 2024, the court granted final approval to the settlement agreement. This
MstIdsed.

Popular was named as a defendant on a putative class action complaint captioned Lipsett v. Popular, Inc. d/b/a Banco Popular,
ﬁ“?ganuary 31, 2022 before the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York, seeking damages, restitution and
fRIKYC®iilar to the claims set forth in the aforementioned Golden complaint, Plaintiff alleged breach of contract, violations
cBlHiant of good faith and fair dealing and unjust enrichment, as a result of Popular's purported practice of charging OD
fr8R8a&fbns that, under plaintiffs’ theory, donot overdraw the account. The complaint further alleged that Popular
8325566 @Rhorized transactions for which sufficient funds are held for settiement.

On May 2, 2024, the parties reached a settlement in principle on a class-wide ba€is.July 25, 2024, the parties filed before the
Court a motion for preliminary approval of the settlement agreement, and, on July 26, 2024, the Court issued an order
BralifiSary approval of the settlement agreement. The Court scheduled the final approval hearing of the settlement

agrRRMeDY for

2025.
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Note 21 — Non-consolidated variable interest

‘?’ﬂguceg'poration is involved withthree statutory trusts which it created to issue trust preferred securities to the public. These
are deemed to be variable interest entli&$S(“VIEs”) since the equity investors at risk have no substantial decision-making rights.
Edfporation does not hold any variable interestin the trusts, and therefore, cannot be the trusts’ primary beneficiary.
W@Wﬁtion concluded that itdid not hold a controlling financial interest in these trusts since the decisions of the
BHsteteétRined through the trust documents and the guarantee of the trust preferred securities is irrelevant since in
8HBALIGE giiranteeing its own debt.

Also, the Corporation is involved with various special purpose entities mainly in guaranteed mortgage securitization
Ff@mﬁ@f)r@NMA and FNMAThe Corporation has also engaged in securitization transactions with FHLMC, but
exposure in the form 0fservi§ﬁ@5@§aﬁé servicing advances not to be signifiear8eptember 30, 2024 These special purpose
entities are deemed to be VIEs since they lack equity investments at risk. The Corporation’s continuing
HyalMRtBERAtolh WESSitizations includes owning certain beneficial interests in  the form of securities as well as the servicing
ré@ied. The Corporation is not required to provide additional financial support to any of the variable interest entities to which it
Wahsferred the financial assets. The mortgage-backed securities, to the extent retained, are classified in the
EBrHYIAIABE Statements of Financial Condition as available-for-sale or trading securities. The Corporation
£986lAAR, thddse enties (FNMA and GNMA) control the design of their respective VIEs, dictate the quality and
pafidierpf rébfire the underlying insurance, set the servicing standards via the servicing guides and can change them at
with Afiflove a primary servicer with cause, and without cause in the case of FNMA. Moreover, through their guarantee
QBE%%‘@J‘?FNMA and GNMA) have the obligation to absorb losses that could be potentially significant to the

VIE.

The Corporation holds variable interests in these VIEs in the form of agency mortgage-backed securities and
Mﬁé@'@@wigaﬁons, including those securities originated by the Corporation and those acquired from third parties. Additionally,
ﬂi‘@rporation holds agency mortgage-backed securities and agency collateralized mortgage obligations issued by third party VIEs
{Onhich it has no other form of continuing involvement. Refer to Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRforASiBANGh the debt securities outstanding at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, which are classified as available-
Qe and trading securities in the Corporation’s Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition. In addition, the Corporation
baltkble interests in the form of servicing fees, since it retains the right to service the transferred loans in those
sPBM8BHEEBpecial purpose entities (“SPEs”) and may also purchase the right to service loans in other government-sponsored
#REWere transferred to those SPEs by a third-party.

The following table presents the carrying amount and classification of the assets related to the Corporation’s variable
HAresiSsoiiated VIEs and the maximum exposure toloss asa result of the Corporation’s involvement as servicer of

ERMA BBAs at September 30, 2024 and December 31,
2023.
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(In thousands)

September 30, 2024

December 31, 2023

Assets

Servicing assets:

Mortgage servicing rights $ 85146 $ 92,999
Total servicing_assets $ 85146 $ 92,999
Other assets:

Servicing advances $ 7,121 $ 6,291
Total other assets $ 7,121 $ 6,291
Total assets $ 92,267 $ 99,290
Maximum exposure to loss $ 92,267 $ 99,290

The size of the non-consolidated VIEs, in which the Corporation has a variable interest in the form of servicing fees,

tReastrdraid principal balance of the loans, amounted 6.7 billion at September 30, 2024 (December 31, 2023 -2 billion).

$
The Corporation determined that the maximum exposure to loss includes the fair value of the MSRs and the assumption
Qb'ﬁ/iéhfg advances at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, will not be recovered. The agency debt securities

irt18dé@as part of the maximum exposure to loss since they are guaranteed by the related agencies.

ASU 2009-17 requires that an ongoing primary beneficiary assessment should be made to determine whether the Corporation is
Hlﬁnary beneficiary of any of the VIEs itis involved with. The conclusion on the assessment of these non-consolidated VIEs has
BRAnged since their initial evaluation. The Corporation concluded that it is still not the primary beneficiary of these
t¥eRSor@nthese VIEs are not required to be consolidated in the Corporation’s financial statements at September 30, 2024.
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Note 22 - Related party transactions

At September 30, 2024, the Corporation hadl5.84% equity interestin Centro Financiero BHD, S.A. (“BHD”), one of the
Banking and financial services groups in the !B@®ftican Republic. During the nine months ended September 30,
CHP86rattb recorded $29.6 million in equity pickup, including the impact of changes in the fair value of available for sale
included as a component WEH@SComprehensive Income, from its investment in BHD (September 30, 2028 million), which
fhad a carrying amount ofZ86.1 million at September 30, 2024 (December 31, 2023 22%.9 million). The Corporation received
$19.4 million in cash dividend distributions ar&@9 $n stock dividends during the nine months ended September 30,
(September 30, 2023 - §4.1 million in cash dividends a%®#1 million in stock dividends).

Investment Companies

The Corporation, through its wholly owned subsidiary Popular Asset Management LLC (“PAM”") provided investment
3EMRAY to several investment companies registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 in exchange for a fee. These

f#8<alculated atan annual rate of the average net assets of the investment company, as defined ineach agreement.

Mséﬂﬁt?ole, the Corporation considers these investment companies as related parties. The Corporation, through its

Brsigianko provides transfer agency services to investment companies considered affiliates up to the second quarter of

2024.
For the nine months ended September 30, 2024, administrative fees charged to these investment companies amouritesl

Hill®n (September 30, 2023 - $.7 million) and waived fees amounted to 5 million (September 30, 2023 - 8.7 million), for a net
fee of $1.1 million (September 30, 2023 - & million).
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Note 23 - Fair value measurement

ASC Subtopic 820-10 “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures” establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the
Uil techniques used to measure fair value into three levels in order to increase consistency and comparability in  fair
Madd8urements and disclosures. The hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on the reliability of inputs as follows:

e Level 1-Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets foridentical assets or liabilities that the Corporation has the
access & easurement date. Valuation on these instruments does not necessitate a significant degree of judgment
GHlG&tions are based on quoted prices that are readily available in an active market.

e Level 2 - Quoted prices other thanthose includedin Level 1 thatare observable either directly or indirectly. Level 2
include HU¥ES prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities
Harkets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable orthat can be corroborated by observable market
s@Baf@hlly the full term of the financial instrument.

e Level 3- Inputs are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement. Unobservable inputs reflect the

own judg@rﬁ%@iﬂﬂ'&t assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or

liability.
The Corporation maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by
m@fvﬂ)léhﬁﬁutg%e used when available. Fair value is based upon quoted market prices when available. If listed prices or
8HO9ft available, the Corporation employs internally-developed models that primarily use market-based inputs
W%té‘f@'ﬁ rates, volatilities, and credit curves, among others. Valuation adjustments are limited to those necessary to
U financial instrument’s fair value is adequately representative of the price that would be received or paid in the
‘ﬂ?éKBlﬁlﬁﬁgtments include amounts that reflect counterparty credit quality, the Corporation’s credit standing, constraints on
HadidiRbbservable parameters that are applied consistently. There have been no changes in the Corporation’s methodologies
Hsedtimate the fair value of assets and liabilities from those disclosed in the 2023 Form 10-K.

The estimated fair value may be subjective in nature and may involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment for
fiRHAlIal instruments. Changes in the underlying assumptions used in calculating fair value could significantly affect the results.

Fair Value on a Recurring and Nonrecurring Basis
The following fair value hierarchy tables present information about the Corporation’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value

a%&curring basis at September 30, 2024 and December 31,
2023:
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At September 30, 2024

(In thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Measured at NAV. Total
RECURRING FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Assets

Debt securities available-for-sale:

U.S. Treasury securities 5,879,911 $ 5,644,519 $ - $ - $ 11,524,430
Collateralized mortgage obligations - federal

agencies - 128,553 - - 128,553
Mortgage-backed securities - 5,530,582 558 - 5,531,140
Other - - 2,000 - 2,000
Total debt securities available-for-sale 5,879,911 $ 11,303,654 $ 2,558 $ - $ 17,186,123
Trading account debt securities, excluding

derivatives:

U.S. Treasury securities 7,675 $ 10 $ - $ - $ 7,685
Obligations of Puerto Rico, States and political

subdivisions - 58 - - 58
Collateralized mortgage obligations - 132 - - 132
Mortgage-backed securities - 22,723 84 - 22,807
Other - - 154 - 154
Total trading account debt securities, excluding

derivatives 7,675 $ 22,923 $ 238 $ = $ 30,836
Equity securities - $ 46,248 $ - $ 385 $ 46,633
Mortgage servicing rights - - 108,827 - 108,827
Loans held-for-sale - 5,509 - - 5,509
Derivatives - 25941 - - 25941
Total assets measured at fair value on a

recurring basis 5,887,586 $ 11,404,275 $ 111,623 $ 385 $ 17,403,869
Liabilities

Derivatives - $ (23,608) $ - $ - $ (23,608)
Total liabilities measured at fair value on a

recurring basis = $ (23,608) $ = $ = $ (123,608)
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At December 31, 2023

(In thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Measured at NAV Total
RECURRING FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Assets

Debt securities available-for-sale:

U.S. Treasury securities $ 3,936,036 $ 6,811,025 $ - $ - $ 10,747,061
Collateralized mortgage obligations - federal

agencies - 134,686 - - 134,686
Mortgage-backed securities - 5,844,180 606 - 5,844,786
Other - 11 2,500 - 2,511
Total debt securities _available-for-sale $  3936,036 $ 12,789,902 $ 3,106 $ - $ 16,729,044
Trading account debt securities, excluding

derivatives:

U.S. Treasury securities $ 16,859 $ - $ - $ - $ 16,859
Obligations of Puerto Rico, States and political

subdivisions - 71 - - 71
Collateralized mortgage obligations - 93 5 - 98
Mortgage-backed securities - 14,261 112 - 14,373
Other - - 167 - 167
Total trading account debt securities, excluding

derivatives $ 16,859 $ 14,425 284 $ = $ 31,568
Equity securities $ - $ 37,965 $ - $ 310 $ 38,275
Mortgage servicing rights - - 118,109 - 118,109
Loans held-for-sale - 3,239 - - 3,239
Derivatives - 24,419 - - 24,419
Total assets measured at fair value on a

recurring basis $ 3,952,895 $ 12,869,950 $ 121,499 $ 310 $ 16,944,654
Liabilities

Derivatives $ - $ (21,103) $ - $ - $ (21,103)
Total liabilities measured at fair value on a

recurring basis $ - $ (21,103) $ - $ - $ (21,103)

Beginning in the first quarter of 2023, the Corporation has elected the fair value option for newly originated mortgage loans held-
e, This election better aligns with the management of the portfolio from a business perspective.

Loans held-for-sale measured at fair value

Loans held-for-sale measured at fair value were priced based on secondary market prices. These loans are classified as Level 2.

The following tables summarize the difference between the aggregate fair value andthe aggregate unpaid principal

Hﬁiﬁ@%efRfans originated as held-for-sale measured at fair value as of September 30, 2024 and December 31,

(2Ir(\) tzh%hsands) September 30, 2024
Aggregate Unpaid
Fair Value Principal Balance Difference
Loans held for sale $ 5,509 $ 5,507 $ 2
(In thousands) December 31, 2023
Aggregate Unpaid
Fair Value Principal Balance Difference
Loans held for sale $ 3,239 $ 3,202 $ 37
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No loans held-for-sale were 90 or more days past due or on nonaccrual status as of September 30, 2024 and December 31,
2023.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2024, changes in the fair value of mortgage loans held-for-sale for which the
SlatesAliRair value option, were not considered material.

The fair value information included in the following tables is not as of period end, but as of the date that the fair value

W&ssSvERBIERY during the quarters and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 and excludes nonrecurring
fABad@&Ments of assets no longer outstanding as of the reporting date.

Nine months ended September 30, 2024

(In thousands) Level 1 Level 2 level3 Total

NONRECURRING FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Assets Write-downs

Loans 4 $ - 8 - 8 4,166 $ 4,166 $ (654)
Other real estate owned 12 - - 5,749 5,749 (1,889)
Other foreclosed assets 12 - - 174 174 (38)
Total assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis $ -3 -3 10089 3 10089 $ (2581)

[1] Relates mainly to certain impaired collateral dependent loans. The impairment was measured based on the fair value of the collateral, which is
derived from appraisals that take into consideration prices in observed transactions involving similar assets in similar locations. Costs to sell are
excluded from the reported fair value amount.

[2] Represents the fair value of foreclosed real estate and other collateral owned that were written down to their fair value. Costs to sell are
excluded from the reported fair value amount.

Nine months ended September 30, 2023

(In thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

NONRECURRING FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Assets Write-downs
Loans Y $ = $ = $ 9,113 $ 9,113 $ (3,087)
Other real estate owned 2 - - 5,457 5,457 (1,012)
Other foreclosed assets 2 - - 44 44 (14)
Total assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis $ - 3 - 3 14614  $ 14614  $ (4113)

[1] Relates mainly to certain impaired collateral dependent loans. The impairment was measured based on the fair value of the collateral, which is
derived from appraisals that take into consideration prices in observed transactions involving similar assets in similar locations. Costs to sell are
excluded from the reported fair value amount.

[2] Represents the fair value of foreclosed real estate and other collateral owned that were written down to their fair value. Costs to sell are
excluded from the reported fair value amount.
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The following tables present the changes in Level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis for the quarters
and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023.

Quarter ended September 30, 2024

MBS Other MBS Other
classified securities classified securities
as debt classified as as trading classified
securities debt securities account as trading Mortgage
available- available- debt account debt servicing Total
(In thousands) for-sale for-sale securities securities rights assets
Balance at June 30, 2024 $ 581 $ 2,000 $ 84 $ 158 $ 113,386 $ 116,209
Gains (losses) included in earnings - - - (4) (4,896) (14,900)
Gains (losses) included in OCI 2 - - - - 2
Additions - - - - 337 337
Settlements (25) = = = = (25)
Balance at September 30, 2024 $ 558 $ 2,000 $ 84 $ 154 $ 108,827 $ 111,623
Changes in unrealized gains (losses) included in
earnings relating to assets still held at September
30, 2024 $ -3$ -3 -$ 6 $ (25778 (2571)
Nine months ended September 30, 2024
MBS Other MBS Other
classified securities CMOs classified securities
as debt classified as classified as trading classified
securities  debt securities  as trading account as trading Mortgage
available- available- account debt debt account debt servicing Total
(In thousands) for-sale for-sale securities securities securities rights assets
Balance at January 1, 2024 $ 606 $ 2,500 $ 5% 112 $ 167 $ 118,109 $ 121,499
Gains (losses) included in earnings - (500) - - (13) (10,280) (10,793)
Gains (losses) included in OCI 2 - - - - - 2
Additions - - - - - 998 998
Settlements (50) - (5) (28) - - (83)
Balance at September 30, 2024 $ 558 $ 2,000 $ -$ 84 $ 154 $ 108,827 $ 111,623
Changes in unrealized gains (losses) included
in earnings relating to assets still held at
September 30, 2024 $ -3 -3 -$ -$ 18 $ (3.279% (3.261)
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Quarter ended September 30, 2023

MBS Other Other
classified securities CMOs MBS securities
as debt cl ified as classified cl ied cl ified

securities  debt securities as trading as trading as trading Mortgage

available- available-  accountdebt accountdebt account debt servicing Total
(In thousands) for-sale for-sale securities securities securities rights assets
Balance at June 30, 2023 $ 655 $ 1,000 $ 56 $ 163 $ 191 $ 121,249 $ 123,314
Gains (losses) included in earnings - - - - (3) (2,793) (2,796)
Gains (losses) included in OCI (2) - - - - - (2)
Additions - - - - - 574 574
Settlements - = (46) (26) = = (72)
Balance at September 30, 2023 $ 653 $ 1,000 $ 10 $ 137 $ 188 $ 119,030 $ 121,018
Changes in unrealized gains (losses)
included in earnings relating to assets
still held at September 30, 2023 $ = $ - $ ) - $ 4 % (381 (377)

Nine months ended September 30, 2023
MBS Other Other
classified securities CMOs securities
as debt classified as classified MBS classified

securities debt securities as trading classified as as trading Mortgage

available- available-  account debt trading account account debt servicing Total
(In thousands) for-sale for-sale securities securities securities rights assets
Balance at January 1, 2023 $ 711 $ 1,000 $ 113 $ 215 $ 207 $ 128,350 $ 130,596
Gains (losses) included in earnings - - - (2) (19) (10,386) (10,407)
Gains (losses) included in OCI (8) - - - - - (8)
Additions - - 4 - - 1,814 1,818
Sales - - - - - (1,269) (1,269)
Settlements (50) - (107) (76) - 521 288
Balance at September 30, 2023 $ 653 _$ 1,000 $ 10 $ 137 $ 188 $ 119,030 $ 121,018
Changes in unrealized gains (losses)
included in earnings relating to assets
still held at September 30, 2023 $ - 9% -3 - $ (1% 22 % (1828)% (1,807)
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Gains and losses (realized and unrealized) included in earnings for the quarters and nine months ended September 30,
2024 f3Kd Level 3 assets and liabilities included  in the previous tables are reported in the consolidated statement of

fARFAtons as
Quarter ended September 30, 2024 Nine months ended September 30, 2024
Changes in unrealized Changes in unrealized
Total gains  gains (losses) relating to Total gains  gains (losses) relating to
(losses) included assets still held at (losses) included assets still held at
(In thousands) in earnings reporting date in earnings reporting date
Mortgage banking activities $ (4,89%) $ (2,577) $ (10,280) $ (3,279)
Trading account profit (loss) (4) 6 (13) 18
Provision for credit losses - - (500) -
Total $ (4,900) $ (2571) $ (10,793) $ (3,261)
Quarter ended September 30, 2023 Nine months ended September 30, 2023
Changes in unrealized Changes in unrealized
Total gains  gains (losses) relating to Total gains  gains (losses) relating to
(losses) included assets still held at (losses) included assets still held at
(In thousands) in earnings reporting date in earnings reporting date
Mortgage banking activities $ (2,793) $ (381) $ (10,386 ) $ (1,828)
Trading account profit (loss) (3) 4 (21) 21
Total $ (2,796) $ (377) $ (10,407) $ (1,807)

The following tables include quantitative information about significant unobservable inputs used to derive the fair value of
lRiménts, excluding those instruments for which the unobservable inputs were not developed by the Corporation such as
BfipB®r transactions and/or unadjusted third-party pricing sources at September 30, 2024 and

2023.
Fair value at
September 30,
(In thousands) 2024 Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Weighted average (range) [1]
Other - trading $ 154 Discounted cash flow model Weighted average life 2.3 years
Yield 12.0%
Prepayment speed 10.8%
Loans held-in-portfolio $ 4,166 @ External appraisal Haircut applied on
external appraisals 7.5% (5.0% - 10.0%)
Other real estate owned $ 16 External appraisal Haircut applied on

[1] Weighted average of significant unobservable inputs

external appraisals

35.0%

used to develop Level 3 fair value measurements were calculated by relative fair value.
[2]Loans held-in-portfolio in which haircuts were not applied to external appraisals were excluded from this table.
[3]Other real estate owned in which haircuts were not applied to external appraisals were excluded from this table.
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Fair value at
September 30,

(In thousands) 2023 Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Weighted average (range) [1
CMO's - trading $ 10 Discounted cash flow model Weighted average life 0.2 years (0.2 - 0.3 years)
Yield 4.9%
Prepayment speed 7.3%
Other - trading $ 188 Discounted cash flow model Weighted average life 2.5 years
Yield 12.0%
Prepayment speed 10.8%
Loans held-in-portfolio $ 9,044 ¥ External appraisal Haircut applied on
external appraisals 7.2% (5.0% - 10.0%)
Other real estate owned $ 325 © External appraisal Haircut applied on
external appraisals 35.0%

[1]Weighted average of significant unobservable inputs used to develop Level 3 fair value measurements were calculated by relative fair value.
[2] Loans held-in-portfolio in which haircuts were not applied to external appraisals were excluded from this table.
[3] Other real estate owned in which haircuts were not applied to external appraisals were excluded from this table.
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Note 24 - Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the amount at which an asset or obligation could be exchanged ina current
BensesHoWilling parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. For those financial instruments with no quoted
BRAIkeb|ePkiER Y alues have been estimated using present value calculations or other valuation techniques, as well as
RaNGeeFRERBwith respect to current economic conditions, including discount rates, estimates of future cash flows, and
REQRAYPHRMS. Many of these estimates involve various assumptions and may vary significantly from amounts that could be
[8ali#ad transactions.

The fair values reflected herein have been determined based on the prevailing rate environment at September 30,
DBEB1, 2023, as applicable. In different interest rate environments, fair value estimates can differ significantly,
8ERaMANEH rate financial instruments. In addition, the fair values presented do not attempt to estimate the
E%Hﬁ)r@ﬁoﬂ‘?fee generating businesses and anticipated future business activities, that is, they do not represent the
@&U@é@i%'@aing concern. There have been no changes in the Corporation’s valuation methodologies and inputs used to
ARliMAalues for each class of financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value.

The following tables present the carrying amount and estimated fair values of financial instruments with their corresponding

tReeln value hierarchy. The aggregate fair value amounts of the financial instruments disclosed do not represent
BRMRGRPARE underlying value of the Corporation.

113



September 30, 2024

Carrying Measured

(In thousands) amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 at NAV Fair value
Financial Assets:
Cash and due from banks $ 427,594 $ 427,594 $ - $ - $ - $ 42759
Money market investments 6,530,788 6,522,716 8,072 - - 6,530,788
Trading account debt securities, excluding derivatives m 30,836 7,675 22,923 238 - 30,836
Debt securities available-for-sale [ 17,186,123 5,879,911 11,303,654 2,558 - 17,186,123
Debt securities held-to-maturity:

U.S. Treasury securities $ 7,799,966 $ - $ 7854735 $ - $ - $ 7,854,735

Obligations of Puerto Rico, States and political

subdivisions 52,415 - 6,930 46,905 - 53,835

Collateralized mortgage obligation-federal agency 1,523 - 1,398 - - 1,398

Securities in wholly owned statutory business trusts 5,960 - 5,960 - - 5,960
Total debt securities _held-to-maturity $ 7859864 $ - $ 7869023 $ 46,905 $ - $ 7915928
Equity securities:

FHLB stock $ 46,668 $ - $ 46,668 $ - $ - $ 46,668

FRB stock 98,957 - 98,957 - - 98,957

Other investments 52,566 = 46,248 6,662 385 53,295
Total equity securities $ 198,191 $ - % 191873 $ 6,662 $ 385 % 198,920
Loans held-for-sale $ 5509 $ - $ 5509 $ - $ - $ 5,509
Loans held-in-portfolio 35,450,647 - - 34,681,826 - 34,681,826
Mortgage servicing rights 108,827 - - 108,827 - 108,827
Derivatives 25,941 - 25,941 - - 25941

September 30, 2024
Carrying Measured

(In thousands) amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 at NAV Fair value
Financial Liabilities:
Deposits:

Demand deposits $ 54,587,511 $ - $ 54,587,511 $ - $ - $ 54,587,511

Time deposits 9,080,990 - 8,872,969 - - 8,872,969
Total deposits $ 63,668,501 $ - $ 63460480 $ -3 - $ 63,460,480
Assets sold under agreements to repurchase 55,360 - $ 55,369 $ - $ - $ 55,369
Notes payable:

FHLB advances $ 325,095 $ - $ 318,450 $ - $ - $ 318,450

Unsecured senior debt securities 394,915 - 417,316 - - 417,316

Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures

(related to trust preferred securities) 198,366 - 189,592 - - 189,592
Total notes payable $ 918,376 $ -3 925,358 $ - $ - $ 925,358
Derivatives $ 23,608 $ - $ 23,608 $ -8 - $ 23,608

[1] Refer to Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the fair value by class of financial asset and its hierarchy level.
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December 31, 2023

Carrying Measured

(In thousands) amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 at NAV Fair value
Financial Assets:
Cash and due from banks $ 420,462 $ 420,462 $ - $ - $ - $ 420,462
Money market investments 6,998,871 6,991,758 7,113 - - 6,998,871
Trading account debt securities, excluding derivatives m 31,568 16,859 14,425 284 - 31,568
Debt securities available-for-sale 16,729,044 3,936,036 12,789,902 3,106 - 16,729,044
Debt securities held-to-maturity:

U.S. Treasury securities $ 8121411 $ - $ 8092339 $ - 8% - $ 8,092,339

Obligations of Puerto Rico, States and political

subdivisions 59,628 - 7,007 52,671 - 59,678

Collateralized mortgage obligation-federal agency 1,556 - 1,395 13 - 1,408

Securities in wholly owned statutory business trusts 5,960 - 5,960 - - 5,960
Total debt securities _held-to-maturity $ 8188555 $ - $ 8106701 $ 52,684 $ - $ 8159385
Equity securities:

FHLB stock $ 49,549 $ - $ 49,549 $ - $ - $ 49,549

FRB stock 98,948 - 98,948 - - 98,948

Other investments 45,229 - 37,965 7,869 310 46,144
Total equity securities $ 193,726 $ - % 186,462 $ 7869 $ 310 $ 194,641
Loans held-for-sale $ 4301 $ - $ 4328 $ - $ - $ 4,328
Loans held-in-portfolio 34,335,630 - - 33,376,255 - 33,376,255
Mortgage servicing rights 118,109 - - 118,109 - 118,109
Derivatives 24,419 - 24,419 - - 24,419

December 31, 2023
Carrying Measured

(In thousands) amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 at NAV__ Fair value
Financial Liabilities:
Deposits:

Demand deposits $ 55,116,351 $ - $ 55,116,351 $ - $ - $ 55,116,351

Time deposits 8,501,892 - 8,154,823 - - 8,154,823
Total deposits $ 63618243 $ - $ 63271174 $ -3 - $ 63271174
Assets sold under agreements to repurchase $ 91,384 $ - % 91,386 $ - $ - $ 91,386
Notes payable:

FHLB advances $ 394,665 $ - $ 377,851 $ - $ - $ 377,851

Unsecured senior debt securities 393,937 > 400,848 = = 400,848

Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures

(related to trust preferred securities) 198,346 - 180,076 - - 180,076
Total notes payable $ 986,948 $ - $ 958,775 $ =% - $ 958,775
Derivatives $ 21,103 $ - $ 21,103 $ - $ - $ 21,103

[1] Refer to Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the fair value by class of financial asset and its hierarchy level.

The notional amount of commitments to extend credit at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023Mhiflioi and $0
billion, respectively, and represented the unused portion of credit facilities granted to customers. The notional amount of
lgtars oft September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 126 nilion and & million, respectively, and represented
contractual amount that is required to be paid in the event of nonperformance. Thigiir value of commitments to extend credit
RiMfbrs of credit, which are based on the fees charged to enter into those agreements, are not material to

Bapetgestsfinancial
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Note 25 — Net income per common

share
The following table sets forth the computation of net income per common share (“EPS"), basic and diluted, for the quarters and

RiBRths ended September 30, 2024 and
2023:

Quarters ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30

(In thousands, except per share information) 2024 2023 2024 2023

Net income $ 155,323 $ 136,609 $ 436,395 $ 446,748
Preferred stock dividends (353) (353) (1,059) (1,059)
Net income applicable to common stock. $ 154,970 $ 136,256 $ 435,336 $ 445,689
Average common shares outstanding 71,807,136 71,794,934 71,882,273 71,676,630
Average potential dilutive common shares 21,266 23,168 29,880 59,884
Average common shares outstanding - assuming dilution 71,828,402 71,818,102 71,912,153 71,736,514
Basic EPS $ 216 $ 1908 6.06 $ 6.22
Diluted EPS $ 216 $ 1908 605 $ 6.21

For the quarters and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, the Corporation calculated the impact of potential
#Buitv@n shares under the treasury stock method, consistent with the method used for the preparation of the financial statements
fAe year ended December 31, 2023. Fora discussion of the calculation under the treasury stock method, refer to Note
@bméoliRited Financial Statements included in the 2023 Form 10-K.
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Note 26 — Revenue from contracts with

customers
The following table presents the Corporation's revenue streams from contracts with customers by reportable

§BAFSRL afRl nfRE months ended September 30, 2024 and

2023.
Quarter ended September 30 Nine months ended September 30,
(In thousands) 2024 2024
BPPR Popular U.S. BPPR Popular U.S.
Service charges on deposit accounts $ 35699 $ 2,616 $ 105,770 $ 7,513
Other service fees:
Debit card fees [1] 25,997 200 78,308 599
Insurance fees, excluding reinsurance 11,702 1,684 33,966 5,130
Credit card fees, excluding late fees and membership fees [1] 26,189 379 76,828 1,205
Sale and administration of investment products 8,387 - 23,664 -
Trust fees 6,902 = 20,810 =
Total revenue from _contracts with customers [2] $ 114876 $ 4,879 $ 339,346 $ 14,447

Effective in the third quarter of 2024, the Corporation reclassified certain interchange fees, which were previously included jointly with credit card fees

[1] from common network activity, as debit card fees. For the nine month period ended September 30, 2024, interchange fees of approximately $ ~ 22.2 million,
corresponding to the first and second quarters were reclassified.
[2] The amounts include intersegment transactions of $ 0.6 million and $3.9 million, respectively, for the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2024.
Quarter ended September 30 Nine months ended September 30
(In thousands) 2023 2023
BPPR Popular U.S. BPPR Popular U.S.
Service charges on deposit accounts $ 34,740 $ 2,578 $ 102,145 $ 7,632
Other service fees:
Debit card fees [1] 24,390 213 73,489 654
Insurance fees, excluding reinsurance 11,487 1,535 34,437 4,130
Credit card fees, excluding late fees and membership fees [1] 25,336 340 77,128 1,255
Sale and administration of investment products 6,820 - 19,454 -
Trust fees 6,540 - 19,304 -
Total revenue from _contracts with customers [2] $ 109,313 $ 4,666 $ 325957 _ $ 13,671

Effective in the third quarter of 2024, the Corporation reclassified certain interchange fees, which were previously included jointly with credit card fees
[1] from common network activity, as debit card fees. For the quarter and nine month period ended September 30, 2023, interchange fees of approximately
$11 million and $33.8 million were reclassified.

[2] The amounts include intersegment transactions of $ 1.2 million and $5 million, respectively, for the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2023.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when, or as, the performance obligations are satisfied by the
%B%ﬁﬁi‘i@t%é promised services to the customers. A service is transferred to the customer when, or as, the customer
eBHIBP of that service. A performance obligation may be satisfied over time or at a point in time. Revenue from a
BBligamNs8tisfied over time is recognized based on the services that have been rendered to date. Revenue from a
BBligamNsAtisfied at a point in time  is recognized when the customer obtains control over the service. The transaction price, or
HiRount of revenue recognized, reflects the consideration the Corporation expects to be entitled to in exchange for those
BERURI In determining the transaction price, the Corporation considers the effects of variable consideration. Variable
EOMRINRIEEO the transaction price only to the extent itis probable thata significant reversal inthe amount of cumulative
Fe¥8BHRed will not occur. The Corporation is the principal in a transaction if it obtains control of the specified goods or
ééﬂéi‘éeﬁley are transferred to the customer. Ifthe Corporation acts as principal, revenues are presented in the gross
2B @ftion to which it expects to be entitled and are not netted with any related expenses. On the other hand, the
%Kﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬂtiﬁoes not control the specified goods or services before they are transferred to the customer. If the Corporation acts

aR agent, revenues are presented in the amount of consideration to which it expects to be entitled, net of related
expenses.
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Following is a description of the nature and timing of revenue streams from contracts with customers:

Service charges on deposit accounts

Service charges on deposit accounts are earned on retail and commercial deposit activities and include, but are not
nbRiaficient fund fees, overdraft fees and checks stop payment fees. These transaction-based fees are recognized at a
aRiBt hrbon occurrence of an activity or event or upon the occurrence of a condition which triggers the fee
2peraIRMtis BBeing as principal in these transactions.

Debit card fees

Debit card fees include, but are not limited to, interchange fees, surcharging income and foreign transaction fees. These
Ba868GH@Y- are recognized at a pointin time, upon occurrence of an activity or event or upon the occurrence of a condition
M@G@rs the fee assessment. Interchange fees are recognized upon settlement of the debit card payment
RSBAIRAIS is ABng as principal in these transactions.

Insurance fees

Insurance fees include, but are not limited to, commissions and contingent commissions. Commissions and fees are
pseqnEgekd policies are effective since the Corporation does not have an enforceable rightto payment for services
gamepleied Wiowance is created for expected adjustments to commissions earned related to policy cancellations.
EQNHNE8IIns are recorded on an accrual basis when the amount to be received is notified by the insurance
@?ﬂlﬂﬁﬁﬁon@%cting as an agentsince it arranges for the sale of the policies and receives commissions if, and when, it
ardiayes

Credit card fees

Credit card fees include, butare notlimited to, interchange fees, additional card fees, cash advance fees, balance
HRBRIAFARSAction fees, and returned payments fees. Credit card fees are recognized at a pointin time, upon the occurrence of
aBtivity or an event. Interchange fees are recognized upon settlement of the credit card payment transactions. The
GERg'APMikzipal in these transactions.

Sale and administration of investment products
Fees from the sale and administration of investment products include, butare not limited to, commission income from the
flestient products, asset management fees, underwriting fees, and mutual fund fees.

Commission income from investment products is recognized on the trade date since clearing, trade execution, and custody
8fEVig@Sfied when the customer acquires or disposes of the rights to obtain the economic benefits of the investment products
BFUKerage contracts have no fixed duration and are terminable at will by either party. The Corporation is acting as principal in
th@seactions since it performs the service of providing the customer with the ability to acquire or dispose of the rights to
eb&HBHIE benefits of investment products.

Asset management fees are satisfied over time and are recognized in arrears. At contract inception, the estimate
ﬁfarﬁ'&%eﬁféﬁ‘fee is constrained from the inclusion in the transaction price since the promised consideration is dependent
Rbrkee and thus is highly susceptible to factors outside the manager’s influence. As advisor, the broker-dealer subsidiary is

astiiihcipal.

Underwriting fees are recognized at a point in time, when the investment products are sold in the open market at a markup.
W8hoker-dealer subsidiary is lead underwriter, it is acting as an agent. In turn, when itis a participating underwriter, it is

prRDHAs

Mutual fund fees, such as distribution fees, are considered variable consideration and are recognized over time, as the
HPARSIAIBY 1o be received is resolved as NAV is determined and investor activity occurs. The promise to provide distribution-
®ARGs is considered a single performance obligation as it requires the provision of a series of distinct
8aP4EATialiAheéEame and have the same pattern of transfer. When the broker-dealer subsidiary is acting as a distributor, it is
§§‘i5\€hcipal. In turn, when it acts as third-party dealer, it is acting as an

agent.

Trust fees
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Trust fees are recognized from retirement plan, mutual fund administration, investment management, trustee, escrow, and
ﬁHﬁtogé(fekeeping services. These asset management services are considered a single performance obligation as it
[REVIERSRE a series of distinct services that are substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer. The
BBIQAMNCR satisfied over time, except for optional services and certain other services that are satisfied at a
ReiGEnlestiR€recognized in arrears, when, or as, the services are rendered. The Corporation is acting as principal since, as
AfB%Ager, it has the obligation to provide the specified service to the customer and has the ultimate discretion in establishing the
fﬁd by the customer for the specified services.
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Note 27 - Leases

The Corporation enters in the ordinary course of business into operating and finance leases for land, buildings and
eHdRM@Ntracts generally do not include purchase options or residual value guarantees. The remaining lease term6.1 to 30.3
9éars considers options to extend the leases for upRQgqears. The Corporation identifies leases when it has both the right
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the u$@ of the asset and the right to direct the use of the

asset.

The Corporation recognizes right-of-use assets (‘ROU assets”) and lease liabilities related to operating and finance leases
dBriSolidated Statements of Financial Condition under the caption of other assets and other liabilities, respectively. Refer to Note
4Ad Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, respectively, for information on the balances of these lease
AasRitfesand

The Corporation uses the incremental borrowing rate for purposes of discounting lease payments for operating and finance
19888t does not have enough information to determine the rates implicit in the leases. The discount rates are based on
ﬂi‘ﬁd'fé@ amortizing borrowing facilities of its banking subsidiaries that are collateralized. For leases held by
80PshABKEY a credit spread is added to this rate based on financing transactions with a similar credit risk profile.

The following table presents the undiscounted cash flows of operating and finance leases for each of the following
periods:
September 30, 2024

Remaining Later Total Lease Less: Imputed
(In thousands) 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Years Payments Interest Total
Operating Leases $ 7,818 $ 28,553 $ 20,088 $ 14,681 $ 12,221 40,309 $ 123,670 $ (15,505% 108,165
Finance Leases 1,156 4,692 4,462 3,105 2,432 10,908 26,755 (2,962) 23,793

The following table presents the lease cost recognized by the Corporation in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as
follows:

Quarters ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,

(In thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Finance lease cost:

Amortization of ROU assets $ 775 $ 1,071 $ 2272 $ 2,966

Interest on lease liabilities 239 219 702 749
Operating lease cost 7,626 7,924 22,964 23,578
Short-term lease cost 123 101 359 322
Variable lease cost 69 49 208 150
Sublease income (20) (20) (61) (46)
Total lease cost ) $ 8812 $ 9344 $ 26444 $ 27,719

[1] Total lease cost is recognized as part of net occupancy expense, except for the net gain recognized from sale and leaseback transactions which
was included as part of other operating income.
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The following table presents supplemental cash flow information and other related information related to operating

R ctinance

Nine months ended September 30,2024
(Dollars in thousands)

2024 2023
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:
Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 23,500 $ 23,218
Operating cash flows from finance leases 702 749
Financing cash flows from finance leases 2,717 3,557
ROU assets obtained in exchange for new lease obligations:
Operating leases $ 1618 $ 4,864
Finance leases 732 1,796
Weighted-average remaining lease term:
Operating leases 7.2 years 7.3 years
Finance leases 8.2 years 7.8 years
Weighted-average discount rate:
Operating leases 3.3% 3.2%
Finance leases 3.7% 3.8%

As of September 30, 2024, the Corporation had additional operating leases contracts that have not yet
GAMBNERED Wifftra? amount of $.9 million, which will have lease terms ranging 10 to 20 years.
from
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Note 28 — Pension and postretirement benefits

The Corporation has a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan and supplementary pension benefit restoration
Rigsarfemployees of certain of its  subsidiaries (the “Pension Plans”). The accrual of benefits under the Pension Plans is
fiﬂ’z‘ﬁélltﬁbipants. The Corporation also provides certain postretirement health care benefits for retired employees
8fibSRfi@iRs (the “OPEB Plan”).

The components of net periodic cost for the Pension Plans and the OPEB Plan for the periods presented were as
follows:

Pension Plans OPEB Plan
Quarter ended September 30, Quarter ended September 30,

In thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Personnel Cost:

Service cost $ - $ - $ 32 $ 48
Other operating expenses:

Interest cost 7,558 7,886 1,421 1,520

Expected return on plan assets (8,594) (8591) - -

Amortization of prior service cost/(credit) - - - -

Amortization of net loss 4,166 5,367 (548) (553)
Total net periodic _pension cost $ 3.130 $ 4,662 $ 905 $ 1.015

Pension Plans OPEB Plan
Nine months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,

(In thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023
Personnel Cost:

Service cost $ - $ - $ 95 $ 143
Other operating expenses:

Interest cost 22,675 23,661 4,264 4,561

Expected return on plan assets (25,782) (25,774) - -

Amortization prior service cost/(credit) - - - -

Amortization of net loss 12,498 16,099 (1644) (1,659)
Total net periodic _pension cost $ 9,391 $ 13,986 $ 2,715 $ 3,045

The Corporation paid the following contributions to the plans for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and expects to pay
fB#owing contributions for the year ending December 31,

2024. ) _

For the nine months ended For the year ending
(In thousands) September 30, 2024 December 31, 2024
Pension Plans $ 171 $ 228
OPEB Plan $ 5,012 $ 5,744
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Note 29 - Stock-based compensation
Incentive Plan

On May 12, 2020, the shareholders of the Corporation approved the Popular, Inc. 2020 Omnibus Incentive Plan, which permits
ﬁ“@rporation to issue several types of stock-based compensation to employees and directors of the Corporation and/or any
8fibfdiaries (the “2020 Incentive Plan”). The 2020 Incentive Plan replaced the Popular, Inc. 2004 Omnibus Incentive Plan,
Whighh effect prior to the adoption of the 2020 Incentive Plan (the “2004 Incentive Plan” and, together with the 2020 Incentive
fPlaPincentive Plan”). Participants under the Incentive Plan are designated by the Talent and Compensation Committee of the
Beditkctors (or its delegate, as determined by the Board). Under the Incentive Plan, the Corporation has issued restricted stock
Eeﬁormance shares to its employees and restricted stock and restricted stock units (‘RSUs") to its directors.

The restricted stock granted under the Incentive Plan to employees becomes vested based on the employees’ continued
Wicpopular.Unless otherwise stated in an agreement, the compensation cost associated with the shares of restricted stock
granted prior to 2021 was determined based on a two-prong vesting schedule. These grants include ratable vesting over five or
fR!-Hrs commencing at the date of grant (“the graduated vesting portion”) with a portion vested at termination of employment
aft8nment of 55 years of age and 10 years of service or 60 years of age and 5 years of service (“the retirement vesting portion”).
The graduated vesting portion is accelerated at termination of employment after attaining the earlier of 55 years of age and 10
¥E3Etvice or 60 years of age and 5 years of service. Restricted stock granted on or after 2021 have ratable vesting in equal
f¥sBhents over a period of 4 years or 3 years, depending on the classification of the employee. The vesting schedule is
accelerated at termination of employment after attaining the earlier of 55 years of age and 10 years of service or 60 years of age
and 5 years of service.

The performance share awards granted under the Incentive Plan consist of the opportunity to receive shares of
BomidRin s'(éﬁ:ksprovided that the Corporation achieves certain goals during a three-year performance cycle. The goals will be
BAsedlo metrics weighted equally: the Relative Total Shareholder Return (“TSR”) and the Absolute Return on
&vnadsh E§OPIEROATCE”). The TSR metricis considered to be a market condition under ASC 718. For equity settled
BYSHES on a market condition, the fair value is determined as of the grantdate and is not subsequently revised based on
p@?ﬂiﬁhance. The ROATCE metric is considered to be a performance condition under ASC 718. The fairvalue is
gaterniedne probability of achieving the ROATCE goal as of each reporting period. The TSR and ROATCE metrics are
W@Hiﬁéd and work independently. The number of shares that will ultimately vest ranges from 50 % to a 150 % of target based on
both market (TSR) and performance (ROATCE) conditions. The performance shares vest at the end of the three-year performance
cycle. If a participant terminates employment after attaining the earlier of 55 years of age and 10 years of service or 60 years of
8H8 5 years of service, the performance shares shall continue outstanding and vest at the end of the performance cycle.

The following table summarizes the restricted stock and performance shares activity under the Incentive Plan for

8RR RIMent.
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Weighted-Average
Grant Date Fair

(Not in thousands) Shares Value
Non-vested at December 31, 2022 281,963 $ 56.50
Granted 257,757 66.01
Performance Shares Quantity Adjustment 19,753 75.32
Vested (243,133) 66.31
Forfeited (16,444) 55.82
Non-vested at December 31, 2023 299,896 $ 58.20
Granted 241,744 86.60
Performance Shares Quantity Adjustment 6,739 85.37
Vested (285,048) 75.54
Forfeited (2,952) 64.83
Non-vested at September 30, 2024 260,379 $ 67.13

During the quarter ended September 30, 228 shares of restricted stock (September 30, 2028) -were awarded to
management under the Incentive Plan. During the quarters ended September 30, 2024 and r2Dp8rformance shares were
awarded to management under the Incentive Plan. For the nine months ended September 30, 176,519 shares of restricted
R4k (September 30, 2023 200,303 and 65,225 performance shares (September 30, 20235%,355) were awarded to
management under the Incentive Plan.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2024, the Corporation recogriiZednilfon of restricted stock expense related
management incentive awards, with a tax benefiD.dfngllion (September 30,12023 2.8 million, with a tax benefit 6f4%
million). For the nine months ended September 30, 2024, the Corporation recodrdZednilfon of restricted stock

related to management incentive awards, with a tax benefit o2.0 million (September 30, 2022XP€gSemillion, with a tax benefit of
8§15 million). For the nine months ended September 30, 2024, the fair market value of the restricted stock and performance
vestER@S $16.9 million at grant date and £3.2 million at vesting date. This differential triggers a windfall o2.$ million that was
recorded as a reduction on income tax expense. During the quarter ended September 30, 2024, the Corporation recogni¢€d )
thillion of performance shares benefit, with a tax benefit of $32 Jhousand due to performance shares target adjustment (September
30, 2023 - 051 million, with a tax benefit 8fttf®usand). For the nine months ended September 30, 2024, the
recognized $3.5 million of performance shares e)@@ﬂ%@ﬁaﬂﬂﬁ atax benefit of G2 million (September 30, 2023 - $.6 million, with a
tax benefit of G861 million). The total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested restricted stock
performance share AWAHEMBES of management at September 30, 2024 wasX3.9 million and is expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of1.65 years.

The following table summarizes the restricted stock activity under the Incentive Plan for members of the Board of Directors:

Weighted-Average Grant

(Not in thousands) RSUs / Unrestricted stock Date Fair Value per Unit
Non-vested at December 31, 2022 = $

Granted 39,104 55.30
Vested (139,104) 55.30
Forfeited

Non-vested at December 31, 2023 - $

Granted 24,279 89.22
Vested (24,279) 89.22
Forfeited

Non-vested at September 30, 2024 = $
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The equity awards granted to members of the Board of Directors of Popular, Inc. (the “Directors”) will vest and
RAFOMEBIER the grant date of such award. Effective in May 2019, all equity awards granted to the Directors may be paid in
githeStricted stock or RSUs ateach Directors election. If RSUs are elected, the Directors may defer the delivery of the
ebARdATstock underlying the RSUs award until their retirement. To the extent that cash dividends are paid on the
GRRAMRYIAY Bommon stock, the Directors will receive an additional number of RSUs that reflect a reinvested dividend equivalent.

For 2024 and 2023, Directors elected RSUs and unrestricted stock. During the quarter ended September 30,1,281 RSUs
8Rd%o shares of unrestricted stock were granted to the Directors (September 30, 20231384 RSUs and no shares of unrestricted
stock) and the Corporation recognized expense related to these sharésl ahilllbn with a tax benefit &1 $housand
(September 30, 2023 -0.% million with a tax benefit a6 $housand). For the nine months ended September 30,
Corporation granted 22,887 RSUs and 1,392 shares of unrestrié@fstdBR to the Directors (September 30, 202335,412 RSUs and
2,300 shares of unrestricted stock) and the Corporation recogni2e?l riiillion of expense related to these shares, with
benefit of $.4 million, (September 30, 2023 -251 million, with a tax behelof0% million). The fair value at vesting date of
shares vested during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 for the Directors We2 2 million.
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Note 30 - Income

taxes
The reason for the difference between the income tax expense applicable to income before provision for income taxes and
HiRount computed by applying the statutory tax rate in Puerto Rico, were as follows:

Quarters ended

September 30, 2024

% of pre-tax

September 30, 2023

% of pre-tax

(In thousands) Amount income Amount income
Computed income tax expense at statutory rates $ 74,169 38 % 68,426 38 %
Net benefit of tax exempt interest income (29,055) (13) (22,862) (13)
Effect of income subject to preferential tax rate (327) - (199) -
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance 451 - 1,355 1
Difference in tax rates due to multiple jurisdictions (6,764) (3) (2,839) (2)
U.S,, States, and local taxes 3,429 1 2,436 1
Others 560 = (458) -
Income tax expense $ 42,463 22 % 45,859 25 %
Nine months ended
September 30, 2024 September 30, 2023

% of pre-tax % of pre-tax
(In thousands) Amount income Amount income
Computed income tax expense at statutory rates $ 215,582 38 % 218,409 38 %
Net benefit of tax exempt interest income (91,035) (16) (72,080) (13)
Effect of income subject to preferential tax rate (475) - (775) -
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance 2,779 - (2,217) -
Difference in tax rates due to multiple jurisdictions (11,893) (2) (11,879) (3)
Other tax benefits (4,500) (1) - -
Tax on intercompany distributions 1! 24,325 4 - -
U.S., States, and local taxes 6,669 1 8,829 2
Others (2.962) (1) (4.611) (1)
Income tax expense $ 138,490 24 % $ 135,676 23 %

Wincludes $16.5 million of out-of-period adjustment

For the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2024, the Corporation recorded an income tax expense d2.5 million and
§138.5 million respectively, compared to 45.9 million and $135.7 million for the respective periods of 2023. During the first

of 2024, the Corporation recorded a tax expense related d¢R#8&k withholding on certain intercompany distributions,
80WYNRofO out of which $6.5 million corresponded to years 2014-2023 and6% million was related to a distribution completed
during the period ended March 31, 2024, as previously disclosed. As aresult of this adjustment, the deferred tax assets
retaitesk ipe Bank Holding Company (BHC) and its related valuation allowance was reduced B8% million.

The following table presents a breakdown of the significant components of the Corporation’s deferred tax assets and liabilities.
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September 30, 2024

(In thousands) PR us Total
Deferred tax assets:
Tax credits available for carryforward 263 20,192 20,455
Net operating loss and other carryforward available 54,294 609,814 664,108
Postretirement and pension benefits 36,895 - 36,895
Allowance for credit losses 248,766 24,588 273,354
Depreciation 6,774 6,864 13,638
Deferred loan origination fees/cost 2,470 (2,328) 147
FDIC-assisted transaction 152,665 - 152,665
Lease liability 26,138 16,913 43,051
Unrealized net loss on investment securities 237,859 13,489 251,348
Difference in outside basis from pass-through entities 47,413 - 47,413
Mortgage Servicing Rights 14,854 - 14,854
Other temporary differences 44,651 9,136 53,787
Total gross deferred tax assets 873,042 698,673 1,571,715
Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangibles 87,422 54,256 141,678
Right of use assets 23,725 14,806 38,531
Loans acquired 17,123 - 17,123
Other temporary differences 7,139 422 7,561
Total gross deferred tax liabilities 135,409 69,484 204,893
Valuation allowance 71,596 378,911 450,507
Net deferred tax asset 666,037 250,278 916,315
December 31, 2023
(In thousands) PR uUs Total
Deferred tax assets:
Tax credits available for carryforward 263 10,281 10,544
Net operating loss and other carryforward available 122,634 620,982 743,616
Postretirement and pension benefits 38,121 - 38,121
Allowance for credit losses 244,956 28,222 273,178
Depreciation 6,774 6,578 13,352
FDIC-assisted transaction 152,665 - 152,665
Lease liability 29,070 20,492 49,562
Unrealized net loss on investment securities 312,583 19,037 331,620
Difference in outside basis from pass-through entities 46,056 - 46,056
Mortgage Servicing Rights 14,085 - 14,085
Other temporary differences 47,679 9,625 57,304
Total gross deferred tax assets 1,014,886 715,217 1,730,103
Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangibles 84,635 51,944 136,579
Right of use assets 26,648 18,030 44,678
Deferred loan origination fees/cost (1,056 1,486 430
Loans acquired 20,430 - 20,430
Other temporary differences 6,402 422 6,824
Total gross deferred tax liabilities 137,059 71,882 208,941
Valuation allowance 139,347 374,035 513,382
Net deferred tax asset 738,480 269,300 1,007,780
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The net deferred tax assets shown in the table above at September 30, 2024, is reflected in the consolidated statements of
fiBABRIBh as $17.8 million in net deferred tax assetsin the “Other assets” caption (December 31, 2023 bilfon) and .5
million in deferred tax liabilities in the “Other liabilities” caption (December 31, 2023 18 million), reflecting the aggregate

tax assets or liabilities of individual tax-paying subsidiaries of the Corporation in theirdﬁ%H@@\ive tax jurisdiction, Puerto Rico or
theited States.

At September 30, 2024, the net deferred tax assets of the U.S. operations amounted@29 $nillion with a valuation allowance of
approximately $379 million, for net deferred tax assets after valuation allowance of approxima@$@$illion. The Corporation
evaluates the realization of the deferred tax assetson aquarterly basis by taxing jurisdiction. The U.S. operation has
ﬁmﬁy for the last three calendar years and for the period ended September 30, 2024. These historical financial
Ubﬁégﬁv@@ verifiable positive evidence, evaluated together with the positive evidence of stable credit metrics, in combination with
F@ﬁgth of the expiration ofthe NOLs. On the other hand, the Corporation evaluated the negative evidence accumulated
9¥8F§,hfhcluding financial results lower than expectations and challenges to the economy due to inflationary pressures and
Q@(ﬂ%litical uncertainty that have resulted in atrend of reduction of pre-tax income over the last three years. As of
%@@@ﬁ@(%ighting all positive and negative evidence, the Corporation concluded that it is more likely than not that
BPBIOKIMRISNF the deferred tax assets from the U.S. operations, comprised mainly of net operating losses, will be realized.
Corpaﬁﬂion based this determination on its estimated earnings available to realize the deferred tax assets for the
fﬂﬂ?ﬁmrd period, together with the historical level of book income adjusted by permanent differences. Management will
EONHiBiftor and review the U.S. operation’s results, including recent earnings trends, the pre-tax earnings forecast,
MWath@W 4" other factors, including net income versus forecast, targeted loan growth, net interest income margin,
8BPRERS clikts, allowance for credit losses, charge offs, NPLs inflows and NPA balances. Significant adverse
EBAIGRAL ofchanges in these factors could impact the future realization of the deferred tax assets.

At September 30, 2024, the Corporation’s net deferred tax assets related to its Puerto Rico operations amounted&6 million.
$he Corporation’s Puerto Rico Banking operation has a historical record of profitability. This is considered a strong
oBﬁ%%ﬁvélﬁlverifiable positive evidence that outweighs any negative evidence considered by Management inthe evaluation
plakb8tion of the deferred tax assets. Based on this evidence and management’'s estimate of future taxable
@6%6?3tidh€has concluded that it is more likely than not that such net deferred tax assets of the Puerto Rico Banking operations
Willrealized.

The Holding Company operation has been in a cumulative loss position in recent years. Management expects these losses will be
flend in future years. This objectively verifiable negative evidenceis considered by Management strong negative
§Mlﬂ%§i§ that income in future years will be insufficientto supportthe realization of all deferred tax assets. After weighting
p%fsﬁN/e and negative evidence Management concluded, as of the reporting date, that it is more likely than notthat the
d‘JfPﬁﬁﬂﬁy will not be able to realize any portion of the deferred tax assets. Accordingly, the Corporation has maintained a
%ABIRHREe on the deferred tax assets of $2 million as of September 30,

2024.

The reconciliation of unrecognized tax benefits, excluding interest, was as follows:
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(In_millions) 2024 2023

Balance at January 1 $ 15 $ 25
Balance at March 31 $ 15 $ 25
Balance at June 30 $ 15 $ 25
Balance at September 30 $ 15 $ 25

At September 30, 2024, the total amount of accrued interest recognized in the statement of financial condition amountzd
taifion (December 31, 2023 2.3 million). The total interest expense recognized at September 30, 20247@vewu$and,
(September 30, 2023— $79 thousand). Management determined that at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, there no
needto accrue for the pd{#ent of penalties. The Corporation’s policy is to report interest related to unrecognized tax

Pregfits tik expense, while the penalties, if any, are reported in other operating expenses in the consolidated
sisipameRts of

After consideration of the effecton U.S. federal tax of unrecognized U.S. state tax benefits, the total amount of
HEFRIRGMERTF tR¢ognized, would affect the Corporation’s effective tax rate, was approximatal9 million at September 30, 2024
@December 31, 2023 - R.9 million).

The amount of unrecognized tax benefits may increase or decrease in the future for various reasons including adding
é‘m%mtstaﬁ@ryear positions, expiration of open income tax returns due to the statutes of limitation, changes in
Mapaasinepbat the level of uncertainty, status of examinations, litigation and legislative activity and the addition or
erﬂa@ositions. The Corporation does not anticipate a reduction in the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits within
Wt 12 months.

The Corporation and its subsidiaries file income tax returnsin Puerto Rico, the U.S. federal jurisdiction, various U.S.
pEGSal apfdivisions, and foreign jurisdictions. At September 30, 2024, the following years remain subject to examination in the
Pederal jurisdiction: 2020 and thereafter; and in the Puerto Rico jurisdiction, 2018 and thereafter.
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Note 31 - Supplemental disclosure on the consolidated statements of cash

flows
Additional disclosures on cash flow information and non-cash activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2024
8@dtember 30, 2023 are listed in the following table:

(In thousands)

September 30, 2024

September 30, 2023

Non-cash activities:
Loans transferred to other real estate

Loans transferred to other property

Total loans transferred to foreclosed assets
Loans transferred to other assets
Financed sales of other real estate assets

Financed sales of other foreclosed assets

Total financed sales of foreclosed assets

Financed sale of premises and equipment

Transfers from loans held-in-portfolio to loans held-for-sale
Transfers from loans held-for-sale to loans held-in-portfolio
Loans securitized into investment securities [

Trades receivable from brokers and counterparties

Trades payable to brokers and counterparties

Net change in receivables from investments maturities

Recognition of mortgage servicing rights on securitizations or asset transfers

Loans booked under the GNMA buy-back option
Capitalization of lease right of use asset

34,756 48,704
61,447 53,021
96,203 101,725
37,495 15,738
8,551 7,617

39,283 38136
47,834 45,753
59,628 59,345
7,505 55,497
5,084 3,772
11,162 35,958
4,983 11,823
3,540 14,761
176,000 176,000
998 1,814
2,836 2,805
2,553 14,672

[1]Includes loans securitized into trading securities and subsequently sold before quarter end.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and due from banks, and restricted cash reported within the
Seisrlislated Financial Condition that sum to the total of the same such amounts shown in the Consolidated Statement of

Frwls.

(In thousands)

September 30, 2024

September 30, 2023

Cash and due from banks
Restricted cash and due from banks

Restricted cash in money market investments

Total cash and due from banks, and restricted cash 12!

2ot cash and dué_irom banks, and restricted casr

$ 418,168 $ 509,538
9,426 25,797
8,072 5,903
$ 435666 _$ 541,238

[2] Refer to Note 4 - Restrictions on cash and due from banks

and certain securities for nature of restrictions.
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Note 32 — Segment reporting

The Corporation’s corporate structure consiststved reportable segments Banco Popular de Puerto Rico and Popular U.S.
Management determined the reportable segments based on the internal reporting used to evaluate performance and to

#FF8Sto allocate resources. The segments were determined based on the organizational structure, which focuses primarily on
markets the segments servdh8s well as on the products and services offered by the segments.

Banco Popular de Puerto Rico:

The Banco Popular de Puerto Rico reportable segment includes commercial, consumer and retail banking operations conducted
BPPR, including U.S. based activities conducted through its New York Branch. It also includes the lending operations of
Ramylaind Popular Mortgage. Other financial services within the BPPR segment include the trust service units of
RRREge A flservices of Popular Asset Management and the brokerage operations of Popular Securities, and the insurance
afBNehsurance businesses of Popular Insurance, Popular Risk Services, Popular Life Re, and Popular Re.

Popular U.S.:

Popular U.S. reportable segment consists of the banking operations of Popular Bank (PB), Popular Insurance Agency, U.S.A.,
Fnd pB operates through a retail branch network inthe U.S. mainland under the name of Popular, and equipment
ﬁ?eﬁ\\'é@h@@érvices through PEF. Popular Insurance Agency, U.S.A. offers investment and insurance services across the PB

Reaneik.

The Corporate group consists primarily of the holding companies Popular, Inc., Popular North America, Popular International
Badleertain of the Corporation’s investments accounted for under the equity method, including BHD.

The accounting policies of the individual operating segments are the same as those of the Corporation.
TepoRABIORE gRRIME e primarily conducted at market rates, resulting in profits that are eliminated for reporting consolidated
B ofisrations.

The tables that follow present the results of operations and total assets by reportable
segments:
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2024

For the quarter ended September 30, 2024

Intersegment
(In thousands) BPPR Popular U.S. Eliminations
Net interest income $ 488,008 $ 93,128 $ =
Provision for credit losses (benefit) 77,514 (6,066 ) -
Non-interest income 149,050 6,789 -
Amortization of intangibles 394 310 -
Depreciation expense 13,023 2,063 -
Other operating expenses 390,227 62,356 -
Income tax expense 30,064 12,472 -
Net income $ 125,836 $ 28,782 $ -
Segment assets $ 56,906,693 $ 14,306,045 $ (260,464 )
For the quarter ended September 30, 2024
Reportable
(In thousands) Segments Corporate Eliminations Total Popular, Inc.
Net interest income (expense) $ 581,136 $ (8663) $ - $ 572,473
Provision for credit losses 71,448 - - 71,448
Non-interest income 155,839 8,876 (633) 164,082
Amortization of intangibles 704 - - 704
Depreciation expense 15,086 385 - 15,471
Other operating expenses 452,583 (391) (1,046) 451,146
Income tax expense (benefit) 42,536 (279) 206 42,463
Net income $ 154,618 $ 498 $ 207 $ 155,323
Segment assets $ 70,952,274 $ 5,887,340 $ (5516540) $ 71,323,074
For the nine months ended September 30, 2024
Intersegment
(In thousands) BPPR Popular U.S. Eliminations
Net interest income $ 1,449,594 $ 263,832 $ =
Provision for credit losses 188,576 1,806 -
Non-interest income 447,073 19,909 (56)
Amortization of intangibles 1,302 931 -
Depreciation expense 39,349 6,210 -
Other operating expenses 1,170,263 197,307 (56)
Income tax expense 92,810 23,917 =
Net income $ 404,367 $ 53570 $ -
Segment assets $ 56,906,693 $ 14,306,045 $ (260,464 )
For the nine months ended September 30, 2024
Reportable Total
(In thousands) Segments Corporate Eliminations Popular, Inc.
Net interest income (expense) $ 1,713,426 $ (21,897) $ - $ 1,691,529
Provision for credit losses 190,382 458 - 190,840
Non-interest income 466,926 31,314 (4,034) 494,206
Amortization of intangibles 2,233 - - 2,233
Depreciation expense 45,559 1,161 - 46,720
Other operating expenses 1,367,514 7,004 (3,461) 1,371,057
Income tax expense 116,727 21,921 (158) 138,490
Net income (loss) $ 457,937 $ (21127) $ (415) $ 436,395
Segment assets $ 70,952,274 $ 5,887,340 $ (5516540) $ 71,323,074
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2023

For the quarter ended September 30, 2023

Intersegment
(In thousands) BPPR Popular U.S. Eliminations
Net interest income $ 453,879 $ 87,445 $ 1
Provision for credit losses (benefit) 51,899 (6,644) -
Non-interest income 144,691 5,894 (134)
Amortization of intangibles 484 311 -
Goodwill impairment charge - 23,000 -
Depreciation expense 12,880 1,962 -
Other operating expenses 369,738 58,341 (134)
Income tax expense 40,861 5,358 -
Net income $ 122,708 $ 11,011 $ 1
Segment assets $ 57,039,000 $ 12,806,630 $ (448,100)
For the guarter ended September 30, 2023
Reportable
(In thousands) Segments Corporate Eliminations Total Popular, Inc.
Net interest income (expense) $ 541,325 $ (7,305) $ = $ 534,020
Provision for credit losses (benefit) 45,255 (138) - 45,117
Non-interest income 150,451 10,179 (1,081) 159,549
Amortization of intangibles 795 - - 795
Goodwill impairment charge 23,000 - - 23,000
Depreciation expense 14,842 381 - 15,223
Other operating expenses 427,945 180 (1,159) 426,966
Income tax expense (benefit) 46,219 (396) 36 45,859
Net income $ 133,720 $ 2,847 $ 42 $ 136,609
Segment assets $ 69,397,530 $ 5,554,370 $ (5214964) $ 69,736,936
For the nine months ended September 30, 2023
Intersegment
(In thousands) BPPR Popular U.S. Eliminations
Net interest income $ 1,356,774 $ 265,033 $ 2
Provision for credit losses 126,952 3,328 -
Non-interest income 435,966 18,165 (404)
Amortization of intangibles 1,453 932 -
Goodwill impairment charge - 23,000 -
Depreciation expense 36,424 5,661 -
Other operating expenses 1,119,522 182,809 (404)
Income tax expense 120,996 16,184 -
Net income $ 387,393 $ 51,284 $ 2
Segment assets $ 57,039,000 $ 12,806,630 $ (448,100)
For the nine months ended September 30, 2023
Reportable Total
(In thousands) Segments Corporate Eliminations Popular, Inc.
Net interest income (expense) $ 1,621,809 $ (24,465) $ - $ 1,597,344
Provision for credit losses (benefit) 130,280 (334) - 129,946
Non-interest income 453,727 32,905 (4,651) 481,981
Amortization of intangibles 2,385 - - 2,385
Goodwill impairment charge 23,000 - - 23,000
Depreciation expense 42,085 1,095 - 43,180
Other operating expenses 1,301,927 (146) (3,391) 1,298,390
Income tax expense (benefit) 137,180 (1.006) (498) 135,676
Net income $ 438,679 $ 8,831 $ (762) $ 446,748
Segment assets $ 69,397,530 $ 5,554,370 $ (5214964) $ 69,736,936
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Geographic Information

The following information presents selected financial information based on the geographic location where the Corporation
feMlltiess. The banking operations of BPPR are primarily based in Puerto Rico, where it has the largest retail banking
BpPRisgiso conducts banking operations in the U.S. Virgin Islands, the British Virgin Islands and New York.
%ﬁ&@n?%ﬁ'k% mainland United States include commercial lending activities. BPPR’s commercial lending activities in the
tM&:gh its New York Branch, include periodic loan participations with PB. During the quarter and nine months ended September
3624, BPPR did nat participate in loans originated by PB (2023 — 9.0 million and $33 million, respectively). At September 30,

total assets for the BPPR segment related to its operations in the United States amAféd to16 billion (December 31, 2023 - §1.5
billion), including $105 million in multifamily loans (December 31, 2023 -H#6 million), $621 million in commercial real estate loans
(December 31, 2023 - $28 million), $747 million in C&I loans (December 31, 2023 5%/ million), and $140 million in unsecured
personal loans (December 31, 2023 22%million). During the nine months ended September 30, 2024, the BPPR
generated approximately $1.2 million (202869860 million) in revenues from its operations in the United States,

interest income, service charge on deposit accounts Hdusting: f8lice fees. In the Virgin Islands, the BPPR segment offers
Bﬂm@[@%, including loans and deposits. At September 30, 2024, total assets for the BPPR segment related to its operations
0.8end British Virgin Islands amounted ta.® billion (December 31, 2023 -0 billion). The BPPR segment generated3®.3
million in revenues during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 (20233.6%million) from its operations inthe U.S.
British Virgin Islands. and

Geographic Information

Quarter ended Nine months ended
(In thousands) September 30, 2024 September 30, 2023 September 30, 2024 September 30, 2023
Revenues: 1Y)
Puerto Rico $ 582,953 $ 539,985 $ 1,735,035 $ 1,623,963
United States 133,067 131,698 386,819 389,463
Other 20,535 21,886 63,881 65,899
Total consolidated revenues $ 736,555 $ 693,569 $ 2.185.735 $ 2.079.325

[1] Total revenues include net interest income, service charges on deposit accounts, other service fees, mortgage banking activities, net (loss) gain,
including impairment, on equity securities, net gain on trading account debt securities, net loss on sale of loans, including valuation adjustments

on loans held-for-sale, adjustments to indemnity reserves on loans sold, and other operating income.

Selected Balance Sheet Information:

(In thousands) September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
Puerto Rico
Total assets $ 54,200,914 $ 54,181,300
Loans 23,672,112 22,519,961
Deposits 50,759,657 51,282,007
United States
Total assets $ 15,883,947 $ 15,343,156
Loans 11,998,043 12,006,012
Deposits 11,203,741 10,643,602
Other
Total assets $ 1,238,213 $ 1,233,699
Loans ™ 530,321 543,299
Deposits 1,705,103 1,692,634

[1]Represents loans from BPPR operations located in the U.S. and British Virgin Islands.
2] Represents deposits from BPPR operations located in the U.S. and British Virgin Islands.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This report includes management’s discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) of the consolidated financial position and financial
performance of Popular, Inc. (the “Corporation” or “Popular”). All accompanying tables, financial statements and notes included
elsewhere in this report should be considered an integral part of this analysis.

The Corporation is a diversified, publicly-owned financial holding company subject to the supervision and regulation of the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System. The Corporation has operations in Puerto Rico, the United States (“U.S.”) mainland and

the U.S. and British Virgin Islands. In Puerto Rico, the Corporation provides retail, mortgage and commercial banking services
through its principal banking subsidiary, Banco Popular de Puerto Rico (“BPPR"), as well as broker-dealer, auto and

mm% financing, and insurance services through specialized subsidiaries. In the U.S. mainland, the Corporation provides retail,
mortgage and commercial banking services, as well as equipment leasing and financing, through its New York -chartered

Qéﬂgiﬂ&ry, Popular Bank (“PB” or “Popular U.S.”), which has branches located in New York, New Jersey and Florida. Note 32 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements presents information about the Corporation’s business segments.

As a financial services company, the Corporation’s earnings are significantly affected by general business and economic

FPRtiGRgrkets which we serve. Lending and deposit activities and fee income generation are influenced by the level of business
spending and investment, consumer income, spending and savings, capital market activities, competition, customer preferences,
interest rate conditions and prevailing market rates on competing

products.

The Corporation operates in a highly regulated environment and may be adversely affected by changesin federal and local

B regulations. Also, competition with other financial institutions, as well as with non-traditional financial service providers and
technology companies that provide electronic and internet-based financial solutions and services, could adversely affect its
profitability.

The Corporation continuously monitors general business and economic conditions, industry-related indicators and trends,
competition, interest rate volatility, credit quality indicators, loan and deposit demand, operational and systems efficiencies, revenue
enhancements and changes in the regulation of financial services companies.

The description of the Corporation’s business contained in Item 1 of the 2023 Form 10-K, while not all inclusive, discusses additional
information about the business of the Corporation. Readers should also refer to “Part | - ltem 1A” of the 2023 Form 10-K and “Part
Uitem 1A” of this Form 10-Q for a discussion of certain risks and uncertainties to which the Corporation is subject, many beyond the
Corporation’s control that, in addition to the other information in this Form 10-Q, readers should

consider.

The Corporation’s common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol BPOP.
OVERVIEW

Table 1 provides selected financial data and performance indicators for the quarters ended September 30, 2024 and
2023.
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Table 1 - Financial Highlights

Financial Condition Highlights

Ending balances at

Average for the nine months ended

September December 31, September September
(In thousands) 30, 2024 2023 Variance 30, 2024 30, 2023 Variance
Money market investments $ 6,530,788 $ 6,998871 $ (468,083) $ 6,663,967 $ 6,965,588 $ (301,621)
Investment securities 25,280,451 25,148,673 131,778 27,701,911 27,463,370 238,541
Loans 36,200,476 35,069,272 1,131,204 35,411,807 32,732,877 2,678,930
Earning assets 68,011,715 67,216,816 794,899 69,777,685 67,161,835 2,615,850
Total assets 71,323,074 70,758,155 564,919 72,851,597 70,209,477 2,642,120
Deposits 63,668,501 63,618,243 50,258 64,521,953 62,304,083 2,217,870
Borrowings 973,736 1,078,332 (104,596) 1,039,130 1,274,682 (235,552)
Total liabilities 65,532,560 65,611,202 (78,642) 66,530,111 64,430,204 2,099,907
Stockholders’ equity 5,790,514 5,146,953 643,561 6,321,486 5,779,273 542,213

Note: Average balances exclude unrealized gains or losses on debt securities available-for-sale and the unrealized loss related to certain securities transferred from

fvasialsido held-to-maturity.

Operating Highlights

Quarters ended September 30,

Nine months ended September 30,

(In thousands, except per share information) 2024 2023 Variance 2024 2023 Variance
Net interest income $ 572,473 $ 534,020 $ 38453 $ 1,691,529 $ 1597344 $ 94,185
Provision for credit losses 71,448 45,117 26,331 190,840 129,946 60,894
Non-interest income 164,082 159,549 4,533 494,206 481,981 12,225
Operating expenses 467,321 465,984 1,337 1,420,010 1,366,955 53,055
Income before income tax 197,786 182,468 15,318 574,885 582,424 (7,539)
Income tax expense 42,463 45,859 (3,396) 138,490 135,676 2,814
Net income $ 155,323 $ 136,609 $ 18,714 $ 436,395 $ 446,748 $ (10,353)
Net income applicable to common stock $ 154,970 $ 136,256 $ 18,714 $ 435336 $ 445689 $ (10,353)
Net income per common share — basic $ 216 $ 1.90 $ 026 $ 6.06 $ 622 $ (0.16)
Net income per common share - diluted $ 216 $ 190 $ 026 $ 6.05 $ 621 $ (0.16)
Dividends declared per common share $ 062 $ 055 $ 0.07 $ 186 $ 165 $ 0.21

Quarters ended September 30

Nine months ended September 30

Selected Statistical Information 2024 2023 2024 2023
Common Stock Data
End market price $ 100.27 63.01 $ 100.27 63.01
Book value per common share at period end 80.35 61.49 80.35 61.49
Profitability Ratios
Return on assets 0.84 % 0.75 % 0.79 % 0.84 %
Return on common equity 8.82 8.17 8.43 9.13
Net interest spread 243 2.37 241 2.52
Net interest spread (taxable equivalent) - Non-GAAP 2.66 2.54 2.65 2.70
Net interest margin 3.24 3.07 3.20 3.14
Net interest margin (taxable equivalent) - Non-GAAP 3.47 3.24 3.44 3.32
Capitalization Ratios
Average equity to average assets 8.86 % 8.26 % 8.68 % 8.23 %
Common equity Tier 1 capital 16.42 16.81 16.42 16.81
Tier | capital 16.48 16.87 16.48 16.87
Total capital 18.24 18.67 18.24 18.67
Tier 1 leverage 8.67 8.41 8.67 8.41
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Non-GAAP Financial Measures

This Form 10-Q contains financial information prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“U.S.
GAAP”) and non-GAAP financial measures. Management uses non-GAAP financial measures when it has determined that
Heasures provide meaningful information about the underlying performance of the Corporation’s ongoing operations. Non-GAAP
financial measures used by the Corporation may not be comparable to similarly named non-GAAP financial measures used by other
companies.

Adjusted net income - Non-GAAP Financial

Measure

In addition to analyzing the Corporation’s results on a reported basis, management monitors the “adjusted net income” of the
Corporation and excludes the impact of certain transactions on the results of its operations. Management believes that the “adjusted

net income” provides meaningful information about the underlying performance of the Corporation's ongoing operations. The
“adjusted net income” is a non-GAAP financial measure.

The following table presents the adjusted net income for the nine months ended of September 30, 2024. There were no non-GAAP

adjustments for the nine months ended September 30,
2023.

Table 2 - Adjusted Net Income for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024 (Non-GAAP)

(Unaudited)
Income tax

Income before expense
(In thousands) income tax (benefit) Total
U.S. GAAP Net income $574,885 $138,490 $436,395
Non-GAAP Adjustments:
FDIC Special Assessment [1] 14,287 (5,234) 9,053

) . istributions (2]

Adjusted net income (Non-GAAP) $595,572 $127,241 $468,331

[1] Expense recorded during the first quarter of 2024 related to the November 16, 2023 FDIC Special Assessment to recover the losses to the deposit
insurance fund used by the FDIC in connection with the receiverships of several failed banks. The special assessment amount and collection period
may change as the estimated loss is periodically adjusted or if the total amount collected varies.

[2] Income tax expense and other related expenses from prior periods, but recorded during the first quarter of 2024, related to withholding taxes on
certain distributions from U.S. subsidiaries.
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Net interest income on a taxable equivalent basis — Non-GAAP Financial

Measure

Net interest income on a taxable equivalent basis is a non-GAAP financial measure. Management believes that this
BresRI¥a¥ABaningful information since it facilitates the comparison of revenues arising from taxable and tax-exempt

sources.

The Corporation’s interest earning assets include investment securities and loans thatare exempt from income tax, principally in
Puerto Rico. The main sources of tax-exempt interestincome are certain investments in obligations of the U.S. Government,
ﬁ@encies and sponsored entities, certain obligations of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and/orits agencies and municipalities,
and assets held by the Corporation’s international banking entities. To facilitate the comparison of interest related to these
AEfterest income has been converted to a taxable equivalent basis, using the applicable statutory income tax rates for each

BARMAbse interest earning assets that are tax exempt. In addition, this measure is also impacted by a portion of interest cost that the
Puerto Rico tax law requires to be disallowed, based on an equal proportion of tax-exempt assets to total assets, and by an
allocation of general and administrative expenses attributed to exempt income, reducing the benefit of the tax exempt income.
&hective yield, on a taxable equivalent basis, will vary depending on the level of these expenses that are attributed to the available

exempt
income.
Net interest income on a taxable equivalent basis, with its different components, along with the reconciliation to net interest income

(GAAP), for the quarter ended September 30, 2024 as compared with the same period in 2023, segregated by major categories

Rterest earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities are included in Table 3 of the Operating Results Analysis section
below.

Tangible Common Equity and Tangible Assets

Tangible common equity, tangible common equity ratio, tangible assets and tangible book value per common share are non-

faf\Bial measures. Tangible common equity ratio and tangible book value per common share in conjunction with more

Héﬁi@ioﬁ%ital ratios are commonly used by banks and analysts to compare the capital adequacy of banking organizations with
significant amounts of goodwill or other intangible assets, typically stemming from the use of the purchase accounting method for
mergers and acquisitions. Tangible common equity, tangible assets and other related measures should not be used in isolation

85 a substitute for stockholders' equity, total assets or any other measure calculated in accordance with GAAP. Moreover, the
manner in which the Corporation calculates its tangible common equity, tangible assets and other related measures may differ

fFRof other companies reporting measures with similar names.

Table 10 provides a reconciliation of total stockholders’ equity to tangible common equity and total assets to tangible assets as
SEptember 30, 2024, and December 31,
2023.

4

e  For the quarter ended September 30, 2024, the Corporation recorded net income of $ 155.3 million, compared to net income

of $ 136.6 milion for the same quarter of the previous year. Net interest margin for the third quarter of 2024 was 3.24%, an
increase of 17 basis points when compared to 3.07% for the same quarter of the previous year. The increase was mainly due
to higher vyields in investment securities, mainly due to reinvestment of maturities in higher yielding U.S. Treasury
securities, and to higher average loan balances and higher yields in almost all loans portfolios, which was partially offset by
higher deposit costs, principally due to higher average volume and higher cost of interest-bearing deposits, mainly from the
Puerto Rico government and time deposits at PB. On a taxable equivalent basis, the net interest margin was 3.47%, compared
to 3.24% for the same quarter of the previous year.

e For the quarter ended September 30, 2024, the Corporation recorded a provision for credit losses of $71.4 million, compared

10 $45.1 million for the same quarter of the previous year. The increase in provision for credit losses was mainly reflected within
the commercial loan portfolio for both of the Corporation’s segments. The increase was mainly due to net charge-offs in the
commercial loan portfolio during the third quarter of 2024, compared to net recoveries recognized during the third quarter of
2023, and the changes in credit quality and macroeconomic variables. Inthe U.S.commercial portfolio, the release of $4.4
million was lower compared with the third quarter of 2023 due to the impact ofthe new model forthe U.S.commercial real
estate segment that was implemented during that quarter which resulted in a higher benefit.

e Non-interest income was $164.1 million for the quarter, an increase of $4.5 milion when compared to the quarter ended
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September 30, 2023mainly due to higher other service fees, dueto higher credit and debit card service feesas aresult of
higher volume of transactions, partially offset by lower income from mortgage banking activities resulting from the fair
¥aji8tments of mortgage servicing rights.

Operating expenses of $467.3 million for the quarter were higher by $1.3 million when compared to the quarter ended
September 30, 2023. Higher operating expenses were driven mainly by higher technology and software expenses,

BEESONAAL regulatory examination fees included as other taxes, partially offset by lower professional fees and a goodwil
impairment charge related to our U.S. based leasing subsidiary recorded in

2023.

Income tax expense of $42.5 million during the quarter was lower by $3.4 million compared to the quarter ended September

30, 2023, mainly due to higher exempt

income.

Total assets at September 30, 2024 amounted to $71.3 billion, compared to $70.8 billion, at December 31, 2023. The

iNCro@se driven by loan growth, mainly in the commercial portfolio, and higher portfolio balance in available-for-sale (“AFS”)

securities, impacted by lower unrealized losses, and partially offset by a decrease in held-to-maturity (“HTM”) investment

securities driven by maturities of U.S. Treasury
securities.

Total deposits at September 30, 2024 increased by $50.3 million when compared to deposits at December 31, 2023,
Bainy higher deposits in PB, mainly those captured via the online channel.

Stockholders’ equity as of September 30, 2024 increased by $643.6 million from the December 31, 2023, mainly due to

net income for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 of $436.4 million, the after-tax impact of the decrease in net unrealized

losses in the portfolio of AFS securities of $272.0 million and the net accretion of the discount from securities previously
reclassified to HTM of $107.0 million, net of taxes, partially offset by the repurchases of common stock for $58.8 million

HEINGird quarter and dividends declared during the period of $135.4 million. As of September 30, 2024, the Corporation's
tangible book value per common share was $69.04, an increase of $9.30 from December 31,

2023.

Regulatory capital ratios remain strong. At September 30, 2024, the Corporation’s common equity tier 1 capital ratio was
16.42%, the tier 1 leverage ratio was 8.67%, and the total capital ratio was 18.24%. Refer to Table 9 for capital ratios.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES | ESTIMATES

The accounting and reporting policies followed by the Corporation and its subsidiaries conformto generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America and general practices within the financial services industry. Various elements of the
Corporation’s accounting policies, by their nature, are inherently subject to estimation techniques, valuation assumptions and other
subjective assessments. These estimates are made under facts and circumstances ata pointin time and changesin those
ffdscircumstances could produce actual results that differ from those estimates.

Management has discussed the development and selection of the critical accounting policies and estimates with the Corporation’s

Audit Committee. The Corporation has identified as critical accounting policies those related to: (i) Fair Value Measurement of
Financial Instruments; (ii) Loans and Allowance for Credit Losses; (i) Loans Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality; (iv) Income

Taxes; (v) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets; and (vi) Pension and Postretirement Benefit Obligations. For a summary of

Hheral accounting policies and estimates, refer to the MD&A included in the 2023 Form 10-K. Also, refer to Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included in the 2023 Form 10-K for a summary of the Corporation’s significant accounting
policies and to Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Form 10-Q for information on recently adopted
accounting standard updates.

OPERATING RESULTS ANALYSIS
NET INTEREST INCOME

Net interest income for the quarter ended September 30, 2024 was $572.5 million, compared to $534.0 million in the same quarter
of 2023, anincrease of $38.5 million. Net interestincome ona taxable equivalent basis for the third quarter of 2024 was
ﬁﬁﬂi@@compared to $563.7 million in the third quarter of 2023, an increase of $49.2 million.

Net interest margin for the quarter was 3.24% compared to 3.07% in the third quarter of 2023 or an increase of 17 basis points. On
a taxable equivalent basis, net interest margin for the third quarter of 2024 was 3.47%, compared to 3.24% for the same quarter the
prior year. The main variances in net interest income on a taxable equivalent basis were:

® higher interest income from investment securities by $33.8 million mainly driven higher yield by 48 basis points, due to

Righer interest rate environment and reinvestment of investment maturities in higher yielding U.S. Treasury
bills;
® higher interest income from loans by $69.6 million resulting from higher balances in both PB and BPPR and across

B¥folios and higher yield on loans by 32 basis points when compared to the same quarter of
2023.
Partially offset by:

® higher interest expense on interest-bearing deposits by $56.9 million driven by a higher cost of interest-bearing
ggresiiasis points  due to higher average volume by $884.1 million and higher cost of market linked interest-bearing P.R.
Government deposits and higher volume of U.S. deposits, mainly those captured via the online channel.

Net interest income for the BPPR segment amounted to $488.0 million for the third quarter of 2024, compared to $453.9 million
tAe third quarter of 2023. Net interest margin increased to 3.41% compared to 3.14% in the third quarter of 2023. The increase in
net interest income of $34.1 million was driven by higher yields from earning assets and loan growth partially offset by the

iRGFRASEost of deposits, mainly from P.R. Government deposits. The cost of interest-bearing deposits increased 29 basis points to
2.55% from 2.25% in the same quarter of 2023. Total deposit costs for the quarter increased by 21 basis points, from 1.68% in the
third quarter of 2023 to 1.89%.

Net interest income for PB was $93.1 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2024, compared to $87.4 million during the

Hlieter of 2023, an increase of $5.7 million. Netinterest margin decreased 17 basis pointsto 2.73% when compared to 2.90%
during the third quarter of 2023. The decrease in net interest margin was mostly driven by higher balances and cost of deposits

fost of the interest-bearing categories, partially offset by the increase in loan volume and yield. The cost of interest-bearing
deposits was 3.80% compared to 3.31% in the third quarter of 2023, or an increase of 49 basis points. Total deposit cost was

8oRPfared to 2.84%, or a decrease of 51 basis points in the third quarter of
2023.
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Table 3 - Analysis of Levels & Yields on a Taxable Equivalent Basis (Non-GAAP)

Quarter ended September 30,

Average Volume

Average Yields / Costs

. N

(In millions)

$ 7,033 % 7292 $ (259) 543 % 540 % 0.03 %
27,569 28,396 (827) 2.92 231 0.61
30 34 (4 587 4.43 1.44
34,632 35,722 (1,090) 3.43 2.95 0.48
17,798 16,611 1,187 6.90 6.64 0.26
1,129 865 264 8.85 8.99 (0.14)
1,851 1,669 182 6.97 6.50 0.47
7,911 7,504 407 5.73 5.42 0.31
3,211 3,147 64 14.08 13.39 0.69
3.879 3.657 222 8.94 847 0.47
35,779 33.453 2,326 7.56 7124 032

$ 70411% 69175% 1,236 5.53 % 5.02 % 0.51 %

$ 26148% 25652 % 496 364% 331% 0.33 %
14,322 14,875 (553) 0.92 0.73 0.19
9,069 7,986 1,083 3.46 2.62 0.84
49,539 48513 1,026 2.82 241 0.41

14.968 15.038 (70)
64,507 63,551 956 2.16 1.84 0.32
101 108 @) 5.62 5.45 0.17
950 1,172 (222) 532 5.20 0.12
50.590 49,793 797 2.87 248 0.39
4,853 4344 509

$ 704113$ 69175% 1,236 2.06 % 1.78 % 0.28 %

347 % 324 % 0.23 %

2.66 % 2.54 % 0.12 %

324 % 3.07% 0.17 %

Variance
Interest Attributable to
2024 2023 Variance Rate Volume
(In thousands)

Money market investments $ 96,061 $ 99,285 $ (3.224) % 311$ (3,535)
Investment securities [1] 202,317 165,319 36,998 41,382 (4,384)
Trading securities 436 375 61 110 (49)
Total money market,

investment and trading

securities 298,814 264,979 33,835 41,803 (7,968)
Loans:

Commercial 308,734 277,977 30,757 10,336 20,421

Construction 25,102 19,580 5,522 (364) 5,886

Leasing 32,241 27,142 5,099 2,022 3,077

Mortgage 113,409 101,700 11,709 6,038 5,671

Consumer 112,423 105,042 7,381 4,260 3,121

Auto 87.189 78.055 9,134 4,248 4,886
Total loans 679,008 609,496 69,602 26540 43062
Total earning assets $ 977912 $ 874475 $ 103437 $ 68,343 $ 35,094
Interest bearing deposits:

NOW and money market [2] $ 238,923 $ 213,957 $ 24966 $ 26,317 $ (1,351)

Savings 33,169 27,373 5,796 6,429 (633)

Time deposits 78,893 52,791 26,102 16,893 9,209
Total interest bearing deposits 350,985 294,121 56,864 49,639 7,225

Non-interest bearing demand

deposits
Total deposits 350,985 294,121 56,864 49,639 7,225
Short-term borrowings 1,430 1,478 (48) 44 92)
Other medium and

long-term debt 12,560 15,167 (2,607) 415 (3,022)
Total interest bearing

liabilities (excluding demand

deposits) 3649075 310766 54200 50008 4111
Other sources of funds
Total source of funds 364,975 310,766 54,209 50,098 4,111
Net interest margin/

income on a taxable

equivalent basis (Non-

GAAP) 612937 563700 40228 % _ 18245$ 30983
Net interest spread
Taxable equivalent adjustment 40,464 29,689 10,775

Net interest margin/ income

non-taxable equivalent basis

(GAAP) $ 572473 $ _ 534,020 $ 38,453

Note: The changes that are not due solely to volume or rate are allocated to volume and rate based on the proportion of the change in each category.
[1] Average balances exclude unrealized gains or losses on debt securities available-for-sale and the unrealized loss related to certain securities transferred from

available-for-sale to held-to-maturity.

2] Includes interest bearing demand deposits corresponding to certain government entities in Puerto Rico.

141



Net interest income for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 was $1.7 billion, or $94.2 million higher than the same period

B023. Taxable equivalent net interest income was $1.8 billion, an increase of $124.8 million when compared to the same period in

2023. Net interest margin was 3.20%, an increase of six basis points when compared to 3.14% for the nine months ended
September 30, 2023. The increase in netinterest margin was mainly driven by a higher yield on earning assets due toa higher
interest rate environment. Net interest margin, on a taxable equivalent basis, for the nine months ended September 30, 2024,

Wa3%, an increase of 12 basis points when compared to the 3.32% for the same period of 2023. The drivers of the variances in net

interest income for the nine-month period are:

Positive variances:

e higherinterest income from investment securities by $156.8 million resulting from higher yield of the portfolio by 62 basis
points driven by the re-investment of maturities and deployment of liquidity to higher yield short-term Treasury bills, for which
interest is tax exempt in Puerto Rico;

e higher interest income from loans by $249.5 million reflecting higher interest income from commercial loans by $122.9 million
due to higher yield by 37 basis points related to higher rates in adjustable-rate loans and higher volume of $1.5 billion,
increasing in BPPR and PB, and higher volume and yield across the rest of the portfolios as shown in Table 4; and

partially offset by:

e higherinterest expense from deposits by $289.6 million mainly due to the increase ininterest rates that hasresulted ina
higher cost in most deposit categories in both BPPR and PB; but particularly from P.R Government deposits that are market-
linked and PB online deposits.
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Table 4 - Analysis of Levels & Yields on a Taxable Equivalent Basis from Continuing Operations (Non-GAAP)

Period ended September 30,

Variance
Average Volume Average Yields / Costs Interest Attributable to
2024 2023 Variance 2024 2023 Variance 2024 2023 Variance Rate Volume
(In millions) (In thousands)
$ 6,664% 6,966 $  (302) 547 % 5.10 % 0.37 % Money market investments $ 272,893 $ 265,785 $ 7,108 $ 18,902 $  (11,794)
28,271 28,205 66 2.88 2.18 0.70 Investment securities [1] 610,341 460,641 149,700 148,136 1,564
30 32 (2) 5.02 4.52 0.50 Trading securities 1,114 1,084 30 117 (87)
Total money market,
investment and trading
34,965 35,203 (238) 3.38 2.76 0.62 securities 884,348 727,510 156,838 167,155 (10,317)
Loans:

17,707 16,206 1,501 6.87 6.50 0.37 Commercial 910,241 787,381 122,860 47,469 75,391
1,064 778 286 8.97 8.79 0.18 Construction 71,426 51,178 20,248 1,090 19,158
1,794 1,630 164 6.86 6.31 0.55 Leasing 92,292 77,135 15,157 7,024 8,133
7,818 7,434 384 5.67 5.45 0.22 Mortgage 332,626 303,777 28,849 12,819 16,030
3,209 3,082 127 13.94 13.10 0.84 Consumer 334,818 302,050 32,768 17,783 14,985
3,820 3,603 217 8.86 8.31 0.55 Auto 253,511 223,929 29,582 15,682 13,900

35412 32,733 2,679 1.52 713 0.39 Total loans 1,994,914 1.745.450 249,464 101.867 147,597

$ 70377% 67936% 2441 5.46 % 4.86 % 0.60 % Total earning assets 2,879,262 2,472,960 406,302 269,022 137,280
Interest bearing deposits:
$ 25986 % 24,407$% 1,579 3.62% 293 % 0.69 % NOW and money market [2] $ 704,396 $ 534,567 $ 169,829 $ 137,718 $ 32,111

14,584 14,889 (305) 0.93 0.62 0.31 Savings 101,136 69,262 31,874 30,343 1,531
8,877 7,603 1,274 3.23 2.23 1.00 Time deposits 214,888 126,995 87,893 56,973 30,920

49,447 46,899 2,548 2.76 2.08 0.68 Total interest bearing deposits, 1,020,420 730,824 289,596 225,034 64,562

Non-interest bearing demand
15,075 15,405 (330) deposits
64,522 62,304 2,218 211 1.57 0.54 Total deposits 1,020,420 730,824 289,596 225,034 64,562
89 160 (71) 565 5.02 0.63  Short-term borrowings 3,748 5,987 (2,239) 681 (2,920)
Other medium and
975 1,140 (165) 5.18 5.12 0.06 long-term debt 37,799 43,660 (5.861) 152 (6,013)
Total interest bearing
liabilities (excluding demand
50,511 48,199 2,312 2.81 2.16 0.65 deposits) 1,061,967 780,471 281,496 225,867 55,629
4,791 4,332 459 Other sources of funds
$ 70377$ 67936$ 2441 2.02% 154 % 0.48 % _Total source of funds 1,061,967 780471 281,496 225,867 55,629

Net interest margin/ income
on a taxable equivalent basis

344 % 332% 0.12 % (Non-GAAP) 1,817,295 1,692,489 124,806 $ 43,155 $ 81,651

2.65% 270 %  (0.05)% Net interest spread
Taxable equivalent
adjustment 125,766 95,145 30,621
Net interest margin/ income
non-taxable equivalent basis

3.20% 3.14% 0.06 % (GAAP) $ 1691529 $ 1597344 $ 94,185

Note: The changes that are not due solely to volume or rate are allocated to volume and rate based on the proportion of the change in each category.

[1] Average balances exclude unrealized gains or losses on debt securities available-for-sale and the unrealized loss related to certain securities transferred from
available-for-sale to held-to-maturity.

[2] Includes interest bearing demand deposits corresponding to certain government entities in Puerto Rico.
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Provision for Credit Losses - Loans Held-in-Portfolio and Unfunded
Commitments
For the quarter ended September 30, 2024, the Corporation recorded a provision for credit losses related to loans held-in-portfolio

and unfunded commitments of $72.3 million, an increase of $27.1 million, compared to the same quarter of the previous year.
PRSvision for the loan portfolio increased by $29.3 million. Refer to Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for details of
HBvement of the allowance for credit losses. The drivers of the increase in the provision for loan losses by business segments when
comparing the third quarter of 2024, to the same quarter in 2023 were as
follows:
e Inthe BPPR segment, the provision for credit losses increased by $23.1 million, to $77.1 million. The increase was
maiRbflected within the commercial loan portfolio driven by net charge-offs, instead of net recoveries for the same quarter in
2023, along with changes in credit quality and macroeconomic variables.

e Inthe Popular U.S. segment, a release of $4.4 million was recorded for the quarter ended September 30, 2024 driven by
changes in credit quality, and improvements in credit ratings related to the commercial portfolio. This release was lower
when compared to the same quarter in 2023 for which a release of $10.5 million was recorded mainly driven by the
implementation of a new model for the U.S. commercial real estate portfolio based on more granular regional data.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2024, the Corporation recorded a provision for credit loss related to loans held-in-
portfolio and unfunded commitments of $190.7 million, an increase of $59.9 million, compared to the nine months ended
SepsePbethe provision for the loan portfolio increased by $63.0 million. The drivers of the increase in the provision for loan
Wﬁﬁ%iness segments when comparing the nine months ended September 30, 2024, to the same period in 2023 were as
follows:
e Inthe BPPR segment, the provision for loan losses was of $186.7 million for the nine months ended September 30,
202¢ompared to $127.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023, attributable to higher reserves in the
commercial, auto leases and consumer portfolios due to loan growth, higher losses, and changes in credit quality.
e In the Popular U.S.segment, the provision forloan losseswas anexpense of $2.6 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2024, compared to a release of $1.3 million for the same period in 2023. The higher provision was
gﬁ‘fﬁ@ reduction in reserves during the same period of 2023 due to the implementation of a new model, based on
Brafular regional data, for the U.S. commercial real estate portfolio.

At September 30, 2024, the total allowance for credit losses for loans held-in-portfolio amounted to $744.3 million, compared to
$729.3 million as of December 31, 2023. The ratio of the allowance for credit losses to loans held-in-portfolio was 2.06% at
September 30, 2024, compared to 2.08% at December 31, 2023. Refer to Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, for
additional information on the Corporation’s methodology to estimate its ACL. Refer tothe Credit Risk section of this MD&A for a
detailed analysis of net charge-offs, non-performing assets, the allowance for credit losses and selected loan losses statistics.

Provision for Credit Losses - Investment Securities

The Corporation’s provision for credit losses related to its investment securities held-to-maturity is related to the portfolio of
obligations from the Government of Puerto Rico, states and political subdivisions. At September 30, 2024, the total allowance

9Bdit losses for this portfolio amounted to $5.4 million, compared to $5.8 million at December 31, 2023. Refertoto Note 6
Consolidated Financial Statementsfor additional information on the ACL for this portfolio.

Non-Interest
Income

Non-interest income amounted to $164.1 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2024, compared to $159.5 million for the
same quarter of the previous year. The main factors that contributed to the variance in non-interest income were:

e higher other service fees by $5.3 million mainly due to higher credit and debit card service fees as a result of higher volume of
transactions;

partially offset by:

e lower income from mortgage banking activities by $2.7 million mainly due to a decrease in the fair value of mortgage
Servights (“MSRs”).
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Non-interest income amounted to $494.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, compared to $482.0 million for
Hifne period of the previous year. The main factors that contributed to the variance in non-interest income were:

e higher other service fees by $12.1 million mainly due to an increase in debitand credit cards fees due to higher
trangaiiaBaknd higher income from the sale and administration of investment products; and

e higher service charges on deposit accounts by $3.5 million mainly due to higher fees resulting mainly from non-balance
compensation in commercial deposits;

partially offset by:

e lower mortgage banking activites by $2.4 milion mainly due to a decrease in mortgage servicing fees due to higher
delinquencies in the serviced portfolio.
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Operating Expenses

Operating expenses amounted to $467.3 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2024, an increase of $1.3 million, when
compared with the same quarter of 2023. The variance in operating expenses was driven primarily
by:
e higher technology and software expenses by $15.5 million mainly due to higher IT consulting fees by $5.8 million, higher
software amortization expense by $3.9 million and an increase of $2.9 million from network management
services;
e higher other taxes expense by $9.2 million mainly due the reversal of an accrual of $8.2 million during the third quarter of 2023
related to regulatory examination fees in BPPR;

e higher personnel costs by $8.7 million mainly due to higher salaries by $8.2 million as a result of annual salary revisions and an
increase in headcount;

e higher business promotion expenses by $2.6 million mainly due to higher donations granted during the quarter, higher
advertising costs and higher customer rewards programs expense in our credit card business; and

e lower other real estate owned (OREO) benefitby $2.5 million mainly due to lower gainon sale of mortgage and commercial
properties;

partially offset by:

e agoodwill impairment charge of $23.0 million recorded during the third quarter of 2023 in our U.S.based equipment
|eas§ﬂ%sidiary due to lower forecasted cash flows and an increase in the rate used to discount cash flows;

e lower professional fees by $11.8 million mainly due to a decrease in advisory expenses arising from corporate initiatives;
and

e lower processing and transactional services expenses by $3.6 million mainly due to lower point of service (POS) processing

fees, driven by a lower fee rate and higher incentive rebates in
2024.

Operating expenses amounted to $1.4 billion for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, anincrease of $53.1 million

%}ﬂﬁared with the same period of 2023. Excluding the $6.4 million of interest accrued related to prior period tax withholdings

#9$14.3 million impact of the FDIC Special Assessment, total expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2024

qudmillion, when compared with the same period of 2023. The main drivers of the $32.4 million variance

were:

e higher technology and software expenses by $33.8 million mainly due to higher IT professional fees by $11.2 million, higher
software amortization expense by $9.7 million, an increase of $7.6 million from network management services and an
BIos@aenillion in application processing and hosting services;

e higher personnel costs by $31.3 million mainly due to higher salaries by $15.9 million as a result of annual salary revisions
andan increase in headcount, an increase in restricted shares, commissions and incentive compensation by $9.6 million and
higher payroll taxes and other compensation expenses by $5.3 million;

e higher other taxes expense by $6.2 million mainly due to an increase in municipal license tax and to the impact of the reversal
in 2023 of regulatory examination fees in BPPR, as mentioned above;

e higher promotion expenses by $5.0 million mainly due to higher donations, advertising and sponsorship expenses by $3.0
million and higher customer rewards programs expense in our credit card business by $2.0 million; and

e higher operational losses by $4.6 million due to build up on reserves for operational losses;

partially offset by:

e lower professional fees by $28.7 million mainly due to advisory expenses arising from corporate initiatives including those
related to the Corporation's transformation initiative incurred during the nine months ended September 30, 2023;

and
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e A goodwill impairment charge of $23.0 million recorded during the third quarter of 2023 in our U.S. based equipment
sulesi8iAgy due to lower forecasted cash flows and an increase in the rate used to discount cash flows;

Table 5 - Operating Expenses

Quarters ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,

(In thousands) 2024 2023 _ Variance 2024 2023 Variance
Personnel costs:

Salaries $ 135983 $127,832 $ 8,151 $ 394,001 $ 378,126 $ 15,875

Commissions, incentives and other bonuses 26,350 27,670 (1,320) 95,587 86,025 9,562

Pension, postretirement and medical insurance 16,387 16,985 (598) 50,391 49,871 520

. . X 23136 20.665 247 74.678 69.358 5.320

Total personnel costs 201,856 193,152 8,704 614,657 583,380 31,277
Net occupancy expenses 28,031 28,100 (69) 83,764 81,304 2,460
Equipment expenses 9,349 8,905 444 28,578 26,878 1,700
Other taxes 17,757 8,590 9,167 47,465 41,290 6,175
Professional fees 26,708 38,514 (11,806) 93,370 122,077 (28,707)
Technology and software expenses 88,452 72,930 15,522 247,666 213,843 33,823
Processing and transactional services:

Credit and debit cards 11,761 13,762 (2,001) 37,644 37,896 (252)

Other processing and transactional services 22,559 24,137 (1,578) 69,966 70,713 (747)

T - ; ] 34.32 37.899 3,579 7,610 8,600 999
Communications 5,229 4,220 1,009 14,143 12,483 1,660
Business promotion:

Rewards and customer loyalty programs 16,533 15,988 545 46,995 44,962 2,033

Other business promotion 9,104 7,087 2,017 25,080 22,067 3,013

Total business promotion 25,637 23,075 2,562 72,075 67,029 5,046
Deposit insurance 10,433 8,932 1,501 44,901 24,600 20,301
Other real estate owned (OREO) income (2,674) (5,189) 2,515 (13,745) (10,197) (3,548)
Other operating expenses:

Operational losses 5,769 5,504 265 21,153 16,584 4,569

All other 15.750 17.557 (1.807) 56.140 53,690 2.450

Total other operating expenses 21,519 23,061 (1,542) 77,293 70,274 7,019
Amortization of intangibles 704 795 (91) 2,233 2,385 (152)
Goodwill impairment charge - 23,000 (23,000) - 23,000 (23,000)
Total operating _expenses $ 467,321 $ 465984 $ 1,337 $1420010 $ 1,366,955 $ 53,055

Income Taxes

For the quarter and nine months ended September 30, 2024, the Corporation recorded an income tax expense of $42.5 million

8198.5 million with an effective tax rate (ETR) of 21.5% and 24.1%, respectively, compared to $45.9 million and $135.7 million

WHETR of 25.1% and  23.3% for the respective periods of 2023. The lower income tax expense for the quarter ended September
30, 2024, compared to the same quarter of 2023, is mostly due to the higher exemptincome recorded for the current quarter.

fi nine months ended September 30, 2024, the higher income tax reflects the tax withholding expense recorded during the first
quarter on certain intercompany distributions, amounting to $22.9 million, out of which $16.5 million corresponded to years
2624-and $6.5 million was related to a distribution completed during the period ended March 31, 2024; this negative variance
Wagially offset by the lower income before tax, higher exempt income and other tax credits recorded this year, compared with the
same period of year 2023.

At September 30, 2024, the Corporation had a net deferred tax asset amountingto $916 million, netof a valuation allowance
8151 million. The net deferred tax asset related to the U.S. operations was $250 million, net of a valuation allowance of $379 million.

Refer to Note 30 tothe Consolidated Financial Statements for a reconciliation of the statutory income tax rate to the effective tax
rate and additional information on the income tax expense and deferred tax asset balances.

REPORTABLE SEGMENT RESULTS

The Corporation’s reportable segments for managerial reporting purposes consist of Banco Popular de Puerto Rico and Popular
U.S. A Corporate group has also been defined to support the reportable segments.
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For a description of the Corporation’'s reportable segments, including additional financial information and the underlying
management accounting process, refer to Note 32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Corporate group reported a net income of $0.5 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2024, compared with a net

BICYPY million for the same quarter of the previous year. Forthe nine months ended September 30, 2024, the Corporate
gEpBRed net loss of $21.7 million, compared to a net income of $8.8 million for the same period of the previous year. The negative
variance was mainly attributed to the $22.9 million adjustment to recognize the tax impact associated with prior period

HERFIMBAS%Nd the additional $6.5 million recognized for the tax impact related to intercompany distributions paid during the first
quarter of 2024.

Highlights on the earnings results for the reportable segments are discussed
below:

Banco Popular de Puerto Rico

The Banco Popular de Puerto Rico reportable segment’s net income amounted to $125.8 million for the quarter ended September
30, 2024, compared with net income of $122.7 million for the same quarter of the previous year. The factors that contributed to
{hgiance in the financial results included the following:

e Higher net interest income by $34.1 million mainly due
to:
e higher interest income from money market and investment securities by $4.9 million due to higher yields driven
by the reinvestment into higher interest rates U.S. Treasury securities;
and

e higher interest income from loans by $53.6 million mainly due to higher average balances across all
portfolios;

partially offset by

e higher interest expense on deposits by $23.9 million mainly due to the higher interest rate environment's

impagt the cost of P.R. Government
deposits.

The net interest margin for the quarter ended September 30, 2024 was 3.41% compared to 3.14% for the same quarter in the
previous year. The increase in net interest margin is driven by the earnings assets mix and the higher yields from investment
securities and loans, particularly commercial and consumer loans, due to the increase in rates; partially offset by higher cost
8Eposits.

e A provision for loan losses of $77.1 million, compared to a provision of $54.2 million in quarter ended September 30,
2023, higher by $22.9 million mainly in the commercial portfolio due to net charge offs as compared to net recoveries in
2023, and changes in credit quality in the commercial portfolio;

e Non-interest income was higher by $4.4 million mainly due to:

e higher other service fees by $4.3 million due to higher interchange income from debit and credit card as result
of higher volume of transactions and higher ancillary fees;

partially offset by

e lowerincome from mortgage banking activities by $2.6 million mainly due to an unfavorable variance of $2.0
million in the fair value adjustment of mortgage service rights;

e  Higher operating expenses by $20.6 million mostly due
to:
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e higher technology and software expenses by $9.9 million mainly due to higher IT professional fees, higher

amortization of software costs and higher network management
fees;

e higher other operating taxes by $9.4 million due to the accrual reversal in the quarter ended September 30,2023
related to regulatory examination fees in BPPR by $8.2 million;

e higher personnel costs by $4.0 million driven by annual salary revisions, and an increase in headcount;

e lower net recoveries from OREO by $2.5 million mainly due to lower gain on sale of mortgage and commercial
properties; and

partially offset by

e lower processing and transactional services by $3.5 million mainly due to a lower point of service (‘POS”)

processing fees, driven by a lower fee rate and higher incentive rebates in 2024;
and

e lower professional fees of $6.1 million mainly due to lower consulting fees related to corporate
initiatives;

e Lower income tax expense by $10.8 million is mainly due to higher net exempt income.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2024, the BPPR segment recorded net income of $404.3 million compared to a net
income of $387.4 million for the same period of the previous year. The factors that contributed to the variance in the financial results
included the following:

e Higher net interest income by $92.8 million mainly due
to:

e higher interest income from money market and investment securities by $77.5 million due to higher yields

drivw the re-investments of maturities and deployment of liquidity to higher yield U.S. Treasury securities;
and

e higherinterest income from loans by $183.0 million mainly due to higher average balances from commercial
and consumer loans,

partially offset by

e higherinterest expense on deposits by $166.9 million mainly due to higher costs on the market-linked Puerto
Rico government deposits.

The net interest margin for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 was 3.38% compared to 3.24% for the same period in the
previous year. The increase in net interest margin is driven by the earnings assets mix and the higher yields from investment
securities and loans, due to the increase in rates; partially offset by higher cost of deposits.

e An unfavorable variance of $58.8 million on the provision for loan losses mainly attributable to higher reserves in the
commercial, auto leases and consumer portfolios due to loan growth, higher losses, and changes in credit quality;

e Non-interest income was higher by $11.1 million mainly due
to:

e higher other service fees by $9.4 million mainly due to higher debit and credit card fees by $5.0 million as result
of higher volume of customer transactions; and

e higher service charges on deposit accounts by $3.6 million mainly due to higher fees from non- balance
compensation in commercial deposits;

partially offset by
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e lowerincome from mortgage banking activities by $2.3 million mainly due to an unfavorable variance of $2.0
million in the fair value adjustment of mortgage service rights.

e Higher operating expenses by $53.6 million mostly due
to:
e higher personnel costs by $19.3 million driven by annual salary revisions, an increase in headcount, an
increase in restricted shares, higher commissions and incentive compensation, and an increase in payroll
taxes;
e higher technology and software expenses by $19.0 million mainly due to higher amortization of software,
h'ghqfconsulting fees, higher network management fees and higher application and hosting
services;
e higher FDIC deposit insurance expense by $15.1 million due to $12.7 milion on FDIC Special Assessment

recorded in the first quarter of
2024;

e higher other operating expenses by $6.5 million mostly due to higher charges from the Corporate segment
group;

e higher other operating taxes by $5.7 million due to reversal in the nine-month period ended September 30,2023
related to regulatory examination fees in BPPR by $8.2 million;

e higher business promotions by $4.0 million due to higher donations, advertising and sponsorship expenses, and
higher customer rewards expense in credit card business;

partially offset by

o lower professional fees of $17.5 million mainly due to lower advisory costs associated with several initiatives
including the Corporations transformation initiatives;

e higher net recoveries from OREO by $3.6 million mainly due to an increasein gain on sale of mortgage and
commercial properties;

e Lowerincome tax expense of $28.2 million is mainly dueto higher net exemptincome and higher tax credit recorded
during this period.

Popular U.S.

For the quarter ended September 30, 2024, the reportable segment of Popular U.S. reported a net income of $28.8 million,
compared with a net income of $11.0 million for the same quarter of the previous year. The factors that contributed to the variance
tRe financial results included the following:

e Higher net interest income by $5.7 million due to:

e higherinterest income from loans by $14.3 million, mainly from growthin the commercial portfolio as well as

higher yields due to higher interest rates;
and

e higher interest income from money market and investment securities by $17.9 million due to higher yields,
mainly in money markets;

partially offset by:
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e higherinterest expense on deposits by $27.3 million mainly due to higherinterest rates and higher average
balances.

The net interest margin for the quarter ended September 30, 2024 was 2.73% compared to 2.90% for the same quarterin the
previous year driven by the higher cost of deposits.

e Anunfavorable variance of $6.1 million on the provision for loan losses reflecting a release of the reserve for credit losses
of $4.4 million for the third quarter of 2024 compared to a release of $10.5 million recorded in the quarter ended

September 30,
2023;

e A favorable variance of $5.5 million in the reserve for unfunded commitments, mainly related to the construction portfolio;

e  Lower operating expenses by $18.9 million mostly due to:
e the goodwill impairment charge related to our U.S. based leasing subsidiary of $23.0 million recorded in the

third quarter of 2023, due to lower forecasted cash flows and anincrease inthe rate used to discount cash
flows;

partially offset by
e higher personnel costs and technology and software expenses by $3.6 million;
e Higher income tax expense by $7.1 million is related to higher income before tax.
For the nine months ended September 30, 2024, the reportable segment of Popular U.S. recorded a netincome of $53.6
%W%red with a net income of $51.3 million for the same period of the previous year. The factors that contributed to the variance
e financial results included the following:

e Lower netinterest income by $1.2 million due to:

e higherinterest expense on deposits by $114.6 million mainly dueto higher interest rates and higher average
balance;

partially offset by

e higherinterest income from loans by $61.0 million, mainly from growthin the commercial portfolio as well as

higher yields due to higher rates;
and

e higher interestincome from money market and investment securities by $49.6 million due to higher yields
andhigher average balance.

The net interest margin for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 was 2.64% compared to 3.08% for the same quarter in the
previous year.

e Anunfavorable variance of $3.8 million on the provision for loan losses reflecting a release mainly due to the reduction in
reserves in 2023 due to the implementation of a new model, based on more granular regional performance, for the U.S.
commercial real estate portfolio;

e A favorable variance of $5.4 million in the reserve for unfunded commitments, mainly related to the construction portfolio;

e  Lower operating expenses by $8.0 million mostly due to:

e the goodwill impairment charge related to our U.S. based leasing subsidiary of $23.0 million recorded in
2023ye to lower forecasted cash flows and an increase in the rate used to discount cash flows;
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e lower professional fees of $4.0 million mainly due to lower costs associated with corporate initiatives and lower
legal fees;

partially offset by:
e higher personnel costs by $2.1 million driven by higher annual salary revisions and increase in headcount;

e higher technology and software expenses by $5.5 million mainly due to higher network management fees,
higher amortization of software costs and higher IT consulting fees;

e higher other operating expense by $5.7 million mainly due to higher charges allocated from the Corporate
segment group; and

e higher FDIC deposit insurance expense by $5.3 million mostly due to FDIC Special Assessment;
e Higher income tax expense by $7.7 million due to a higher net income before income tax.

FINANCIAL CONDITION ANALYSIS

Assets
The Corporation’s total assets were $71.3 billion at September 30, 2024, compared to $70.8 billion at December 31, 2023. Refer
tRe Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition included in this report for additional information.

Money market investments decreased by $468.1 million as of September 30, 2024, when compared to December 31, 2023,

g?‘f@ﬁ/er deposits and loan growth. Debt securities available-for-sale increased $457.1 million, mainly due to reinvestment of U.S.
Treasury Securities and the decrease in the unrealized losses of AFS securities of $329.0 million. Debt securities held-to-maturity
decreased by $328.7 million driven by maturities and paydowns, partially offset by the accretion of $133.8 million of the discount
related to U.S. Treasury securities previously reclassified from the AFS to HTM. Refer to Note 5 and to Note 6 to the
FanpRisiatetatements for additional information with respect to the Corporation's debt securities available-for-sale and held-to-
maturity.
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Loans
Refer to Table 6 for a breakdown of the Corporation’s loan portfolio. Also, refer to Note 7 in the Consolidated Financial
RIPRMERE information about the Corporation’s loan portfolio composition and loan purchases and sales.

Loans held-in-portfolio increased by $1.1 billion to $36.2 billion as of September 30, 2024, compared to December 31, 2023.
BrPR portfolio increased by $1.2 billion, driven by the growth in the commercial, mortgage and auto loan portfolios, and the PB loan
portfolio decreased by $0.1 billion, due in part by commercial loans payoffs, offset by growth in the construction loan

portfolio.

The Corporation’s $5.2 billion non-owner occupied commercial real estate portfolio is comprised of $3.2 billionin BPPR and $2.0
billion in Popular U.S. and is well diversified across a number of tenants in different industries and segments with exposure to

(Q@% of non-owner occupied CRE), hotels (19%) and office space (14%) accounting for two thirds of the total exposure. The
approximate $708 million office space exposure represents only 2.0% of the total loan portfolio and is comprised mainly of mid-rise
properties with diversified tenants with average loan size of $2 million across both BPPR and Popular

U.S.

Popular's $2.4 billion commercial multi-family portfolio represents approximately 7% of total loans and is concentrated in New York
Metro ($1.5 billion), South Florida ($698 million) and Puerto Rico ($192 million). In the New York Metro region, the Corporation has

no exposure to rent controlled buildings. The rent stabilized units represent less than 40% of the total units in the loan portfolio with

the majority originated after
2019.
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Table 6 - Loans Ending Balances

December 31, 2023

(In thousands) September 30, 2024 Variance
Loans held-in-portfolio:
Commercial
Commercial multi-family 2,405,302 $ 2,415,620 $  (10,318)
Commercial real estate non-owner occupied 5,185,381 5,087,421 97,960
Commercial real estate owner occupied 3,092,393 3,080,635 11,758
Commercial and industrial 7,400,553 7,126,121 274,432
Total Commercial 18,083,629 17,709,797 373,832
Construction 1,113,307 959,280 154,027
Leasing 1,887,052 1,731,809 155,243
Mortgage 7,993,348 7,695,917 297,431
Consumer
Credit cards 1,186,893 1,135,747 51,146
Home equity lines of credit 69,691 65,953 3,738
Personal 1,873,175 1,945,247 (72,072)
Auto 3,818,607 3,660,780 157,827
Other 169,265 160,441 8,824
Total Consumer 7117631 6.968.168 149,463
Total loans held-in -portfolio 36,194,967 $ 35064971 $ 1,129996
Loans held-for-sale:
Mortgage 5509 $ 4301 $ 1,208
Total loans held-for-sale 5509 $ 4301 $ 1.208
Total loans 36,200,476 $ 35,069,272 $ 1,131,204
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Other assets

Other assets amounted to $1.8 billion at September 30, 2024, compared to $2.0 billion at December 31, 2023. The decrease
Bther assets was driven by unsettled trade receivables related to proceeds from maturities of U.S. Treasury securities and interest
payments from the fourth quarter of 2023 which were received inthe first quarter of 2024. Referto Note 12 to the
Epnseisietigiements fora breakdown of the principal categories that comprise the caption of “Other Assets” inthe Consolidated
Statements of Financial Condition at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

Liabilities

The Corporation’s total liabilities were $65.5 billion at September 30, 2024, a decrease of $78.6 million, when compared to
December 31, 2023. The following is a discussion of the significant changes in

liabilities.

Deposits and Borrowings

The composition of the Corporation’s financing to total assets at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 is included in Table

7.

Table 7 - Financing to Total Assets

September 30,  December 31, % increase (decrease) % of total assets
(In millions) 2024 2023 from 2023 to 2024 2024 2023
Non-interest bearing core deposits $ 15,276 $ 15,420 (0.9)% 214 % 21.8 %
Interest-bearing core deposits 43,346 43,571 (0.5) 60.8 61.6
Interest-bearing other deposits 5,047 4,627 9.1 7.1 6.5
Repurchase agreements 55 91 (39.6) 0.1 0.1
Notes payable 919 987 (6.9) 1.3 1.4
Other liabilities 890 915 .7) 1.2 1.3
Stockholders’ equity 5,790 5,147 12,5 8.1 7.3

Total Deposits

The Corporation’s deposits totaled $63.7 billion as of September 30, 2024, compared to $63.6 billion as of December 31, 2023.
arease in the P.R. public sector, as well as an increase in interest-bearing deposits, were the main drivers of the $0.1 billion
increase during the period.

Excluding P.R. public deposits, as of September 30, 2024, deposits amounted to $45.0 billion, compared to $45.6 billion as of
December 31, 2023. This $0.6 billion decrease includes a reduction of approximately $0.9 billion in low-cost interest-bearing
deposits, partially offset by a $0.5 billion increase in higher cost interest-bearing deposits, mainly related to time deposits in Popular

Bank.

In BPPR, deposit balances, excluding P.R public funds, have been impacted during 2023 and 2024 by outflows driven by changes
in client behavior, mainly by commercial and affluent retail clients seeking products that provide for high rates inthe current rate
environment, along with significant spending and use of balances including the retail client base, which had experienced an increase

in average deposit balances during the pandemic driven by federal incentives. Notwithstanding this decrease, average retail deposit
balances at BPPR are still higher than pre-pandemic levels.

As of September 30, 2024, the Puerto Rico public sector deposits amounted to $18.7 billion, compared to $18.1 billion as of
December 31,

2023.

Approximately 29% of the Corporation’s deposits as of September 30, 2024 are funds deposited by the Government of Puerto

m&ﬁicipalities and government instrumentalities and corporations. P.R public sector deposit costs are indexed to changes in

fitmarket rates with a one-quarter lag, in accordance with contractual terms. During the second quarter of 2024, approximately

$800 million of low-cost government-related accounts managed by our fiduciary services group were repriced to market-linked
rates.
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Fluctuations of public sector deposit balances are uncertain and difficult to predict. Factors that could impact these balances include,

but are not limited to, the receipt of funds by the Puerto Rico Government from federal disaster funding assistance (i.e. hurricane

Pandemic related funds) and other events such as seasonal tax collections, actions resulting from changes in the financial condition,

liquidity and cash management practices of the Puerto Rico Governmentand its instrumentalities, and/or the implementation of
fiscal and debt adjustment plans approved pursuant to PROMESA or other actions mandated by the Fiscal Oversight and
Management Board for Puerto Rico (the “Oversight Board”). These deposits require that the bank pledge high credit quality
securities as collateral; therefore, liquidity risks arising from deposit outflows are lower.

The volume and cost of public deposits at BPPR and the proportion of high-cost deposits in the U.S, directly impact the balance
a0 of earning assets and therefore represent a key factor in the Corporation’s ability to expand its net interest margin.

Refer to Table 8 for a breakdown of the Corporation’s deposits at September 30, 2024 and December 31,
2023.
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Table 8 - Deposits Ending Balances

(In thousands) September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023 Variance

Deposits excluding P.R. government deposits:

Demand deposits 1 $ 15,276,071 $ 15,419,624 $ (143,553)
Savings, NOW and money market deposits (non-brokered) 20,584,328 21,541,261 (956,933)
Savings, NOW and money market deposits (brokered) 735,231 719,453 15,778
Time deposits (non-brokered) 7,363,477 6,914,035 449,442
Time deposits (brokered CDs) 993,522 955,754 37,768
Sub-total deposits excluding P.R. _government deposits 44,952,629 45,550,127 (597.498)
P.R. government deposits:
Demand deposits 11,088,511 12,159,430 (1,070,919)
Savings, NOW and money market deposits (non-brokered) 6,903,370 5,276,583 1,626,787
__Time deposits (non-brokered) 723,991 632,103 91,888
Sub-total P.R. government deposits 18,715,872 18,068,116 647,756
Total deposits $ 63,668,501 $ 63,618,243 $ 50,258

[1] Includes interest and non-interest bearing demand deposits.

Borrowings

The Corporation’s borrowings totaled $1.0 billion at September 30, 2024 compared to $1.1 billion at December 31, 2023. The
decrease was mainly due to lower assets sold under agreements to repurchase and lower advances from the FHLB. Refer to Note

15to the Consolidated Financial Statements for detailed information on the Corporation’s borrowings. Also, referto the

Li4igitin this MD&A for additional information on the Corporation’s funding sources.

Refer to the Liquidity section in this MD&A for additional information on the Corporation’s funding sources.
Stockholders’ Equity

Stockholders’ equity totaled $5.8 billion at September 30, 2024, anincrease of $643.6 million when compared to December

3d23, principally due to net income for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 of $436.4 million, coupled with the change in

H®umulated other comprehensive loss driven by the decrease in net unrealized losses in the portfolio of AFS securities of $272.0
million and the amortization of unrealized losses from securities previously reclassified to HTM of $107.0 million, net of taxes,
partially offset by common and preferred dividends declared during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 of $135.4 million

and by an increase in Treasury Stock due to the repurchases of 599,096 shares of common stock for $58.8 million during the

Em%ﬁter of 2024 as part of the previously announced $500 million share repurchase authorization. Refer to the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Condition, Comprehensive Income and of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for information on the
composition of stockholders’ equity.
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CAPITAL
Regulatory Capital

The Corporation, BPPR and PB are subject to regulatory capital requirements established by the Federal Reserve Board. The risk-

based capital standards applicable to the Corporation, BPPR and PB (“Basel Ill capital rules”) are based on the final capital
framework for strengthening international capital standards, known as Basel Ill, of the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision.
66September 30, 2024, the Corporation’s, BPPR’s and PB's capital ratios continue to exceed the minimum requirements for being
“well-capitalized” under the Basel Il capital rules.

The risk-based capital ratios presented in Table 9, which include common equity tier 1, Tier 1 capital, total capital and leverage

capital as of September 30, 2024 and December 31,
2023.

Table 9 - Capital Adequacy Data

(Dollars in thousands) September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023

Common equity tier 1 capital:
Common stockholders equity - GAAP basis $ 5,768,371 $ 5,124,810
CECL transitional amount 1 42,376 84,751
AOCI related adjustments due to opt-out election 1,445,226 1,831,003
Goodwill, net of associated deferred tax liability (DTL) (661,318) (666,538)
Intangible assets, net of associated DTLs (7,531) (9,764)
Deferred tax assets and other deductions (291,963) (310,947)

Common equity tier 1 capital $ 6,295,161 $ 6,053,315

Additional tier 1 capital:

Preferred stock 22,143 22,143
Additional tier 1 capital $ 22,143 $ 22,143
Tier 1 capital $ 6,317,304 $ 6,075,458
Tier 2 capital:

Trust preferred securities subject to phase in as tier 2 192,674 192,674

Other inclusions (deductions), net 481,462 465,833
Tier 2 capital $ 674,136 $ 658,507
Total risk-based capital $ 6,991,440 $ 6,733,965
Minimum total capital requirement to be well capitalized $ 3,833,094 $ 3,714,633
Excess total capital over minimum well capitalized $ 3,158,346 $ 3,019,332
Total risk-weighted _assets $ 38,330,941 $ 37,146,330
Total assets for leverage ratio $ 72,835,384 $ 71,353,184
Risk-based capital ratios:

Common equity tier 1 capital 16.42 % 16.30 %

Tier 1 capital 16.48 16.36

Total capital 18.24 18.13

Tier 1 leverage 8.67 8.51
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The Basel Il capital rules provide that a depository institution is deemed to be well capitalized if it maintains a leverage ratio of

flast 5%, a common equity Tier 1 ratio of atleast6.5%, a Tier 1 capital ratio of at least 8% and a total risk-based ratio of at least
10%. The Corporation, BPPR and PB leverage ratio, common equity Tier 1 ratio and Tier 1 capital ratio, respectively as of
September 30, 2024, continue to exceed the minimum requirements for being “well-capitalized” under the Basel Ill capital rules.

Pursuant to the adoption of the CECL accounting standard on January 1, 2020, the Corporation elected to use the five-year
transition period option as provided in the final interim regulatory capital rules effective March 31, 2020. The five-year transition
period provision delayed for two years the estimated impact of CECL on regulatory capital, followed by a three-year transition

R?Hﬁﬂse out the aggregate amount of the capital benefit provided during the initial two-year delay. As of September 30, 2024,
®6rporation had phased-in 75% of the cumulative CECL deferral with the remaining impact to be recognized over the remainder of

the three-year transition period.

The increase in the common equity Tier | capital ratio, Tier | capital ratio, and total capital ratio as of September 30, 2024 as
compared to December 31, 2023 was mainly due to the nine months period earnings, partially offset by higher risk weighted assets

driven by the increase inloans held-in-portfolio. The increase in the leverage capital ratio was mainly due to the period earnings,
partially offset by higher average assets.

Reconciliation to Tangible Common Equity and Tangible Assets

Table 10 provides a reconciliation of total stockholders’ equity to tangible common equity and total assets to tangible assets as

S%ptember 30, 2024, and December 31,
2023.
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Table 10 - Reconciliation of Tangible Common Equity and Tangible Assets

(In thousands. except share or per share information) September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
Total stockholders’ equity $ 5,790,514 $ 5,146,953
Less: Preferred stock (22,143) (22,143)
Less: Goodwill (804,428) (804,428)
Less: Other intangibles (7,531) (9,764)
Total tangible common_equity $ 4,956,412 $ 4,310,618
Total assets $ 71,323,074 $ 70,758,155
Less: Goodwill (804,428) (804,428)
Less: Other intangibles (7,531) (9,764)
Total tangible assets $ 70,511,115 $ 69,943,963
Tangible common equity to tangible assets 7.03 % 6.16 %
Common shares outstanding at end of period 71,787,349 72,153,621
Tangible book value per common share $ 69.04 $ 59.74
Quarterly average

Total stockholders’ equity [1] $ 6,460,517 $ 6,072,871
Average unrealized (gains) losses on AFS securities _transferred to HTM 550,971 683,077
Adjusted total stockholder's equity 7.011,488 6,755948
Less: Preferred Stock (22,143) (22,143)
Less: Goodwill (804,427) (804,427)
Less: Other intangible: (7.995) (10.286)
Total tangible common equity $ 6,176,923 $ 5,919,092
Return on average tangible common equity 9.98 % 6.32 %

[1] Average balances exclude unrealized gains or losses on debt securities available-for-sale.
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RISK MANAGEMENT
Market / Interest Rate Risk

The financial results and capital levels of the Corporation are constantly exposed to market, interest rate and liquidity
risks.
Market risk refers to the risk of a reduction in the Corporation’s capital due to changes in the market valuation of its assets and/or

liabilities.

Most of the assets subject to market valuation risk are debt securities classified as available-for-sale. Refer to Notes 5 and 6 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for further information onthe debt securities available-for-sale and held-to-maturity portfolios.

Debt securities classified as available-for-sale and held-for-sale amounted to $17.2 bilion and $7.9 billion, respectively, as of
September 30, 2024. Other assets subject to market risk include loans held-for-sale, which amounted to $6 million, mortgage
servicing rights (“MSRs”) which amounted to $109 million, and securities classified as “trading”, which amounted to $31 million, as of
September 30, 2024.

Interest Rate Risk ("IRR")

The Corporation’s net interest income is subject to various categories of interest rate risk, including repricing, basis, yield curve and

option risks. In managing interest rate risk, management may alter the mix of floating and fixed rate assets and liabilities, change
pricing schedules, adjust maturities through sales and purchases of investment securities, and enter into derivative contracts,
among other alternatives.

Interest rate risk management is an active process that encompasses monitoring loan and deposit flows complemented by
investment and funding activities. Effective management of interest rate risk begins with understanding the dynamic characteristics

of assets and liabilities and determining the appropriate rate risk position given line of business forecasts, management objectives,
market expectations and policy constraints.

Management utilizes various tools to assess IRR, including Net Interest Income (“NII”) simulation modeling, static gap analysis,
gednomic Value of Equity (“EVE"). The three methodologies complement each other and are used jointly in the evaluation of
@Srporation's IRR. NIl simulation modeling is prepared for a five-year period, which in conjunction with the EVE analysis, provides
management a better view of long-term IRR.

Net interest income simulation analysis performed by legal entity and on a consolidated basis is a tool used by the Corporation
Bstimating the potential change in net interestincome resulting from hypothetical changes in interest rates. Sensitivity analysis
Balculated using a simulation model which incorporates actual balance sheet figures detailed by maturity and interest yields or costs.

Management assesses interest rate risk by comparing various NIl simulations under different interest rate scenarios that differ in
direction of interest rate changes, the degree of change and the projected shape of the yield curve. For example, the types of
K¥énarios processed during the quarter include flat rates, implied forwards, and parallel and non-parallel rate shocks.

M3p3ReMAAS analyses to isolate and measure basis and prepayment risk exposures.

The asset and liability management group performs validation procedures on various assumptions used as part of the
8iaWaEes well as validations  of results on a monthly basis. In addition, the model and processes used to assess IRR are subject

to independent validations according to the guidelines established in the Model Governance and Validation
policy.
The Corporation processes NIl simulations under interest rate scenarios in which the yield curve is assumed to rise and decline by

the same magnitude (parallel shifts). The rate scenarios considered in these market risk simulations include instantaneous parallel
changes of -100, -200, +100, and +200 basis points during the succeeding twelve-month period. Simulation analyses are based on
many assumptions, including that the balance sheetremains flat, the relative levels of market interestrates across all yield
pYiMEB and indexes, interest rate spreads, loan prepayments and deposit elasticity. Thus, they should not be relied upon as
indicative of actual results. Further, the estimates do not contemplate actions that management could take to respond to changes

iRterest rates. Additionally, the Corporation is also subject to basis risk in the repricing of its assets and liabilities, including the

Ragied to using different rate indexes for the repricing of assets and liabilities, as well as the effect of pricing lags which may be
contractual or dueto historical differences inthe timing of management responses to changesin the rate environment. By their
nature, these forward-looking computations are only estimates and may be different from what may actually occur in the future. The
following table presents the results of the simulations at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, assuming a static
bakaiGehd parallel changes over flat spot rates over a one-year time horizon:
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Table 11 - Net Interest Income Sensitivity (One Year Projection)

September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023

Change in interest rate

+200 basis points 37,814 1.60 20,822 0.92
+100 basis points 20,577 0.87 11,496 0.51
-100 basis points 10,734 0.46 19,589 0.87
-200 basis points 1,617 0.07 16,971 0.75

As of September 30, 2024, NIl simulations show the Corporation maintains an asset sensitive position that is slightly more
pronounced in the rising rates scenarios and closer to neutral in the declining scenarios as compared to the results as of December

31, 2023. The primary reasons for the variation in sensitivity are changes in balance sheet composition primarily driven by an
increase in short-term U.S Treasury Bills (“T- Bills”) as well as higher loan balances, partially offset by an increase in market-linked

Puerto Rico public sector deposits and a reduction in overnight Fed Funds. These results suggest that fluctuations in the
Corporation’s net interest income sensitivity are primarily driven by changes in the composition of the investment portfolio as well as

the level of loan balances. During the quarter ended on September 30, 2024, the Corporation began to reinvest some of the
proceeds of the maturing portfolio into U.S Treasury Notes with average maturities between 2 to 3 years. Additionally, variations in

liability cost, primarily driven by Puerto Rico public sector deposits that represented $18.7 billion or 29% of deposits as of
September 30, 2024, as well as changesin the composition and mix of deposits, also impact the sensitivity profile. Inthe more
extreme declining rate scenarios, net interest income would be affected as the repricing of short-term assets and variable rate

&@Pﬁly exceeds the benefit in cost reduction of these deposits. In rising rate scenarios, Popular's net interest income is also
impacted by its large proportion of Puerto Rico public sector deposit, however the repricing of assets as they either reset or

[BAS an increase in net interest

income.

The Corporation’s loan and investment portfolios are subject to prepayment risk, which results from the ability of a third-party to

repay debt obligations prior to maturity. Prepayment risk also could have a significant impact on the duration of mortgage-backed
securities and collateralized mortgage obligations since prepayments could shorten (or lower prepayments could extend) the
weighted average life of these portfolios.

Trading

The Corporation engages in trading activities in the ordinary course of business atits subsidiaries, BPPR and Popular Securities.
Popular Securities’ trading activities consist primarily of market-making activities to meet expected customers’ needs related to its

retail brokerage business, and purchases and sales of U.S. Government and government sponsored securities with the objective

Rializing gains from expected short-term price movements. BPPR'’s trading activities consist primarily of holding U.S. Government
sponsored mortgage-backed securities classified as “trading” and hedging the related market risk with “TBA” (to-be-announced)
market transactions. The objective is to derive spread income from the portfolio and not to benefit from short-term market
movements. In addition, BPPR uses forward contracts or TBAsto hedge its securitization pipeline. Risks related to variations in
interest rates and market volatility are hedged with TBAs that have characteristics similar to that of the forecasted security and its
conversion timeline.

At September 30, 2024, the Corporation held trading securities with a fair value of $31 million, representing approximately 0.04%

e Corporation’s total assets, compared with $32 million and 0.05%, respectively, at December 31, 2023. As shown in Table 12,

ihﬁjing portfolio consists principally of mortgage-backed securites and U.S. Treasuries, which at September 30, 2024 were
investment grade securities.
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Table 12 - Trading Portfolio

September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023

Weighted Weighted
(Dollars in thousands) Amount __Average Yield I Amount __Average Yield ]
Mortgage-backed securities $ 22,807 565 % $ 14,373 5.69 %
U.S. Treasury securities 7,685 3.94 16,859 4.29
Collateralized mortgage obligations 132 5.13 98 5.21
Puerto Rico government obligations 58 0.58 71 0.91
Interest-only strips 154 12.00 167 12.00
Other (includes related trading derivatives) 7 6.00 -
Total $ 30,843 524 % $ 31,568 4.96 %

[1] Not on a taxable equivalent basis.

The Corporation’s trading activities are limited by internal policies. For each of the three subsidiaries, the market risk assumed under
trading activities is measured by the 5-day net value-at-risk (“VAR”), with a confidence level of 99%. The VAR measures the
maximum estimated loss that may occur over a 5-day holding period, given a 99% probability.

The Corporation’s trading portfolio had a 5-day VAR of approximately $0.5 million for the last week in September 2024. VAR

[Redels assumptions and estimates thus actual results could differ from the outputs from these models and assumptions. Back-
testing is performed on model results to compare actual results against maximum estimated losses, in order to evaluate model and
assumptions accuracy.

In the opinion of management, the size and composition of the trading portfolio does not represent a significant source of market risk
for the Corporation.

Liquidity Sources and Risk

The objective of effective liquidity management is to ensure that the Corporation has sufficient liquidity to meet all its financial
obligations, finance expected future growth, fund planned capital distributions and maintain a reasonable safety margin for cash
needs under both normal and stressed market conditions. The Board of Directors is responsible for establishing the Corporation’s
tolerance for liquidity risk, including approving relevant risk limits and policies. The Board of Directors has delegated the monitoring

of these risks to the Board’s Risk Management Committee and the Asset/Liability Management Committee.

An institution’s liquidity may be pressured if, for example, it experiences asudden and unexpected substantial cash outflow due
deposit outflows, whether due to a loss of confidence by depositors, or other reasons, including exogenous events such as the
COVID-19 pandemic, a downgrading of its credit rating, or some other event that causes counterparties to avoid exposure to the
institution. Factors that the Corporation does not control, such asthe economic outlook, adverse ratings ofits principal
H@@@iﬁons of the financial services industry and regulatory changes, could also affect its ability to obtain funding.

The Corporation has adopted policies and limits to monitor the Corporation’s liquidity position and that of its banking

ﬁ%ﬁ!l@iﬁ{iﬂﬁ- contingency funding plans are used to model various stressful events of different magnitudes and affecting different
time horizons that assist management in evaluating the size of the liquidity buffers needed if those stress events occur.
El@weaYRfdels may not predict accurately how the market and customers might reactto every event and are dependenton many
assumptions.

Deposits, including customer deposits, brokered deposits and public funds deposits, continue to be the most significant source of

funds for the Corporation, funding 89% of the Corporation’s total assets at September 30, 2024 and 90% at December 31, 2023.

The ratio of total ending loans to deposits was 57% at September 30, 2024 and 55% at December 31, 2023. In addition to
traditional deposits, the Corporation maintains borrowing arrangements, which amounted to approximately $1.0 billion in outstanding

balances at September 30, 2024 (December 31, 2023 - $1.1 billion). A detailed description of the Corporation’s borrowings,
including their terms, is included in Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Also, the Consolidated Statements of Cash

Flows in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements provide information on the Corporation’s cash inflows and outflows.
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The importance of the Puerto Rico market for the Corporation is an additional risk factor that could affect its financing activities.

{Re case ofa deterioration in the outiook and/or credit ratings of its principal markets and/or due to regulatory changes and fiscal
conditions in Puerto Rico that are outside the control of the Corporation, the credit quality of the Corporation could be adversely
affected and result in higher credit costs. These adverse events could also affect the Corporation’s ability to obtain funding.

To plan for the possibility of such a scenario, management adopted contingency plans to address events that could limit or partially

limit important sources of funds that are usually fully available for use. These plans call for using alternate funding mechanisms,
such as the pledging of certain asset classes and accessing secured credit lines and loan facilities put in place with the FHLB and

the FRB. The Corporationis subjectto positive tangible capital requirementsto utilize secured loan facilities with the FHLB

Halld result in a limitation of borrowing amounts or maturity terms, even if the Corporation exceeds well-capitalized regulatory
capital levels.

The credit ratings of Popular's debt obligations are a relevant factor for liquidity because they impact the Corporation’s ability to
borrow in the capital markets, its cost and access to funding sources. Credit ratings are based on the financial strength, credit
quality and concentrations in the loan portfolio, the level and volatility of earnings, capital adequacy, the quality of management,
geographic concentration in Puerto Rico, the liquidity of the balance sheet, the availability of a significant base of core retail
aBfhmercial deposits, and the Corporation’s ability to access a broad array of wholesale funding sources, among other factors.

Furthermore, various statutory provisions limit the amount of dividends an insured depository institution may pay to its holding
company without regulatory approval. A member bank must obtain the approval of the Federal Reserve Board for any dividend,

the total of all dividends declared by the member bank during the calendar year would exceed the combined net income for that year

and the retained net income for the preceding two years, net of those years’ dividend activity, less any required transfers to surplus

ortoa fund forthe retirement of any preferred stock. In addition, a member bank may not declare or pay a dividend in an amount
greater than its undivided profits as reported in its Report of Condition and Income, unless the member bank has received the
approval of the Federal Reserve Board. A member bank also may not permit any portion of its permanent capital to be withdrawn
unless the withdrawal has been approved by the Federal Reserve Board. The ability of a bank subsidiary to up-stream dividends

& BHC could thus be impacted by its financial performance and capital, including tangible and regulatory capital, thus

Wﬁﬁﬂﬂ@ﬁh@ amount of cash moving upto the BHCs from the banking subsidiaries. This could, inturn, affect the BHCs ability
Heclare dividends on its outstanding common and preferred stock, repurchase its securiies or meet its debt obligations, for
example.

The following sections provide further information on the Corporation’s major funding activities and needs, as well as the risks
involved in these activities.

Primary sources of funding for the Corporation’s banking subsidiaries (BPPR and PB or, collectively, “the banking
fidnsiliariesall, commercial and public sector deposits, brokered deposits, unpledged investment securities, mortgage loan
securitization and, to a lesser extent, loan sales.

Refer to Table 8 in this MD&A section for a breakdown of deposits by major types. Core deposits are generated from a large base

8bnsumer, corporate and public sector customers. Core deposits include certificates of deposit under $250,000, all interest-bearing
transactional deposit accounts, non-interest bearing deposits, and savings deposits. Core deposits exclude brokered deposits and
certificates of deposit over $250,000. Core deposits, excluding P.R. public funds that are fully collateralized, have historically
provided the Corporation with a sizable source of low-cost funds. P.R. public funds, while linked to market interest rates, provide

8table source of funding with attractive earnings spread. Core deposits totaled $60.3 billion, or 95% of total deposits, at

Septonmer compared with $59.0 billion, or 93% of total deposits, at December 31, 2023. Core deposits financed 89% of the

Corporation’s earning assets at September 30, 2024, compared with 88% at December 31,
2023.
In addition, the Corporation maintains borrowing facilities with the FHLB and at the discount window of the Federal Reserve Bank of

New York (the “FRB”) and has a considerable amount of collateral pledged that can be used to raise funds under these facilities.

During the third quarter of 2024 the Corporation had no material incremental use of its available liquidity sources. At September 30,
2024, the Corporation’s available liquidity increased to $ 20.5 billion from $19.5 billion on December 31, 2023. The liquidity

8PHiEQSorporation at September 30, 2024 are presented in Table 13
below:
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Table 13 - Liquidity Sources

September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
(In thousands) BPPR Popular U.S. Total BPPR Popular U.S. Total
Unpledged securities and unused funding
sources:
Money market (excess funds at the
Federal Reserve Bank) $ 4,731,444 $ 1,791,310 $ 6,522,754 $ 5,516,636 $ 1475143 $ 6,991,779
Unpledged securities 3,522,169 659,633 4,181,802 4,212,480 347,791 4,560,271
FHLB borrowing capacity 2,648,539 1,322,807 3,971,346 2,157,685 1,341,329 3,499,014
Discount window of the Federal Reserve
Bank borrowing capacity 3.536.149 2.282.798 5.818.947 2.605.674 1.818.946 4,424,620
Total available liquidity $ 14438301 $ 6,056,548 $ 20494849 $ 14,492 475 $ 4983209 $ 19475684

Refer to Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information of the Corporation’s borrowing facilities
available through its banking subsidiaries.

The principal uses of funds for the banking subsidiaries include loan originations, investment portfolio purchases, loan
HHEFFlﬁi‘iﬁhases, repayment of outstanding obligations (including deposits), advances on certain serviced portfolios and operational
expenses. Also, the banking subsidiaries assume liquidity risk related to collateral posting requirements for certain activities
Raig¥nnection with contractual commitments, recourse provisions, servicing advances, derivatives and credit card licensing
agreements.

The banking subsidiaries maintain sufficient funding capacity to address large increases in funding requirements such as
gaBrRlls. The Corporation has established liquidity guidelines that require the banking subsidiaries to have sufficient liquidity to
cover all short-term borrowings and a portion of deposits.

The Corporation’s ability to compete successfully in the marketplace for deposits, excluding brokered deposits, depends on various
factors, including pricing, service, convenience and financial stability as reflected by operating results and financial condition, credit
ratings (by nationally recognized credit rating agencies), customer confidence, and importantly, FDIC deposit insurance coverage.
Deposits at all of the Corporation’s banking subsidiaries are federally insured (subject to FDIC limits) and this is expected to
tREiIgR@ntial effect of the aforementioned risks.

The distribution by maturity of certificates of deposit with denominations of $250,000 and over at September 30, 2024 is
presentafe that follows:

Table 14 - Distribution by Maturity of Certificates of Deposit of $250,000 and Over

(In thousands)

3 months or less $ 2,175,549
Over 3 to 12 months 908,450
Over 1 year to 3 years 198,615
Over 3 years 178,525
Total $ 3461139

The Corporation had $1.7 billion in brokered deposits at September 30, 2024, which financed approximately 2% of its total
fiS&8kmber 31, 2023 - $1.7 billion and 2%, respectively). In the event that any of the Corporation’s banking subsidiaries’

E%Nél‘oﬂitios fall below those required by a well-capitalized institution or are subject to capital restrictions by the regulators, the
Corporation would be at risk that such banking subsidiary would not be able to raise or maintain brokered deposits and could

88 limitations on the rate paid on deposits, which may hinder the Corporation’s ability to effectively compete in its retail markets
and could affect its deposit raising efforts.

Deposits from the public sector represent an important source of funds for the Corporation. As of September 30, 2024, total Puerto

Rico public sector deposits were $18.7 billion, compared to $18.1 billion at December 31, 2023. These deposits require that
the
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bank pledges high credit quality securities as collateral; therefore, liquidity risks arising from public sector deposit outflows are

@WSK that the bank receives its collateral in return. This, now unpledged, collateral can either be financed via repurchase
agreements or sold for cash. However, timing differences betweenthe time the deposit outflow and whenthe bank receives its
collateral may occur. Additionally, the Corporation uses fixed-rate U.S. Treasury debt securities as collateral that have limited credit

risk, but are nonetheless subject to market value risk based on changes in the interest rate environment. When interest rates
increase, the value of this collateral decreases and could result in the Corporation having to provide additional collateral to cover the

same amount of deposit liabilities. This additional collateral could reduce unpledged securities otherwise available as liquidity
sources to the Corporation.

As of September 30, 2024, management believes that the banking subsidiaries had sufficient current and projected liquidity

fPHIEBS their anticipated cash flow obligations, as well as special needs and off-balance sheet commitments, in the ordinary course

of business. Management also believes that as of September 30, 2024 its banking subsidiaries have sufficient liquidity current and
projected resources to address an event that would stress the Corporation’s liquidity position. Although the banking subsidiaries

have historically been able to replace maturing deposits and advances, no assurance can be given that they would be able to
replace those funds in the future if the Corporation's financial condition or general market conditions were to deteriorate. The
Corporation’s financial flexibility will be severely constrained if the banking subsidiaries are unable to maintain access to funding or

Edequate financing is not available to accommodate future financing needs at acceptable interest rates. The Corporation’s

BapkiBRries have to meet margin requirements on repurchase agreements and other collateralized borrowing facilities that include

certain required levels of cash deposits and qualifying securities. To the extent thatthe value of securities previously pledged
88llateral declines below such required amounts because of market changes, the Corporation is required to deposit additional cash

or securities to meet its margin requirements, thereby adversely affecting its liquidity. Finally, tothe extentthe Corporation relies
more heavily on more expensive funding sources in order to meet its future growth, revenues may not increase in a manner that
't%oportionate to cover these costs. In this case, the Corporation’s profitability would be adversely effected.

The Corporation monitors uninsured deposits under applicable FDIC regulations. Additionally, the Corporation monitors accounts

with balances over $250,000. While the Corporation has a diverse deposit base from retail, commercial, corporate and government

clients, as well as wholesale funding sources such as brokered deposits, it considers balance in excess of $250,000to have a
higher potential liquidity risk. Table 15 reflects the aggregate balance in deposit accounts in excess of $250,000, including
collateralized public funds and deposits outside of the U.S. and its territories. Collateralized public funds, as presented in Table

Ftﬁ)resent public deposit balances from governmental entities in the U.S. and its territories, including Puerto Rico and the United
States Virgin Islands, collateralized based on such jurisdictions’ applicable collateral requirements.

On September 30, 2024, deposits with balances in excess of $250,000, excluding foreign deposits (mainly deposits in the
al'l'ﬁﬁhlslands) intercompany deposits and collateralized public funds, were $9.8 billion or 19% at BPPR and $ 2.7 billion or 23%

Popular U.S., compared to available liquidity sources of $ 14.4 billion at BPPR and $ 6.1 billion at Popular
U.S.
The aggregate balance in deposit accounts under $250,000 and in excess of $250,000, including intercompany deposits.

collateralized public funds and deposits outside of the U.S. and its territories as of September 30, 2024 is presented in the table that
follows:
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Table 15 - Deposits

30-Sep-24
Popular, Inc.
(Dollars in thousands) BPPR % of Total Popular U.S. % of Total (Consolidated) % of Total
Deposits:
Deposits balances under $250,000 [1] $ 23,277,654 44% $ 8,154,480 68 % $ 31,432,134 49 %
Transactional deposits balances over
$250,000 7,777,195 15 % 2,092,906 18 % 9,870,101 16 %
Time deposits balances over $250,000 1,976,234 4% 647,223 5% 2,623,457 4 %
Uninsured foreign deposits 406,713 1% - -% 406,713 1%
Collateralized public funds 19,025,936 36 % 310,160 3% 19,336,096 30 %
Intercompany deposits 237,328 -% 686,292 6 % = -%
Total deposits $ 52,701,060 100 % $ 11,891,061 100 % $ 63,668,501 100 %

[1] Includes the first $250,000 in balances of transactional and time deposit accounts with balances in excess of $250,000.

31-Dec-23
Popular, Inc.
(Dollars in thousands) BPPR % of Total Popular U.S. % of Total (Consolidated) % of Total
Deposits
Deposits balances under $250,000 [1] $ 23,683,475 45% $ 7,760,363 69 % $ 31,443,838 49 %
Transactional deposits balances over
$250,000 8,632,491 16 % 2,230,978 20 % 10,863,469 17 %
Time deposits balances over $250,000 1,926,005 4% 361,315 3% 2,287,320 4%
Uninsured foreign deposits 418,334 1% - -% 418,334 1%
Collateralized public funds 18,313,612 34 % 291,670 3% 18,605,282 29 %
ntercompany deposits 159,163 - % 626.312 6% = %
Total deposits $ 53,133,080 100% $ 11,270,638 100% $ 63,618,243 100 %

[1] Includes the first $250,000 in balances of transactional and time deposit accounts with balances in excess of $250,000.

Bank Holding Companies

The principal sources of funding for the BHCs, which are Popular, Inc. (holding company only) and PNA, include cashon hand,
investment securities, dividends received from banking and non-banking subsidiaries, asset sales, credit facilities available from
affiliate banking subsidiaries and proceeds from potential securities offerings. Dividends from banking and non-banking

aHbsigifEasto various regulatory limits and authorization requirements that are further described below and that may limit the ~ability

of those subsidiaries to act as a source of funding to the BHCs.

The principal uses of these funds include the repayment of debt, and interest payments to holders of senior debt and junior
subordinated deferrable interest (related to trust preferred securities), the payment of dividends to common stockholders,
repurchases of the Corporation’s securities and capitalizing its banking subsidiaries.

On July 24, 2024, the Corporation announced the authorization for a common stock repurchase of up to $500 million. The
Corporation’s planned common stock repurchases may be executed in open market transactions, privately negotiated

BRRKASHABS or any other manner determined by the Corporation. The timing, quantity and price of such repurchases will be

&bjeglous factors, including market conditions, the Corporation’s capital position and financial performance, the capital impact of
strategic initiatives and regulatory and tax considerations. The common stock repurchase program does not require the Corporation

to acquire a specific dollar amount or number of shares and may be modified, suspended or terminated at any time without prior
notice. During the quarter ended September 30, 2024, the Corporation completed the repurchase of 599,096 shares of

SRIBKGBr $58.8 million at an average price of $98.11 per share, under the previously announced $500 million share repurchase
authorization.

The outstanding balance of notes payable at the BHCs amounted to $593 million at September 30, 2024 and $592 million at

December 31,
2023.
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The contractual maturities of the BHCs notes payable at September 30, 2024 are presented in Table

16.

Table 16 - Distribution of BHC's Notes Payable by Contractual Maturity

Year (In thousands)
2028 $ 394,915
Later years 198,366
Total $ 593,281

As of September 30, 2024, the BHCs had cash and money markets investments totaling $689 million and borrowing potential of
$165 million from its secured facility with BPPR. The BHCs' liquidity position continues to be adequate with sufficient cash on
PRRdtments and other sources of liquidity that are expected to be sufficientto meet all interest payments and dividend
RiligRtIRNEseeable future. Additionally, the Corporation’s latest quarterly dividend was $0.62 per share or approximately $45
paligoarter.

The BHCs have in the past borrowed in the corporate debt market primarily to finance their non-banking subsidiaries and refinance
debt obligations. The issuance of corporate debt as a source of funding is likely more costly due to the fact that two out of the three
principal credit rating agencies rate the Corporation below “investment grade”, which affects the Corporation’s cost and ability to
raise funds in the capital markets. Factors that the Corporation does not control, such as the economic outlook, interest rate
volatility, inflation, disruptions in the debt market, among others, could also affect its ability to obtain funding. The Corporation has
an automatic shelf registration statement filed and effective with the Securities and Exchange Commission, which permits the
Corporation to issue an unspecified amount of debt or equity
securities. o

- S
The principal sources of funding for the non-banking subsidiaries include internally generated cash flows from operations, loan
sales, repurchase agreements, capital injections and borrowed funds from their direct parent companies or the holding companies.
The principal uses of funds for the non-banking subsidiaries include repayment of maturing debt, operational expenses and payment
of dividends to the BHCs. The liquidity needs of the non-banking subsidiaries are minimal since most of them are funded internally
from operating cash flows or from intercompany borrowings or capital contributions from their holding companies. During the nine
months ended September 30, 2024, Popular, Inc. made capital contributions of $1.3 million to Popular Impact Fund, its wholly
owned subsidiary.

Dividends

During the nine months ended September 30, 2024, the Corporation declared cash dividends of $1.86 per common share
outstanding ($134.3 million in the aggregate). The dividends for the Corporation’s Series A preferred stock amounted to $1.1 million.

On July 24, 2024, the corporation announced an increase in the Corporation’s quarterly common stock dividend from $0.62 to

§@r7%are, commencing with the dividend payable in the first quarter of 2025, subject to the approval by the Corporation’s Board
Pirectors.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2024, the BHCs received dividends and distributions amounting to $450 million

BRPR, $50 milion from PNA and $23 million from its other non-banking subsidiaries. Dividends from BPPR constitute Popular,
Inc.’s primary source of liquidity. In addition, during the nine months ended September 30, 2024, Popular International Bank

Wﬁolly owned subsidiary of Popular, Inc., received $19.4 million in cash dividends and $2.9 million in stock dividends from its
investment in BHD.

Other Funding Sources and Capital

In addition to cash reserves held at the FRB that totaled $ 6.5 billion at September 30, 2024, the debt securities portfolio provides

afditional source of liquidity, which may be realized through either securities sales, collateralized borrowings or repurchase
agreements. The Corporation’s debt securities portfolio consists primarily of liquid U.S. government debt securities, U.S.
government sponsored agency debt securities, U.S. government sponsored agency mortgage-backed securities, and U.S.
government sponsored agency collateralized mortgage obligations that can be used to raise funds in the repo markets. The
availability of the repurchase agreement would be subject to having sufficient unpledged collateral available at the time the
transactions are consummated, in addition to overall liquidity and risk appetite of the various counterparties. The Corporation’s
unpledged debt securities amounted to $ 4.2 billion at September 30, 2024 and $4.6 billion December 31, 2023 as discussed in
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Table 13. A substantial portion of these debt securities could be used to raise financing in the U.S. money markets or from secured
lending sources, subject to changes in their fair market value and customary adjustments (haircuts).

Additional liquidity may be provided through loan maturities, prepayments and sales. The loan portfolio can also be used to obtain
funding in the capital markets. Mortgage loans and some types of consumer loans, have secondary markets which the Corporation
could use.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Other

Commitments

In the ordinary course of business, the Corporation engages in financial transactions that are not recorded on the balance sheet

ffay be recorded on the balance sheet in amounts that are different than the full contract or notional amount of the transaction. As
Provider of financial services, the Corporation routinely enters into commitments with off-balance sheet risk to meet the financial
needs of its customers. These commitments may include loan commitments and standby letters of credit. These commitments are
subject to the same credit policies and approval process used for on-balance sheet instruments. These instruments involve, to
varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the statement of financial position.
Referto Note 20 tothe Consolidated Financial Statements for information on the Corporation’s commitments to extent credit and
other non-credit commitments.

Other types of off-balance sheet arrangements that the Corporation enters in the ordinary course of business include derivatives,
operating leases and provision of guarantees, indemnifications, and representation and warranties. Refer to Note 27 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on operating leases and to Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for a detailed discussion related to the Corporation’s guarantees, indemnifications, and representation and

WaHREeRNts.

The Corporation monitors its cash requirements, including its contractual obligations and debt commitments.
EDIC Special Assessments

On November 16, 2023, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC") approved a final rule that imposes a special
assessment (the “FDIC Special Assessment”) to recover the losses to the deposit insurance fund resulting from the FDIC's use, in

March 2023, of the systemic risk exception. In connection with this assessment, the Corporation recorded an expense of $71.4
million, $45.3 million net of tax, in the fourth quarter of 2023, representing the full amount of the estimated assessment at that

me. special assessment amount and collection period may change as the estimated loss is periodically adjusted or if the total
amount collected varies. As a result, the Corporation recorded an additional expense of $14.3 million, $9.1 million net of tax, in

8t quarter of 2024, based on the updated loss
estimates.

Securities
The Corporation (not including any of its subsidiaries, “PIHC") is the parent holding company of Popular North America “PNA” and

has other subsidiaries through which it conducts its financial services operations. PNA is an operating, 100% subsidiary of
Fr’f?}?ul%lding Company (“PIHC”) and is the holding company of its wholly-owned subsidiaries: Equity One, Inc. and PB, including
PB’s wholly-owned subsidiaries Popular Equipment Finance, LLC, Popular Insurance Agency, U.S.A., and E-LOAN, Inc.

PNA has issued junior subordinated debentures guaranteed by PIHC (together with PNA, the “obligor group”) purchased by
statutory trusts established by the Corporation. These debentures were purchased by the statutory trust using the proceeds from
trust preferred securities issued to the public (referred to as “capital securities”), together with the proceeds of the related issuances

of common securities of the trusts.

PIHC fully and unconditionally guarantees the junior subordinated debentures issued by PNA. PIHC's obligation to make a
guaranteed payment may be satisfied by direct payment of the required amounts to the holders of the applicable capital securities

BY causing the applicable trust to pay such amounts to such holders. Each guarantee does not apply to any payment of

g&‘ﬁ"fhéti%fb%licable trust except to the extent such trust has funds available for such payments. If PIHC does not make interest
payments on the debentures held by such trust, such trust will not pay distributions on the applicable capital securities and will

Rabe funds available for such payments. PIHC's guarantee of PNA's junior subordinated debentures is unsecured and ranks

subordinate and junior in right of payment to all the PIHC's other liabilities in the same manner as the applicable debentures as
set
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forth in the applicable indentures; and equally with all other guarantees that the PIHC issues. The guarantee constitutes a
gHapagiAent and not of collection, which means that the guaranteed party may sue the guarantorto enforceits rights under the

respective guarantee without suing any other person or

entity.

The principal sources of funding for PIHC and PNA have included dividends received from their banking and non-banking
subsidiaries, asset sales and proceeds from the issuance of debt and equity.

The following summarized financial information presents the financial position of the obligor group, on a combined basis at
September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, and the results of their operations for the nine-month periods ended September 30,

2024 and September 30, 2023. Investmentsin and equity in the earnings from the other subsidiaries and affiliates that are not
members of the obligor group have been excluded.

The summarized financial information of the obligor group in the following tables is presented on a combined basis with
intercompany balances and transactions between entities in the obligor group eliminated. The obligor group's amounts due from,
amounts due to and transactions with subsidiaries and affiliates have been presented in separate line items, if they are material.
H¥dition, related parties transactions are presented separately.
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Table 17 - Summarized Statement of Condition

(In thousands) September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
Assets

Cash and money market investments $ 688,740 $ 388,025
Investment securities 35,710 29,973
Accounts receivables from non-obligor subsidiaries 14,228 14,469
Other loans (net of allowance for credit losses of $9 (2023 - $51)) 25,984 26,906
Investment in equity method investees 5,294 5,265
Other assets 63,807 51,315
Total assets $ 833,763 $ 515,953

Liabilities and Stockholders' equity

Accounts payable to non-obligor subsidiaries $ 11,150 $ 7,023
Notes payable 593,281 592,283
Other liabilities 114,309 114,660
Stockholders' equity (deficit) 115.023 (198.013)
Total liabilities and _stockholders' equity $ 833,763 $ 515,953

Table 18 - Summarized Statement of Operations

For the period ended

(In thousands) September 30, 2024 September 30, 2023
Income:

Dividends from non-obligor subsidiaries $ 473,000 $ 154,000

Interest income from non-obligor subsidiaries and affiliates 8,489 12,280

Earnings (losses) from investments in equity method investees 29 (82)
Other operating income 3,116 2,293

Total income $ 484,634 $ 168,491
Expenses:

Services provided by non-obligor subsidiaries and affiliates (net of
reimbursement by subsidiaries for services provided by parent of

$172,449 (2023 - $161,333)) $ 9654 $ 16,593
Other expenses 30,000 21,625
Income tax expense (benefit) 21,934 (919)
Total expenses $ 61588 $ 37,299
Net income $ 423,046 $ 131,192

[1] As discussed in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the net income for the nine months ended September 30, 2024,
included $22.9 million of expenses, of which $16.5 milion was reflected in income tax expense and $6.4 milion was reflected in other
operating expenses, related to an out-of-period adjustment associated with the Corporation’s U.S. subsidiary’s non-payment of taxes on
certain intercompany distributions to the Bank Holding Company (BHC) in Puerto Rico, a foreign corporation for U.S. tax purposes.

In addition to the dividend income reflected inthe Statement of Operations table above, during the nine months ended
September 30, 2024, the obligor group recorded a $67.4 million of capital distributions from non-obligor subsidiaries
whlehin an accumulated loss position and accordingly were recorded as a reduction to the investments.
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During the nine  months ended September 30, 2024, BPPR declared cash dividends of $450 million to PIHC. As of September

8624, BPPR can declare a dividend of approximately $377 million without prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board due to its
retained income, declared dividend activity and transfers to statutory reserves over the measurement period. Pursuant to the
requirements listed above, PB may not declare or pay a dividend without the prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board and the
New York State Department of Financial Services.

The Corporation’s banking subsidiaries have historically not used unsecured capital market borrowings to finance its operations,
#itefore are less sensitive to the level and changes in the Corporation’s overall credit ratings.

Refer to the Geographic and Government Risk section of this MD&A for some highlights on the status of the Puerto Rico
8RANABYNgoing fiscal crisis.

. ) : ) ; s

The Corporation’s banking subsidiaries currently do not issue unsecured senior debt, as these banking subsidiaries are funded
primarily with deposits and secured borrowings. The banking subsidiaries had $6.6 million in deposits at September 30, 2024
Hlé‘subject to rating triggers.

In addition, certain mortgage servicing and custodial agreements that BPPR has with third parties include rating covenants. In
nt of a credit rating downgrade, the third parties have the right to require the institution to engage a substitute cash custodian
Bcrow deposits and/or increase collateral levels securing the recourse obligations.

As discussed in Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Corporation services residential mortgage loans subject to
credit recourse provisions. Certain contractual agreements require the Corporation to post collateral to secure such recourse
obligations if the institution’s required credit ratings are not maintained. Collateral pledged by the Corporationto secure

BYiR4Réns amounted to approximately $25.7 million at September 30, 2024. The Corporation could be required to post additional
collateral under the agreements. Management expects that it would be able to meet additional collateral requirements if and

Weeied. The requirements to post collateral under certain agreements or the loss of escrow deposits could reduce the Corporation’s
liquidity resources and impact its operating results.

Credit Risk
Geographic and Government Risk

The Corporation is exposed to geographic and government risk. The Corporation’s assets and revenue composition by geographical
area and by business segment reporting are presented in Note 32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

A significant portion of our financial activities and credit exposure is concentrated in the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (“Puerto
Rico”), which has faced severe economic and fiscal challenges in the past and may face additional challenges in the future.

Economic Performance.

Puerto Rico’'s economy suffered a severe and prolonged recession from 2007 to 2017, with real gross national product
E&NBaing approximately 15% during this period. In 2017, Hurricane Maria caused significant damage and destruction across
t8Rind, resulting in further economic contraction. Puerto Rico's economy has been gradually recovering since 2018, in part aided
{Welarge amount of federal disaster relief and recovery assistance funds injected into the Puerto Rico economy in connection
Withicane Maria and other recent natural disasters. This growth was interrupted by the economic shock caused by the COVID-19

pandemic in 2020, but has since resumed, in part aided by additional federal assistance from pandemic-related stimulus
measures.

The latest Puerto Rico Economic Activity Index, published by the Economic Development Bank for Puerto Rico (the “Economic
Activity Index”), reflected a 0.8% year-over-year decline and a 0.1% month-over-month decline in August 2024. The Economic
Activity Index is a coincident indicator of ongoing economic activity but nota direct measurement of real GNP. The Puerto Rico
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Planning Board estimates that Puerto Rico’'s real GNP grew 2.8% during fiscal year 2024 (July 2023-June 2024) and projects 1.4%
real GNP growth for fiscal year 2025 (July 2024-June 2025).

While the Puerto Rico economy has not directly tracked the United States economy in recent years, many of the external factors
that impact the Puerto Rico economy are affected by the policies and performance of the United States economy. These external
factors include the level of interest rates and the rate of inflation. In 2021 and 2022, inflation rose sharply in both the United States

and Puerto Rico as the economy reopened following the COVID-19 pandemic and demand surged beyond what disrupted

8HBRY could meet. After peaking in mid-2022, inflation rates gradually decreased as the Federal Reserve implemented a series
BEnchmark interest rate increases. By September 2024, inflation had largely stabilized, prompting the Federal Reserveto reduce
interest rates for the first time in four years. As of September 2024, the United States Consumer Price Index (published by the

BuPeau of Labor Statistics) reflects a year-over-year increase of 2.4%. Meanwhile, inflation in Puerto Rico, as measured by the
Puerto Rico Consumer Price Index (published by the Department of Labor and Human Resources of Puerto Rico), increased 1.5%

during the 12 months ending in August
2024.

Fiscal Challenges.

As the Puerto Rico economy contracted, the government’s public debt rose rapidly, in part from borrowing to cover deficits to pay
debt service, pension benefits and other government expenditures. By 2016, the Puerto Rico government had over $120 billion
tbmbined debt and unfunded pension liabilities, had lost access to the capital markets, and was in the midst of a fiscal

crisis.

Puerto Rico’s escalating fiscal and economic challenges and imminent widespread defaults in its public debt prompted the
@o%gress to enactthe Puerto Rico Oversight, Management, and Economic Stability Act (“PROMESA") in June 2016.

BREMEFSR “Oversight Board” with ample powers over Puerto Rico’s fiscal and economic affairs and those of its public corporations,
instrumentalities and municipalities (collectively, “PR Government Entities”). Pursuant to PROMESA, the Oversight Board will be
B]ace until market access is restored and balanced budgets are produced for at least four consecutive years. PROMESA also
established two mechanisms for the restructuring of the obligations of PR Government Entities: (a) Title Ill, which provides an
tourt process that incorporates many of the powers and provisions of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code and permits adjustment of a

FHHQE of obligations, and (b) Title VI, which provides for a largely out-of-court process through which modifications to financial
g8Rtbe accepted by a supermajority of creditors and bind holdouts.

Since 2017, Puerto Rico and several of its instrumentalities have availed themselves of the debt restructuring mechanisms of

Titksd VI of PROMESA. The Puerto Rico government emerged from Title Il of PROMESA in March 2022. Several

iRt taBiRsinment Development Bank for Puerto Rico, the Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corporation, the Puerto Rico
Highways and Transportation Authority, and the Puerto Rico Industrial Development Company, have also completed debt
restructurings under Titles Il or VI of PROMESA. While the majority of the debt has already been restructured, some PR
Government Entities still face significant fiscal challenges. For example, the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority is still in the
process of restructuring its debts under Title Il of PROMESA.

Municipalities.

Puerto Rico’s fiscal and economic challenges have also adversely impacted its municipalities. Historically, the central government
provided significant annual subsidies to municipalites based on a statutory formula. However, as part of the fiscal measures
required by the Oversight Board, municipal subsidies have decreased significantly over several years and are now approved
through specific, non-recurring appropriations. This decrease has been partially offset by substantial non-recurring federal disaster

and COVID-relief funding received by municipalities in recent years. The latest Puerto Rico fiscal plan certified by the Oversight
Board provides for the implementation of a restructured grant and transfer system through which the Commonwealth would

é%&‘ﬁ'ic service grantsto municipalities to augment existing municipal service delivery, while also incentivizing performance and
enhanced accountability through the monitoring of outcome metrics.

Municipalities are subject to PROMESA, and the Oversight Board has the authority to require them to submit fiscal plans and annual

budgets for review and approval. The Oversight Board has imposed this requirement for certain municipalities. Municipalities are

also required to seek Oversight Board approval to issue, guarantee or modify their debts and to enter into contracts with an
aggregate value of $10 million or more. With the Oversight Board's approval, municipalities are also eligible to avail themselves of

the debt restructuring processes provided by PROMESA. To date, however, no municipality has been subjectto any such debt
restructuring process.
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Exposure of the Corporation
The credit quality of BPPR'’s loan portfolio reflects, among other things, the general economic conditions in Puerto Rico and
athRirse conditions affecting Puerto Rico consumers and businesses. Deterioration in the Puerto Rico economy has resulted in

Hl%t, and could result in the future, in higher delinquencies, greater charge-offs and increased losses, which could materially affect
our financial condition and results of operations.

At September 30, 2024, the Corporation’s direct exposure to PR Government Entities totaled $336 million, of which $336
Wépé’"outstanding, compared to $362 milion at December 31, 2023, of which $333 million were outstanding. A deterioration in
Puerto Rico’s fiscal and economic situation could adversely affect the value of our Puerto Rico government obligations, resulting in
losses to us. Of the amount outstanding, $323 million consists of loans and $13 million are securities ($314 million and $19 million,
respectively, at December 31, 2023). Substantially all of the Corporation’s direct exposure outstanding at September 30, 2024 were
obligations from various Puerto Rico municipalities. In most cases, these were “general obligations” of a municipality, to which the
applicable municipality has pledged its good faith, credit and unlimited taxing power, or “special obligations” of a municipality, to
which the applicable municipality has pledged basic property tax or sales tax redén8eptember 30, 2024, 80% of the
Corporation’s exposure to municipal loans and securities was concentrated in the municipalities of San Juan, Guaynabo, Carolina
and Caguas. In July 2024, the Corporation received scheduled principal payments amounting to $40 million from various

ABlgaRN%0 Rico municipalities. For additional discussion of the Corporation’s direct exposure to the Puerto Rico government

#8d instrumentalities and municipalities, refer to Note 20 — Commitments and Contingencies to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

In addition, at September 30, 2024, the Corporation had $225 million in loans insured or securities issued by Puerto Rico
governmental entities, but for which the principal source of repayment is non-governmental ($238 million at December 31, 2023).
These included $179 million in residential mortgage loans insured by the Puerto Rico Housing Finance Authority (“HFA"), a PR
Government Entity (December 31, 2023 - $191 million). These mortgage loans are secured by first mortgages on Puerto Rico
residential properties and the HFA insurance covers losses inthe eventof aborrower defaultand upon the satisfaction of certain
other conditions. The Corporation also had at September 30, 2024, $38 million in bonds issued by HFA which are secured by
second mortgage loans on Puerto Rico residential properties, and for which HFA also provides insurance to cover losses in the
event of a borrower default, and upon the satisfaction of certain other conditions (December 31, 2023 - $40 million). In the event

ihélmongage loans insured by HFA and held by the Corporation directly or those serving as collateral for the HFA bonds default and

the collateral is insufficient to satisfy the outstanding balance of these loans, HFA's ability to honor its insurance will depend,

8thengactors, on the financial condition of HFA atthe time such obligations become due and payable. The Corporation does not
consider the government guarantee when estimating the credit losses associated with this portfolio.

BPPR’s commercial loan portfolio also includes loans to private borrowers who are service providers, lessors, suppliers or have
other relationships with the government. These borrowers could be negatively affected by a deterioration in the fiscal and

SRAAGHMNC of PR Government Entities. Similarly, BPPR’s mortgage and consumer loan portfolios include loans to government
employees and retirees, which could also be negatively affected by fiscal measures, such as employee layoffs or furloughs or

reductions in pension benefits, if the fiscal and economic situation

deteriorates.
As of September 30, 2024, BPPR had $18.7 billion in deposits from the Puerto Rico government, its instrumentalities, and

municipalities. The rate at which public deposit balances may decline is uncertain and difficult to predict. The amount and timing of

any such reductionis likely to be impacted by, for example, the speed atwhich federal assistance is distributed and the financial
condition, liquidity and cash management practices of such entities, as well as on the ability of BPPR to maintain these customer
relationships.

United States Virgin Islands

The Corporation has operations in the United States Virgin Islands (the “USVI") and has credit exposure to USVI government
entities.

The USVI has been experiencing a number of fiscal and economic challenges, which could adversely affect the ability of its public
corporations and instrumentalities to service their outstanding debt obligations. PROMESA does not apply to the USVI and, as such,

there is currently no federal legislation permitting the restructuring of the debts of the USVI and its public corporations and
instrumentalities.

To the extent that the fiscal condition of the USVI continues to deteriorate, the U.S. Congress or the Government of the USVI may
enact legislation allowing for the restructuring of the financial obligations of USVI government entities or imposing a stay on creditor

remedies, including by making PROMESA applicable to the
USVI.
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At September 30, 2024, the Corporation had approximately $28 million in direct exposure to USVI government entities (December
31, 2023 - $28 million).

British Virgin Islands

The Corporation has operations in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), which was negatively affected by the COVID-19 pandemic,
particularly as a reduction in the tourism activity which accounts for a significant portion of its economy. Although the Corporation

has no significant exposure to a single borrower in the BVI, at September 30, 2024, it has a loan portfolio amounting to
approximately $200 million comprised of various retail and commercial clients, compared to a loan portfolio of $205 million at

December 31,
2023.

U.S. Government

As further detailed in Notes 5 and 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, a substantial portion of the Corporation’s
wwtrepresented exposure to the U.S. Governmentin the form of U.S. Government sponsored entities, as well as
Adsgage-backed and U.S. Treasury securities. In addition, $2.0 billion of residential mortgages and $88.4 million commercial
{Rersinsured or guaranteed by the U.S. Government orits agencies at September 30, 2024 (compared to $1.9 billion and
#ch, respectively, at December 31, 2023).

Non-Performing Assets

Non-performing assets (“NPAs”) include primarily past-due loans that are no longer accruing interest, renegotiated loans, and real
estate property acquired through foreclosure. A summary, including certain credit quality metrics, is presented in Table

19.

During the third quarter of 2024, the Corporation continued to reflect stable credit quality metrics in the third quarter of 2024
M}ﬁﬁared to the previous quarter. While non-performing loans (“NPLs”), net charge offs (“NCOs”) and inflows to NPLs remained
below historical averages, consumer portfolios reflected increased delinquencies and NCOs for the quarter primarily driven by auto
loans. The mortgage and commercial portfolios continue to operate with low levels of delinquencies and NCOs. The Corporation
continues to closely monitor changes in the macroeconomic environment and borrower performance given higher interest rates and
inflationary pressures. Management believes that the improvements over recent years in risk management practices and the overall

risk profile of the Corporation’s loan portfolios position Popular to continue to operate successfully under the current environment.

Total NPAs asof September 30, 2024 decreased by $14 million when compared with December 31, 2023. Total non-performing
loans held-in-portfolio (“NPLs”) increased by $4 million from December 31, 2023. BPPR’s NPLs decreased by $40 million, across
most loan categories, except consumer NPLs which reflected anincrease of $4 million. The increase in the consumer NPLs was
mostly driven by auto loans. Popular U.S. NPLs increased by $44 million, driven by higher commercial and mortgage NPLs by $27
million and $17 million, respectively, each impacted by single loans amounting to $17 million.

On September 30, 2024, the ratio of NPLs to total loans held-in-portfolio was 1.0%, flat when compared to December 31,

Rér real estate owned loans (“OREOs") decreased by $17 million from December 31, 2023. The decrease in OREO was driven

e sale of a commercial property in BPPR, coupled with the sale of residential properties. On September 30, 2024, NPLs

B9Geadestate amounted to $202 million in the Puerto Rico operations and $67 million in Popular U.S, compared with $231 million

and $24 million, respectively, on December 31,

2023.

The Corporation’s commercial loan portfolio secured by real estate (‘CRE”) amounted to $10.7 billion on September 30, 2024,

@hich $3.1 bilion was secured with owner occupied properties, compared with $10.6 billion and $3.1 billion, respectively, on
December 31, 2023. Office space leasing exposure in our non-owner occupied CRE portfolio is limited, representing only 2.0% or
$708 million of our total loan portfolio. The exposure is mainly comprised of low- to mid- rise properties with an average loan size of

$2.3 million and is well diversified across tenant

type.

CRE NPLs amounted to $67 million on September 30, 2024, compared with $48 million on December 31, 2023, driven by the

giMBlemilion loan mentioned above. The CRE NPL ratios for the BPPR and Popular U.S. segments were 0.70% and 0.57%,

respectively, on September 30, 2024, compared with 0.86% and 0.13%, respectively, on December 31,
2023.
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In addition to the NPLs included in Table 19, on September 30, 2024, there were $587 million of performing loans, mostly
commercial loans, which in management’'s opinion, are currently subject to potential future classification as non-performing
(December 31, 2023 - $510 million).

For the quarter ended September 30, 2024, total inflows of NPLs held-in-portfolio, excluding consumer loans, increased by $16
million, when compared to the inflows for the same period in 2023. Inflows of NPLs held-in-portfolio at the BPPR segment
fRNAB/MHared tothe same period in 2023. Inflows of NPLs held-in-portfolio at the Popular U.S. segment increased by $17

fHiPthe same period in 2023, mainly driven by higher mortgage inflows by $16 million driven by abovementioned $17 million
loan.
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Table 19 - Non-Performing Assets

September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
As a % of As a % of
loans HIP loans HIP
Popular Popular, by Popular Popular, by
(Dollars in thousands) BPPR Us Inc. category BPPR Us. Inc, category
Commercial
Commercial multi-family $ 87 $ 8700 $ 8787 04%$ 1,991 $ -$ 1,90 01%
Commercial real estate non-owner
occupied 7,493 2,282 9,775 0.2 8,745 1,117 9,862 0.2
Commercial real estate owner
occupied 26,600 22,248 48,848 1.6 29,430 6,274 35,704 1.2
Commercial and industrial 19,639 5,246 24,885 0.3 32,826 3,772 36,508 05
Total Commercial 53,819 38,476 92,295 05 72,992 11,163 84,155 05
Construction - - - - 6,378 - 6,378 0.7
Leasing 7,367 - 7,367 0.4 8,632 - 8,632 0.5
Mortgage 157,920 28,434 186,354 23 175,106 11,191 186,297 24
Consumer
Home equity lines of credit - 3,834 3,834 55 - eNiEs) eNiEs) 5.7
Personal 20,992 1,837 22,829 1.2 19,031 2,805 21,836 11
Auto 47,828 - 47,828 13 45,615 - 45,615 12
Other Consumer 889 2 891 0.5 964 1 965 0.6
Total Consumer 69,709 5,673 75,382 1.1 65,610 6.539 72,149 1.0
Total non-performing loans held-in-
portfolio 288,815 72,583 361,398 1.0 % 328,718 28,893 357,611 1.0 %
Other real estate owned (‘OREQ") 62,940 88 63,028 80,176 240 80,416
Total non-performing _assets!! $ 351,755 $ 72671 $ 424426 $ 408894 $ 29,133 $ 438,027
Accruing loans past due 90 days or
morel? $ 233774 $ 197 $ 233971 $ 268,362 $ 109 $ 268471
Ratios:
Non-performing assets to total assets 0.63% 0.46% 0.60% 0.74% 0.19% 0.62%
Non-performing loans held-in-portfolio
to loans held-in-portfolio 1.12 0.69 1.00 1.34 0.27 1.02
Allowance for credit losses to loans
held-in-portfolio 2.59 0.75 2.06 2.61 0.85 2.08

Allowance for credit losses to non-
performing loans, excluding held-for-
sale 230.66 107.66 205.96 194.65 309.70 203.95

[1] There were no non-performing loans held-for-sale as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

[2] It is the Corporation’s policy to report delinquent residential mortgage loans insured by FHA or guaranteed by the VA as accruing loans past due 90

days or more as opposed to non-performing since the principal repayment isinsured. These balances include $70 million of residential mortgage
loans insured by FHA or guaranteed by the VA thatare nolonger accruinginterest as of September 30, 2024 (December 31,2023 - $106 million).
Furthermore, the Corporation has approximately $32 million in reverse mortgage loans which are guaranteed by FHA, but which are currently not
accruing interest. Due to the guaranteed nature of theloans, itis the Corporation’s policy to exclude these balances from non-performing assets
(December 31, 2023 - $38 million).
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Table 20 - Activity in Non -Performing Loans Held-in-Portfolio (Excluding Consumer Loans)

(Dollars in thousands)

For the quarter ended September 30, 2024

For the nine months ended September 30, 2024

Beginning balance

Plus:

Less:

BPPR Popular U.S. _Popular, Inc. BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.

$ 219,960 $ 49317 $ 269277 $ 254,476 $ 22354 $ 276,830

New non-performing loans 36,585 22,968 59,553 111,128 84,248 195,376
Advances on existing non-performing loans - 32 32 - 352 352
Non-performing loans transferred to OREO (4,016) - (4,016) (12,665) (24) (12,689)
Non-performing loans charged-off (4,031) (82) (4,113) (17,930) (1,050) (18,980)
oans returned to accrual status /loan collections (36.759) (5.325) (42.084) (123.270) (38.970) (162,240)
$ 211739 $ 66910 $ 278649 $ 211,739 $ 66910 $ 278,649

Ending balance NPLs

Table 21 - Activity in Non -Performing Loans Held-in-Portfolio (Excluding Consumer Loans)

(Dollars in thousands)

—Eor the quarter ended September 30, 2023

_Eor the nine months ended September 30, 2023

Beginning balance
Plus:
New non-performing loans

Less:

Non-performing loans charged-off

BPPR Popular U.S. _ Popular, Inc. BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
$ 292,219 $ 26,187 $ 318,406 $ 324,562 $ 31,356 $ 355,918
37,393 5,827 43,220 128,011 23,446 151,457
Advances on existing non-performing loans - 12 12 - 155 155
Non-performing loans transferred to OREO (5,657) - (5,657) (25,777) (58) (25,835)
(3,354) (2,446) (5,800) (4,854) (4,837) (9,691)
Loans returned to accrual status / loan collections (54,353) (9,006) (63,359) (155,694) (29,488) (185,182)
$ 266,248 $ 20574 $ 286822 $ 266,248 $ 20574 $ 286,822

Ending balance NPLs

Table 22 - Activity in Non -Performing Commercial Loans Held-in-Portfolio

For the quarter ended September 30, 2024

For the nine months ended September 30, 2024

(Dollars in thousands) BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc. BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Beginning balance 56,170 $ 37,763 $ 93,933 $ 72,992 $ 11,163 $ 84,155
Plus:
New non-performing loans 4,460 2,582 7,042 12,834 39,561 52,395
Advances on existing non-performing loans - 3 3 - 305 305
Less:
Non-performing loans transferred to OREO - - - (280) - (280)
Non-performing loans charged-off (4,085) (82) (4,167) (17,784) (1,032) (18,816)
Loans returned to accrual status / loan
collections (2,726) (1,790) (4,516) (13,943) (11,521) (25,464)
Ending balance NPLs 53819 $ 38476 $ 92,295 $ 53819 $ 38476 $ 92,295
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Table 23 - Activity in Non -Performing Commercial Loans Held-in-Portfolio

_Forthe quarter ended September 30. 2023  _ For the nine months ended September 30, 2023

(Dollars in thousands) BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc. BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Beginning balance $ 88,716 $ 11,610 $ 100,326 $ 82,171 $ 10,868 $ 93,039
Plus:
New non-performing loans 2,736 1,324 4,060 22,533 11,674 34,207
Advances on existing non-performing loans - 7 7 - 35 35
Less:
Non-performing loans transferred to OREO (138) - (138) (446) - (446)
Non-performing loans charged-off (969) (2,446) (3,415) (2,237) (4,837) (7,074)

—Loans returned to accrual status /loan collections  (18.118)  (1.901)  (20019)  (29794)  (9.146)  (38.940)
Ending balance NPLs $ 72,227 $ 8,594 $ 80821 $ 72,227 $ 8594 $ 80,821

Table 24 - Activity in Non -Performing Construction Loans Held-in-Portfolio

For the quarter ended September 30, 2024 For the nine months ended September 30, 2024

(Dollars in thousands) BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc. BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.

Beginning balance $ - % -8 - $ 6,378 $ - $ 6,378
Less:

__Loans returned to accrual status / loan collections - - - (6.378) - (6.378)
Ending balance NPLs $ - % -3 - $ -3 -3 -

Table 25 - Activity in Non -Performing Construction Loans Held-in-Portfolio

__For the quarter ended September 30, 2023  _For the nine months ended September 30, 2023
(Dollarsinthousands) ~ BPPR  PopularUS. Popularinc. ~ BPPR PopularUS. Popular Inc.

Beginning balance $ 9,284 $ - $ 9,284 $ - 8% - % -
Plus:

New non-performing loans - - - 9,284 - 9,284
Less:

Non-performing loans charged-off (2,537) - (2,537) (2,537) - (2,537)

Loans returned to accrual status / loan collection (169) - (169) (169) - (169)
Ending balance NPLs $ 6,578 $ ) 6578 $ 6578 $ -8 6,578

179



Table 26 - Activity in Non -Performing Mortgage Loans Held-in-Portfolio

For the nine months ended ~September 30,

For the guarter ended September 30, 2024 2024
Popular

(Dollars in thousands) BPPR U.sS. Popular, Inc. BPPR Popular U.S. Popular, Inc.
Beginning balance $ 163,790 $ 11,554 $ 175,344 $ 175,106 $ 11,191 $ 186,297
Plus:

New non-performing loans 32,125 20,386 52,511 98,294 44,687 142,981

Advances on existing non-performing loans - 29 29 - 47 47
Less:

Non-performing loans transferred to OREO (4,016) - (4,016) (12,385) (24) (12,409)

Non-performing loans charged-off 54 - 54 (146) (18) (164)

Loans returned to accrual status / loan

collections (34,033) (3,535) (37,568) (102,949) (27,449) (130,398)
Ending balance NPLs $ 157920 $ 28434 $ 186,354 $ 157920 $ 28434 $ 186,354

Table 27 - Activity in Non -Performing Mortgage Loans Held-in-Portfolio

—For the quarter ended September 30,2023~ _For the nine months ended September 30, 2023

Popular

(Dollars in thousands) BPPR Us. Popular, Inc. BPPR Popular U.S Popular, Inc.
Beginning balance $ 194219 $ 14,577 $ 208,796 $ 242,391 $ 20,488 $ 262,879
Plus:

New non-performing loans 34,657 4,503 39,160 96,194 11,772 107,966

Advances on existing non-performing loans - 5 5 - 120 120
Less:

Non-performing loans transferred to OREO (5,519) - (5,519) (25,331) (58) (25,389)

Non-performing loans charged-off 152 - 152 (80) - (80)

—Loans returned to accrual status / loan collections  (36.066)  (7.105)  (43171)  (125731) (20.342) (146.073)
Ending balance NPLs $ 187443 $ 11,980 $ 109423 $ 187,443 $ 11980 $ 199,423
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Loan Delinquencies

Another key measure used to evaluate and monitor the Corporation’s asset quality is loan delinquencies. Loans delinquent 30 days
or more, as a percentage of their related portfolio category on September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, are presented below.

Table 28 - Loan Delinquencies

(Dollars in thousands) September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
Total delinquencies Total delinquencies
Loans delinquent as a percentage  Loans delinquent as a percentage
30 days or more Total loans of total loans 30 days or more Total loans of total loans
Commercial
Commercial multi-family $ 11,713 $ 2,405,302 049% $ 13,657 $ 2,415,620 0.57 %
Commercial real estate
non-owner occupied 23,462 5,185,381 0.45 17,051 5,087,421 0.34
Commercial real estate
owner occupied 54,148 3,092,393 1.75 69,239 3,080,635 2.25
Commercial and industrial 68,820 7,400,553 0.93 58,953 7,126,121 0.83
Total Commercial 158,143 18,083,629 0.87 158,900 17,709,797 0.90
Construction 34,349 1,113,307 3.09 6,378 959,280 0.66
Leasing 31,868 1,887,052 1.69 35,491 1,731,809 2.05
Mortgage 761,771 7,993,348 9.53 859,537 7,695,917 11.17
Consumer
Credit cards 54,839 1,186,893 4.62 46,436 1,135,747 4.09
Home equity lines of credit 4,892 69,691 7.02 5,465 65,953 8.29
Personal 61,434 1,873,175 3.28 59,682 1,945,247 3.07
Auto 178,281 3,818,607 4.67 173,119 3,660,780 4.73
Other 2,935 169,265 1.73 3,063 160,441 191
Total Consumer 302,381 7,117,631 4.25 287,765 6,968,168 4.13
Loans held-for-sale - 5.509 - - 4,301 -
Total $ 1288512 $ 36,200,476 356 % $ 1,348,071 $ 35069272 3.84 %

[1] Loans delinquent 30 days or more includes $0.4 billion of residential mortgage loans insured by FHA or guaranteed by the VA as of September
30, 2024 (December 31, 2023 - $0.5 billion). Refer to Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information of guaranteed loans.

Allowance for Credit Losses Loans Held-in-
Portfolio
The ACL, represents management's estimate of expected credit losses through the remaining contractual life of the different loan

segments, impacted by expected prepayments. The ACL is maintained at a sufficient level to provide for estimated credit losses on
collateral dependent loans as well as loans modified for borrowers with financial difficulties separately from the remainder of the

m'ffolio. The Corporation’'s management evaluates the adequacy of the ACL on a quarterly basis. In this evaluation, management
considers current conditions, macroeconomic economic expectations through a reasonable and supportable period, historical loss
experience, portfolio composition by loan type and risk characteristics, results of periodic credit reviews of individual loans, and
regulatory requirements, amongst other factors.

The Corporation must rely on estimates and exercise judgment regarding matters where the ultimate outcome is unknown, such
@8onomic developments affecting specific customers, industries, or markets. Other factors that can affect management's estimates

are recalibration of statistical models used to calculate lifetime expected losses, changes in underwriting standards, financial
accounting standards and loan impairment measurements, among others. Changes in the financial condition of individual borrowers,

in economic conditions, and in the condition of the various markets in which collateral may be sold, may also affect the required
level of the allowance for credit losses. Consequently, the business financial condition, liquidity, capital, and results of operations
could also be affected.
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On September 30, 2024, the ACL increased by $15 million from December 31, 2023 to $744 million. The ACL for BPPR

BFreg8edmillion, driven by an increase of $16 million in reserves for commercial loans and a combined $12 million increase in
reserves for the consumer and lease portfolios. These increases were mainly due to acombination of growthin the commercial
portfolio and changes in credit quality trends for the auto and credit cards portfolios. In PB, the ACL decreased by $11 million, when
compared to December 31, 2023, mainly driven by lower reserves for the commercial and construction portfolios due to
improvements in credit quality and lower balances. The Corporation’s ratio of the allowance for credit losses to loans held-in-
portfolio was 2.06% on September 30, 2024, compared to 2.08% on December 31, 2023. The ratio of the allowance for credit

1858¢% s held-in-portfolio stood at 206.0%, compared to 204.0% on December 31,

2023.

Given that any one economic outlook is inherently uncertain, the Corporation leverages multiple scenarios to estimate its ACL. The

baseline scenario continues to be assigned the highest probability, followed by the pessimistic scenario. The weight assigned to the
pessimistic scenario decreased during the first quarter of 2024 in response to the positive momentum in the economy as
expectations for the Federal Reserve achieving a soft landing have improved. The Corporation evaluates, atleast onan annual
basis, the assumptions tied to the CECL accounting framework. These include the reasonable and supportable period as well as the

reversion window.

The provision for credit losses related to the loans held-in-portfolio for the quarter ended September 30, 2024, was $72.8 million,
compared to $43.5 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2023, largely driven by higher NCOs due to credit quality
ghangsifimercial loan growth. The provision expense related to the loans-held-in-portfolio for the nine months ended September 30,
2024 was $189.3 million, compared to the provision expense of $126.3 million for the nine months ended September 30,

%8 to Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, and to the Provision for Credit Losses section of this MD&A for additional
information.
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Table 29 - Allowance for Credit Losses - Loan Portfolios

September 30, 2024

Total non-

Total loans held-  ACL to loans held- performing loans performing loans

ACL to non-

Commercial
Commercial multi-family $ 9,642 $ 2,405,302 0.40 % $ 8,787 109.73 %
Commercial real estate non-owner occupied 67,630 5,185,381 1.30 % 9,775 691.87 %
Commercial real estate owner occupied 52,915 3,092,393 1.71 % 48,848 108.33 %
Commercial and industrial 136,361 7.400.553 184 % 24,885 547,96 %
Total Commercial $ 266548 $ 18.083.629 147 %$ 92,295 288.80 %
Construction 13,214 1,113,307 119 % - N.M.
Leasing 15,854 1,887,052 0.84 % 7,367 215.20 %
Mortgage 81,650 7,993,348 1.02 % 186,354 43.81 %
Consumer
Credit cards 92,694 1,186,893 7.81 % - N.M.
Home equity lines of credit 1,854 69,691 2.66 % 3,834 48.36 %
Personal 104,542 1,873,175 5.58 % 22,829 457.94 %
Auto 161,313 3,818,607 4.22 % 47,828 337.28 %
Other Consumer 6,651 169,265 3.93 % 891 746.46 %
Total Consumer $ 367,054 $ 7,117,631 516 %$ 75,382 486.93 %
Total $ 744320 $ 36,194,967 206 %$ 361,398 205.96 %
N.M. - Not meaningful.
Table 30 - Allowance for Credit Losses - Loan Portfolios
December 31, 2023
Total non- ACL to non-

Total loans held-

ACL to loans held-

performing loans

performing loans

(Dollars in thousands) Total ACL in-portfolio in-portfolio held-in-portfolio__held-in-portfolio
Commercial
Commercial multi-family $ 13,740 $ 2,415,620 057 % $ 1,991 690.11 %
Commercial real estate non-owner occupied 65,453 5,087,421 1.29 % 9,862 663.69 %
Commercial real estate owner occupied 56,864 3,080,635 1.85 % 35,704 159.27 %
Commercial and industrial 122,356 7,126,121 172 % 36,5908 334.32 %
Total Commercial $ 258413 $ 17,709,797 146 % $ 84,155 307.07 %
Construction 12,686 959,280 1.32 % 6,378 198.90 %
Leasing 9,708 1,731,809 0.56 % 8,632 112.47 %
Mortgage 83,214 7,695,917 1.08 % 186,297 44.67 %
Consumer
Credit cards 80,487 1,135,747 7.09 % - N.M.
Home equity lines of credit 1,978 65,953 3.00 % 3,733 52.99 %
Personal 117,790 1,945,247 6.06 % 21,836 539.43 %
Auto 157,931 3,660,780 4.31 % 45,615 346.23 %
Other Consumer 7,134 160,441 4.45 % 965 739.27 %
Total Consumer $ 365,320 _ $ 6,968,168 524% $ 72,149 506.34 %
Total $ 729341 $ 35064971 208 % $ 357,611 203.95 %

N.M. - Not meaningful
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Annualized net charge-offs
(recoveries)
The following tables present annualized net charge-offs (recoveries) to average loans held-in-portfolio (‘HIP”) by loan category for

the quarters and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and
2023.

Table 31 - Annualized Net Charge -offs (Recoveries) to Average Loans Held-in-Portfolio

Quarters ended

September 30, 2024 September 30, 2023

BPPR Popular U.S. Popular Inc. BPPR Popular U.S. Popular Inc.
Commercial 0.13 % 0.02 % 0.08 % (0.48)% 0.10 % (0.21)%
Construction (2.33) — (0.37) 6.11 — 1.21
Mortgage (0.24) (0.01) (0.20) (0.25) (0.02) (0.21)
Leasing 0.49 — 0.49 0.35 — 0.35
Consumer 3.14 7.17 3.26 2.20 7.42 2.41
Total annualized net charge-offs
(recoveries) to average loans held-in-
portfolio 0.86 % 0.15 % 0.65 % 0.44 % 0.28 % 0.39 %

Nine months ended

September 30, 2024 September 30, 2023

BPPR Popular U.S. Popular Inc. BPPR Popular U.S. Popular Inc.
Commercial 0.21 % 0.03 % 0.13 % (0.20)% 0.03 % (0.10)%
Construction (0.82) (0.01) (0.14) 2.14 — 0.45
Mortgage (0.25) (0.01) (0.21) (0.24) (0.02) (0.20)
Leasing 0.64 — 0.64 0.28 — 0.28
Consumer 2.93 7.43 3.07 1.96 5.65 212
Total annualized net charge-offs
(recoveries) to average loans held-in-
portfolio 0.86 % 0.18 % 0.66 % 0.44 % 0.19 % 0.36 %

NCOs for the quarter ended September 30, 2024, amounted to $58.5 million, increasing by $25.9 million when compared to
e period in 2023. The BPPR segment increased by $29.0 million mainly driven by higher consumer and commercial NCOs
$¥8.2 million and $13.7 million, respectively. The consumer NCOs continue to gradually increase mainly due to credit
ghaliyes. The PB segment NCOs decreased by $3.1 million, mainly driven by lower commercial and consumer NCOs.

NCOs for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, amounted to $174.4 million, increasing by $84.9 million when compared
the same period in 2023. The BPPR segment increased by $84.7 million mainly driven by higher consumer and commercial
DCEES.9 million and $28.1 million, respectively. The consumer NCOs increase was mainly due to credit quality changes,
fifentioned above. The PB segment NCOs remained flat.

Loan Modifications

For the quarter ended September 30, 2024, modified loans to borrowers with financial difficulty amounted to $146 million, of

i million were in accruing status. The BPPR segment's modifications to borrowers with financial difficulty amounted to $135
million, mainly comprised of commercial and mortgage loans of $113 million and $17 million, respectively. A total of $11 million of
the mortgage modifications were related to government guaranteed loans. The Popular U.S. segment’s modifications to borrowers
with financial difficulty amounted to $11 million, mostly comprised of commercial loans.

Refer to Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on modifications made to borrowers
experiencing financial difficulties.
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ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS
Refer to Note 3, “New Accounting Pronouncements” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market

Risk

Quantitative and qualitative disclosures for the current period can be found in the Market Risk section of this report, which
EWAH@%‘& in market risk exposures from disclosures presented in the 2023 Form 10-K.

Item 4. Controls and

Breersldiigscontrols and

?ﬁ@‘@gﬂiﬁﬁtion’s management, with the participation of the Corporation’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has
evaluated the effectiveness of the Corporation’s disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e)

QBE—lS(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based

on such evaluation, the Corporation’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of the end of such

period, the Corporation’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective in recording, processing, summarizing and reporting, on

fimely basis, information required to be disclosed by the Corporation in the reports thatit files or submits under the Exchange

ARH such information is accumulated and communicated to management, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosures.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that occurred during the quarter ended September 30, 2024 that have materially affected, or
are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting.

Part Il - Other Information

Item 1. Leqgal Proceedings

For a discussion of Legal Proceedings, see Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Item 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the other information set forth in this report, you should carefully consider the risk factors discussed under “Part | -

H@AM Risk Factors” in our 2023 Form 10-K. These factors could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, liquidity,
results of operations and capital position, and could cause our actual results to differ materially from our historical results or the
results contemplated by the forward-looking statements contained in this report. Also refer tothe discussionin “Partl -Item 2-—
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in this report for additional information
that may supplement or update the discussion of risk factors below and in our 2023 Form 10-K.

There have been no material changes to the risk factors previously disclosed under Item 1A of the Corporation’s 2023 Form 10-
K.

The risks described in our 2023 Form 10-K and in this report are not the only risks facing us. Additional risks and uncertainties not
currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial also may materially adversely affect our business, financial
condition, liquidity, results of operations and capital position.

Item 2. _Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
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The Corporation did not have any unregistered sales of equity securities during the quarter ended September 30,

2024.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table sets forth the details of purchases of common stock by the Corporation and its affiliated purchasers during the

quarter ended September 30,
2024:

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Not in thousand

Approximate Dollar Value of

Total Number of Shares Shares that May Yet be

Total Number of Average Price Paid per Purchased as Part of Publicly Purchased Under the Plans or

Period Shares Purchased [1] Share Announced Plans or Programs [2] Programs [2]
July 1 - July 31 2,668 $ 87.72 = $500,000,000
August 1 - August 31 303,638 97.14 303,202 470,550,231
September 1 - September 30 296,145 99.11 295,894 441,224,007
Total 602,451 $ 98.06 599,096 $441,224,007

[1] Includes 2,668, 436 and 251 shares of the Corporation's common stock acquired by the Corporation during July, August and September 2024,
respectively, in connection with the satisfaction of tax withholding obligations on vested awards of restricted stock or restricted stock units granted to
directors and certain employees under the Corporation’s Omnibus Incentive Plan. The acquired shares of common stock were added back to treasury
stock.

[2] As part of its capital plan, in July 2024, the Corporation announced plans to repurchase up to  $500 million in common stock and repurchases began
in August 2024. Asof September 30, 2024, the Corporation completed the repurchase of 599,096 shares of common stock for $58.8 million atan
average price of $98.11 per share, under the previously announced share repurchase authorization.

Item 3. _Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4. _Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information

Rule 10b5-1 Trading Plans or Other Preplanned Trading

Arrangements
Certain of our officers or directors have made, and may from time to time make, elections to participate in, anpatiipating in,

our dividend reinvestment and purchase plan, the Company stock fund associated with our 401(k) plans and/or the Company stock
fund associated with our non-qualified deferred compensation plans and have shares withheld to cover withholding taxes upon the
vesting of equity awards, which may be designed to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5-1 under the
JR¥EBARGSY constitute non-Rule 10b5—trading arrangements (as defined in Item 408(c) of Regulation S-K).
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Item 6. _Exhibits
Exhibit Index

Exhibit No Exhibit Description

22.1 Issuers of Guaranteed Securities (Incorporated by referenceto Exhibit 22.1 of Popular, Inc.’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023)

31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-OxleyAct of 2002

32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 _of the

“of 2002V

322 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Satearest-of 20029

101. INS XBRL Instance Document — the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because
its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline Document.

101.SCH Inline Taxonomy Extension Schema Documert?

101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Documefit

101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definitions Linkbase Documefit

101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documer#

101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Documefit

104 The cover page of Popular, Inc. Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,

2024, formatted in Inline XBRL (included within the Exhibit 101 attachments)

(1) Included herewith

Popular, Inc. has not filed as exhibits certain instruments defining the rights of holders of debt of Popular, Inc.
ayceeding 10% of the total assets of Popular, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries. Popular, Inc. hereby agrees to
furnish upon request to the Commission a copy of each instrument defining the rights of holders of senior
anbordinated debt of Popular, Inc., or of any of its consolidated subsidiaries.
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/763901/000119312524053017/d52551dex221.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/763901/000119312524053017/d52551dex221.htm
file:///tmp/T4503/0ad44e8f-b8ac-4a0c-a022-e627dcf14336/d901446dex311.htm
file:///tmp/T4503/0ad44e8f-b8ac-4a0c-a022-e627dcf14336/d901446dex311.htm
file:///tmp/T4503/0ad44e8f-b8ac-4a0c-a022-e627dcf14336/d901446dex312.htm
file:///tmp/T4503/0ad44e8f-b8ac-4a0c-a022-e627dcf14336/d901446dex312.htm
file:///tmp/T4503/0ad44e8f-b8ac-4a0c-a022-e627dcf14336/d901446dex321.htm
file:///tmp/T4503/0ad44e8f-b8ac-4a0c-a022-e627dcf14336/d901446dex321.htm
file:///tmp/T4503/0ad44e8f-b8ac-4a0c-a022-e627dcf14336/d901446dex321.htm
file:///tmp/T4503/0ad44e8f-b8ac-4a0c-a022-e627dcf14336/d901446dex322.htm
file:///tmp/T4503/0ad44e8f-b8ac-4a0c-a022-e627dcf14336/d901446dex322.htm
file:///tmp/T4503/0ad44e8f-b8ac-4a0c-a022-e627dcf14336/d901446dex322.htm

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on

B&half by the undersigned thereunto duly
authorized.

POPULAR. INC.

(Registrant)

Date: November 12, 2024 By: /s/ Jorge J.
Garcia
Jorge J. Garcia
Executive Vice President &

Chief Financial Officer
Date: November 12, 2024 By: /s/ Denissa M. Rodriguez

Denissa M. Rodriguez

Senior Vice President & Corporate Comptroller
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m POPULAR, Inc.

CERTIFICATION
EXHIBIT 31.1

I, Ignacio Alvarez, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of Popular, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or om

material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
were

made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this re
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the regit

and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining dis
controls

and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal co
financial

reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)
Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and |

designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registran
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others-within—these- entities, particu

period in which this report is being prepared; Chief Executive

Officer
b)
Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control

reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding 1
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in i

1
generally accepted accounting principles;






m POPULAR, Inc.

CERTIFICATION
EXHIBIT 31.2

I, Jorge J. Garcia, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of Popular, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or om
material

fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statemel
made, not

misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this re

present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the regis
and

for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining dis
controls and

procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over fi
reporting (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls i
be

designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the regi
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withigﬁfﬂw&sr%in@ﬂﬁ{@s, particularly dt

i

which this report is being prepared;

b) 1
Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over fi






m POPULAR, Inc.

EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. Section 1350

——  Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, the undersigned officer of Popular, Inc. (the "Con

certifies that the Company's Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2024
fully

complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange .
and

that the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the finan
and

results of operations of the Company.

Dated:November 12,

2024 By: /s/Ignacio Alvarez

Name: Ignacio Alvarez

Title: Chief Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement has been provided to the Company and will be retain

Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. Section 1350

——  Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, the undersigned officer of Popular, Inc. (the "Con

certifies that the Company's Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2024
fully

complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange .
and

that the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the finan
and

results of operations of the Company.

Dated:November 12,

2024 By: /s/ Jorge J. Garcia

Name: Jorge J. Garcia

Title: Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement has been provided to the Company and will be retaine

Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.






